
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor/Chair 
Grant House 
Mayor Pro Tempore/Vice Chair 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator/ 
Executive Director 

Bendy White 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney/Agency Counsel 

Das Williams 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Dale Francisco 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Michael Self 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov

JUNE 29, 2010 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council and Redevelopment Agency meetings begin at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the 
Council/Redevelopment Agency after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s 
Office located at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting, 
and at the beginning of each special Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting, any member of the public may address them 
concerning any item not on the Council/Redevelopment Agency agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should 
first complete and deliver a “Request to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the 
Council/Redevelopment Agency.  Should Council/Redevelopment Agency business continue into the evening session of a 
regular Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting at 6:00 p.m., the Council/Redevelopment Agency will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The Council/Redevelopment Agency, 
upon majority vote, may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or 
Council/Redevelopment Agency regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should 
first complete and deliver a “Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance 
Committee or Council/Redevelopment Agency. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the 
Council/ Redevelopment Agency.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the Council/Redevelopment Agency 
upon request of a Council/Agency Member, City staff, or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be 
approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your 
“Request to Speak” form, you should come forward to speak at the time the Council/Redevelopment Agency considers the 
Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV Channel 18, 
and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in Spanish on 
Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check the City TV 
program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for any changes 
to the replay schedule. 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

 
 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:00 Noon - Special Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting  
 2:00 p.m. - Special Redevelopment Agency Meeting 
 4:00 p.m. - Appeal Of Parks And Recreation Commission Approval Of 2010  
   West Beach Music And Arts Festival (Estimated Time) 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:00 NOON IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBER (120.03) 

Subject:  Discussion Of Possible Revisions To Animal Licensing Requirements 
(520.05) 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee discuss and provide information and 
direction regarding possible revisions to Municipal Code Chapter 6.12, Dog Licensing, 
to include a mandated consultation with a veterinarian prior to the ownership of an 
unaltered dog or cat. 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 1 



 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
SPECIAL REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

 
 
 
AFTER

 
NOON SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

CITY COUNCIL 

1. Subject:  May 2010 Investment Report (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the May 2010 Investment Report. 
  

2. Subject:  Adoption Of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Ordinance  (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Municipal Code by 
Revising Chapter 28.80 and Establishing Revised Regulations and Procedures 
for Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensaries. 
  

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Fiscal Year 2011 Unpaid Furlough And 
Related Labor Agreement Updates (Managers, Supervisors, And General 
Employees)  (440.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the 2008-2010 Memorandum 
of Understanding Between the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara City 
Employees' Association (General Unit) to Extend the Term of the Agreement 
Through September 30, 2011, and Include a Supplemental Agreement 
Regarding Furlough and Other Layoff Avoidance Measures for Fiscal Year 2011. 
  

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 2 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Municipal Code Title 17 
Regarding Waterfront Department Policies (570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Title 17 Sections 17.18.050, 17.20.005 (I) and (L), 17.20.255, 17.28.010, 
17.28.020, and 17.28.070 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code Pertaining to 
Operations at the Waterfront. 
  

5. Subject:  Resolution For Purchase Of Property At 306 West Ortega Street 
For The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara to Acquire and Accept Certain Property 
Interests Located at 306 West Ortega Street, and, Subject to Review and 
Approval by the City Attorney as to Their Form, Authorizing the Public Works 
Director to Execute Three Agreements, Being an Agreement for Acquisition of 
Real Property with Escrow Instructions, an Option to Purchase Agreement, and 
an Interim Vacancy Agreement, and Any Escrow Documents that May be 
Required, All Relating to the Proposed Ortega Street Bridge Replacement 
Project, and Consenting to the Recordation of the Related Grant Deed in the 
Official Records, County of Santa Barbara. 
  

6. Subject:  Renewal Of Agreement For Paratransit Services With Easy Lift 
Transportation, Incorporated (670.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute 
an agreement with Easy Lift Transportation, Incorporated (Easy Lift), for 
paratransit services for elderly and mobility-impaired people, in an amount not to 
exceed $229,416.73 for Fiscal Year 2011. 
  

7. Subject:  Agreement With The Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 
For Transit Services (150.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
Fiscal Year 2011 Master Agreement (Agreement), in a form of agreement 
acceptable to the City Attorney, with the Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit 
District (MTD) for transit services in an amount not to exceed $1,391,521. 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 3 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

8. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Preparation 
Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Granite Construction Company (Granite), in their 

low bid amount of $720,254 for construction of the Zone 4 Pavement 
Preparation Project (Project), Bid No. 3600; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $72,025 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; and  

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers 
and Associates (Flowers), in the amount of $67,700 for construction 
support services, and approve expenditures of up to $6,770 for extra 
services of Flowers that may result from necessary changes in the scope 
of work. 

9. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Maintenance 
Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Pavement Coatings Company, waiving minor 

irregularities, in their low bid amount of $1,995,261.50, for construction of 
the Zone 4 Rejuvenating Cape Seal Project (Project), Bid No. 3601; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $199,526 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; and 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers 
and Associates (Flowers) in the amount of $242,480, for construction 
support services, and approve expenditures of up to $24,248 for extra 
services of Flowers that may result from necessary changes in the scope 
of work. 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 4 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

10. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Parma Park Equestrian Staging 
Area Project (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc. (Lash), in their low bid 

amount of $170,241 for construction of the Parma Park Equestrian 
Staging Area Project (Project), Bid No. 3539; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $17,000 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; and 

C. Authorize the General Services Manager to issue a Purchase Order to 
Fugro West (Fugro) in the amount of $4,500 for material testing services, 
and approve expenditures of up to $500 for extra services of Fugro that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

11. Subject:  Contract For Assessment Of Secondary Wastewater Treatment 
Processes At The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Brown and Caldwell in the amount of $263,151 for engineering and 
scientific assessment services for the evaluation of secondary wastewater 
treatment processes at the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (El Estero), 
and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$21,470 for extra services of Brown and Caldwell that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 
  

12. Subject:  Contract For Architectural Design Services At 13 East Cabrillo 
Boulevard For The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
City Professional Services contract with Lenvik and Minor Architects (Lenvik) in 
the amount of $262,782 for architectural design services for the remodeling of 13 
East Cabrillo Boulevard, as part of the Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement 
Project (Project), and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $39,420 for extra services that may result from necessary 
or unforeseen changes in the scope of work. 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 5 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

13. Subject:  Approval Of Equipment Standardization For The Water Resources 
Division (330.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council find it to be in the City's best interest to approve 
equipment standardization for the Water Resources Division (Water Resources) 
for the next five-year period, in accordance with Section 4.52.080 (k) of the 
Municipal Code. 
  

14. Subject:  Rescission Of Parcel Map Approval - 222 West Alamar Street 
(640.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council rescind their approval of Parcel Map No. 20,771 
for the property at 222 West Alamar Street. 
  

15. Subject:  Agreements For Afterschool Recreation Programs (570.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to enter into two agreements 

with the Santa Barbara School Districts (SBSD) for the Recreation 
Afterschool Program (RAP), and Afterschool Opportunities for Kids (A-
OK); and 

B. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to enter into an agreement 
with the Santa Barbara School Districts and Police Activities League (PAL) 
for the Junior High Afterschool Sports Program. 

16. Subject:  Public Hearing For 2008 Disaster Recovery Initiative Program 
Funding Application (150.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Approving an Application for Funding and the Execution of 
a Grant Agreement and Any Amendments Thereto from the 2008 Disaster 
Recovery Initiative Fund Allocation of the State Community Development 
Block Grant Program; and 

B. Ratify the City Administrator's execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Santa Barbara and the Goleta Sanitary 
District for relocation of the San Pedro Creek Sewer Line. 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 6 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

17. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Planning Commission 
Denial Of 401½ Old Coast Highway (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of August 17, 2010, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed 

by Garcia Architects, Inc., Agent for William Pritchett, of the Denial of an 
application for Modifications for property located at 401½ Old Coast 
Highway, Assessor's Parcel No. 015-291-010, C-P Restricted 
Commercial/R-2 Two Family Residence Zones, General Plan Designation:  
12 Units per Acre.  The proposed project involves a request to convert 
existing commercial space to an additional residential unit; and 

B. Set the date of August 16, 2010, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the property 
located at 401½ Old Coast Highway. 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

18. Subject:  Construction Contract For Brinkerhoff Avenue Lighting Project 
(530.04) 

Recommendation:    
A.   That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of 

the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Adopting the Findings Required 
by Health and Safety Code Section 33445 for Redevelopment Agency 
Funding of Capital Improvements to the Lower West Downtown Street 
Lighting Project and Authorizing Certain Other Actions; and  

B.  That the Redevelopment Agency Board authorize the expenditure of 
$47,599 for construction by Taft Electric Company (Taft), and design 
support services by Smith Engineering (Smith), for the Lower West 
Downtown Street Lighting Project - Brinkerhoff Phase (Project), Bid No. 
3609, a component of the Lower West Downtown Street Lighting Project. 

19. Subject:  Memorandum Of Understanding Regarding The State Courthouse 
Application (150.04) 

Recommendation:  That the City Council and Agency Board authorize the City 
Administrator/Agency Executive Director to execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City and the Redevelopment Agency and the State 
of California, acting by and through the Judicial Council of California 
(Administrative Office of the Courts), in a form of agreement acceptable to the 
City Attorney, regarding the planning and design of a possible new criminal 
courthouse in Santa Barbara. 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 7 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (CONT’D) 

20. Subject:  Loan For New Housing Authority Project - Bradley Studios 

Recommendation:  That the Redevelopment Agency: 
A. Approve and appropriate $1.6 million from the unappropriated reserves of 

the Redevelopment Agency (Agency) Affordable Housing Setaside funds 
for a loan to Bradley Studios L.P. to assist in the development of a 54-unit 
low income rental housing project at 512-518 Bath Street and, if required, 
approve subordination of the loan to construction financing and tax credit 
regulatory agreements; and 

B. Approve amending the terms of the Agency's 2008 site acquisition loan of 
$4.8 million to the Housing Authority to make terms of the existing Agency 
loan consistent with the terms of the new Agency loan, and, if required, 
approve subordination of the existing loan to construction financing and 
tax credit regulatory agreements. 

NOTICES 

21. The City Clerk has on Thursday, June 24, 2010, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

22. Cancellation of the City Council and Redevelopment Agency meetings of July 6, 
2010. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 

REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 8 



 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

23. Subject:  Adoption Of The Operating And Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 
2011  (230.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only: 
A. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the 

Budget for the Fiscal Year 2011 by Appropriating Moneys for the Use and 
Support of Said City from the Funds and to the Purposes Herein 
Specified; 

B. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing the 
City's Appropriation Limitation for Fiscal Year 2011; 

C. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing 
Certain City Fees, and Rescinding Resolution Nos. 09-043, 09-064, 09-
086, 09-089 and 10-009; 

D. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing 
Classified and Unclassified Positions in the City's Service Effective July 1, 
2010, and Providing a Schedule of Classifications and Salaries for the 
Same in Accordance with the Operating Budget for the 2011 Fiscal Year; 

E. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the 
Continuation of Capital and Special Project Appropriations to Fiscal Year 
2011; 

F. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara for Paying and 
Reporting the Value of Employer-Paid Member Contributions (EPMC) for 
Regular Miscellaneous Employees Effective June 19, 2010; and 

G. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara for Employer-Paid 
Member Contributions for Hourly Employees Effective June 19, 2010. 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY REPORTS 

24. Subject:  Redevelopment Agency Operating Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
And Associated Documents (620.03) 

Recommendation:    
A.  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of 

the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Parking Operations Agreement for 
Parking Structure No. 2, Parking Structure No. 10, Parking Lot No. 11, 
Parking Lot No. 12, the Granada Garage Complex, the Railroad Station 
Parking Lots, and the Two Transportation Management Program 
Employee Parking Lots, Between the City of Santa Barbara and the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara for Fiscal Year 2011; 

 
(Cont’d)

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 9 



 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY REPORTS (CONT’D) 
 
24. (Cont’d) 
 

B. That the Agency Board adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Parking 
Operations Agreement for Parking Structure No. 2, Parking Structure No. 
10, Parking Lot No. 11, Parking Lot No. 12, the Granada Garage 
Complex, the Railroad Station Parking Lots, and the Two Transportation 
Management Program Employee Parking Lots, Between the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara and the City of Santa 
Barbara for Fiscal Year 2011; and 

C. That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of 
the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Budget of the Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Santa Barbara for Fiscal Year 2011. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D) 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

25. Subject:  Storefront Medical Marijuana Dispensary Ballot Measure (110.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Calling and Giving Notice of the Holding of a Special 
Municipal Election to be Held in the City on Tuesday, November 2, 2010, 
for the Submission of a Proposed Ordinance to the Voters to Amend the 
City Zoning Ordinance to Prohibit the Operation or Maintenance of 
Storefront Medical Marijuana Dispensaries Within the City of Santa 
Barbara;  

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Santa Barbara to Consolidate a Special Municipal Election to be Held on 
November 2, 2010, with the Statewide General Election to be Held on that 
Date Pursuant to Section 10403 of the Elections Code;  

C. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial Analysis 
of the City Measure to be Placed on the Ballot for the November 2, 2010, 
Special Municipal Election of the City of Santa Barbara; and 

D. Determine whether the City Council or any individual member(s) of City 
Council will file an argument regarding the measure and, if so, adopt, by 
reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Authorizing the Filing of a Written Argument Regarding a City 
Measure to be Placed on the Ballot for the November 2, 2010, Special 
Municipal Election. 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 10 



 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

26. Subject:  Appointments To City Advisory Groups (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council make appointments to the City advisory groups. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

27. Subject:  Appeal Of Parks And Recreation Commission Approval Of 2010 
West Beach Music And Arts Festival (570.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.   Grant the appeals filed by Tony Romasanta, Owner of Harbor View Inn, 

and Hilary Kleger, West Beach resident, to overturn the May 19, 2010, 
Parks and Recreation Commission decision to permit the 2010 West 
Beach Music and Arts Festival;  

B.   Continue the Parks and Recreation Department suspension of permitting 
large scale music events with amplified sound until a review of related City 
policies, regulations, and fees is completed; and 

C.   Direct staff to proceed with developing necessary policies, regulations, 
and fee recommendations related to permitting of large special events 
held on City properties. 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 

CLOSED SESSIONS 

28. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police Officers 
Association, Police Managers Association, General Bargaining Unit, the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Firefighters Association, and the Hourly 
Bargaining Unit, and regarding discussions with unrepresented management and 
confidential employees about salaries and fringe benefits.  
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 

6/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 11 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: June 29, 2010 Bendy White, Chair 
TIME:  12:00 p.m. Grant House 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Frank Hotchkiss 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Lori Pedersen                                                Stephen P. Wiley 
Administrative Analyst                        City Attorney 
                                                
 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 

Subject:   Discussion of Possible Revisions to Animal Licensing Requirements 
 
Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee discuss and provide information and 
direction regarding possible revisions to Municipal Code Chapter 6.12, Dog Licensing, to 
include a mandated consultation with a veterinarian prior to the ownership of an unaltered 
dog or cat.   
 
 
 
 
 



File Code No.  520.05 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 

 
AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: Chief’s Staff, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion of Possible Revisions to Animal Licensing Requirements  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Ordinance Committee discuss and provide information and direction regarding 
possible revisions to Municipal Code Chapter 6.12, Dog Licensing, to include a mandated 
consultation with a veterinarian prior to the ownership of an unaltered dog or cat.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On January 1, 2010, Santa Barbara County adopted a County ordinance recommending 
the spay or neuter of all dogs and cats prior to licensing (Attachment).  The ordinance 
further mandated that, prior to an owner retaining an unaltered animal, an owner must 
consult with a veterinarian to consider the overall circumstances of the animal.   
 
Currently, there is no requirement in the City of Santa Barbara to license cats, and while  
the City encourages dogs to be spayed or neutered through reduction of licensing fees,  
there is no City imposed requirement to alter dogs.  
 
On March 2, 2010, Councilmembers House and White requested discussion at City 
Council regarding the issue of amending Municipal Code Chapter 6.12 and establishing an 
ordinance similar to Santa Barbara County, mandating consultation with a veterinarian 
prior to the purchase of an unaltered animal license.  The Council referred the matter to 
the Ordinance Committee for review.  It is hoped that the Committee will provide direction 
to staff on whether to proceed with possible ordinance amendments.  Staff from the 
County Animal Services Department will provide an overview of their animal licensing 
requirements and be available for questions.  
 
ATTACHMENT: Santa Barbara County Ordinance Regarding Animal Licensing  
 
PREPARED BY: Lieutenant David Whitham, Administrative Services Division 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SANTA BARBARA COUNTY CODE:
CHAPTER 7—ANIMALS AND FOWL

ORDINANCE NO. 09-

WHEREAS, the number of unwanted dogs and cats in County anmaI shelters
continues to increase; and

WHEREAS, despite the efforts & committed staff and volunteers to find homes
for these dogs and cats, the capacity of the animal sheltering system is consistently
exceeded; and

WHEREAS, many of these animals, are lost, abandoned, or relinquished and
there are too few homes to adopt them; and

WHEREAS, this results in poor outcomes for animals! poor outcomes for County
residents, and increased costs to local jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors established a Spay-
Neuter Task Force under the oversight of the Public Health Department to review the
problem of pet overpopulation within the County and the Spay-Neuter Task Force was
charged to return to the Board as appropriate with proposed draft language for a
spay/neuter ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE, the Spay-Neuter Task Force proposes an amendment to
Chapter? of the County Code by means of this ordinance to reduce pet overpopulation
and promote responsible pet ownership and licensing in response to local needs.

Amondmsnt to Sne Barbara County Cod9 Ch&pter 7—Anim&s and Fowl
Md Ordinance 4705— Animal Ser4cos Fee SchethJ]e
Effective Date January I. 2010



TIE BOARD OF SUERVSOS O THE COUNTY OF SANA B.APBARA, STArE

OF CALIFORNIA, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Chapter 7—Animals and Fowl

is amended to read

Athcje Vi. License. and Tags

Section 7-1 Licenses and Tag.—Requbed.

Unaflred Ar.Eoad License lot R.spoesle Owners

Oi-eis 04 :gs -c cah te acz resçonst. ren xrs Jo ;tw&, 3 ‘ee na
or cat.

(I) Spaying or neutering ot dogs and cats is recomme.,da.

(2) Owners ot dope arid cats may purchase an Unaltered Anima’ License iron Animal

Senjices if a California licensed veterinarian issu a Veterinary Certatcate stafing in

venting that:

The owner has discussed The objectives and purpose for owning the dog Or oat with the

veterinarian, and a’ xnstdering th& v’eerall circumstencss. indudirg Ihe age and

en.I- c ta -s eta-rran coZ .6 -a the cr,e a’,c r ct Wt oar

be sa-.ed ail,i- tie Dna, L sCase . nat,ed Anal-al Le-sa

1: A catentVsteta Ot-ftate is recu,ed each tve en Unaltered Armal Licenses

p, kla sod
S A Vai,c,. Car.i5c, :0, &tet Z•E ea, CI Tie ar 4 ln& krse.

is longer.

(b). For every owner in the County who owns a dog or cat over 5 months of age and whose

animal does not meet the requirements to purchase an Unaltered Animal License, die owner

shall have The dog or oat spayed or netftersd.

(c’. 1nee requirements do not apply to owners ot dogs and cats temporarily vlsting the county
for 30 dafl OT less.

The4e eycets s no , a,mss o(e,s isle .siS r pa,eIS thatae

naec as AS- aic a — inn pace size it 40 aceS

Does NotCuilify tot au UnaA.red Anhial Liosase

ne tt-.o4 J oecs co cr ia’s de o yfa Ja w-r Anna sse:

I) Owner ofoogs Or cats inipounced arid/or alec at large thee ‘mci wLthin a yesr.

(2) Owners of dogs Sr cats convicted in Caliromla for crimes against an,riials and/or

domestic violence.
(3) Dogs whose owners have been found guiltq of an infracon under section 7.66 of this

chapler after their do has bitten, attacked, or caused tnjuiy to e human being or

animal while the dM was running M large.

Licenses

-

tas Ca .rs..i to a a±, :s:nd a tea t ots age c’ one, wes5 a

0a, io terse l be.- p,nci-ea.

.r:. ma corly rial r!y Sas a Jag rcsrse aw tc 53 Ce e,-sei “ bee- acirated

a ,i ,es a metcd 7V V a ceseo ete.a, ai Wo srj ss.e o te c-re

orpefsa er::kd :2 2L4tiO? C’ i :cg 0 e a &s Cr&:& rti ra. C;

information as prescribed by the county veterinarian.

(0). Upon payment oF the license tee and The presentatich ols valid rabies vaownation

certificate. the county shall issue a dog license end dog tag to the person paying the Ucense

lee. The dog tag shall be seourely affixed to the dog and shall remain attached at all times.

, eert.a Ss.ny Dzna ‘Sf& I .e.,as a,,d ro

A’4 Cnnca 47S5 —
Anma Se-.s ea Svacc

Ei#ctive Daze Jantsen, I 2010



(ri). A county dog license shall be valid for a period not to exceed three years and the license
period shall not extend beyond the remaining period of validity for The current rabies
acciflation.

Unaltered Cat Licenses
(a). It shall be unEavtul to own or hee custody of an unalterod cat six months of age or older

unless Unaltered Animal License has been procured.
rb). Upon payment of the license fee and the presentation of a current Veterinary Certificate, the

county shall issue an Unaltered Min,aI License and cal ‘icense tag to the person paying the
lioense fee. The cat tag shall be securely affixed to the cat and shall remain attached at all
times.

)o). An Unaltered Animal License for a cat shall be valid for one year.

General
(a). An Unaltered Animal License consdtutes a breeders license. The Unaltered Mimal License

number will be displayed in any advertisements to selt or give away offspring of the animal.
(b). For each Unartered AnimaL License sold. $10 will be deposited into the Animal Services

Spay/Neuter Agency Fund to be used for services such as: educaicnat outreach and spay
or neuter subsidies.

Enforcement ResponsIbIlIty
The Director àf Animal Services shall be responsible for the adminisfltion and enlorcen,ent of
this ordir,ance. My request for review of a denial for an Unaltered Animal License shall be
submitted in writing to the Director o1 Animal Services who shall bold a hearing.

Article IX. Transfer of Doga and Cats

Section 77. Transfer of Dogs and Cats

(a). fletlnltlon- Transfer’ shall mean any transaction in which a dog, puppy, cat or kitten is
delivered to a new owner, and shall include, but not be iiniited to, the sale, sale at auction.
barten exchange, gift or adoption of any dog, puppy. cat or kiten.

(b). Health Records- My individual who flnsfers a dog, cat, puppy or kitten to a new owner
shall authorize access to the antmaEs health and vacoinadon records, including the name of
the licensed veterinarian who examined tue animal. The individual transferring the anImal(s)
shall also provide the new owner with a copy of this ordinance if the new owner resides in
Santa Berbara County; or therequirements of H&S Code seclions 122045-122110 and
I 22l2-2231 5 (Polanco-Lockyer Pet Breeder Warranty Act and the Lockyer-Poianoo Farr
Pet Proteodon Act, respectively) if the new owner resides in California.

(C). Any person athiertising the availabibty of a puppy Cr kitten for transfer must promineny
display the Unaltered Animal License number Ct the mother doa or cat in the advertisement.
Any person advertising the avaiiabiittj of an unaltered dog or cat for transfer must
rominently display the Unaltered Animal License number in the edvertsement.

(d). No dog, puppy, cat or kitten shatl be transterred as a prize.

Amondment to Sante Barbara Coisnfy Code Chapter 7—Animals and Fowl
And Ordinance 4705— Anima/ Sen’ices Fee Schedule
Ehctive Dafe January 1, 2010



Ordinance 4705— AnImal Services Fee Schedule

is amended as IDLLU?,s.

Unaltered Cat LltenS.

Unalinred Anfri,al jcenn Surcharge

aereJ ce-sa soc a O s.gda’o wI ze acia and jazos rJ to e A:a

SeM Say.a Ar:y Fri ) De .sai ic 84flC5 sud’ aa. eIDa:r2 nat
,eflatr.e.z.as

Penalty for fMlurn to IIcene a dog or an onattetd oat $250.00

Sa! ‘S afn CCD C: X6 I — 4tra a’ -

.4-o =-Z6 ea ts,ea-

EffatiVe Date Janut, 2010



PASSED. APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa

Ba-taa Stae e’ Oaa S S) 2C
, te cc* :cte

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT

Chair, Board of Supervisors

ARE &T:
MICHAEL F 9ROW
C.ER( O THE BORC

BY

____________________________

Deputy

A?ROrD AS D FDM
DENNIS MARSHALL
COUNTY COUNSEL

b C€&t1 4
epciy C:rtg Ccs1

Amendment to Sante Barbara Ccun& Cods Chapter 7—Animals and Fowl
And Ordinance 4705— Animal SeMcss Fee Schedule
Ect,ve Date JaI,U8IV 1. 2010



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  260.02 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: May 2010 Investment Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council accept the May 2010 Investment Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached investment report includes Investment Activity, Interest Revenue, a 
Summary of Cash and Investments, and Investment Portfolio detail as of May 31, 2010.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT: May 2010 Investment Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Jill Taura, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Interim Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INTEREST REVENUE

PURCHASES OR DEPOSITS POOLED INVESTMENTS

 5/3 LAIF Deposit - City 2,000,000$         Interest Earned on Investments 322,979$     

5/13 LAIF Deposit - City 1,000,000 Amortization (1,770)

5/17 LAIF Deposit - City 1,000,000 SBB&T Sweep Account Interest 276

5/19 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,000,000 Total 321,485$     

5/24 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,000,000

5/26 LAIF Deposit - City 2,000,000

5/28 Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,000,000

5/28 LAIF Deposit - City 3,500,000

Total 15,500,000$       

SALES, MATURITIES, CALLS OR WITHDRAWALS RDA INVESTMENTS

 5/4 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) - Call (2,000,000)$       Interest Earned on Investments (LAIF) 11,258$       

5/6 LAIF Withdrawal - City (1,000,000)

5/7 LAIF Withdrawal - RDA (7,000,000)

5/10 LAIF Withdrawal - City (2,000,000)

5/19 LAIF Withdrawal - City (1,000,000)

5/20 LAIF Withdrawal - City (2,500,000)

5/20 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) - Call (2,000,000)

5/24 LAIF Withdrawal - City (2,000,000)

Total (19,500,000)$     

ACTIVITY TOTAL (4,000,000)$       TOTAL INTEREST EARNED 332,744$     

A
ttachm

ent 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Activity and Interest Report

May 31, 2010

1



ENDING BALANCE AS OF APRIL 30, 2010

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

State of California LAIF 53,000,000$      0.588% 30.96% 1

Certificates of Deposit 4,000,000 1.500% 2.34% 384

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 100,955,404 2.871% 58.98% 955

Corporate/Medium Term Notes 6,008,050 5.120% 3.51% 218
163,963,454      2.182% 95.79% 606  

SB Airport Promissory Note 7,213,661 7.000% 4.21% 7,000

Totals and Averages 171,177,114$    2.385% 100.00% 875

SBB&T Money Market Account 2,610,547
Total Cash and Investments 173,787,662$    

  

NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR MAY 2010 (2,505 ,951)$           
 

 
ENDING BALANCE AS OF MAY 31, 2010

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

State of California LAIF 47,000,000$      0.580% 28.11% 1 (1)

Certificates of Deposit 4,000,000 1.500% 2.39% 353
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 102,954,009 2.880% 61.58% 967
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 6,007,674 5.120% 3.59% 187

159,961,684      2.254% 95.67% 639

SB Airport Promissory Note 7,213,661 7.000% 4.32% 6,969
Totals and Averages 167,175,345$    2.459% 100.00% 911

SBB&T Money Market Account 4,106,366
Total Cash and Investments 171,281,711$    

  

Note:  

(1) The average life of the LAIF portfolio as of May 31, 2010 is 182 days.

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Cash and Investments

May 31, 2010

2



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VALUE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND - - - - 0.580 0.580 25,500,000.00 25,500,000.00 25,500,000.00 0.00  

LOCAL AGENCY INV FUND/RDA - - - - 0.580 0.580 21,500,000.00 21,500,000.00 21,500,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, LAIF      47,000,000.00 47,000,000.00 47,000,000.00 0.00

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

MONTECITO BANK & TRUST 11/18/09 11/18/10 - - 1.250 1.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

MONTECITO BANK & TRUST 11/18/09 11/18/11 - - 1.750 1.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, Certificates of deposit     4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 0.00

FEDERAL AGENCY ISSUES - COUPON  
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/06/09 04/24/12 Aaa AAA 2.250 2.120 2,000,000.00 2,004,759.20 2,048,440.00 43,680.80  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 10/14/09 10/14/14 Aaa AAA 2.875 2.875 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,019,380.00 19,380.00 Callable 10/14/10, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 11/07/06 01/18/11 Aaa AAA 5.750 5.000 2,000,000.00 2,008,409.97 2,067,190.00 58,780.03  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 01/29/07 08/25/10 Aaa AAA 4.750 5.111 2,000,000.00 1,998,472.85 2,021,260.00 22,787.15  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/04/09 01/17/12 Aaa AAA 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,037,820.00 37,820.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/05/09 03/04/13 Aaa AAA 2.600 2.600 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,065,940.00 65,940.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 05/08/09 04/08/13 Aaa AAA 2.200 2.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,043,130.00 43,130.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 06/19/09 06/18/12 Aaa AAA 2.125 2.125 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,044,690.00 44,690.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 09/30/09 10/03/11 Aaa AAA 1.125 1.125 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,008,750.00 8,750.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 12/01/09 12/01/14 Aaa AAA 2.840 2.840 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,022,810.00 22,810.00 Callable 12/01/10, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 01/13/10 01/13/15 Aaa AAA 3.180 3.180 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,033,440.00 33,440.00 Callable 1/13/11, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 04/30/10 04/09/15 Aaa AAA 2.900 2.916 2,000,000.00 1,998,547.41 2,020,320.00 21,772.59 Callable 4/9/12, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 05/22/07 06/10/11 Aaa AAA 5.250 5.005 2,000,000.00 2,004,479.63 2,091,250.00 86,770.37  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 07/09/07 02/15/11 Aaa AAA 4.000 5.308 2,000,000.00 1,983,380.25 2,049,690.00 66,309.75  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 03/04/09 06/08/12 Aaa AAA 4.375 2.110 1,700,000.00 1,774,733.00 1,800,147.00 25,414.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/15/10 10/15/13 Aaa AAA 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,023,440.00 23,440.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/30/09 06/30/14 Aaa AAA 2.000 3.733 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,036,250.00 36,250.00 SU 5%, Callable 6/30/11, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/17/09 12/13/13 Aaa AAA 3.125 2.440 2,000,000.00 2,045,683.85 2,096,880.00 51,196.15  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/15/10 10/30/12 Aaa AAA 1.700 1.700 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,023,440.00 23,440.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 02/12/10 02/12/15 Aaa AAA 3.000 3.022 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 Callable 5/12/10, then cont.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 03/30/10 09/30/13 Aaa AAA 2.000 2.001 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,018,440.00 18,440.00 Callable 3/30/11, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/05/10 11/29/13 Aaa AAA 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,020,940.00 20,940.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/14/06 09/29/10 Aaa AAA 5.125 5.070 1,000,000.00 1,000,152.47 1,015,630.00 15,477.53  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 05/23/08 06/10/11 Aaa AAA 3.125 3.520 2,000,000.00 1,992,350.90 2,046,250.00 53,899.10  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 05/28/10 05/28/15 Aaa AAA 2.000 2.653 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,007,510.00 7,510.00 SU 3.35%, Callable 11/28/12, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 11/08/06 07/30/10 Aaa AAA 5.000 5.010 2,000,000.00 1,999,963.07 2,015,620.00 15,656.93  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 12/18/06 06/22/10 Aaa AAA 4.500 4.825 2,000,000.00 1,999,654.76 2,005,000.00 5,345.24  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/16/08 12/10/10 Aaa AAA 3.250 3.800 2,000,000.00 1,994,520.27 2,029,690.00 35,169.73  

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

May 31, 2010

3



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VALUE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

May 31, 2010

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/17/09 09/13/13 Aaa AAA 4.375 2.272 2,000,000.00 2,131,304.07 2,176,560.00 45,255.93  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 02/22/10 12/13/13 Aaa AAA 3.125 2.130 2,000,000.00 2,067,153.44 2,096,880.00 29,726.56  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 03/26/10 06/08/12 Aaa AAA 1.375 1.325 2,000,000.00 2,001,982.73 2,014,690.00 12,707.27  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 04/08/09 04/08/13 Aaa AAA 2.500 2.526 2,000,000.00 1,999,147.22 2,032,360.00 33,212.78 Callable 4/08/11, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 05/19/09 11/19/12 Aaa AAA 2.170 2.170 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,027,100.00 27,100.00 Callable 5/19/11, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/03/09 09/21/12 Aaa AAA 2.125 1.699 2,000,000.00 2,019,049.18 2,044,690.00 25,640.82  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 05/13/09 05/13/13 Aaa AAA 2.400 2.400 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,033,600.00 33,600.00 Callable 5/13/11, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 03/16/10 03/16/15 Aaa AAA 3.125 3.125 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,002,220.00 2,220.00 Callable 6/16/10, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 05/29/07 07/06/10 Aaa AAA 4.500 5.070 2,000,000.00 1,998,982.90 2,008,280.00 9,297.10  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 07/30/09 01/30/13 Aaa AAA 2.350 2.350 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,060.00 5,060.00 Callable 7/30/10, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 10/28/09 10/28/14 Aaa AAA 3.000 3.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,020,440.00 20,440.00 Callable 10/28/10, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/09/09 08/17/12 Aaa AAA 1.000 2.420 2,000,000.00 1,939,897.84 1,990,160.00 50,262.16  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 03/26/10 04/25/12 Aaa AAA 1.125 1.197 1,000,000.00 998,648.44 1,003,110.00 4,461.56  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 05/22/07 09/17/10 Aaa AAA 3.880 5.015 2,000,000.00 1,993,902.56 2,020,920.00 27,017.44  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 04/29/09 10/29/12 Aaa AAA 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,013,960.00 13,960.00 Callable 10/29/10, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 03/18/09 09/18/12 Aaa AAA 2.500 2.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,030,940.00 30,940.00 Callable 3/18/11, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 03/23/09 03/23/12 Aaa AAA 2.000 2.491 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,007,190.00 7,190.00 SU 3%, Callable 9/23/10, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/09/09 09/09/14 Aaa AAA 3.250 3.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,016,260.00 16,260.00 Callable 9/09/10, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 03/16/10 09/16/13 Aaa AAA 2.100 2.130 2,000,000.00 1,998,833.33 2,008,120.00 9,286.67 Callable 9/16/10, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/30/09 12/30/14 Aaa AAA 3.000 3.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,380.00 4,380.00 Callable 6/30/10, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 04/15/10 07/15/13 Aaa AAA 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,009,690.00 9,690.00 Callable 10/15/10, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 05/24/10 06/24/13 Aaa AAA 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,310.00 5,310.00 Callable 6/24/11, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 02/27/09 02/24/12 Aaa AAA 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,023,440.00 23,440.00 Callable 2/24/11, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 03/09/10 03/09/15 Aaa AAA 3.000 3.000 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,006,880.00 6,880.00 Callable 9/09/10, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 05/19/10 05/19/15 Aaa AAA 3.125 3.125 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,017,810.00 17,810.00 Callable 11/19/10, then qtrly

     Subtotal, Federal Agencies 102,700,000.00 102,954,009.34 104,333,397.00 1,379,387.66
 

CORPORATE/MEDIUM TERM NOTES

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 01/10/07 02/22/11 Aa2 AA+ 6.125 5.100 2,000,000.00 2,013,229.64 2,072,100.00 58,870.36  

WELLS FARGO & CO. 05/30/07 01/12/11 A1 AA- 4.875 5.260 2,000,000.00 1,995,725.98 2,049,140.00 53,414.02  

WELLS FARGO & CO. 10/10/06 08/09/10 A1 AA- 4.625 5.000 2,000,000.00 1,998,718.84 2,013,380.00 14,661.16  

     Subtotal, Corporate Securities 6,000,000.00 6,007,674.46 6,134,620.00 126,945.54

SB AIRPORT PROMISSORY NOTE (LT)

SANTA BARBARA AIRPORT 07/14/09 06/30/29 - - 7.000 7.000 7,213,660.84 7,213,660.84 7,213,660.84 0.00  

     Subtotal, SBA Note 7,213,660.84 7,213,660.84 7,213,660.84 0.00

TOTALS 166,913,660.84 167,175,344.64 168,681,677.84 1,506,333.20

Market values have been obtained from the City's safekeeping agent, Santa Barbara Bank and Trust (SBB&T).  SBB&T uses Interactive Data Pricing Service, Bloomberg and DTC.

4



 1

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE BY REVISING CHAPTER 
28.80 AND ESTABLISHING REVISED 
REGULATIONS AND PROCEDURES FOR 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA STOREFRONT 
COLLECTIVE DISPENSARIES. 

 
 The City Council of the City of Santa Barbara does ordain 
as follows: 
 
SECTION ONE.  Chapter 28.80 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code, entitled “Medical Marijuana Dispensaries,” is 
amended to read as follows: 
 
Section 28.80.010 Purpose and Intent. 
 
It is the purpose and intent of this Chapter to regulate the 
storefront distribution of medical marijuana in order to ensure 
the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City of 
Santa Barbara. The regulations in this Chapter, in compliance 
with the State Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the State 
Medical Marijuana Program Act (“the SB 420 statutes”), are not 
intended and do not interfere with a patient’s right to use 
medical marijuana as authorized under the Compassionate Use Act 
or the SB 420 statutes, nor do they criminalize the possession 
or cultivation of medical marijuana by specifically defined 
classifications of persons, as authorized under the 
Compassionate Use Act. Under the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 
and the SB 420 statutes, only qualified patients, persons with 
identification cards, and primary caregivers may legally 
cultivate medical marijuana collectively and provide it to 
qualified patients or person with identifications cards. 
Therefore, medical marijuana collectives within the City which 
choose to operate storefront dispensary locations must comply 
with all provisions of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code (“SBMC”) 
for obtaining a permit for the storefront dispensary as well as 
complying with the Compassionate Use Act, the SB 420 statutes, 
and all other applicable local and state laws. Nothing in this 
Chapter purports to permit activities that are otherwise illegal 
under federal, state, or local laws. 
 
 



 2

Section 28.80.020 Definitions. 
 
For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words and phrases 
shall have the following meanings: 
 

A. Applicant. A person who is required to file an 
application for a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permit under this Chapter, including an 
individual owner, managing partner, officer of a 
corporation, or any other dispensary operator, Management 
Member, employee, or agent of a Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

  
B. Drug Paraphernalia. As defined in California Health and 
Safety Code Section 11014.5, and as may be amended from 
time to time. 

 
C. Identification Card. As defined in California Health and 
Safety Code Section 11362.71 and as may be amended from 
time to time. 
 
D. Management Member. A Medical Marijuana Collective member 
with responsibility for the establishment, organization, 
registration, supervision, or oversight of the operation of 
a Collective including, but not limited to, members who 
perform the functions of president, vice president, 
director, operating officer, financial officer, secretary, 
treasurer, or manager of the Collective.  

 
E. Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary or 
Storefront Collective Dispensary. An incorporated or 
unincorporated association which is composed of four (4) or 
more Qualified Patients and their designated Primary 
Caregivers who associate at a particular location or 
Property within the City in order to collectively or 
cooperatively cultivate marijuana for medical purposes and 
who, acting through Management Members, distribute the 
collectively cultivated medical marijuana to the members of 
their Collective at a storefront dispensary located within 
a non-residential zone of Santa Barbara, all in accordance 
with the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (California Health 
and Safety Code sections 11362.5) and Health and Safety 
Code section 11362.7 through 11362.9. For the purposes of 
this Chapter, the term “Medical Marijuana cooperative” (or 
“cooperative”) shall have the same meaning as a “Medical 
Marijuana collective” (or a “collective”) and the term 
“cooperative” shall have the definition and formation 
requirements established for it by state law.  



 3

 
A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not include the 
dispensing of medical marijuana by primary caregivers to 
qualified patients in the following locations so long as 
the location and operation of the clinic, health care 
facility, hospice, or residential care facility is 
otherwise permitted by the Municipal Code and operated in 
the manner required by applicable state laws:  

 
1. a clinic licensed pursuant to Chapter 1 of Division 
2 of the state Health and Safety Code,  

 
2. a health care facility licensed pursuant to Chapter 
Two of Division 2 of the state Health and Safety Code, 

 
3. a residential care facility for persons with 
chronic life-threatening illness licensed pursuant to 
Chapter 3.01 of Division 2 of the state Health and 
Safety Code, 

 
4. residential care facility for the elderly licensed 
pursuant to Chapter 3.2 of Division 2 of the state 
Health and Safety Code, 

 
5. a residential hospice, or a home health agency 
licensed pursuant to Chapter 8 of Division 2 of the 
state Health and Safety Code, 

 
provided that any such clinic, health care facility, 
hospice or residential care facility also fully complies 
with applicable laws including, but not limited to, the 
Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 statutes. 
  
F. Permittee. The Management Member or Members identified 
to the City by an Applicant as such and to whom a City 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit has been issued and 
someone who also qualifies as a primary caregiver. 
  
G. Person with an Identification Card. A person as 
described in California Health and Safety Code Section 
11362.71 through 11362.76, and as amended from time to 
time. 

 
H. Physician. A licensed medical doctors including a doctor 
of osteopathic medicine as defined in the California 
Business and Professions Code. 

 



 4

I. Primary Caregiver.  A person as defined and described in 
either subdivision (d) or (e) of California Health and 
Safety Code Section 11362.7 as it may be amended from time 
to time. 

 
J. Property. The location or locations within the City at 
which Medical Marijuana Collective members and Management 
members associate to collectively or cooperatively 
cultivate or to distribute Medical Marijuana exclusively to 
their Collective members.  
 
K. Qualified Patient. A person as defined and described in 
California Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 et seq., 
and as it may be amended from time to time. For the 
purposes of this Chapter, a Qualified Patient shall also 
include a Person with an Identification Card. 

 
L. School.  An institution of learning for minors, whether 
public or private, offering a regular course of instruction 
required by the California Education Code. This definition 
includes an elementary school, middle, or junior high 
school, senior high school, or any special institution of 
education for persons under the age of eighteen years, 
whether public or private.  
 
M. Reasonable Compensation. Compensation commensurate with 
reasonable wages and benefits paid to employees of federal 
Internal Revenue Code qualified non-profit organizations 
which employees have similar job descriptions and duties, 
as well as a comparable required level of experience and 
education, similar prior earnings or wage history, and 
number of hours typically worked per week. The payment of a 
bonus shall not be considered reasonable compensation.  

 
Section 28.80.030 Storefront Collective Dispensary - Permit 

Required to Operate. 
 
It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in, to conduct or 
carry on (or to permit to be engaged in, conducted or carried 
on) in or upon his or her Property located within the City, the 
operation of a Storefront Collective Dispensary unless an 
Applicant has first obtained and continues to maintain in full 
force and effect a valid Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit 
issued by the City for that Property pursuant to this Chapter.  
 
 
 
 



 5

Section 28.80.040  Imposition of Medical Marijuana Storefront 
Collective Dispensary Permit Fees. 

 
Every application for a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit 
shall be accompanied by an application fee (in an amount 
established by resolution of the City Council) at a amount 
calculated to recover the City’s full cost of reviewing and 
issuing the Storefront Collective Dispensary permit) and the 
filing of a complete required application pursuant to this 
Chapter. The application fee shall not include the standard City 
fees for fingerprinting, photographing, and background check 
costs and shall be in addition to any other business license fee 
or permit fee imposed by this Code or other governmental 
agencies.  
 
Section 28.80.050 Limitations on the Permitted Location of a 

Storefront Collective Dispensary.  
 
A. Permissible Zoning for Storefront Collective Dispensaries. 
Storefront Collectives Dispensaries may only be permitted and 
located on parcels within the City which are zoned for 
commercial uses and on those street block faces listed in the 
exhibit to this Chapter designated as “Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collectives Dispensaries – Allowed Locations” dated 
as of June 22, 2010.  
 
B.  Storefront Locations. Except for those locations shown as 
allowed within the West Pueblo Medical Area on the exhibit 
attached to this Chapter which have been specifically approved 
by the Staff Hearing Officer as non-storefront locations 
pursuant to this Chapter, a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
shall only be located in a visible store-front type ground-floor 
location which provides good public views of the Dispensary 
entrance, its windows, and the entrance to the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary premises from a public street. 
 
C. Commercial Areas and Zones Where Storefront Collective 
Dispensaries Not Permitted. Notwithstanding subparagraph (A) 
above, a Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not be allowed 
or permitted on a parcel located within 1000 feet of another 
permitted or allowed Storefront Collective Dispensary.   
 
D.  Locational Measurements. The distance between a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary and above-listed restrictions shall be 
calculated as a straight line from any parcel line of the 
Property on which the Storefront Collective Dispensary is 
located to the parcel line the real property on which the 



 6

facility, building, or structure, or portion of the building or 
structure, in which the above-listed use occurs or is located.  
 
For the purposes of determining compliance with the locational 
restrictions imposed by this section, the permissibility of a 
proposed Storefront Collective Dispensary location shall be 
determined by City staff based on the date the permit 
application has been deemed complete by the City with the 
earliest complete applications deemed to have priority over any 
subsequent Storefront Collective Dispensary application for any 
particular permissible location. 
 
E. One Collective Dispensary for Each Area of the City. No more 
than one Storefront Collective Dispensary may open or operate in 
each of the areas of the City designated as allowed or 
permissible Collective Dispensary location areas in the exhibit 
attached to this Chapter except for those areas which, at the 
time of the adoption of the ordinance amending this Chapter, 
already have more than one Storefront Collective Dispensary on a 
legal non-conforming basis and which are allowed to continue to 
operate on a legal non-conforming basis under Section Two of the 
Ordinance amending this Chapter - in which case a legal non-
conforming Dispensary may be allowed to continue to operate in 
such an area.  
  
F. Maximum Number of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensaries Allowed Permits. Notwithstanding the above, the 
City may not issue a total of more than three (3) Collective 
Dispensary permits at any one time and, subject to the 
amortization allowance period contained within the uncodified 
portions of the City ordinance adopting amendments to this 
chapter, no more than three (3) permitted or allowed Collective 
Dispensaries may legally operate within the City, including 
specifically those dispensaries which are open and operating in 
a legal nonconforming manner at the time of the adoption of the 
ordinance amending this Chapter.  
 
Section 28.80.060  Storefront Collective Dispensary – Permit 

Application Requirements. 
 
A. Application Filing. A complete Performance Standard Permit 
application submittal packet is required for a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary permit and it shall be submitted (along 
with all required fees) and all other information and materials 
required by this Chapter in order to file a complete application 
for a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit for a specific 
Property. All applications for Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permits shall be filed with the Community Development Department 



 7

using forms provided by the City. It is the responsibility of 
the Applicant to provide all of the information required for 
approval of the permit. The application shall signed by a 
Management Member under penalty of perjury. 
 
B. Eligibility for Filing. If a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permit application is filed by a non-owner of the Property, it 
shall also be accompanied by a written affirmation from the 
Property owner expressly allowing the Applicant and Management 
Member to apply for the Permit and acknowledging the Applicant’s 
right to use and occupy the Property for the intended Medical 
Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary use. 
 
C. Filing Date. The filing date of any application shall be the 
date when the City officially receives the last submission of 
information or materials required in compliance with the 
submittal requirements specified herein and the application has 
been deemed complete in writing by the City. 
 
D. Effect of Incomplete Filing. Upon notification that an 
application submittal is incomplete, the Applicant shall be 
granted an extension of time to submit all materials required to 
complete the application within thirty (30) days. If the 
application remains incomplete in excess of thirty (30) days the 
application shall be deemed withdrawn and new application 
submittal shall be required in order to proceed with the subject 
request.  
 
E. Filing Requirements – Proposed Operational Plan. In 
connection with a permit application, an Applicant for a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit shall provide a detailed 
“Operations Plan” for the proposed Dispensary and, upon issuance 
of the Storefront Collective Dispensary permit by the City, 
shall operate the Storefront Collective Dispensary in accordance 
with the Operations Plan, as approved, at all times. A required 
Operations Plan shall consist of at least the following: 
 

1. Site Plan and Floor Plan. A Storefront Collective 
Dispensary application shall have a proposed site plan and 
floor plan which shows a lobby waiting area at the entrance 
to the Storefront Collective Dispensary used to receive 
qualified patients or primary caregivers, and a separate 
and secure designated area for dispensing medical marijuana 
to qualified patients or designated primary caregivers 
members of the Collective. The primary entrance shall be 
located and maintained clear of barriers, landscaping and 
similar obstructions so that it is clearly visible from 
public streets, sidewalks or site driveways. 



 8

 
2. Storage. A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall have 
suitable locked storage on the premises, identified and 
approved as a part of the operational security plan for the 
after-hours storage of medical marijuana. 

 
3. Security Plans. A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall 
provide a plan to provide adequate security on the premises 
of the Dispensary which shall be maintained in accordance 
with the Dispensary security plan approved by the Chief of 
Police and as reviewed by the Staff Hearing Officer. This 
plan shall include provisions for adequate lighting and 
alarms in order to insure the safety of persons and to 
protect the premises from theft. All security guards used 
by dispensaries shall be licensed and employed by a state 
licensed private-party operator security company retained 
by the Storefront Collective Dispensary and each security 
guard used shall possess a valid state Department of 
Consumer Affairs “Security Guard Card” at all times. 
Security guards shall not possess or carry firearms or 
tazers while working at a Collective Dispensary.  

 
4. Security Cameras. The Security Plan shall show how the 
Property will be monitored at all times by closed-circuit 
television for security purposes. The camera and recording 
system must be of adequate quality, color rendition and 
resolution to allow the ready identification of an 
individual on or adjacent to the Property. The recordings 
shall be maintained at the Property for a period of not 
less than thirty (30) days. 

 
5. Alarm Systems. The Operations Plan shall provide that 
professionally monitored burglary and fire alarm systems 
shall be installed and such systems shall be maintained in 
good working condition within the Storefront Collective 
Dispensary at all times. 

 
6. Emergency Contact. A Operations Plan shall provide the 
Chief of Police with the name, cell phone number, and 
facsimile number of a Management Member to act as an on-
site community relations staff person to whom the City may 
provide notice of any operating problems associated with 
the Storefront Collective Dispensary.  
 
7. Public Nuisance. The Operations Plan shall provide for 
the Management Members of the Collective Dispensary to take 
all reasonable steps to discourage and correct 
objectionable conditions that constitute a public or 



 9

private nuisance in parking areas, sidewalks, alleys and 
areas surrounding the premises and adjacent properties 
during business hours if directly related to the patrons of 
the subject Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

 
8. Loitering Adjacent to a Dispensary. The Operations Plan 
shall provide that the Management Members will take all 
reasonable steps to reduce loitering by Collective members 
in public areas, sidewalks, alleys and areas surrounding 
the Property and adjacent premises during the business 
hours of the Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

 
9. Trash, Litter, Graffiti. The Operations Plan shall 
provide that the Management Members will keep area which 
includes the sidewalks adjoining the Dispensary plus ten 
(10) feet beyond property lines (as well as any parking 
lots under the control of the Dispensary) clear of litter, 
debris, and trash. 

 
10. Removal of Graffiti. The Operations Plan shall provide 
a method for the Management Members to promptly remove all 
graffiti from the Property and parking lots under the 
control of the Collective within 72 hours of its 
appearance. 

 
F. Filing Requirements – Information Regarding Storefront 
Collective Dispensary Management. A Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Applicant shall also provide the following Management 
Member and Collective information as part of a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary application: 
 

1. The name, address, telephone number, title and 
function(s) of each Management Member; 
 
2. For each Management Member, a fully legible copy of one 
(1) valid government issued form of photo identification, 
such as a state driver’s license or identification card.  
Acceptable forms of government issued identification 
include, but are not limited to, driver’s license or photo 
identity cards issued by the state Department of Motor 
Vehicles (or equivalent) that meet REAL ID benchmarks, a 
passport issued by the United States or by a foreign 
government, U.S. Military ID cards (active duty or retired 
military and their dependents) or a Permanent Resident 
card. 

 
3. Written confirmation as to whether the Collective or a 
Management Member of the Collective previously operated in 



 10

this or any other county, city or state under a similar 
license or permit, and whether the Collective or Management 
Member Applicant ever had such a license or permit revoked 
or suspended by and the reason(s)therefore. 

 
4. If the Collective is a corporation or a cooperative, a 
certified copy of the Collective’s Secretary of State 
Articles of Incorporation, Certificate(s) of Amendment, 
Statement(s) of Information and a copy of the Collective’s 
By laws; 

 
5. If the Collective is an unincorporated association, a 
copy of the articles of association; 
 
6. The name and address of the Applicant’s or Collective’s 
current designated Agent for Service of Process; 

 
7. A statement dated and signed by each Management Member, 
of the Collective, under penalty of perjury, that the 
Management Member has personal knowledge of the information 
contained in the Dispensary Application, that the 
information contained therein is true and correct, and that 
the application has been completed under the supervision of 
the identified Management Member(s); 

 
8. Whether Edible Medical Marijuana products will be 
prepared and distributed at the proposed Dispensary 
Property; 

 
9. The Property location or locations where any and all 
Medical Marijuana will be collectively cultivated by the 
Collective members and Management Members; 

 
 
Section 28.80.070 Criteria for Review of Collective Dispensary 

Applications by the City Staff Hearing 
Officer. 

 
A. Decision on Application. Upon an application for a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary permit being deemed complete, the Staff 
Hearing Officer shall either issue a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permit, issue a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permit with conditions in accordance with this Chapter, or deny 
a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit.  
 
B. Criteria for Issuance. The Staff Hearing Officer, or the City 
Council on appeal, shall consider the following criteria in 



 11

determining whether to grant or deny a Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit: 
 

1. That the Collective Dispensary permit and the operation 
of the proposed Dispensary will be consistent with the 
intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 
Statutes for providing medical marijuana to qualified 
patients and primary caregivers and the provisions of this 
Chapter and with the Municipal Code, including the 
application submittal and operating requirements herein. 

 
2. That the proposed location of the Storefront Collective 
Dispensary is not identified by the City Chief of Police as 
an area of increased or high crime activity. 
  
3. For those applicants who have operated other Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries within the City, that there have 
not been significant numbers of calls for police service, 
crimes or arrests in the area of the applicants former 
location. 

 
4. That issuance of a Collective Dispensary permit for the 
Collective Dispensary size requested is appropriate to meet 
needs of community for access to medical marijuana. 

 
5. That issuance of the Collective Dispensary permit would 
serve needs of City residents within a proximity to this 
location. 

 
6. That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of 
this Chapter or any local or state law, statute, rule, or 
regulation and no significant nuisance issues or problems 
are likely or anticipated and that compliance with other 
applicable requirements of the City’s Zoning Ordinance will 
be accomplished.  

 
7. That the Dispensary’s Operations Plan, its site plan, 
its floor plan, the proposed hours of operation, and a 
security plan have incorporated features necessary to 
assist in reducing potential crime-related problems and as 
specified in the operating requirements section. These 
features may include, but are not limited to, security on-
site; procedure for allowing entry; openness to 
surveillance and control of the premises; the perimeter, 
and surrounding properties; reduction of opportunities for 
congregating and obstructing public ways and neighboring 
property; illumination of exterior areas; and limiting 



 12

furnishings and features that encourage loitering and 
nuisance behavior. 

 
8. That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into 
the Dispensary security plan or consistently taken to 
successfully control the establishment’s patrons’ conduct 
resulting in disturbances, vandalism, crowd control inside 
or outside the premises, traffic control problems, 
marijuana use in public, or creation of a public or private 
nuisance, or interference of the operation of another 
business. 

 
9. That the Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to 
have no potentially adverse affect on the health, peace, or 
safety of persons living or working in the surrounding 
area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, or contribute 
to a public nuisance and that the Dispensary will generally 
not result in repeated nuisance activities including 
disturbances of the peace, illegal drug activity, marijuana 
use in public, harassment of passerby, excessive littering, 
excessive loitering, illegal parking, excessive loud 
noises, especially late at night or early in the morning 
hours, lewd conduct, or police detentions or arrests. 

 
10. That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition 
imposed by a City issued permit, or any provision of any 
other local, or state law, regulation, or order, or any 
condition imposed by permits issued in compliance with 
those laws will not be violated. 

 
11. That the Applicant has not made a false statement of 
material fact or has omitted to state a material fact in 
the application for a permit. 

 
12. That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, 
fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business acts or practices 
with respect to the operation of another business within 
the City. 

 
Section 28.80.080 On-Going Management Requirements for Medical 

Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensaries. 

 
Storefront Collective Dispensary operations shall be maintained 
and managed on a day-to-day basis only in compliance with the 
following operational standards and requirements:  
 



 13

A. Criminal History. A Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permittee, including all Management Members of that permittee, 
shall not have been convicted of a felony or be on probation or 
parole for the sale or distribution of a controlled substance 
and shall remain free of such a conviction or probation during 
the period of time in which the Storefront Collective Dispensary 
is being operated. 
 
B. Minors. It shall be unlawful for any Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permittee, a Management Member of the permittee, or 
any other person effectively in charge of any Storefront 
Collective Dispensary to employ any person who is not at least 
18 years of age. Persons under the age of eighteen (18) years 
shall not be allowed on the premises of a Medical Marijuana 
Collective Dispensary unless they are a qualified patient member 
of the Collective and they are accompanied by a parent or 
guardian at all times. The entrance to a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary shall be clearly and legibly posted with a notice 
indicating that persons under the age of eighteen (18) are 
precluded from entering the premises unless they are a qualified 
patient member of the Collective and they are in the presence of 
their parent or guardian. 
 
C. Storefront Collective Dispensary Size and Access. The 
following access restrictions shall apply to all Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries permitted by this Chapter: 
 

1.  A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not be 
enlarged in size (i.e., increased floor area) without prior 
review and approval of the change from the Staff Hearing 
Officer and an approved amendment to the existing 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit pursuant to the 
requirements of this Chapter. 

 
2. An expressly designated Management Member or Members 
shall be responsible for monitoring the Property of the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary for any nuisance activity 
(including the adjacent public sidewalk and rights-of-way) 
which may occur on the block within which the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary is operating. 

 
3. Only Collective members as primary caregivers or 
qualified patients shall be permitted within a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary building for the purposes of 
cultivating, processing, distributing, or obtaining medical 
marijuana. 

 



 14

4. A qualified patient or a primary caregiver shall not 
visit a Storefront Collective Dispensary without first 
having obtained a valid written recommendation from his or 
her licensed physician recommending the use of medical 
marijuana or, in the case of a primary caregiver, without 
first having been expressly designated a primary caregiver 
to a qualified patient as required by the Compassionate Use 
Act.  
 
5. A qualified patient or primary caregiver may not obtain 
medical marijuana upon their first in-person visit to a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary and, instead, may only 
become a member of the Collective at the first visit to a 
particular Dispensary. Upon joining the Collective, a  
registered member of a Collective may obtain medical 
marijuana as a qualified patient or primary caregiver only 
after an initial waiting period of 24 hours after their 
initial in-person visit to the Dispensary for the purposes 
of joining the Collective.  

 
6. Only a primary caregiver and qualified patient members 
of the Collective Dispensary shall be allowed within the 
designated marijuana dispensing area of a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary (as shown on the site plan required 
by the Application) along with only a necessary Management 
Members. 

 
7. Restrooms with the Storefront Collective Dispensary 
shall remain locked and under the control of Collective 
Dispensary Management Members at all times. 

 
D.  Medical Marijuana Dispensing Operations. The following 
medical marijuana distribution restrictions and conditions shall 
apply to all of the day-to-day medical marijuana dispensing 
operations which occur within a City permitted Storefront 
Collective Dispensary: 
 

1. A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall only dispense 
to qualified patients or primary caregivers with a 
currently valid physicians approval or recommendation in 
compliance with the criteria of the Compassionate Use Act 
of 1996 and the SB 420 Statutes to those persons who are 
registered as active members of that Collective and may do 
so only during storefront dispensary operating hours of 
between eight o’clock in the morning (8:00 a.m.) through 
six o’clock in the evening (6:00 p.m.) Monday through 
Saturday only. The days and hours of the dispensary’s 
operation shall be posted in a sign located on the street 



 15

frontage of the dispensary premises in a manner consistent 
with the City’s Sign Ordinance. Storefront Collectives 
Dispensaries shall require such persons receiving medical 
marijuana to provide valid official identification, such as 
a Department of Motor Vehicles driver’s license or State 
Identification Card each time they seek to obtain medical 
marijuana. 

 
2.  Prior to dispensing medical marijuana, a Management 
Member of the Storefront Collective Dispensary shall obtain 
a re-verification from the recommending physician’s office 
personnel that the individual requesting medical marijuana 
is or remains a qualified patient or a primary caregiver. 

 
3.  A Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not have a 
physician on-site to evaluate patients and provide a 
Compassionate Use Act recommendation for the use of medical 
marijuana. 
 
4. Every Storefront Collective Dispensary shall display at 
all times during its regular business hours, the permit 
issued pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter for such 
Collective Dispensary in a conspicuous place so that the 
same may be readily seen by all persons entering the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

 
5. No Storefront Collective Dispensary shall hold or 
maintain a license from the State Division of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control for the sale of alcoholic beverages, or 
operate a business on the premises of the Dispensary that 
sells alcoholic beverages. No alcoholic beverages shall be 
allowed or consumed on the premises. 

 
6. Storefront Collective Dispensaries shall be considered 
commercial use relative to the parking requirements imposed 
by Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.90.100(I). 

 
7. A notice shall be clearly and legibly posted in the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary indicating that smoking, 
ingesting, or consuming marijuana on the premises or in the 
vicinity of the Dispensary is prohibited. Signs on the 
premises shall not obstruct the entrance or windows. 
Address identification shall comply with Fire Department 
illuminated address signs requirements. 

 
8. Business identification signage for Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries shall comply with the City’s Sign 
Ordinance (SBMC Chapter 22.70) and be limited to that 



 16

needed for identification only, consisting of a single 
window sign or wall sign that shall not exceed six square 
feet in area or 10 percent of the window area, whichever is 
less.  
 

E. Dispensary Medical Marijuana On-Site Consumption and Re-
Distribution Restrictions. The following medical marijuana 
consumption restrictions shall apply to all permitted Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries: 
 

1. Medical marijuana shall not be consumed by qualified 
patients on the Property or the premises of the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary. 

 
The term “premises” includes the actual building, as well 
as any accessory structures, parking lot or parking areas, 
or other surroundings within 200 feet of the Collective 
Dispensary’s entrance. Collective Dispensary management 
member employees who are qualified patients may consume 
marijuana within the enclosed building area of the 
premises, provided such consumption occurs only via oral 
consumption (i.e., eating only) but not by means of smoking 
or vaporization. 
 
2. Storefront Collective Dispensary operations shall not 
result in illegal re-distribution or sale of medical 
marijuana obtained from the Collective Dispensary, or the 
use or distribution in any manner which violates state law. 

 
F. Retail Sales of Other Items by a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary. The retail sales of related marijuana use items at a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary may be allowed only under the 
following circumstances: 
 

1.  With the approval of the Staff Hearing Officer, a 
Collective Dispensary may conduct or engage in the 
commercial sale of specific products, goods, or services 
(except drug paraphernalia) in addition to the provision of 
medical marijuana on terms and conditions consistent with 
this Chapter and applicable law. 

 
2. No Collective Dispensary shall sell or display for sale 
any drug paraphernalia or any implement that may be used to 
administer medical marijuana. 

 
 
 
 



 17

G. Storefront Collective Dispensary – Compliance with the 
Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and SB 420 Statutes. 
 

1. State Law Compliance Warning. Each Collective Dispensary 
shall have a sign posted in a conspicuous location inside 
the Storefront Collective Dispensary advising the public of 
the following: 
 

a. The diversion of marijuana for non-medical purposes 
is a criminal violation of state law. 
 
b. The use of marijuana may impair a person’s ability 
to drive a motor vehicle or operate heavy machinery. 
 
c. The sale of marijuana and the diversion of 
marijuana for non-medical purposes are violations of 
state law. 

 
2. Not For Profit Operation of the Storefront Collective 
Dispensary. No Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary shall operate for profit. Cash and in-kind 
contributions, reimbursements, and reasonable compensation 
for services provided by Management Members and Collective 
members toward the Collective’s actual expenses for the 
growth, cultivation, processing, and provision of Medical 
Marijuana to qualified patients of the Collective shall be 
allowed provided that such reimbursements are in strict 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the SB 420 
Statutes. All such cash and in-kind reimbursement amounts 
and items shall be fully and properly documented in the 
financial and accounting records of the Collective 
Dispensary in accordance with and as required by the 
recordkeeping requirements of this Chapter. 

 
3. Cultivation of Medical Marijuana by the Collective. The 
Collective cultivation of medical marijuana shall be 
limited to the Collective members and Management Members. 
Cultivation of medical marijuana by the Collective members 
and the Management Members shall occur exclusively within 
the boundaries of the counties of Santa Barbara, Ventura, 
or San Luis Obispo County and only at the real property 
identified for such cultivation on the approved Storefront 
Collective Dispensary Permit application. 
 
No cultivation of medical marijuana at any Property where 
the marijuana will be visible with the un-aided eye from 
any public or other private property, nor shall cultivated 
medical marijuana or dried medical marijuana be visible 



 18

from the building exterior on the Property. No cultivation 
shall occur at the Property of the Collective unless the 
area devoted to the cultivation is secured from public 
access by means of a locked gate and any other security 
measures necessary to prevent unauthorized entry. 
 
4. Distribution of Medical Marijuana within Santa Barbara 
Only. Distribution of the medical marijuana collectively 
cultivated by some Collective members to other Collective 
members shall occur exclusively within the boundaries of 
the city of Santa Barbara and only at the real property 
identified as the permitted Dispensary location on the 
approved Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit 
application. 
 
5. Membership Limited to One Collective. Membership in a 
Collective which operates a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary within the City shall be limited to one 
Collective per qualified patient or primary caregiver. Each 
Collective shall also consist only of individuals residing 
with Santa Barbara County, as the term “principal 
residence” is defined in the federal Internal Revenue Code.  

 
J. Maintenance of Appropriate Collective Records Regarding 
Cultivation and Compliance with the SB 420 Statutes.  
 

1. Cultivation Records. Every permitted Storefront 
Collective Dispensary shall maintain on-site (i.e., at the 
Property designated for the operation of the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary) the medical marijuana cultivation 
records of the Collective. These records shall be signed 
under penalty of perjury by each Management Member 
responsible for the cultivation and shall identify the 
location or locations within the counties of Santa Barbara, 
Ventura, or San Luis Obispo at which the Collective’s 
medical marijuana is being cultivated. Such records shall 
also record the total number of marijuana plants cultivated 
or stored at each cultivation location. The Storefront 
Collective Dispensary shall also maintain an inventory 
record documenting the dates and amounts of medical 
marijuana cultivated or stored at the Dispensary Property, 
if any, as well as the daily amounts of Medical Marijuana 
distributed from the permitted Dispensary. 

 
2. Membership Records. Every Storefront Collective 
Dispensary shall maintain full and complete records of the 
following membership information: a. the full name, date of 
birth, residential address, and telephone number(s) of each 



 19

Collective member and Management Member, b. the date each 
Collective member and Management Member joined the 
Collective, 3. the exact nature of each Collective member’s 
and Management Member’s participation in the Collective, 
and 4. the current status of each member and Management 
Member as a Qualified Patient or Primary Caregiver. 
 
3. Financial Records. The Collective Dispensary shall also 
maintain a written accounting record or ledger of all cash, 
receipts, credit card transactions, reimbursements, 
(including any in-kind contributions), and any and all 
reasonable compensation for services provided by the 
Management Members or other members of the Collective, as 
well as records of all operational expenditures and costs 
incurred by the Storefront Collective Dispensary in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and 
standards typically applicable to business records.  

 
4. Dispensary Record Retention Period. The records required 
above by subparagraphs (1),(2), and (3) of this subsection 
shall be maintained by the Medical Marijuana Collective 
Dispensary for a period of three (3) years and shall be 
made available to the City upon a written request, subject 
to the authority set forth in Section 28.80.090. 

 
Section 28.80.090 City Access to and Inspection of Required 

Storefront Collective Dispensary Records.  
 
A duly designated City Police Department or Community 
Development Department representative may enter and shall be 
allowed to inspect the premises of every Storefront Collective 
Dispensary as well as the financial and membership records of 
the Collective required by this Chapter between the hours of 
eight o’clock (8:00) A.M. and six o’clock (6:00) P.M., or at any 
appropriate time to ensure compliance and enforcement of the 
provisions of this Chapter, except that the inspection and 
copying of the private medical records of a Collective member 
shall be made available to the Police Department only pursuant 
to a properly executed search warrant or inspection warrant by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, or a court order for the 
inspection of such records.   
 
It shall be unlawful for any property owner, landlord, lessee, 
Medical Marijuana Collective Dispensary member or Management 
Member or any other person having any responsibility over the 
operation of the Storefront Collective Dispensary to refuse to 
allow, impede, obstruct or  interfere with an inspection of the 



 20

Storefront Collective Dispensary or the required records 
thereof. 
 
Section 28.80.100 Sale, Distribution, or Exchange of Medical 

Marijuana with a non-Medical Marijuana 
Collective Member.  

 
A. Transfers to or from a Non-Collective Member. A Storefront 
Collective Dispensary, including the Management Member operating 
the Dispensary, shall not cause or permit the sale, distribution, 
or exchange of Medical Marijuana or of any Edible Medical 
Marijuana product to any non-Collective Management Member or 
member. No Storefront Collective Dispensary shall possess medical 
marijuana that was not collectively cultivated by its Management 
Members or members either at the Property designated for the 
cultivation or at its prior location allowed in accordance with 
this Chapter. 
 
B. Assistance for Edible Marijuana Products. Sales of edible 
medical marijuana products may be permitted at a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary and an individual or business within the 
City which assists a Dispensary in preparing and processing such a 
product will be deemed by the City as an “individual who provides 
assistance to a qualified patient or person with an identification 
card, or his or her designated primary caregiver, in administering 
medical marijuana to a qualified patient …” as that phrase is used 
in state Health and Safety Code section 11362.765(b)(3).  
 
 
Section 28.80.110 Appeal from Staff Hearing Officer 

Determination. 
 
A.  Appeal to the Planning Commission and the City Council. An 
applicant or any interested party who disagrees with the Staff 
Hearing Officer’s decision to issue, issue with conditions, or 
to deny or to revoke a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit 
may appeal the Staff Hearing Officer’s decision to the City 
Planning Commission in accordance with the appeal provisions of 
subsection (B) of Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 28.05.020 
and, thereafter, to the City Council by filing an appeal 
pursuant to the requirements of section 1.30.050 of the 
Municipal Code.  
 
B. Notice of Appeal Hearing. Upon the filing of an appeal 
pursuant to subparagraph (A) above, the Community Development 
Director or the City Clerk shall provide public notice of the 
appeal hearing in accordance with the notice provisions of SBMC 
Section 28.87.380. 



 21

Section 28.80.120 Suspension and Revocation by Staff Hearing 
Officer. 

 
A. Authority to Suspend or Revoke a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Permit. Consistent with Section 28.87.360, any 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit issued under the terms 
of this Chapter may be suspended or revoked by the Staff Hearing 
Officer if it shall appear to that Officer that the Dispensary 
permittee has violated any of the requirements of this Chapter 
or the Dispensary is being operated in a manner which violates 
the operational requirements or operational plan required by 
this Chapter, or operated in a manner which conflicts with state 
law.  

 
B. Annual Review of Collective Dispensary Operations. The staff 
of the Community Development Department and the Police 
Department are hereby authorized to conduct an annual review of 
the operation of each permitted Storefront Collective Dispensary 
within the City for full compliance with the operational and 
recordkeeping requirements of this Chapter, including 
specifically, annual verification that all persons employed or 
volunteering at the Storefront Collective Dispensary have not 
been convicted of or on probation for a crime related to the 
possession, sale, or distribution of controlled substances. A 
fee in an amount established by resolution of the City Council 
may be established in order to reimburse the City for the time 
involved in the annual review process. The staff may initiate a 
permit suspension or revocation process for any Storefront 
Collective Dispensary which, upon completion of an annual 
review, is found not to be in compliance with the requirements 
of this Chapter or which is operating in a manner which 
constitutes a public nuisance.  
  
C. Suspension or Revocation – Written Notice. Except as 
otherwise provided in this Chapter, no permit shall be revoked 
or suspended by the Staff Hearing Officer under the authority of 
this Chapter until written notice of the intent to consider 
revocation or suspension of the permit has been served upon a 
Management Member or the person to whom the permit was granted 
at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for such review 
hearing. Such revocation or suspension notice shall state the 
specific reasons for the proposed suspension or revocation and 
must have been provided to the permittee in writing prior to the 
hearing. Such notice shall contain a brief statement of the 
grounds to be relied upon for revoking or suspending such 
permit. Notice may be given either by personal delivery to the 
permittee, or by depositing such notice in the U.S. mail in a 
sealed envelope, postage prepaid, (via regular mail and return 



 22

receipt requested), addressed to the person to be notified at 
his or her address as it appears in his or her application for a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit. 
 
Section 28.80.130 Transfer of Collective Dispensary Permits. 
 
A. Permit – Site Specific. A permittee shall not operate a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary under the authority of a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit at any place other than 
the address of the Collective Dispensary stated in the 
application for the permit. All Collective Dispensary permits 
issued by the City pursuant to this chapter shall be non-
transferable to a different location.  
 
B. Transfer of a Permitted Collective Dispensary. A permittee 
shall not transfer ownership or control of a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary or attempt to transfer a Collective 
Dispensary permit to another person unless and until the 
transferee obtains an amendment to the permit from the Staff 
Hearing Officer pursuant to the permitting requirements of this 
Chapter stating that the transferee is now the permittee. Such 
an amendment may be obtained only if the transferee files an 
application with the Community Development Department in 
accordance with this all provisions of this Chapter accompanied 
by the required transfer review application fee.  
 
C. Request for Transfer with a Revocation or Suspension Pending. 
No Storefront Collective Dispensary permit may be transferred 
(and no permission for a transfer may be issued) when the 
Community Development Department has notified in writing the 
permittee that the permit has been or may be suspended or 
revoked for non-compliance with this Chapter and a notice of 
such suspension or revocation has been provided. 
 
D. Transfer without Permission. Any attempt to transfer a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit either directly or 
indirectly in violation of this Chapter is declared void, and 
the permit shall be deemed revoked. 
 
Section 28.80.140 Medical Marijuana Vending Machines. 
 
No person shall maintain, use, or operate a vending machine 
which dispenses marijuana to a qualified patient or primary 
caregiver unless such machine is located within the interior of 
a duly permitted Collective Dispensary.  
 
 
 



 23

Section 28.80.150 Business License Tax Liability. 
 
An operator of a Storefront Collective Dispensary shall be 
required to apply for and obtain a Business Tax Certificate 
pursuant to Chapter 5.04. as a prerequisite to obtaining a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit pursuant to the terms of 
this Chapter. When and as required by the State Board of 
Equalization, Storefront Collective Dispensary transactions 
shall be subject to sales tax in a manner required by state law. 
 
 
SECTION TWO.  
 
A. Dispensaries Open and Operating Legally Prior to the 
Effective Date of This Ordinance. Those dispensaries which have 
opened and are being operated in a manner consistent with state 
law and the Santa Barbara Municipal Code prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance and which are either located at a 
location no longer permitted for dispensaries pursuant to this 
Ordinance or are operated at locations which have never been 
issued a City dispensary permit may, despite a non-conforming 
location or despite not having been issued a City dispensary 
permit, remain as a legal non-conforming use for a period not 
exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days after the effective date 
of this Ordinance so long as those such dispensary operators 
comply with the following requirements during the one hundred 
eighty (180) day amortization period: 
 

1. the day-to-day operation of the dispensary is consistent 
with all of the day-to-day dispensary operational and 
recordkeeping requirements of Chapter 28.80, as revised and 
enacted by this Ordinance, and;  
 
2. the operation of the dispensary has not previously been 
and is not discontinued in its operation for a period of 
time in excess of thirty (30) consecutive days;   
 
3. the dispensary operator does either of the following: 
(a) applies for and obtains a City Collective Dispensary 
permit for its existing location (if such location is 
allowed under this Ordinance) or applies for a permit for 
new dispensary location pursuant to the requirements of 
this Ordinance prior to the expiration of the amortization 
period, or (b) the operator advises the City in writing of 
his or her intent to discontinue operation of the 
nonconforming dispensary upon the expiration of the one 
hundred eighty (180) period  - which application or written 



 24

advisement shall occur within sixty (60) days of the 
adoption date of this ordinance.  

 
SECTION THREE. City Ordinance No. 5510 entitled “An Ordinance Of 
The Council Of The City Of Santa Barbara Extending A Temporary 
Suspension Of The Right To Apply For Or To Obtain A Permit For 
The Opening Or Operation Of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries 
Otherwise Permitted By Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 
28.80 On An Interim Basis” adopted on February 2, 2010 is hereby 
repealed as of the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION FOUR. This ordinance shall not take effect and shall be 
deemed repealed unless, prior to its effective date, the City 
Council adopts a resolution calling for a special City election 
on the regularly scheduled statewide election date of November 
2, 2010 in order to submit to the voters of the City for their 
consideration and possible approval (pursuant to state Elections 
Code section 9222) an ordinance of the City to ban the operation 
of all medical marijuana storefront dispensaries within the City 
of Santa Barbara.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 25

EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES 

SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 28.80 
ALLOWED LOCATION EXHIBIT  

DATED AS OF JUNE 22, 2010  
 
1. Outer State Street Area: 
 

a. 3400 - 3900 blocks of State Street 
b. All parcels on south La Cumbre Road 
c. All parcels on south La Cumbre Lane 
d. All parcels on La Cumbre Plaza Lane 
e. 00-100 blocks of south Hope Avenue 
 

2. Upper De la Vina Area: 
 

a. 2600 – 2900 blocks of De la Vina Street 
 
3. Mission Street Area: 
 

a. 1900-2000 blocks of De la Vina Street 
b. 100 block of west Mission Street 
c. 1800 block of State Street 
d. 1400 block of Chapala Street 
 

4. Milpas Street: 
 
a. 00–400 blocks of north Milpas Street 
 

5. West Pueblo Medical Facility Area: 
 

a. 200 block of Nogales 
b. 200-400 blocks of west Pueblo 
c. 2400-2500 blocks of Bath 
d. 2300 block of Castillo 
e. 300 block of West Junipero 

 



  

1 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE 2008-2010 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND THE SANTA BARBARA 
CITY EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION (GENERAL UNIT) TO 
EXTEND THE TERM OF THE AGREEMENT THROUGH 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, AND INCLUDE A SUPPLEMENTAL 
AGREEMENT REGARDING FURLOUGH AND OTHER 
LAYOFF AVOIDANCE MEASURES FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2011 

 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Santa Barbara 
and the Santa Barbara City Employees' Association, Local 620, Service Employees' 
International Union, adopted by Ordinance No. 5477 and amended by Ordinance No. 
5492 is hereby amended to include the supplemental agreement attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Administrator is authorized to apply the changes to salaries and 
benefits contained in this supplemental agreement to the City’s Confidential employees. 
 
 



Exhibit A 

General Unit Supplemental Agreement - Furlough 
 

 
1 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE GENERAL 
BARGAINING UNIT REGARDING FURLOUGH AND OTHER LAYOFF 
AVOIDANCE MEASURES 

 
Pursuant to Chapter 3.12 of the Municipal Code of the City of Santa Barbara and 
Section 3500 et. seq. of the Government Code, the duly authorized 
representatives of  the City Of Santa Barbara (“The City”) and the Santa Barbara 
City Employees' Association, Local 620 Service Employees' International Union, 
(“The Union”), having met and conferred in good faith, agree that the existing 
2008-2010 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), as supplemented by 
Ordinance No.  5492 adopted on June 30, 2009, shall be supplemented with the 
following agreement: 

 
1. AGREEMENT:   

a. The terms of this Supplemental Agreement will only become 
effective upon the adoption of a Fiscal Year 2010-2011 budget by 
the City Council which provides the following: 

i. Does not contain certain position changes that were included 
in the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Proposed Budget which would 
result in the layoff or displacement of a General Bargaining 
Unit employee.  These position changes shall include and be 
limited to those contained in the list attached as Attachment 
A. 

ii. Does not contain additional position eliminations beyond 
those contained in the City’s Fiscal Year 2010-2011 
Proposed Budget and which would result in the layoff or 
displacement of a General Bargaining Unit employee.    

b. The City reserves the exclusive right to reassign employees in the 
position(s) listed in Attachment A to other job duties within the City 
provided that the class to which the employee is assigned is one 
with the same salary range, involves the performance of similar 
duties and requires substantially the same basic qualifications. 

c. Notwithstanding the above, City shall have no obligation to 
preserve any position listed in Attachment A if, prior to the adoption 
of the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 budget: 

i. The incumbent employee is offered another position within 
the City with the same or greater salary range through 
transfer, promotion, or other means, whether or not that 
employee chooses to accept that position, or  

ii. The incumbent employee voluntarily accepts another 
position at a lower salary range within the City, or 

iii. The incumbent employee leaves City employment for any 
other reason that is not a layoff. 

 
 



Exhibit A 

General Unit Supplemental Agreement - Furlough 
 

 
2 

2. TERM: The term of the existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
will be extended through September 30, 2011. 

 
3. LABOR SAVINGS   

a. Furlough:  
i. During Fiscal Year 2010-2011, each General Unit employee 

will be subject to an unpaid furlough of 116.5 hours (prorated 
for part-time employees) during Fiscal Year 2010-2011.  The 
furlough will be accomplished under the furlough plan (see 
Attachment B).   

b. Vacation Cash Out: The vacation cash-out provision outlined in 
Article 61(c) and 61(d) of the current MOU will be suspended for 
the remaining term of the existing Memorandum of Understanding, 
subject to the following: 

i. While the vacation cash-out is suspended, it is the intent of 
the City to allow employees who are near the maximum 
vacation accrual cap to take at least an amount of vacation 
time off in the fiscal year equivalent to the full amount of 
vacation accrual the employee will receive during the same 
period.   

ii. For purposes of this section “near” means the employee is 
within one year of normal vacation accrual from exceeding 
the maximum vacation accrual cap.   

iii. So long as the employee notifies management of the need to 
take such vacation in order to avoid reaching the vacation 
accrual cap prior to July 31st, 2010, management will make 
every reasonable effort to schedule time off for the employee 
to avoid the loss of vacation. 

 
4. REOPENER IN THE EVENT OF FURTHER LAYOFFS:   Following 

adoption of the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Budget, nothing in this 
Supplemental Agreement shall restrict the right of the City Council to 
make further permanent reductions in workforce (including reduction of 
such positions as have been reinstated in the adopted budget under 
Section 1, above)  for economic reasons if the City’s financial position has 
significantly changed, as authorized under the Santa Barbara City Charter, 
including but not limited to Sections 1007 and 1008, and the Santa 
Barbara City Charter.  However, prior to the implementation of any 
additional layoffs proposed during the remaining term of the MOU, the City 
will provide the Union with a minimum of 60 days notice and the 
immediate opportunity to meet and confer over any negotiable impacts of 
such layoffs not contained in the current MOU.  The parties will use the 
interest based bargaining process. 

 



Exhibit A 

General Unit Supplemental Agreement - Furlough 
 

 
3 

5. SEVERABILITY- If any provision of this Supplemental Agreement is held 
unenforceable, then such provision will be modified to reflect the intention 
of the parties. All remaining provisions of the Supplemental Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
Signed: 
 
FOR THE CITY   FOR THE UNION 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 



Attachment A 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
Position Changes to be Restored in Adopted FY 2011 Budget 
 
Incumbent Name Job Classification  Department/Division   Prior Proposed Impact to Employee 
Starla Lago  Records Technician  Admin Services/City Clerk   FT to PT (50%) 
Nicole Moore  Building Inspector Aide Comm Dev/Building & Safety Position eliminated; bumps to Admin Spec 
Chris Eckenrode Fire Warehouse Specialist Fire/Operations   Position eliminated; layoff 
Guadalupe Castillo Custodian   Library/Goleta Branch  FT to PT (75%) 
Rose Marie Bell Library Assistant I  Library/Support Services  Position eliminated; extension - retiring Sept ‘10 
Beryl Catanese Recreation Program Leader  Parks & Rec/Youth Activities  Position eliminated; layoff 
Kathy Sullivan Marketing Coordinator Parks & Rec/Business Services FT to PT (50%) 
Rodolfo Saldana Grounds Maint Worker I Parks & Rec/Golf   Position eliminated; layoff 
Lisa Lewis  Administrative Specialist Parks & Rec/Admin   Position eliminated; extension-planned retirement Aug ‘10 
Bill Davis  Project Engineer  Public Works/Building Maintenance Position eliminated; layoff 
Mica Hase  Administrative Assistant Public Works/Administration  Position eliminated; layoff 
Anna Lehr  Project Engineer  Public Works/Building Maintenance Position eliminated; layoff 
Will Sandoval  Automotive/Equip Tech Public Works/Motorpool  Position eliminated; layoff 
Starla Lago  Records Technician  Admin Services/City Clerk  Position eliminated; layoff 
Michael Berman Project Planner  Comm Dev/Planning & Zoning Position eliminated; layoff 
Elva de la Torre Planning Technician I  Comm Dev/Planning & Zoning Position eliminated; layoff 
Penelope Tinker Records Technician  Comm Dev/Records   Position eliminated; layoff 
Linda Allan  Administrative Specialist Finance/Purchasing   Position eliminated; layoff 
Donald Jahadhmy Mail Services Specialist Finance/Mail Courier Services Position eliminated; layoff 
Laura Condon  Recreation Specialist  Parks & Rec/Cultural Arts  Position eliminated; layoff 
Cathy Carpenter Tennis Services Coordinator Parks & Rec/Tennis   Position eliminated; layoff 
Luis Quesada  Grounds Maint Worker I Parks & Rec/Parks   Position eliminated; layoff 
 
 
 



 
General Unit- Furlough Plan 

 
 
1 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
FISCAL YEAR 2011 
MANDATORY UNPAID FURLOUGH PLAN 
GENERAL BARGAINING UNIT 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
I. Purpose ............................................................................................................................ 1 
II. Definitions......................................................................................................................... 1 
III. Application ........................................................................................................................ 1 
IV. Declaration and Scheduling of Mandatory Work Furlough................................................ 1 
V. Effect of Mandatory Work Furlough on Employee Pay ..................................................... 3 
VI. Benefits During a Mandatory Work Furlough.................................................................... 5 
 

I. Purpose 
 
The purpose of this mandatory unpaid work furlough plan (“the plan”) is to: 

• Allow the City to address anticipated revenue shortfalls and increased 
expenses in Fiscal Year 2011 while minimizing the need for service cuts 
and staff layoffs; and 

• Establish, in advance, a clear and understandable method to mitigate the 
impacts of a work furlough on affected employees. 

 

II. Definitions 
"Work furlough" refers to one or more hours of required unpaid leave taken on a 
consecutive or intermittent basis.  
 

III. Application 
This policy applies to all employees in the General Bargaining Unit. 
 

IV. Declaration and Scheduling of Mandatory Work Furlough  
1. Implementation:  This Mandatory Furlough Plan may be 
implemented without any further duty to meet and confer, subject to 
the following conditions: 

a) The City Council makes a declaration by Resolution that 
a reduction in workforce is necessary for economic reasons 
and that a mandatory unpaid work furlough should be 
implemented. 
b) The mandatory unpaid furlough time does not exceed 
116.5 hours for any affected full-time employee, prorated for 
part-time employees. 

Attachment B 



 
General Unit- Furlough Plan 

 
 
2 

2. Scheduling of Furlough:   
a) General Furlough Closure:  The City will observe a 
General Furlough Closure, during which many City offices 
and operations will be closed.  General Furlough Closure 
periods are tentatively planned to be observed on the dates 
reflected in the Fiscal Year 2011 Furlough Closure Schedule 
(see attachment). 
Many employees in operations that are subject to the 
General Furlough Closure, and in other operations, will be 
scheduled to take furlough time off during these furlough 
closure dates.  However, some employees will be scheduled 
to work during such closure periods based on City 
operational needs, or by mutual agreement between the 
employee and the employee’s supervisor. 
 
The City stipulates that employees in the Airport 
Maintenance Division, Waterfront Maintenance Division, and 
Motor Pool will not be subject to the General Furlough 
Closure. 
 
b) Furlough Time Off Bank:  Any furlough hours not 
scheduled to be taken as part of a General Furlough Closure 
shall become part of an employee’s furlough time off bank.  
Employees will take the furlough time off before June 17, 
2011.  Such time off shall be scheduled on the same terms 
as vacation under Article 61(b) of the current MOU.   
Provided requests to take furlough time off are received at 
least twoweeks in advance and prior to September 30, 2010, 
management will make good faith efforts to accommodate 
employee choice whenever practicable.  
Groups of employees (not individual employees) who have 
issues emanating from the furlough may request that the 
issue be reviewed by a panel consisting of one City 
representative and one Union representative who shall issue 
a non-binding advisory opinion to the Department Head. 
Management may require employees to use furlough banks 
before paid vacation or personal leave is taken off. 
Management reserves the right to schedule an employee to 
take any unscheduled furlough hours remaining in an 
employees bank on or after March 30, 2011 based solely on 
operational need. 
c) Rescheduling Furlough Time Off:  If an employee is not 
able to take furlough time off as originally scheduled, the 
furlough hours will become part of the employee’s Furlough 
Time Off Bank and will be rescheduled as provided in 



 
General Unit- Furlough Plan 

 
 
3 

subsection “b” above.  Supervisors will be encouraged, 
where practicable, to make reasonable efforts to avoid 
disruption to employees if scheduled furlough time off must 
be rescheduled (e.g. by finding qualified volunteers).  
However, this may not always be possible.   

3. Application to Voluntary Hours Reduction Requests:  Once 
this plan is implemented for Fiscal Year 2010, employees who 
offered to voluntarily reduce their hours to part-time under the “Part-
Time Work” Policy or to take an unpaid leave of absence under the 
“Leave of Absence Without Pay, Non-Medical Reasons” Policy 
during Fiscal Year 2011 will be provided an opportunity to rescind 
their voluntary part-time schedule or unpaid leave request.   
4. Work During Furlough:  No employee may perform work for 
the City when scheduled to be off of work on furlough period unless 
authorized by management.   

 

V. Effect of Mandatory Work Furlough on Employee Pay 
1. Pay Reduction:  The period of furlough time off will be 
unpaid.  Furlough time off will be tracked under a separate unpaid 
hours code. 
2. Non Exempt Employees- Pay Mitigation Plan:    

a) For non-exempt employees, the wage loss from the 
mandatory furlough will be distributed evenly over the full 
fiscal year.  Effective the first full pay period in Fiscal Year 
2011, beginning on June 19, 2010, a deduction will be made 
from employee compensation in an amount equivalent to 
1/26th of the total unpaid mandatory furloughed time through 
the end of the last pay period of Fiscal Year 2011, ending on 
June 17, 2011.     
b) Mutual Reimbursement:   

(1) For employees in active paid status as of the 
beginning of the fiscal year who terminate 
employment within the fiscal year: 

(a) If, at the time of termination, the reduction 
in pay exceeds the furlough time off taken, the 
employee will be entitled to pay for the 
difference. 

(b) If, at the time of termination, furlough time 
off taken exceeds the reduction in pay, the 
employee will need to reimburse the City for 
the difference in pay.   

(2) An employee who is hired or otherwise enters 



 
General Unit- Furlough Plan 

 
 
4 

active paid status after the beginning of the fiscal year 
will be scheduled for furlough time off and will have 
his or her pay reduced by an amount equivalent to 
1/26th of the total furloughed time for the first 26 pay 
periods of employment.  The employee will be subject 
to the same mutual reimbursement provisions in 
Section (1) above, if the employee terminates 
employment before the 26 pay periods are complete. 
(3) An employee who is on unpaid status for any other 
reason at any point during the fiscal year will, upon 
return to active paid status, be scheduled to make up 
any furlough hours not taken and will continue to have 
his or her pay reduced by an amount equivalent to 
1/26th of the total furloughed time until 26 full pay 
periods of reduction have been achieved.  The 
employee will be subject to the same mutual 
reimbursement provisions in Section (a) above, if the 
employee terminates employment before the 26 pay 
periods are complete. 

3. Exempt Employees 
a) Exempt employees will be considered non-exempt 
employees under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) 
guidelines in any FLSA workweek in which one or more 
hours of unpaid furlough time off occurs (See 29 CFR 
541.710(b)).  Such employees will be eligible for hourly pay 
for any work performed during that FLSA workweek, just as 
non-exempt employees would be.  Such employees may 
also be eligible for overtime compensation during any such 
FLSA workweek according to applicable FLSA guidelines.  
For purposes of this provision only, the FLSA workweek of 
an otherwise exempt employee will be the City’s standard 
FLSA work week, beginning and ending at midnight on 
Friday night, regardless of the employee’s regular work 
schedule. 
b) Exempt Employees - Pay Mitigation Plan: Exempt 
employee pay will be reduced under the same Pay Mitigation 
Plan outlined for non-exempt employees in Section V.2, 
above.   

(a) The City and the Union agree that is our 
mutual good faith interpretation of 29 CFR 
541.710(b) that the City may implement a pay 
mitigation plan for exempt employees without 
affecting the exempt status of such employees 
under the FLSA to a greater degree than 
expressed in Section V.3(a), above.   



 
General Unit- Furlough Plan 

 
 
5 

(b) If the City receives an opinion from the U.S. 
Department of Labor or other binding legal 
authority that indicates that the pay mitigation 
plan for exempt employees further affects the 
exempt status of such employees, the City will 
promptly notify the affected represented 
bargaining units and the parties will reopen 
negotiations within 30 days of such notice to 
determine an alternate method of furlough pay 
deductions that will preserve such employees’ 
exempt status. 

VI. Benefits During a Mandatory Work Furlough 
1. Health, Life, and Cafeteria Plan Benefits:  An employee shall 
receive continued medical, dental, vision, life insurance, and 
cafeteria plan benefits, including any City contribution, at the level 
the employee would have received absent the work furlough.   
Employees will be responsible for the same employee contributions 
to these benefits that they would have made absent the work 
furlough.    
2. Retirement:  To the extent allowable by CalPERS, and in 
compliance with any restrictions imposed by CalPERS, the City will 
ensure that retirement benefits will not be adversely impacted as a 
result of the furlough and related reduction in hours and/or salary. 
3. Other Benefits:  Other benefits may be reduced as required 
under normal benefit rules related to work schedule or unpaid 
leave.  Such benefits include, but are not limited to: disability 
insurance or SDI/PFL contributions, Medicare contributions, etc.  
4. Paid Leave Accrual:  Employees will receive the same 
vacation, sick leave, and personal leave accruals they would have 
received absent the work furlough.    
5. Legal Holidays:  Employees on a work furlough shall receive 
legal holiday pay as follows: 

a) Employees in classifications entitled to accrue holiday 
credit will continue to receive the same holiday credit. 
b) For employees who do not accrue credit, where a legal 
holiday is observed during a period of work furlough, the 
employee will be paid hours for that holiday at the same 
level employee would have received absent the work 
furlough.  In other words, that holiday will not count as an 
unpaid furlough day.  For employees on a 9/80 or 4/10 
schedule, the employee may be required to use accrued 
paid leave banks to make up the full paid holiday, as usual. 



 
General Unit- Furlough Plan 

 
 
6 

6. Use of Paid Leave:  An employee will not be 
permitted to use accrued paid leave banks (vacation, sick leave, 
compensatory time, personal or management leave) during the 
unpaid furloughed hours.  
7. Vacation Accruals: Management will make every 
reasonable effort to work with employees to avoid loss of vacation 
accruals or personal leave due to encroachment on accrual caps or 
time limits for use. 
8. Standby and Call-back:  An employee may be 
assigned to call-back or standby during a work furlough as provided 
under the applicable labor agreement or City policy.  An employee 
called-back to active paid work during the unpaid furlough period 
will be required to take equivalent additional unpaid furlough during 
the remainder of the fiscal year. 
9. Service & Seniority: Furlough shall not count as a break in 
City service and shall not affect seniority or eligibility for merit 
increases.  
10. Schedule Changes:  While an employee is on a furlough, 
schedule changes will be subject to the requirements of the 
applicable labor agreement     
11. Overtime: Employees will only be eligible for overtime 
premium that they would have received absent the reduction in 
work hours.   (i.e., for over 40 hours worked in a workweek) 
12. Probationary Period: Probationary periods shall not be 
affected by a mandatory furlough. 
13. Limits on Benefit Continuation:  Special benefit continuation 
under this furlough plan is available only to employees during their 
mandatory unpaid furlough period(s).   Otherwise, employees are 
covered by benefit continuation under other City policies, including 
the City’s applicable Leave Without Pay policies. 

 



Attachment to Furlough Plan (Attachment B) 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FY 2011 FURLOUGH CLOSURE SCHEDULE  
FACILITY OFFICES DECEMBER HOLIDAY CLOSURE DATES OTHER CLOSURE DATES 
City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

Administration 
Mayor & Council Offices 
City Clerk & Human Resources 
Finance Administration 
Billing, Licenses/Permits 
Payroll & Risk Management 
Information Systems 

Standard Holiday Closure 
• Monday, December 19th, 2010  
through Friday, December 31, 2010 
 
 

Standard Additional Closure Dates 
• Wednesday November  24, 2010 
• Two Fridays: July 2, 2010 and 
January 14, 2011 

Airport Administration Bldg 
601 Firestone Road 

Airport Administration Standard Holiday Closure Dates Standard Additional Closure Dates  

Fire Station 1 
121 W. Carrillo Street 

Fire Administrative Office Standard Holiday Closure Dates  Standard Additional Closure Dates  

Parks & Recreation Office 
620 Laguna Street 

Department  Administration Standard Holiday Closure Dates  Standard Additional Closure Dates  

Parks Office 
402 Ortega Street 

Parks Office Standard Holiday Closure Dates  Standard Additional Closure Dates  

P.W. and C.D. Bldg. 
630 Garden Street 

Community Development Counters 
Public Works Counters 

Standard Holiday Closure Dates  Standard Additional Closure Dates  

City Attorney’s Office 
740 State #201 

City Attorney Administration Standard Holiday Closure Dates Standard Additional Closure Dates  

Downtown Parking  
1221 Anacapa Street 

Downtown Parking Admin. Office 
Environmental Services  

Standard Holiday Closure Dates  Standard Additional Closure Dates  

City Libraries 
40 E. Anapamu Street 

Library Administration 
Central Library 
Eastside Library 

Modified Holiday Closure:   
Tuesday, December 21 through Monday, 
January 3, 2011  (already closed 
Mondays) 

Alternate Additional Days: 
• Tuesday November 23 and Wed 
November 24, 2010 
• One Friday: July 2, 2010 

County Libraries Carpinteria, Goleta, Montecito and 
Solvang Libraries 

Offices Open as Usual Offices Open as Usual 

Police Department 
215 E. Figueroa Street  

Police Chief’s Offices 
 
Police Counters 

Offices Open as Usual Offices Open as Usual 

Waterfront Admin. Bldg 
132 #A Harbor Way 

Waterfront Administration 
(Harbor Patrol Counter 24 hrs.) 

Offices Open as Usual Offices Open as Usual 

Carrillo Recreation Center 
100 E. Carrillo Street 

Active Adults, Youth Activities, 
Teen Programs 

Standard Holiday Closure Dates  
[Except as rented or special programs] 

Standard Additional Closure Dates  
[Except as rented or special programs] 

Franklin Community Center 
1136 E. Montecito Street 

Community Center Programs Standard Holiday Closure Dates  
[Except as rented or special programs] 

Standard Additional Closure Dates  
[Except as rented or special programs] 

Westside Community Center 
423 W. Victoria Street 

Community Center Programs Standard Holiday Closure Dates  
[Except as rented or special programs] 

Standard Additional Closure Dates  
[Except as rented or special programs] 

Louise Lowry Davis Center 
1232 De La Vina Street 

Community Center Programs Standard Holiday Closure Dates  
[Except as rented]  

Standard Additional Closure Dates  
[Except as rented]  



Attachment to Furlough Plan (Attachment B) 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FY 2011 FURLOUGH CLOSURE SCHEDULE  
FACILITY OFFICES DECEMBER HOLIDAY CLOSURE DATES OTHER CLOSURE DATES 
Cabrillo Pavilion/Bathhouse 
1118 East Cabrillo Blvd. 

Cultural Arts/Facilities 
Aquatics/Sports/Adaptive Program 

Standard Holiday Closure Dates  
[Except as rented]  

Standard Additional Closure Dates  
[Except as rented]  

 
Closure dates subject to change based on operational needs.   
For additional Counter, Office, and Operations Hours: Visit our website at:  www.santabarbaraca.gov , or call (805) 564-0611.   
 
Date: June 16, 2010 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  570.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Operations Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Municipal Code Title 17 

Regarding Waterfront Department Policies 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Title 17 Sections 17.18.050, 17.20.005 
(I) and (L), 17.20.255, 17.28.010, 17.28.020, and 17.28.070 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code Pertaining to Operations at the Waterfront. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Department staff annually reviews Title 17 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code to 
ensure that it accurately and adequately provides a legal framework to implement 
policies, practices and procedures utilized to fairly, comprehensively and decisively 
administer Waterfront affairs.  Staff recommends amendments to Title 17 it believes are 
in keeping with these objectives. 
 
Staff has worked with the City Attorney’s Office to identify chapters and sections of Title 
17 it believes need to be added, deleted or amended.  This report identifies five “issue 
areas” that constitute substantive proposed amendments to Title 17.  On May 20, 2010, 
the Harbor Commission voted to forward these amendments to City Council for 
adoption. On June 8, 2010, the Ordinance Committee approved the proposed 
amendments and recommended the draft ordinance be forwarded to City Council for 
introduction and adoption.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

MC 17.18.050 Live-Aboard Permit Termination, Suspension and Revocation 
 
Years ago, the City implemented a tiered system for suspending or revoking live-aboard 
permits, presumably based on a decision that a permittee’s inappropriate actions or 
poor behavior warranted either temporary or permanent relinquishment of his/her 
permit.  As this section appears complex and somewhat vague, staff recommends 
replacing suspension and revocation clauses with a simple termination clause (with 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Municipal Code Title 17 Regarding Waterfront 
Department Policies 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

stated causes for termination).  Staff also recommends adding an appeal process 
similar to that afforded slip permittees, including opportunity for a waiver from the 
Waterfront Director and a hearing before the Harbor Commission.  Proposed language 
also offers an opportunity for re-issuance of a live-aboard permit after six months, based 
on the sole discretion of the Waterfront Director. 
 

MC 17.20.005 (J) Waterfront Director Termination of Slip Permits 
 
MC 17 is currently silent on whether (or when) an individual who has had his/her slip 
permit terminated might again be eligible for a slip permit in Santa Barbara Harbor.  
Proposed language requires a one-year wait to reapply, with approval of such a request 
to be made by the Waterfront Director in his or her sole discretion.  
 

MC 17.20.255 (C) (5) Appeal of Mooring Permit Termination 
 
In the interest of consistency, this amendment mirrors current MC 17 slip-permit-
termination appeal language, providing an opportunity for a waiver from the Waterfront 
Director and a hearing before the Harbor Commission, whose decision on the appeal 
would be final.   
 
 MC 17.28.010 Permit Required—Solicitation or Business Activity 
 
Based on problems encountered with individuals selling merchandise or performing 
vessel maintenance services in Waterfront parking lots or the East Beach Anchorage,  
this Chapter extends the requirement to obtain a Business Activity Permit (BAP) for all 
commercial activity to the Harbor District.   
 
 MC 17.28.020 Permission Required—Advertising 
 
This section currently defines what types of signs, advertisements and circulars are 
permissible in the Waterfront.  Proposed amendments clarify that appropriate permits 
must be obtained in accordance with Chapter 22.70 of the MC. The proposed 
amendment also deletes language requiring approval by the Waterfront Director for the 
posting of announcements on the Waterfront bulletin boards. 
 
CONCLUSION  
 
Adoption of the proposed Title 17 amendments will help clarify the Code in ways 
consistent with its intent and with the fair and comprehensive administration of 
Waterfront affairs.   
 
PREPARED BY: Mick Kronman, Harbor Operations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: John N. Bridley, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



   1

ORDINANCE INTRODUCTION DRAFT  
JUNE 29, 2010 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE 
 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING TITLE 17 SECTIONS 
17.18.050, 17.20.005 (I) AND (L), 17.20.255, 17.28.010, 
17.28.020, AND 17.28.070 OF THE SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO OPERATIONS AT 
THE WATERFRONT. 
 
 

 THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 
 SECTION ONE.  Section 17.18.050, Subsection 17.20.005 I and L, Section 
17.20.255, Section 17.28.010, Section 17.28.020, Section 17.28.070 of Title 17 of the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code are amended to read as follows: 
 
 
17.18.050 Termination of Live-Aboard Permit. 
 
 Termination, Suspension and Revocation. 

 A. TERMINATION.  A live-aboard permittee may terminate his or her lLive-
aAboard permit upon thirty (30) days prior written notice of termination to the Waterfront 
Department. 
 B. TERMINATION BY WATERFRONT DIRECTOR. The Waterfront 
Director may terminate a Live-Aboard permit upon thirty (30) days prior written notice of 
termination to the Live-Aboard permittee for any of the following reasons: 
  1. Failure to Maintain Berthed Vessel in Operable Condition.  The 
failure of a Live-Aboard permittee to continuously maintain a vessel berthed in a Slip in 
an Operable condition as required by Section 17.20.005 L herein.  
  2. Failure of Live-Aboard Permittee to Comply with Waterfront 
Department Rules and Regulations.  The failure of a Live-Aboard permittee or Live-
Aboard permittee’s “other occupant,” guest or visitor to comply with all applicable local, 
state and federal laws and all waterfront Department Rules and Regulations. 
 C. ISSUANCE OF LIVE-ABOARD PERMIT AFTER TERMINAITON. 
 A Live-Aboard permittee whose Live-Aboard permit is terminated as provided 
herein may not apply for a another Live-Aboard permit until six months after the date 
upon which the Live-Aboard permit is terminated.  The Waterfront Director shall have 
the sole discretion to decide whether to issue another Live-Aboard permit or not. The 
Waterfront Director’s decision shall be final. 
SUSPENSION.   
  1. Grounds.  The Waterfront Director may suspend a live-aboard 



   2

permit in the event that there is reasonable cause to believe that any of the following 
circumstances exist: 
   a. The live-aboard permittee knowingly made any false, 
misleading or fraudulent statement of a material fact in an application for the permit or in 
any report or record required to be filed pursuant to this Chapter. 
   b. The live-aboard permittee violated any provision of this 
Chapter, the regulations adopted pursuant hereto, or any ordinance relating to live-
aboard activity.   
  2. Procedure.  Upon determining that grounds for suspension of a 
permit exist, the Waterfront Director shall give written notice of intent to suspend 
(including the specific grounds therefore) to the live-aboard permittee or, if the live-
aboard permittee cannot be located with reasonable effort, to any person aboard the 
vessel, including, if applicable, the "Other Occupants," or by written notice by mailing 
such notice to the address of the live-aboard permittee on file in the Harbormaster's 
Office.  The suspension shall be effective fifteen (15) days following the giving of such 
notice, during which period the Waterfront Director shall allow the live-aboard permittee 
an opportunity (either in the form of a meeting with the Waterfront Director or the 
Director’s designee or in writing, at the live-aboard permittee’s option) to challenge the 
grounds for suspension and present evidence on his/her behalf.  The Waterfront 
Director shall consider any such evidence and shall either rescind the notice of intent to 
suspend or impose the suspension on or before the effective date of the suspension.   
 C. REVOCATION.   
  1. Grounds.  The Waterfront Director is authorized to revoke a live-
aboard permit upon either of the following grounds: 
   a. If grounds for suspension exist pursuant to Subsection B.1 of 
this Section, and the live-aboard permit has been suspended on two or more prior 
occasions since the date of its issuance. 
   b. The revocation is necessary for the immediate preservation 
of the public peace, health or safety.   
  2. Procedure.  Upon determining that grounds for revocation of a live-
aboard permit exist, the Waterfront Director shall give written notice of intent to revoke 
(including the grounds therefore) to the permittee or, if the permittee cannot be located 
with reasonable effort, shall give such notice to any person aboard the vessel, or give 
notice by mailing to the address of the permittee on file in the Harbormaster's Office.  
The revocation shall be effective fifteen (15) days following the giving of such notice, 
during which period the Waterfront Director shall give the permittee an opportunity to 
challenge the grounds for revocation and present evidence on his/her behalf.  The 
Waterfront Director shall consider any such evidence and shall either rescind the notice 
of intent or impose the revocation on or before the aforesaid fifteenth day.   

CD. APPEAL. If A decision by the Waterfront Director terminates a Live-
Aboard permit, the Live-Aboard permittee may request a waiver of the termination from 
the Waterfront Director.  To request a waiver of the termination, the Live-Aboard 
permittee shall file a written waiver request setting forth the grounds upon which the 
waiver is requested with the Waterfront Director within ten (10) days of the date that the 
Live-Aboard permit is terminated.  If the Waterfront Director denies the waiver, the Live-
Aboard permittee may appeal the Waterfront Director’s decision to the Harbor 
Commission. The appeal shall be filed in writing with the City Clerk within ten (10) days 
of the date of the Waterfront Director’s decision.  The Harbor Commission’s decision on 
the appeal shall be final.  If no waiver request is filed, the Live-Aboard permittee may 



   3

appeal the Waterfront Director’s decision to terminate the Live-Aboard permit to the 
Harbor Commission.  The Live-Aboard permittee shall file a written appeal setting forth 
the grounds upon which the appeal is based with the City Clerk within ten (10) of the 
date of the Live-Aboard permit termination.  
live-aboard permit pursuant to this Section shall be appealable to the Board of 
Harbor Commissioners.  Any such appeal must be filed in writing with the 
Waterfront Director within three (3) days of the date of suspension or revocation.  
The suspension or revocation shall be stayed while the appeal is pending, unless 
it is determined by the Waterfront Director that immediate cessation of overnight 
occupancy of the vessel is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, health or safety.  The appeal shall be filed in writing and shall specify all of 
the grounds for the appeal.  The Board of Harbor Commissioners shall provide 
the permittee an opportunity to present evidence on his/her behalf and to 
challenge the determination of the Waterfront Director.  Formal rules of evidence 
or procedure need not be followed.  The decision of the Harbor Commission on 
the appeal shall be final and conclusive.  If the appeal is denied, suspension or 
revocation shall become effective three (3) days following the Board of Harbor 
Commissioners' decision.  (Ord. 5420, 2007; Ord. 5273, 2003; Ord. 4757, 1992; 
Ord. 4387, 1986.) 
 
17.20.005 Slip Assignment Policy. 
I. WATERFRONT DIRECTOR TERMINATION OF SLIP PERMITS 
 The Waterfront Director may terminate a Slip Permit upon thirty days prior written 
notice of termination (except for the longer notice period provided in subsection 2 
herein) to the slip permittee for any of the following reasons: 
  1. Late Payment of Monthly Slip Fees.  Monthly Slip Fees are due 
and payable on the first day of the month with or without receipt of billing, and monthly 
Slip Fees are delinquent after the fifteenth day of the month.  After the fifteenth day of 
the month, a late charge, in an amount established by resolution of the City Council, will 
be assessed and added to the Slip Fees which are delinquent.  Failure to pay monthly 
Slip Fees, together with all accumulated late charges, may result in termination of the 
Slip Permit.  Termination of a Slip Permit due to late payment of Slip Fees may also 
result in termination of a live-aboard permit that may have been issued to a slip 
permittee of the terminated Slip Permit. 
  2. Death of a Sole Slip Permittee.  A Slip Permit shall terminate sixty 
(60) days after the date of death of a slip permittee under circumstances where the slip 
permittee has no surviving spouse, registered domestic partner or Slip Permit partners 
at the time of death. 
  3. Failure to Meet Requirements for Commercial Fishing 
Earnings.  Failure of a person with a specially designated Commercial Fishing Slip 
Permit issued in accordance with Section 17.20.005.B herein to meet the requirements 
for commercial fishing earnings, as such earnings requirement is established by 
resolution of the City Council, may result in termination of the Commercial Fishing Slip 
Permit. 
  4. Failure to Maintain Berthed Vessel in Operable Condition.  
Failure of a slip permittee to continuously maintain a vessel berthed in a Slip in an 
Operable condition as required by Section 17.20.005.L herein may result in termination 
of the Slip Permit. 
   



   4

  5. Failure of Slip Permittee to Comply With Waterfront 
Department Rules and Regulations.  A slip permittee’s or slip permittee’s guest, 
visitor or invitee’s failure to comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws and 
all Waterfront Department Rules and Regulations may result in termination of the Slip 
Permit. 
 J. APPEAL. 
  If the Waterfront Director terminates a Slip Permit, the slip permittee may 
request a waiver of the termination from the Waterfront Director.  To request a waiver, 
the slip permittee must file a written waiver request setting forth the grounds upon which 
the waiver is requested with the Waterfront Director within ten (10) days of the date that 
the Slip Permit is terminated.  If the Waterfront Director denies the waiver, the slip 
permittee may appeal the Waterfront Director's decision to the Harbor Commission.  
The appeal shall be filed in writing with the City Clerk within ten (10) days of the date of 
the Waterfront Director's decision.  The Harbor Commission's decision on the appeal 
shall be final.  If no waiver request is filed, the slip permittee may appeal the Waterfront 
Director’s decision to terminate the Slip Permit to the Harbor Commission.  The slip 
permittee must file a written appeal setting forth the grounds upon which the appeal is 
based with the City Clerk within ten (10) days of the date that the Slip Permit is 
terminated.  The Harbor Commission's decision on the appeal shall be final. 
 K. VESSELS IN THE HARBOR MUST BE OPERABLE. 
  1. Vessels Assigned to a Slip Permit Must be Maintained as 
Operable Vessels.  Vessels assigned to a Slip Permit must be continuously maintained 
in an Operable condition.  If, at any time, based upon the appearance of the vessel, 
inspection by the Waterfront Director, or other facts, the Waterfront Director determines 
that a vessel is not Operable, the Waterfront Director shall give notice to the slip 
permittee requiring the slip permittee to demonstrate that the vessel is Operable within 
fifteen (15) days of the date of the notice.  If the slip permittee does not demonstrate 
Operability of the vessel within the fifteen (15) day period, the Slip Permit may be 
terminated and the vessel shall be removed from the Harbor. 
   a. Exception - Vessels Not Operable.  Vessels that had 
assigned slips in the Santa Barbara Harbor on September 9, 1980, and which, on that 
date, were not Operable, shall be exempt from the operation of this section until transfer 
of the Slip Permit, after which time the Operability is required. 
  2. Vessels in the Harbor Must be Operable.  Vessels in the Harbor 
must be continuously maintained as Operable Vessels.  It shall be unlawful to berth a 
vessel in the Harbor that is not Operable.   
 L.  ISSUANCE OF SLIP PERMIT AFTER TERMINATION. A slip 
permittee whose Slip Permit is terminated as provided herein may not apply for another 
Slip Permit until one-year after the date upon which the Slip Permit is terminated.  The 
Waterfront Director shall have the sole discretion to decide whether to issue another 
Slip Permit or not.   The Waterfront Director’s decision shall be final. 
 
 
17.20.255 Santa Barbara Mooring Area. 
 A. MOORING OF VESSELS IN THE HARBOR DISTRICT. 
  1. Unlawful Mooring in Harbor District.  It is unlawful to place, 
erect, construct or maintain a Mooring in any area of the Harbor District without a 
current and valid Mooring Permit issued by the Waterfront Director or without the 
express permission of the Waterfront Director. 



   5

  2. Unlawful Anchoring in Santa Barbara Mooring Area.  It is 
unlawful for any person having charge of a vessel to Anchor a vessel in the Santa 
Barbara Mooring Area without express permission of the Waterfront Director. 
 B. MOORED VESSELS MUST BE OPERABLE. 
  1. Unlawful to Moor Inoperable Vessels.  It shall be unlawful to 
Moor a vessel in the Santa Barbara Mooring Area that is not Operable. 
  2. Moored Vessels Must be Maintained as Operable Vessels.  
Vessels assigned to a Mooring Site in the Santa Barbara Mooring Area must be 
continuously maintained in an Operable condition.  If, at any time, based upon the 
appearance of the vessel, inspection by the Waterfront Director, or other facts, the 
Waterfront Director determines that a vessel is not Operable, the Waterfront Director 
shall give notice to the Mooring Permittee requiring the Mooring Permittee to 
demonstrate that the vessel is Operable within fifteen (15) days of the date of the notice.  
If the Mooring Permittee does not demonstrate Operability of the vessel within the 
fifteen (15) day period, the Mooring Permit shall be terminated and the Mooring and 
vessel shall be removed from the Santa Barbara Mooring Area as required in the 
Mooring Permit Rules and Regulations.  Vessels issued Special Activity Mooring 
Permits may be exempt from this provision, based on a determination of exemption by 
the Waterfront Director. 
 C. SANTA BARBARA MOORING AREA USE AND REGULATIONS. 
  1. Use of Mooring Sites.  The Santa Barbara Mooring Area is divided 
into separate designated Mooring Sites.  Mooring Sites shall be used only for the 
Mooring of Operable vessels and Dinghies by vessel owners who have been issued a 
Mooring Permit by the Waterfront Director.  Mooring Sites shall not be used for 
commercial purposes without the express permission of the Waterfront Director.  
Mooring Permittees shall at all times use the Mooring Site in compliance with the 
Mooring Permit, Minimum Ground Tackle Specifications, this Chapter, and all local, 
state and federal rules.  Failure to comply with all rules and regulations shall be cause 
for termination of a Mooring Permit. 
  2. Mooring Permit Administration. 
   a. Mooring Permits may be issued by the Waterfront Director in 
accordance with the Procedures for Conducting Lotteries for the Assignment and 
Issuance of Mooring Permits and the Mooring Permit Rules and Regulations adopted by 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara. 
   b. Special Activity Mooring Permits may be issued by the 
Waterfront Director. 
   c. Mooring Permit, Term.  A Mooring Permit shall be issued for 
a period of one year and may be renewed annually thereafter by the Waterfront 
Director. 

d. A Mooring Permittee Shall Hold no More than One Permit.  
No person shall at any time be issued or hold more than one Mooring Permit. 
   e. Slip Permittees Not Eligible for Mooring Permits.  Slip 
Permittees in Santa Barbara Harbor are not eligible for assignment of Mooring Permits 
in the Santa Barbara Mooring Area, and Mooring Permittees in Santa Barbara Mooring 
Area are not eligible for Slip Permits in Santa Barbara Harbor either through assignment 
or transfer, unless one of the permits is relinquished prior to issuance of the other 
permit. 
   f. Transfer of Permit.  Mooring Permits are not transferable or 
inheritable. 



   6

   g. Rental of Mooring Sites Prohibited.  It shall be unlawful for 
any person issued a Mooring Permit to rent or lease (whether or not for compensation 
paid or other value), sublease or loan a Mooring Site to any other person or entity. 
  3. Termination of Mooring Permit.  Mooring Permits may be 
terminated either by the Waterfront Director or the Mooring Permittee as provided in the 
Mooring Permit Rules and Regulations.  Upon termination of the Mooring Permit, the 
vessel and Mooring shall be removed from the Santa Barbara Mooring Area in 
accordance with the Mooring Permit Rules and Regulations. 
  4. Failure to Timely Remove a Vessel or Mooring from the Santa 
Barbara Mooring Area.  If the Mooring is not removed within the time provided for such 
removal in the Mooring Permit Rules and Regulations, title to the Mooring shall vest in 
the City.  The City may, thereafter, remove and sell or dispose of the Mooring and 
recover the removal, storage or disposal costs from the Mooring Permittee.  If the 
Mooring Permittee fails to pay such cost, the Waterfront Director may collect such costs 
in any court of competent jurisdiction or may recover any costs from the proceeds of 
sale of the Mooring.  Vessels not removed from the Mooring Site within the time 
provided in the Mooring Permit Rules and Regulations shall be impounded by the City 
and subject to storage fees, disposal or lien sale proceedings as provided by law. 
  5. Appeal of Mooring Permit Termination.  If the Waterfront Director 
terminates a Mooring Permit, the mooring permittee may request a waiver of the 
termination from the Waterfront Director. To request a waiver, the mooring permittee 
must file a written request setting forth the grounds upon which the waiver is requested 
with the Waterfront Director within ten (10) days of the date of termination under Section 
D 1 or D 2 of the Rules and Regulations of Mooring Permits. If the Waterfront Director 
denies the waiver, the Mooring permittee may appeal the Waterfront Director’s decision 
to the Harbor Commission. The appeal shall be filed in writing with the City Clerk within 
ten (10) days of the date of the Waterfront Director’s decision on the waiver.  The 
Harbor Commission’s decision on the appeal shall be final.  If no waiver request is filed, 
the mooring permittee may appeal the termination to the Harbor Commission. The 
mooring permittee shall file a written appeal setting forth the grounds upon which the 
appeal is based with the City Clerk within ten (10)days of the date of termination under 
Section D 1 or D 2 of the Rules and Regulations of Mooring.  A Mooring Permittee may 
appeal a Mooring Permit termination to the Harbor Commission, whose decision shall 
be final.  Any appeal must be submitted in writing stating the grounds for appeal and 
filed with the City Clerk’s Office within ten (10) days of the date of notification of Mooring 
Permit termination. 
 D. MOORING INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS AND ANNUAL 
INSPECTION. 
  1. Mooring Installation.  If offered a Mooring Permit, an individual 
shall place a Mooring and vessel in the Mooring Site designated in the Mooring Permit 
within ninety (90) days of acceptance of the Mooring Permit offer.  The Mooring 
placement shall be made in accordance with the Minimum Ground Tackle Specifications 
by a City-Approved Mooring Inspector.  If the Mooring and vessel are not timely placed 
in the Mooring Site, or if the Mooring is not approved as required by the Mooring Permit 
Rules and Regulations, no Mooring Permit shall be issued.   
  2. Mooring Position.  Any vessel moored in a Mooring Site within the 
City of Santa Barbara Mooring Area shall be firmly secured to a Mooring in such a 
manner as to prevent the vessel from drifting, dragging or otherwise moving off the 
Mooring Site.  If the Waterfront Director determines that the migration of a vessel off the 



   7

Mooring Site may cause an immediate threat or danger to life, property or the 
environment, the Waterfront Director may take action deemed necessary to abate such 
hazard.  Any costs incurred by such abatement shall be borne by the Mooring 
Permittee. 
  3. Mooring Inspections.  Moorings shall be inspected by a City-
Approved Mooring Inspector upon installation at the Mooring Site and annually 
thereafter on each anniversary date of the issuance of the Mooring Permit (or more 
frequently at the Permittee’s option or as deemed necessary by the Waterfront Director) 
to determine compliance with Minimum Ground Tackle Specifications.  The installation 
and inspection shall be performed in accordance with the Mooring Permit Rules and 
Regulations by a City-Approved Mooring Inspector at the Mooring Permittee’s sole cost 
and expense.   
 
17.28.010 Permit Required - Solicitation or Business Activity. 
 Except as expressly authorized in writing by the Waterfront Director or his or her 
designee, no person shall engage in any business or commercial activity of any kind 
whatsoever in the Harbor District without first having applied for and obtained the 
appropriate license, lease or permit.It is unlawful for any person, other than a Harbor 
lessee or sub-lessee or his employee, to peddle or solicit in any public area within the 
Harbor, or upon the waters of the Harbor,  or to engage in any business or commercial 
activity or service, without first receiving a permit from the Waterfront Director, and 
without complying with all applicable ordinances of the City.   Notwithstanding the 
provisions of this section, an individual lboat owner occupying a slip in the Harbor shall 
not be required to obtain a permit.for selling his own boat occupying the slip.  (Ord. 
4757, 1992; Ord. 3517 §2(part), 1972.)   
 
17.28.020 Permission Required - Advertising. 
 It shall be unlawful to erect, repair, alter, relocate or maintain any post, distribute 
or display signs, commercial advertisements or circulars within the Harbor District, or to 
direct or authorize another person to do so, except pursuant to a sign permit obtained in 
accordance with Chapter 22.70 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code unless the sign is 
specifically exempted from the permit requirements as provided in Chapter 22.70., It is 
unlawful for any person to post, distribute or display signs, commercial advertisements 
or circulars in any public area within the Harbor or on the waters of the Harbor, without 
first receiving permission from the Waterfront Director and without complying with all 
applicable ordinances of the City.Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, an 
individual boat owner occupying a slip in the Harbor shall not be required to obtain a 
permit to display a  
The requirements of this Chapter shall not apply to a "For Sale" sign displayed on a 
vessel occupying a slip his own boat by the owner of the vessel, a occupying said slip.  
Also allowed, at the discretion of the Waterfront Director, are  sign, s and an 
announcement, or a flyer s of non-profit making organizations of Harbor boat owners 
and flyers and advertisements posted on a bulletin boards provided on a Marina gates. 
(Ord. 4757, 1992; Ord. 3517 §2(part), 1972.)   
 
17.28.070 Appeal to Board of Harbor Commissioners. 
 If the Waterfront Director denies or revokes a Business Activity Permit, the 
permittee may request a waiver of the denial or revocation from the Waterfront Director.  
To request a waiver, the permittee must file a written waiver request setting forth the 



   8

grounds upon which the waiver is requested with the Waterfront Director within ten (10) 
days of the date that the permit is denied or revoked.  If the Waterfront Director denies 
the waiver, the permittee may appeal the Waterfront Director's decision to the Harbor 
Commission.  The appeal shall be filed in writing with the City Clerk within ten (10) days 
of the date of the Waterfront Director's decision.  The Harbor Commission's decision on 
the appeal shall be final.  If no waiver request is filed, the permittee may appeal the 
Waterfront Director’s decision to deny or revoke the permit to the Harbor Commission.  
The permittee shall file a written appeal setting forth the grounds upon which the appeal 
is based with the City Clerk within ten (10) days of the date that the permit is denied or 
revoked.  The Harbor Commission's decision on the appeal shall be final.  A decision of 
the Waterfront Director granting, denying or revoking a Business Activity Permit, may be 
appealed to the Board of Harbor Commissioners.  A written notice of appeal shall be 
filed within seven (7) days with the City Clerk, stating grounds for appeal, after the date 
of the Waterfront Director's decision.  The appeal shall be placed on the Harbor 
Commissioners next, or earliest possible meeting.   The appellant shall be given written 
notice of the time and place of the meeting at which his appeal will be considered.   The 
decision of the Board of Harbor Commissioners shall be final. (Ord. 4757, 1992; Ord. 
3517 §2(part), 197 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  330.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution For Purchase Of Property At 306 West Ortega Street For 

The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara to Acquire and Accept Certain Property Interests Located at 306 West 
Ortega Street, and, Subject to Review and Approval by the City Attorney as to Their 
Form, Authorizing the Public Works Director to Execute Three Agreements, Being an 
Agreement for Acquisition of Real Property with Escrow Instructions, an Option to 
Purchase Agreement, and an Interim Vacancy Agreement, and Any Escrow Documents 
that May be Required, All Relating to the Proposed Ortega Street Bridge Replacement 
Project, and Consenting to the Recordation of the Related Grant Deed in the Official 
Records, County of Santa Barbara. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Ortega Street Bridge (Bridge) Replacement Project (Project) will replace the 
existing bridge over Lower Mission Creek.  The Project is an approved Federal Highway 
Bridge Program project with oversight provided through Caltrans.  Construction of the 
Project is scheduled to begin in the spring of 2011. 
 
The City must purchase various property interests for the Project, as shown on 
Attachment 1, and as outlined on Attachment 2. 
 
Agreements have been executed with all other owners of property interests needed for 
the Project.  The proposed Agreements with Mission Creek Properties, LLC (Mission 
Creek Properties), which owns the property at 306 West Ortega Street, will allow the 
City’s purchase of the last remaining property interest needed to complete the project.  
At its meeting on May 18, 2010, Council adopted Resolution No. 10-030 authorizing the 
City Attorney to initiate those steps necessary for a Superior Court Eminent Domain 
action, if required, in order to gain timely possession of the property at 306 West Ortega 
Street, along with an adjacent access easement and a parking easement.  However, 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution For Purchase Of Property At 306 West Ortega Street For The Ortega Street 
Bridge Replacement Project  
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

Mission Creek Properties has signed the prepared Agreements to enable the City to 
purchase and take early possession of the property.  The subject Resolution is proposed 
to authorize the Public Works Director to execute the related Agreements, and it will now 
not be necessary for the City to initiate an Eminent Domain action at this time. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since January 2010, efforts have been ongoing to obtain Agreements, signed by 
Mission Creek Properties, to enable the City’s purchase of certain property interests at 
306 West Ortega Street.  The necessary property is located on a portion of a larger 
property that contains one commercial unit (the Corner Market) and eleven residential 
units.  The units, all owned by Mission Creek Properties, are known as 306, 308, and 
310 West Ortega Street, and 701, 705, and 709 Bath Street. 
 
Upon the presentation of the City’s approved offer to purchase the necessary property 
interests, Mission Creek Properties expressed concern regarding the loss of its rental 
unit.  Mission Creek Properties was also concerned about the possible loss of a 
significant frontage portion of the larger property, and potential impacts of the adjacent 
easements on future development of the site.  Mission Creek Properties subsequently 
obtained an appraisal of the necessary property interests by an independent fee 
appraiser for review and consideration by all interested parties. 
 
As reported at the meeting on May 18, 2010, based on discussions and reviewed data, 
it was expected that Mission Creek Properties would sign the Agreements.  However, it 
was recommended that Council adopt Resolution No. 10-030 to authorize the City 
Attorney to initiate steps in Eminent Domain in order to gain timely possession of the 
required property interest in the event mutually acceptable acquisition terms could not 
be agreed to. 
 
The Agreements, now signed and delivered to the City for follow-up, include the 
following:  
 

1. Agreement for Acquisition of Real Property with Escrow Instructions  
2. Option to Purchase Agreement  
3. Interim Vacancy Agreement   

 
The proposed Resolution is recommended to authorize the execution of the 
Agreements by the Public Works Director. 
 
Agreement for Acquisition of Real Property with Escrow Instructions 
 
Among the most significant elements, this Agreement provides:  

• The City’s purchase of the property and adjacent easements for consideration in 
the amount of $400,000, together with applicable escrow costs. 

• A right of first refusal by Mission Creek Properties, under a separate Option to 
Purchase Agreement, to allow its repurchase of any excess portion of the 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution For Purchase Of Property At 306 West Ortega Street For The Ortega Street 
Bridge Replacement Project  
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 

 

property remaining after the completion of the Project, for the price of $400,000, 
without warranty by the City. 

• Possession of the necessary property by the City immediately following adoption 
by Council of the subject Resolution and execution of the Agreement, with intent 
to keep the Project on its optimum construction schedule. 

• City’s acquisition will be implemented through an escrow, with issuance of an 
applicable title insurance policy at the close of escrow. 

• Acknowledgment that the City would have acquired (and will acquire) the needed 
property interests by Eminent Domain in the event clear title cannot otherwise be 
obtained through escrow proceedings. 

 
Option to Purchase Agreement 
 
Among the most significant elements, this Agreement provides: 

• An option to Mission Creek Properties to allow it to purchase any excess portion 
of the property at 306 West Ortega Street remaining after the completion of the 
Project. 

• The option purchase price payable to the City will be $400,000. 
• Any purchase of such excess property will be without warranty by the City. 
• Such option may be exercised within sixty (60) days of written notice by the City. 
• If such option is not exercised, it will be deemed terminated and any excess 

portion of the property may be disposed by the City. 
• If the option is exercised, the purchase will be accomplished through escrow.  
• Escrow costs shall be shared in accordance with customary local practices. 

 
This Agreement is proposed to allow Mission Creek Properties to repurchase any 
portion of the property that may be determined excess after the Project has been 
completed.  This will address certain concerns originally expressed by Mission Creek 
Properties regarding loss of the rental unit at 306 West Ortega Street. 
 
Interim Vacancy Agreement 
 
Among the most significant elements, the Interim Vacancy Agreement includes the 
following provisions: 

• City shall rent the residential unit at 306 West Ortega Street, commencing at the 
time the existing tenants are relocated from the site, to make way for the Project. 

• Mission Creek shall not allow occupation by any new tenant who may become 
eligible for relocation assistance, pursuant to applicable laws and guidelines. 

• City shall pay rent in the amount of $1,675 per month, which is the existing rent 
paid by current tenants. 

• For any partial month caused by mid-month close of escrow, City shall pay rent 
in the prorated amount of $55.83 per day. 

 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution For Purchase Of Property At 306 West Ortega Street For The Ortega Street 
Bridge Replacement Project  
June 29, 2010 
Page 4 

 

Tenant Relocation 
 
The entire property owned by Mission Creek Properties is comprised of one commercial 
unit and eleven residential units, including the unit at 306 West Ortega Street, currently 
occupied by tenants.  Although this unit is not scheduled to be removed to make way for 
the Project, the current tenants will be displaced because the unit will not be habitable 
during the bridge replacement work.  Therefore, steps are ongoing, in accordance with 
applicable state laws and guidelines, to relocate the tenants to acceptable replacement 
housing.  If the Agreements are approved as recommended, the unit will then remain 
vacant during construction as set forth in the proposed Interim Vacancy Agreement. 
 
Future Disposition of Excess Properties 
 
It is anticipated that certain property interests acquired for the Project will be determined 
excess after the Project has been completed.  In particular, based on preview of 
available data, it appears likely that portions of the property at 306 West Ortega Street, 
and the property acquired earlier at 309 West Ortega Street, will become excess and 
available for disposition.  At that time, any remaining property at 306 West Ortega Street 
will be offered first to Mission Creek Properties in accordance with the Option to 
Purchase Agreement recommended herein.  Then, in accordance with applicable laws 
and guidelines, any remaining portion of the property at 309 West Ortega Street, and 
the property at 306 West Ortega Street, if not purchased by Mission Creek Properties 
under its option, will be offered for sale on the local real estate market in accordance 
with Municipal Code requirements. 
 
All proceeds received for the sale of the anticipated excess properties will be deposited 
into the appropriate Streets Capital Funds for use in upcoming federally funded projects 
where matching funds by the City will be required. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The table shown on Attachment 3 summarizes all estimated Project costs.  The total 
cost is estimated at $6,790,400, with combined costs estimated at $2,150,000 for 
acquiring the necessary property interests. 
 
In addition to payment of costs for the purchase of all properties and various easements 
required for the Project, it is necessary to pay all costs for the relocation of displaced 
occupants pursuant to federal and state laws and guidelines.  Once all displaced 
occupants have been relocated to replacement dwellings, the final costs will be known.  
The associated right of way and construction costs will also be shared between the City 
(11.47%), and grant funding (88.53%), in accordance with applicable guidelines and the 
formula shown on Attachment 3. 
 
There are sufficient appropriations in the Streets Capital Fund to cover the City’s costs.  
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution For Purchase Of Property At 306 West Ortega Street For The Ortega Street 
Bridge Replacement Project  
June 29, 2010 
Page 5 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 1) Project Area Aerial Photo 
2) Acquisitions and Easements Needed for the Project 
3) Estimated Total Project Cost 

 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/DI/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Mission Creek

Mission Creek

303 W. Ortega
City Acquired 2007

Bridge

Bath St.Orte
ga

 S
t.

306 W. Ortega
Mission Creek
Properties LLC314 W. Ortega

Mares Trust
Approved April 27, 2010

Escrow Pending

309 W. Ortega
City Acquired
April 7, 2010

631 Bath
Vaughan Trust
April 27, 2010

Escrow Pending

600 Block Bath
Flood Control District

Permit Pending

627 Bath
Herman & Dolores Ortega

April 27, 2010
Escrow Pending

620 Castillo
Housing Authority City

April 27, 2010
Pending

PROJECT AREA AERIAL PHOTO

Attachment 1



ATTACHMENT 2 
 
Acquisitions And Easements For Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project 
 
The properties and easements needed for the Ortega Street Bridge Replacement 
Project are identified below. 
 

Address Description Status 
303 West Ortega Street, 
City Property 

Entire Property Acquired; 
Structure Located Within 
Mission Creek Work Area 

City Acquired 2007 

306 West Ortega Street, 
Mission Creek Properties 
LLC 

Portion Property to be 
Acquired in Fee, along with 
Easement for Access, and 
Along with Easement for 
Parking; Structure Located 
Within Mission Creek Work 
Area 

Resolution proposed to 
approve: (1) Agreement 
for Acquisition of Real 
Property; (2) Option to 
Purchase Agreement; 
and (3) Interim Vacancy 
Agreement 

309 West Ortega Street, 
Manuel & Juana Figueroa 

Entire Property Acquired; 
Structure Within Mission 
Creek Work Area 

City Acquired and Closed 
Escrow on April 7, 2010; 
Approved by 
Agreement 23,296 

314 West Ortega Street, 
Mares Family Trust 

Temporary Construction 
Easement and Mission Creek 
Easement Acquired; 
Released Narrow Strip of 
Land within Mission Creek 

City Acquired Easements 
on April 27, 2010, by 
Agreement 23,410; 
Escrow Pending 

620 Castillo Street, 
Housing Authority of City 

Temporary Construction 
Easement Acquired for Work 
in Mission Creek 

City Acquired Easement 
on April 27, 2010, by 
Agreement 23,413; 
Payment Pending 

627 Bath Street, 
Herman & Dolores Ortega 

Mission Creek Easement 
Acquired for Alignment of 
Mission Creek 

City Acquired Easement 
on April 27, 2010, by 
Agreement 23,411; 
Escrow Pending 

600 Block Bath Street, 
County Flood Control District 

Encroachment Permit for 
Work in Mission Creek 

Issuance of Permit by 
County Flood Control 
District Pending 

631 Bath Street, 
Vaughan Trust 

Mission Creek Easement 
Acquired for Alignment of 
Mission Creek 

City Acquired Easement 
on April 27, 2010, by 
Agreement 23,412; 
Escrow Pending 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 
 

ORTEGA BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
PROJECT PHASE HBP SHARE CITY SHARE ESTIMATED COSTS 

 
Design Phase * $707,760 $176,940 $884,700

 
Right-of-way 
Phase 

$1,903,395 $246,605 $2,150,000
 

Construction 
Phase 

$3,324,920 $430,780 $3,755,700
 

Totals $5,936,075 $854,325 $6,790,400
 

 
 
The table above shows total estimated Project costs.  The Project is currently in 
the right of way phase and funds have been authorized up to $2,150,000 (per 
written approval by Caltrans). 
 
Caltrans is overseeing the City's steps to purchase all properties and easements 
for the Project, since 88.53% of the City’s eligible right of way and construction 
costs will be reimbursed by the Federal Highway Bridge Program through 
Caltrans.  The City will be responsible for 11.47% of these eligible costs. 
 
The shared acquisition costs relating to the Property and easements to be 
purchased at 306 West Ortega Street are outlined as follows: 
 
 City @ 11.47% =  $45,880 
 HBP @ 88.53% = $354,120 
 Total Combined Acquisition Costs = $400,000 
 
Based on the approved appraisals, previous acquisition costs, negotiated 
agreements, estimated relocation costs, and anticipated management costs, the 
Project right of way phase total costs are expected to have a surplus of 
authorized funds. 
 
 
 
 * The Design Phase of this Project included 80% Federal Highway 

Bridge Program reimbursement with the City responsible for 20% of 
eligible Design costs. 

 



 
Page 1 of 3 

 

  
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 

BARBARA TO ACQUIRE AND ACCEPT CERTAIN PROPERTY 
INTERESTS LOCATED AT 306 WEST ORTEGA STREET, AND, 
SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE CITY 
ATTORNEY AS TO THEIR FORM, AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THREE AGREEMENTS, BEING 
AN AGREEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY WITH 
ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS, AN OPTION TO PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT, AND AN INTERIM VACANCY AGREEMENT, AND 
ANY ESCROW DOCUMENTS THAT MAY BE REQUIRED, ALL 
RELATING TO THE PROPOSED ORTEGA STREET BRIDGE 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT, AND CONSENTING TO THE 
RECORDATION OF THE RELATED GRANT DEED IN THE 
OFFICIAL RECORDS, COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 

 
 
WHEREAS, a proposed project is currently undergoing final design and environmental review for 
the City of Santa Barbara (City) to replace the existing bridge for Ortega Street at Mission Creek, 
due to its age, increasingly deteriorated condition and limited flood control capacity, with 
anticipated reimbursement of the City’s associated project costs using funds provided by the 
United States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as 
administered by the State of California, Department of Transportation (Caltrans);   
 
WHEREAS, the Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project (Project) requires the purchase by the 
City of the real property commonly known as 306 West Ortega Street, being a portion of Santa 
Barbara County Assessor’s Parcel APN 037-073-011, owned by Mission Creek Properties, LLC, 
a limited liability company (Mission Creek Properties), due to its location immediately adjacent to 
the existing bridge and the proposed new Ortega Street bridge at Mission Creek, together with 
the purchase by the City of an adjacent access easement and an adjacent parking easement, for 
monetary consideration in the amount of $400,000, plus related escrow closing costs;  
 
WHEREAS, as authorized by FHWA and Caltrans, the real property interests have been 
appraised by an independent fee appraiser, and in accordance with applicable laws and 
guidelines, subject to final approval by the Council of the City of Santa Barbara, a written 
purchase offer and required appraisal summary and agreement have been delivered to Mission 
Creek Properties; 
 
WHEREAS, the real property interests have also been appraised by an independent fee 
appraiser selected by Mission Creek Properties, and following additional discussions, in 
accordance with applicable laws and guidelines, subject to final approval by the Council of the 
City of Santa Barbara, revised agreements have been delivered to Mission Creek Properties, 
which include an Agreement for Acquisition of Real Property with Escrow Instructions, an Option 
to Purchase Agreement, and an Interim Vacancy Agreement; 
 



 
Page 2 of 3 

 

WHEREAS, the written purchase offer, as revised, has been conditionally accepted by Mission 
Creek Properties, and the members have voluntarily signed all related agreements to allow the 
City to purchase the necessary property interests, subject to final approval by the Council of the 
City of Santa Barbara; 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution will provide authorization by the Council of the City of Santa Barbara 
for the Public Works Director to execute all such agreements with Mission Creek Properties, 
subject to approval as to their form by the City Attorney; 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution will also provide authorization by the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara for the Public Works Director to subsequently execute any documents that may become 
necessary to accomplish such purchase by the City of the property interests, subject to approval 
as to form of such documents by the City Attorney, which may include among others, but not be 
limited to, additional sale escrow instructions; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution will also demonstrate intent by the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara to accept the property interests particularly described in the Grant Deed and all related 
agreements and documents delivered for such purpose, without further action or subsequent 
resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Santa Barbara as follows: 

 
SECTION 1.   The Public Works Director is hereby authorized by the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara to execute the Agreement for Acquisition of Real Property with Escrow Instructions with 
Mission Creek Properties, to accomplish the purchase by the City of the real property commonly 
known as 306 West Ortega Street, being a portion of Santa Barbara County Assessor’s Parcel 
APN 037-073-011, together with the purchase by the City of an adjacent access easement and 
an adjacent parking easement, for monetary consideration in the amount of $400,000, plus 
related escrow closing costs. 
 
SECTION 2.   The Public Works Director is hereby authorized by the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara to execute the Option to Purchase Agreement with Mission Creek Properties, to 
authorize the possible subsequent disposition and sale by the City of the real property commonly 
known as 306 West Ortega Street to Mission Creek Properties, LLC, at its sole option, and 
subject to certain applicable conditions, following the completion of the Project by the City, for 
monetary consideration in the purchase option amount of $400,000, plus related escrow closing 
costs. 
 
SECTION 3.   The Public Works Director is hereby authorized by the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara to execute the Interim Vacancy Agreement with Mission Creek Properties, to avoid any 
subsequent occupancy of the residential unit at 306 West Ortega Street by any new tenants, and 
to avoid the need to relocate additional occupants in accordance with applicable laws and 
guidelines, subject to review as to the form of such agreement, with City’s payment of rental to 
Mission Creek Properties in the amount of $1,675 per month, prorated on the basis of $55.83 per 
day, commencing on the first day following termination of the occupancy by the current tenants of 
the unit, and ending on the effective date on which the City obtains ownership of the property at 
306 West Ortega Street by a deed, or on the date the City obtains possession pursuant to any 
eminent domain proceedings, if any, whichever shall occur first.  



 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
SECTION 4.   The City of Santa Barbara hereby accepts the property interests at 306 West 
Ortega Street, as more particularly described in the Grant Deed, the Agreement for Acquisition of 
Real Property with Escrow Instructions, the Option to Purchase Agreement, and the Interim 
Vacancy Agreement, all of which have been executed and delivered to the City by Mission Creek 
Properties for such purposes hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.   The City of Santa Barbara hereby consents to the recordation by Fidelity National 
Title Company of the Grant Deed by Mission Creek Properties in the Official Records, County of 
Santa Barbara, at the close of escrow. 
 
SECTION 6.    This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  670.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Renewal Of Agreement For Paratransit Services With Easy Lift 

Transportation, Incorporated 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute an agreement with Easy Lift 
Transportation, Incorporated (Easy Lift), for paratransit services for elderly and mobility-
impaired people, in an amount not to exceed $229,416.73 for Fiscal Year 2011. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Easy Lift is a non-profit agency that provides paratransit services throughout the South 
County area.  The City has had an Agreement with Easy Lift since 1990 whereby the City  
subsidizes Easy Lift’s paratransit services  from  Measure D funds.  Measure A, which is 
the new sales tax measure for transportation and has replaced Measure D, went into 
effect on April 1, 2010. The Easy Lift contract will now be paid out of Measure A funds.   
 
Under the requirement of the Measure A Investment Plan, the City must use at least 10% 
of its Measure A funds for forms of alternative transportation.  This Agreement complies 
with the rules governing implementation of Measure A, as approved by the voters of the 
County of Santa Barbara.  Currently, Easy Lift reports that 73% of the rides provided in the 
past 12 months have been for residents of the City of Santa Barbara. 
 
Easy Lift provides vital transportation services to the disabled community, and staff is 
recommending the continuation of financial support to Easy Lift at the current contract 
level. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The Public Works Department operating budget for Fiscal Year 2011 has $229,416.73 for 
the Easy Lift Transportation contract budgeted from Measure A funds. 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Renewal Of Agreement For Paratransit Services With Easy Lift Transportation, 
Incorporated  
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

PREPARED BY: Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  150.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement With The Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District For 

Transit Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Fiscal Year 2011 Master 
Agreement (Agreement), in a form of agreement acceptable to the City Attorney, with the 
Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District (MTD) for transit services in an amount not to 
exceed $1,391,521. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2010 Master Agreement with MTD for the Downtown/Waterfront, 
Commuter Lot, and Crosstown Shuttles; the Mesa Loop; and enhanced service on Lines 
1, 2, and 3, expires on June 30, 2010.  The MTD Board approved the renewal of the 
Agreement at their June 1, 2010, meeting and is requesting that the City also approve the 
renewal for one year.   
 
On November 4, 2008, the voters approved Measure A, the replacement to Measure D, 
which expired on March 31, 2010.  Under the new sales tax measure, MTD became a 
direct recipient of Measure A funds on April 1, 2010.  The City’s financial support for the 
Crosstown Shuttle, Mesa Loop, and Lines 1, 2, and 3 ended on March 31, 2010.  In 
addition, the financial support for Lines 6 and 11 ends on June 30, 2010.  Funding for 
these transit services utilized Measure D and Downtown Parking funds.  Under the 
Measure A Investment Plan, MTD will receive 26.05% of the City’s Measure A funds 
directly from the Santa Barbara County Associations of Governments to pay for the above-
mentioned transit services. 
 
MTD will provide between 13,500 and 15,088 hours annually for the 
Downtown/Waterfront Shuttle.  The operating subsidy will remain at the Fiscal Year 
2010 level of $1,188,180.  MTD will provide the City with the actual shuttle fare as a 
credit to the monthly shuttle service invoice.  The City’s estimated annual revenue for 
Fiscal Year 2011 is $120,000.  The operating subsidy that the City provides to MTD is 
considered to be a fare “buy down”, reducing the shuttle fare from $1.75 to the current 
rate of $0.25.  MTD’s hourly rate for Fiscal Year 2011 will be $78.75. 



Council Agenda Report 
Agreement With The Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District For Transit Services 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 
This Agreement also allows 2,537 hours of service for the Commuter Lot Shuttle 
between the Cota and Carrillo Commuter Lots, and Downtown businesses.  Of these 
service hours, 1,265 were previously allocated specifically to the Cota Lot Shuttle, and 
will now be applied to the Crosstown Shuttle.  The proposed Fiscal Year 2011 
Commuter Lot Shuttle Service Agreement has an hourly subsidy of $80.15.  The total 
operating subsidy for the Commuter Lot Shuttle will remain at the Fiscal Year 2010 level 
of $203,341. 
 
Funding Provisions 
 
The total City funds for this Master Agreement are:  
          
 OPERATING SUPPORT  Fiscal Year 2011 

Downtown/Waterfront Shuttle $1,188,180 
Commuter Lot Shuttle      $203,341 
Total: $1,391,521 

 
Proposed Source of Funding: 
 Fiscal Year 2011 

Measure “A” Fund (Operations) $577,545 
General Fund (Transfer from RDA Fund) $300,000 
Downtown Parking Fund $393,976 
Fare Box Revenue (Credit)     $120,000 
Total: $1,391,521 

 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT 
 
The transit support provided under the terms of the Master Agreement contributes toward 
the City’s goal of increasing the availability of public transit, making use of a car a choice, 
not a necessity. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/BA/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  June 29, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Preparation 

Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Granite Construction Company (Granite), in their low bid 

amount of $720,254 for construction of the Zone 4 Pavement Preparation Project 
(Project), Bid No. 3600; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $72,025 to cover any cost increases that may result from 
contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; and  

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers and 
Associates (Flowers), in the amount of $67,700 for construction support services, 
and approve expenditures of up to $6,770 for extra services of Flowers that may 
result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Project is part of the City’s annual Pavement Management Program.  The Project is 
a prerequisite for the annual Zone 4 Rejuvenating Cape Seal contract (Pavement 
Maintenance), which is a separate Council agenda item.  The intent of the Pavement 
Management Program is to maintain the City’s roads using a structured, systematic 
approach.  The City is divided into seven pavement maintenance zones and, in general, 
one maintenance zone is maintained each year.  This Project includes work at the 
Waterfront and various parking lots within the City.  It is typical for various City 
departments to add and pay for pavement management work within their jurisdictions to 
the annual pavement management construction contract. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Preparation Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of repairing localized distress on various roads throughout the City, 
which encompass streets mainly in Zone 4 (see Attachment).  
 
In conjunction with this Project, the following division/department parking lots will also 
be included in the work: 
 

• Waterfront Department (Main, 90 minute entrance, and the Boat Launch ramp 
lots) 

• Public Works Transportation Division (Downtown Parking Lots 3, 4, 5, and 10) 
• Public Works Water Division (El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant) 
• Public Works Facilities Division (City Hall, Shoreline East and West lots) 
 

These facilities have been included in the Project on behalf of each Division sponsor, to 
take advantage of economies of scale.  
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of five bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Granite Construction Company 

Watsonville, CA 
 

  $720,254

2. R. Burke Corporation 
San Luis Obispo, CA 

 

  $761,167

3. Lash Construction 
Santa Barbara, CA 

 

  $812,689

4. Berry General Engineering 
Ventura, CA 

 

  $877,975

5. Toro General Engineering 
Ventura, CA 

 

  $1,139,555

The low bid of $720,254, submitted by Granite, is an acceptable bid that is responsive 
to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $72,025, or 10%, is typical for this type of 
work and size of project.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Preparation Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Flowers in the amount of $74,470 for construction management services.  
Flowers is on the City’s Pre-qualified Engineering Services List and is experienced in 
this type of work. 

 
PUBLIC OUTREACH 
 
Prior to soliciting bids, staff sent notifications to residents and property owners about the 
upcoming work in their neighborhood.  Additionally, the contractor is required to 
advertise in local papers three weeks prior to the work, in order to inform the general 
public of the upcoming work.  Door hangers will be placed at each property adjacent to 
the work area 72 hours in advance to notify them of the timing of the work.  Staff has 
also placed a scroll on City TV Channel 18 with information regarding the upcoming 
Project. 
 
FUNDING   
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 

 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 

Construction Contract $720,254 $72,025 $792,279

Construction 
Management Contract 

$67,700 $6,770 $74,470

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $866,749
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Preparation Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 4 
 

 

 

The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Design (by Contract) $32,604

City Staff Costs $27,765

 Subtotal $60,369

Construction Contract   $720,254

Construction Change Order Allowance $72,025

Subtotal $792,279

Project Administration (by City staff) $30,000

Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract) $74,470

 Subtotal $104,470

TOTAL COST OF PAVEMENT PREPARATION PROJECT $957,118
 
Combined with the Pavement Maintenance work in a separate agenda item, the total 
cost of the Pavement Maintenance Program in Zone 4 is estimated to cost 
approximately $3.5 million.  This Project is primarily funded by Measure D, the Utility 
User Tax, and Proposition 1B funds.  There are sufficient appropriated funds in the 
Streets Fund to cover the cost of this Project. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Pavement Zone Map 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Principal Civil Engineer/TC/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



0 0



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  June 29, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Maintenance 

Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Pavement Coatings Company, waiving minor irregularities, 

in their low bid amount of $1,995,261.50 for construction of the Zone 4 
Rejuvenating Cape Seal Project (Project), Bid No. 3601; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $199,526 to cover any cost increases that may result from 
contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; and 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers and 
Associates (Flowers) in the amount of $242,480, for construction support 
services, and approve expenditures of up to $24,248 for extra services of 
Flowers that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Project is part of the annual Pavement Management Program (Program). It has 
been a long-standing practice for the City to maintain the roads using a structured, 
systematic approach.  The City is divided into seven pavement maintenance zones and, 
in general, one maintenance zone is maintained each year.  This Project includes 
portions of the Waterfront and various City parking lots.  It is typical for various City 
departments to add and pay for pavement management work within their jurisdictions to 
the annual pavement management construction contract. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Maintenance Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of cleaning, crack sealing, and cape sealing various roads throughout 
the City, which encompass streets in Zone 4 (see Attachment).  
 
In conjunction with this Project, the following division/department parking lots will also 
be included in the work: 
 

• Waterfront Department (Main, 90 minute entrance, and the Boat Launch ramp 
lots) 

• Public Works Department, Transportation Division (Downtown Parking Lots 3, 
4, 5, and 10) 

• Public Works Department, Water Division (El Estero Wastewater Treatment 
Plant) 

• Public Works Department, Facilities Division (City Hall, Shoreline East and 
West lots) 

 
These facilities have been included in the Project on behalf of each Division to take 
advantage of economies of scale.  
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of three bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Pavement Coatings Company 

Mira Loma, CA 
 

  $1,995,261.50* 

2. Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc. 
Watsonville, CA 

 

  $2,063,416.50 

3. Valley Slurry Seal 
Sacramento, CA 

 

  $2,074,161.75 

*corrected bid total 
 
The low bid of $1,995,261.50, submitted by Pavement Coatings Company, is an 
acceptable bid that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid 
specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $199,526, or 10%, is typical for this type 
of work and size of project.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Maintenance Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Flowers in the amount of $266,728 for construction management services.  
Flowers is on the City’s Pre-qualified Engineering Services List and is experienced in 
this type of work.  
 
PUBLIC OUTREACH 
 
Prior to soliciting bids, staff sent notifications to residents and property owners about the 
upcoming work in their neighborhood.  Additionally, the contractor is required to 
advertise in local papers three weeks prior to the work in order to inform the general 
public of the upcoming work.  Door hangers will be placed at each property adjacent to 
the work area 72 hours in advance to notify them of the timing of the work.  Staff has 
also placed a scroll on City TV Channel 18 with information regarding the upcoming 
Project. 
 
FUNDING   
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 

Construction Contract $1,995,261.50 $199,526.00 $2,194,787.50

Construction Management 
Contract 

$242,480.00 $24,248.00 $266,728.00

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $2,461,515.50
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 4 Pavement Maintenance Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 4 
 

 

 

The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 

 
ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 

 
Design (by Contract) $32,604.00

City Staff Costs $27,765.00

 Subtotal $60,369.00

Construction Contract   $1,995,261.50

Construction Change Order Allowance $199,526.00

 Subtotal $2,194,787.50

Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract) $266,728.00

Project Administration (by City Staff) $30,000.00

 Subtotal $296,728.00

TOTAL COST OF PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE PROJECT $2,551,884.50
 
Combined with the Pavement Preparation work in a separate agenda item, the total 
Pavement Maintenance Program for Zone 4 is estimated to cost approximately $3.5 
million.  This Project is primarily funded by Measure D, Utility User Tax, and Proposition 
1B funds.  There are sufficient funds in the Streets Fund to cover the cost of this 
Project.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Pavement Zone Map 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Principal Civil Engineer/TC/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



0 0



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  570.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 Administration Division, Parks and Recreation Department  
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Parma Park Equestrian Staging 

Area Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc. (Lash), in their low bid amount of 

$170,241 for construction of the Parma Park Equestrian Staging Area Project 
(Project), Bid No. 3539; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $17,000 to cover any cost increases that may result from 
contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; and 

C. Authorize the General Services Manager to issue a Purchase Order to Fugro 
West (Fugro) in the amount of $4,500 for material testing services, and approve 
expenditures of up to $500 for extra services of Fugro that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work.  
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Council authorized the design of the Project in January 2008.  The Parma Park Trust 
(Trust) is funding the Project to upgrade the entrance to Parma Park on Stanwood Drive 
and enhance the equestrian staging and parking area.  Parma Park suffered severe 
damage in November 2008 from the Tea Fire and the Project was put on hold.  With 
recovery underway, the Trustee expressed interest in moving forward with the Project.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Parma Park Equestrian Staging Area Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
Parma Park (Park), one of the City’s 11 open space parks, comprises 200 acres.  Located 
in the upper Sycamore Creek watershed and generally bounded by Sycamore Canyon 
Road, Mountain Drive, and the community of Montecito, the Park provides passive 
recreation opportunities to hikers and equestrians.  Currently, most motorized vehicles 
and trailers are prohibited from entering the Park.  Mountain biking is limited to fire roads 
within the Park.  With prior arrangement, equestrians are granted permission to bring 
horse trailers into a staging area through the Stanwood Drive entrance to the Park.  The 
entrance and staging area are also access points for residents that hike the Park trails.  
 
Harold Parma, along with his family, deeded the Park to the City in November 1973.  
The Parks Division of the Parks and Recreation Department (Department) manages the 
Park.  The Trust, established in 2000, provides funds on an annual basis to support the 
preservation and maintenance of the Park.  The Department works closely with the 
Trust to develop and implement annual maintenance programs for the Park, as well as 
pursue Park improvements.  The Trust is funding the Project to upgrade the entrance to 
the Park on Stanwood Drive and enhance the equestrian staging and parking area.  
 
Council authorized the design of the Project in January 2008.  The Park suffered severe 
damage in November 2008 from the Tea Fire and the Project was put on hold.  With 
recovery underway at the Park, the Park Trustee expressed interest in moving forward 
with the Project. 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of 10 bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Lash Construction, Inc.  

Santa Barbara 
$170,241.00 

2. Granite Construction Company  
Santa Barbara 

$171,184.00 

3. R. Burke Corporation  
San Luis Obispo 

$171,193.00 

4. Brough Construction  
Santa Maria 

$182,109.60 * 

5. Bob Trautz  
Santa Barbara 

$198,018.00 * 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Parma Park Equestrian Staging Area Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

6. Cal Fran Engineering, Inc.  
Simi Valley 

$212,605.00 

7. Aguilera Brothers Construction  
Oxnard 

$234,194.00 

8. Schock Contracting  
Santa Barbara 

$255,510.00 

9. John Madonna Construction  
San Luis Obispo 

$261,762.00 * 

10. Toro Enterprises  
Oxnard 

$272,625.50 

*corrected bid total 
 
The low bid of $170,241.00, submitted by Lash, is an acceptable bid that is responsive 
to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications. 
 
The change order funding recommendation of $17,000, or (10%), is typical for this type 
of work and size of project. 
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the General Services Manager to issue a 
Purchase Order to Fugro in the amount of $4,500 for materials testing services, and 
approve expenditures of up to $500 for extra services of Fugro that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work.  Fugro is on the City’s Prequalified 
Engineering Services list and is experienced in this type of work. 
 
PUBLIC OUTREACH 
 
Due to the popularity of the Park, the Department will be mailing notices to residents in 
the surrounding area to notify them when the Stanwood Drive entrance is unavailable 
for use during construction.  Other entrances to the Park will remain open and 
temporary signage will direct the public to those entrances. 
 
FUNDING   
 
The total cost of the Project is $337,984.65.  The Trust has provided all of the funds for 
the Project’s design, permitting, and construction.  There are adequate funds 
appropriated in the Department’s Miscellaneous Grant Fund to complete Project 
construction.  The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Parma Park Equestrian Staging Area Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 4 
 

 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 

Lash $170,241 $17,000 $187,241

Fugro $4,500 $500 $5,000

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $192,241
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

 
ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 

 
Design (by Contract) $41,046.63

City Staff Costs $32,914.04

Archeological Services and Report (by Contract) $6,564.62

Environmental Services and Report (by Contract) $6,200.00

Arborist Services and Survey (by Contract) $5,840.00

Other Design Costs – Survey, Permits, Supplies, etc. $8,808.36

 Subtotal $101,373.65

Construction Contract   $170,241.00

Construction Change Order Allowance $17,000.00

City Supplied Benches and Park Signs $7,500.00

 Subtotal $194,741.00

Other Construction Costs (Permits, Supplies, etc.) $2,980.00

Construction Management/Inspection (by City Staff) $22,000.00

Material Testing (by Contract) $5,000.00

Arborist and Tree Services (by Contract) $7,490.00

Design Support Services During Construction (by Contract) $4,400.00

 Subtotal $41,870.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST $337,984.65
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Parma Park Equestrian Staging Area Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 5 
 

 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
This Project will enhance the use of the Park as an open space park.  In addition to the 
entrance and staging area improvements, the Project design will address site drainage 
and native vegetation in order to prevent erosion, protect water quality, and enhance the 
riparian habitat. 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Principal Civil Engineer/LS/sk 
 Jill Zachary, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  June 29, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Assessment Of Secondary Wastewater Treatment 

Processes At The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Brown and 
Caldwell in the amount of $263,151 for engineering and scientific assessment services 
for the evaluation of secondary wastewater treatment processes at the El Estero 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (El Estero), and authorize the Public Works Director to 
approve expenditures of up to $21,470 for extra services of Brown and Caldwell that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
El Estero processes approximately 8.5 million gallons of wastewater each day.  
Originally constructed in 1952, a majority of the current infrastructure was constructed in 
1978 to meet 1972 Clean Water Act requirements. While many capital improvement 
projects have been completed at  El Estero in its past 58 years of operation, it still 
requires periodic unit process evaluations due to the nature of its operations.  Staff has 
identified that El Estero’s secondary treatment processes are in need of refurbishment 
and optimization. 
 
On February 16, 2010, the City received seven Statements of Qualifications from 
engineering firms interested in performing this assessment work. On April 23, 2010, 
staff, along with a Water Commissioner, interviewed the three top-ranking firms, who 
provided proposals detailing the specific engineering and scientific analyses required to 
successfully perform this assessment work.  From this competitive process, Brown & 
Caldwell was selected to negotiate the final contract and scope of work required for this 
work effort. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Assessment Of Secondary Wastewater Treatment Processes At The El 
Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

Brown and Caldwell will evaluate existing secondary treatment processes and will 
develop recommendations for proposed treatment process changes. Recommendations 
will be made for aeration system process improvements, activated sludge process 
improvements, secondary clarifier process improvements, and ancillary process 
activities. The consultant will identify a plan that describes proposed projects and 
project sequencing that may result from recommendations made in this assessment 
study. All work products will be summarized and referenced in a final Assessment 
Report. 
 
At their meeting on June 14, 2010, the Board of Water Commissioners voted 5/0 to concur 
with staff’s recommendation. 
 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
This project was anticipated, and there are adequate appropriated funds in the 
Wastewater Capital Fund for this professional engineering and scientific assessment 
work. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
Changes in the wastewater treatment process will result in less energy used at El 
Estero.  Wastewater treatment process improvements will also improve water quality for 
both reclaimed water production and treated effluent discharge into the ocean. 
 
PREPARED BY: Christopher Toth, Wastewater System Manager/CJT/es 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:  June 29, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Architectural Design Services At 13 East Cabrillo 

Boulevard For The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Lenvik and Minor Architects (Lenvik) in the amount of $262,782 
for architectural design services for the remodeling of 13 East Cabrillo Boulevard, as 
part of the Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project (Project), and authorize the 
Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $39,420 for extra services that 
may result from necessary or unforeseen changes in the scope of work.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
This project will replace the existing deteriorating connected bridges (circa 1913 and 
1928) over Mission Creek. The new bridge will have the same number of vehicular 
traffic lanes, wider sidewalks, and improved hydraulic capacity to pass flood waters. The 
existing bridge has the unique feature of having the building at 13 East Cabrillo 
Boulevard connected to it. As such, it necessary to disconnect the building from the 
bridge to meet federal grant funding requirements.  
 
Staff is currently negotiating terms of the Project’s right of way acquisition with the 
owners of 13 East Cabrillo Boulevard (Building), currently occupied by Rusty’s Pizza.  
During discussions with the property owners for permanent and temporary construction 
easements, staff and the owners realized the potential benefits to redirecting project 
design strategies regarding modifications to the Building as part of the proposed bridge 
and Mission Creek channel wall construction.  The proposed architectural services are 
expected to provide the plans, specifications, and cost estimates necessary to complete 
negotiations with the property owner. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Architectural Design Services At 13 East Cabrillo Boulevard For The 
Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

Previous plans were to remove and replace the existing patio and a portion of the 
Building in order to construct the proposed bridge replacement and creek channel wall 
improvements.  The prior removal and replacement proposal plan did not include 
reconstructing the existing creek wall beneath the Building, which appears to support a 
portion of the Building and patio.  Ownership, replacement costs, and liability issues of 
the support wall under the Building had become very complicated and a potential 
impasse in the right of way negotiations.   
 
RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION PROCESS 
 
In July 2009, staff recommended, and Council adopted, a Resolution of Necessity to 
acquire the easements by possible Eminent Domain in order to assure the timely 
acquisition of the easements necessary for the construction of the Project.  The 
Resolution was recommended only as a precautionary measure to institute the City’s 
legal rights.  This action is intended to preserve the timeline needed to acquire the right 
of way for the Project, and avoid cost increases normally caused by delay.  
 
We are currently seeking to avoid using the City’s Eminent Domain authority by 
pursuing a settlement agreement for the acquisitions to be of a mutual benefit to both 
the City and the property owners.  The expected successful conclusion to these 
negotiations will eliminate potential court proceedings that would be time-consuming 
and expensive.  
 
During right of way negotiations, the concept arose to remove the patio and a portion of 
the Building over Mission Creek and relocate the lost dining area as a second story to 
the Building.  The intent of the proposal was to avoid loss of dining room seating for the 
restaurant.  In addition, the existing creek wall would be replaced.  This is anticipated to 
simplify the participation of gaining federal funding approvals for the right of way 
acquisition.  The proposed concept will allow for a setback from the creek, which 
currently does not exist.  The Historic Landmarks Commission recently reviewed this 
concept with favorable comments from the majority, moving it forward to the Planning 
Commission, where approval is being scheduled for August/September.  
 
Lenvik was selected because of their previous experience and knowledge of similar 
buildings in the area, along with input from the property owner.  The contract with Lenvik 
consists of architectural design services to prepare construction plans, cost estimate 
specifications, and building permits for modifying the Building after the partial demolition 
is completed.  The architectural services will be broken into two phases to efficiently 
expedite getting a project cost estimate.  It is anticipated that this will facilitate right of 
way negotiations and achieve a settlement agreement with the property owners.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Architectural Design Services At 13 East Cabrillo Boulevard For The 
Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project 
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

FUNDING: 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the current project grant allocation phases to 
cover these costs.  Reimbursement from state and federal funding for these 
expenditures is expected.  The Project is funded by a combination of a Highway Bridge 
Program grant, the Utility Users Tax, and Measure D funds. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The proposed Building modifications and Project improvements will significantly reduce 
the existing major obstructions within the Mission Creek Flood Plain.  These actions will 
create a new building setback from the creek, allowing for the planting of new riparian 
vegetation.   
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/FC/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  330.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  June 29, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Council members 
 
FROM:   Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval Of Equipment Standardization For The Water Resources 

Division 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council find it to be in the City’s best interest to approve equipment standardization 
for the Water Resources Division (Water Resources) for the next five-year period, in 
accordance with Section 4.52.080 (k) of the Municipal Code. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Water Resources operates a number of complex facilities.  These include treatment 
plants, reservoirs, pump stations, lift stations, and related appurtenances.  It is in the City’s 
best interest for Water Resources to standardize on equipment commonly used to support 
and maintain these facilities.  Doing so will minimize the need to train staff on the 
installation, maintenance, and use of a wide variety of equipment. It will also reduce the 
need to stock an array of specialized tools, and will minimize parts inventories necessary 
for equipment maintenance.  Standardizing equipment would also provide better response 
time with making repairs and responding to emergencies, resulting in improved 
performance and reliability of the City’s Water Resources facilities.  
 
Section 4.52.080 (k) of the Municipal Code authorizes Council to purchase supplies, 
equipment and services without complying with the formal bid procedure, when it is found 
to be in the best interests of the City.  Staff recommends that Council approve the attached 
list of equipment as standard for Water Resources for a period of five years. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Water Resources expenditures on the equipment listed on the attachment shall not 
exceed amounts Council has approved in the budget. Standardizing on commonly used 
equipment should reduce costs by reducing inventories, training of staff, and the need for 
specialized tools to work on a wide variety of equipment.  
 
At their meeting on June 14, 2010, the Board of Water Commissioners voted 5/0 to concur 
with staff’s recommendation. 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Equipment Standardization For The Water Resources Division 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 
 
ATTACHMENT: Water Resources Equipment List 
 
PREPARED BY: Catherine Taylor, Water System Manager/CT/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 



Water Resources - Approved Standard Equipment              June 29, 2010
No. Equipment Section

1 EIM electric valve operators. Cater WTP

2 Marsh McBirney insertion flow meters. Cater WTP

3 Rosemount pressure transmitters Cater WTP

4 Rosemount differential pressure transmitters Cater WTP

5 Watson Marlow chemical metering pumps (peristaltic) Cater WTP

6 Peerless Pump horizontal centrifugal pumps Cater WTP

7 Borger rotary lobe pumps Cater WTP

8 Hayward PVC ball valves Cater WTP

9 George Fisher plastic body diaphragm valves Cater WTP

10 Guardian Equipment emergency eyewash and shower equipment Cater WTP

11 Phoenix non-fused terminal blocks Cater WTP

12 Phoenix fused terminal blocks Cater WTP

13 Square D control relays Cater WTP

14 Phoenix intrinsically safe relays Cater WTP

15 Square D variable frequency drive pump motor controllers 60-500 Hp Cater WTP

16 Square D dry type transformers Cater WTP

17 Schneider Electric/Square D surge protection devices Cater WTP

18 Schneider Electric/Square D disconnect switches Cater WTP

19 Square D low voltage molded case circuit breakers Cater WTP

20 Square D low voltage molded case circuit motor circuit protectors Cater WTP

21 Square D motor starters (manual) Cater WTP

22 Square D full voltage magnetic motor starters Cater WTP

23 Square D reduced voltage solid-state motor starters Cater WTP

24 Schneider Electric/Square D low voltage switch gear Cater WTP

25 Schneider Electric/Square D low voltage motor control centers Cater WTP

26 Schneider Electric/Square D panelboards Cater WTP

27 Bussmann low voltage fuses Cater WTP

28 Micro Motion coriolis mass flowmeters Cater WTP

29 Rosemount pressure/vacuum measurement diaphragm seals Cater WTP

30 Rosemount pressure/vacuum measurement instrument manifold valves Cater WTP

31 Rosemount pressure/vacuum measurement direct Cater WTP

32 HACH analytical measurement pH Cater WTP

33 HACH residual ozone anylyzers Cater WTP

34 APC control systems uniterruptible power supplies 10 KVA and below Cater WTP

35 Cisco ethernet switches Cater WTP

36 Cisco process floor ethernet switches Cater WTP

37 Cisco unmanaged ethernet switches Cater WTP

38 Cisco routers Cater WTP

39 Phoenix contact copper to fiber transceiver Cater WTP

40 Phoenix 3 port fiber transceiver Cater WTP

41 Hubbell category 5e patch panels Cater WTP

1

ATTACHMENT



Water Resources - Approved Standard Equipment              June 29, 2010
No. Equipment Section

42 Hubbell category 6 patch panels Cater WTP

43 Hoffman networking PC cabinets Cater WTP

44 Control Logix control systems - PLC programming software Cater WTP

45 Square D Co. - variable frequency drive pump motor controller 0.5-50 hp  Cater WTP

46 Siemans-Robicon variable frequency drive pump motor controller 60-500 hp Cater WTP

47 Allen Bradley Program Logic Controllers Cater WTP/Distribution

48 Siemens ultrasonic level indicator Cater WTP/Distribution/EEWWTP

49 HACH chlorine analyzers Cater WTP/Distribution/EEWWTP

50 HACH turbidity meters Cater WTP/Distribution/EEWWTP

51 HACH dissolved oxygen probes Cater WTP/Distribution/EEWWTP

52 Rosemount magnetic flow meters Cater WTP/Distribution/EEWWTP

53 Rosemont pressure transmitters Cater WTP/Distribution/EEWWTP

54 Allen Bradley variable frequency drive pump controller 40 - 150 Hp Distribution

55 Rosemount differential flow meters Distribution

56 Keller / KPSI level transducers Distribution

57 Sensus water meters (5/8”) Distribution

58 Murphy pressure switches Distribution

59 Allen Bradley variable frequency drives Distribution

60 MDS data radios (Microwave Data Systems) Distribution

61 Phoenix industrial computers Distribution

62 Phoenix high density relays Distribution

63 Phoenix 24V and 12V power supplies Distribution

64 APC uninterruptible power supplies (American Power Conversion) Distribution

65 LMI chemical feed pumps Distribution

66 Cole Palmer peristaltic pumps Distribution

67 Industrial Scientific gas detectors Distribution

68 Hoffman enclosures Distribution

69 Siemens / Milltronics Hydroranger Level Sensor Distribution

70 Metron water meters (1” and larger) Distribution

71 Pratt isolation valves Distribution

72 Cla-Val pressure reducing valves Distribution

73 James Jones Fire Hydrants Distribution

74 Armorcast meter boxes Distribution

75 Crane check valves Distribution

76 De Zurik plug valve Distribution/EEWWTP

77 Modicon Quantum Program Logic Controller EEWWTP

78 U.S. Filter-Wallance & Tiernan residual chlorine analyzers EEWWTP

79 Rosemont -radar level monitoring EEWWTP

80 Telemechaniques - variable frequency drive pump motor controllers EEWWTP

2

ATTACHMENT



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  640.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Rescission Of Parcel Map Approval - 222 West Alamar Street  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council rescind their approval of Parcel Map No. 20,771 for the property at 222 West 
Alamar Street. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On December 9, 2008, the City Council approved Parcel Map No. 20,771 (Parcel Map).  The 
County rejected the Parcel Map because of the property owner’s failure to pre-pay the property 
taxes, which the County requires prior to the recording of all Parcel or Final Maps.  Continuing 
the implementation of the process outlined in the Subdivision Map Act (SMA), the County 
returned the Parcel Map to the City Clerk, accompanied by a rejection letter (attached), for 
further disposition. 
 
According to the SMA (Government Code section 66466(b)), upon receipt of a rejected Parcel 
or Final Map, the City Clerk is required to obtain Council’s rescission of its prior approval.  
Upon the rescission of Council approval, the Parcel or Final Map will return to the Tentative 
Map status.  This Tentative Map is valid until December 9, 2012.  Up until that date, the owner 
or future buyer of the real property may satisfy the Tentative Map conditions and the Parcel 
Map may be resubmitted to Council for approval.  If the Tentative Map expires, all previous 
approvals with regard to this subdivision will expire, and the real property can not be 
subdivided without processing a new Tentative Map. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) Rejection Letter from the County 
 
PREPARED BY: Mark Wilde, Supervising Civil Engineer/VJ/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 Marcelo Lopez, Assistant City Administrator/Administrative Services  
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Attachment

JOSEPH F. HOLLAND
Ce._i ly Ce K Recorder SH;AssOsonI

JIM MCCLURE
ly Recorder are se SW

[0.6 E Anorini SF
Zne Entnrn CA93lO

PC Box ISO
hrriCi l1lO2Ol 99

2*20111

COUNTY CLERK RECORDER AND ASSESSOR

ii;!—SnIir!i FOci

{:Irks

S;iiiici Ili.FNirii ci6

I’;ircvl iiiri I iri;iI ‘[cii’ 0.7’ I

[cliii iO!Il] ( ii’i’iaril Uidc_ -.\ Ca IC lCiiIIiiiiU [his cri;I[, Li crIi[r xii [icc

I N i0crc xxfrlia [Iluliti ;!iuiIiI lull il lOll .IV, 10cr craleli iU!i 2CCc11 CC-!r ra\c [Ic’ \iI!V. 11Cc’! paid.

C;iuicv. 1r.1.:.l..1t1[. i:iiCii,C_ I nip

a ciipC CII., I SCUiII1II Ill iuI\crIiIiIur[1 Cudu nliic IjccL [Jill IC rc;ccHicI !Ir Parccl BI;I>!Iflri
SI[JIxii 1>0111 Jcir, c;inIi 6o [snob, thi ‘Irlir Ca I;CrIiCrIcC. iI.:l[[;I,IC; Ii Ic ([.1cc ci aIi>_ c,Ic.icc call ‘tic Sr
ShI5 56g 2275. lI[aI!Lc an.

I’

I .ccnil [)c-[iir[cil!

S;jrrrir I0[r!,n C; I (irLirrrn Cci.krlcci..iacr

05- [.27

I lick ia:c . (:91w (ItckI[. (11Cc 011.1011

ASS S SSOR: Si,IH 3nrKa.a (Sc: il.c07I 7.5 221’ 2.ct; I •i.•;....[7 ccc BOOC
EI.SCr IC S: I 552 cc. uI c I CCL-

-

0.:. :::2B. S3 a,. C... 19! .3:::.ci BCfl.Jc:. B d2
CL F RN -RE 5CR CF R •• F Cr5 95.22CC. Sc;c- 12crn CocCi ice soar - .,r nrc .605



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  570.06 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Recreation Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Agreements For Afterschool Recreation Programs   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:  
 
A. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to enter into two agreements with the 

Santa Barbara School Districts (SBSD) for the Recreation Afterschool Program 
(RAP), and Afterschool Opportunities for Kids (A-OK); and 

B. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to enter into an agreement with the 
Santa Barbara School Districts and Police Activities League (PAL) for the Junior High 
Afterschool Sports Program.  

 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Each year, the City and SBSD enter into agreements to define terms and budgets for the 
administration of three afterschool recreation programs (RAP, A-OK, and Junior High 
Afterschool). The programs are an important City service that provides essential support to 
families during the crucial afterschool hours. National statistics show that the afterschool 
hours, between 3:00 to 6:00 pm, have the highest incidents of juvenile crime and youth 
engaging in inappropriate behaviors.  
 
Afterschool Programs Overview  
 
Recreation Afterschool Program (RAP) 
 
The RAP program provides recreation services, homework help, and afterschool care at four 
elementary school sites.  In Fiscal Year 2010, 332 participants attended the program, a 
seven percent decrease below the 356 participants in Fiscal Year 2009. It is assumed this 
decrease is partly due to the poor economy and an increase in District programs with 
subsidized childcare.  With continuing program quality improvements and the support of 
school Principals, staff expects at a minimum a slight increase in participation during Fiscal 
Year 2011. The program is very affordable; participants either pay $140 for 30 days of 
service, or pay a daily drop-in fee of seven dollars per day. The City continues its support by 



Council Agenda Report 
Agreements For Afterschool Recreation Programs  
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

providing $60,000 in scholarships for RAP, which is unchanged from previous years. Staff 
works with the Principals to determine scholarship recipients.  Recipients are usually 
students receiving “free or reduced” lunches through the School District.  
 
Afterschool Opportunities for Kids (A-OK) 
 
Jointly funded since Fiscal Year 2000, A-OK provides an afterschool tutorial and enrichment 
program at five Title I elementary school sites through After School Education and Safety 
(ASES) state grant funding. The program targets students achieving academic scores below 
grade level.  Title I schools have over 50% of their student population receiving “free or 
reduced” lunches. The program is provided through collaboration and funding with the SBSD, 
Healthy Start, Family Services Agency, and several other non-profit providers.  The program 
averages 520 participants daily, which is the maximum program size.  Participants pay $20-
$30 per month (sliding scale) for the program. The District contracts with Parks and 
Recreation Department staff to provide recreation and enrichment services for the program. 
City program support is $47,385, unchanged from previous years.  
 
Junior High Afterschool Sports and Recreation Program 
 
The Junior High Afterschool Sports and Recreation Program, which is free to all participants, 
provides sports leagues and recreation services at four junior high school sites.  After a very 
successful partnership in Fiscal Year 2009, PAL took leadership of the Junior High Sports 
Afterschool program offering three sport leagues: flag football, basketball, and soccer. The 
program continues to be funded by the City of Santa Barbara, SBSD, City of Goleta  
and PAL.  The program served 543 participants in Fiscal Year 2010.  Parks and Recreation 
continues to bring other non-profit program offerings to campuses including Club West Cross 
Country and BiCi Centro Earn a Bike Program. City program support is $20,000, unchanged 
from previous years. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:   
 
The RAP Fiscal Year 2011 proposed budget of $153,245 is covered by revenue of 
$93,245 and General Fund support (for scholarships) of $60,000. The A-OK Fiscal Year 
2011 proposed program budget is $226,152, which includes a City funding commitment of 
$47,385, and SBSD’s commitment, provided through a State of California ASES grant of  
$178,767.  The Junior High Afterschool Sports Program Fiscal Year 2011 proposed 
budget is $20,000 from the General Fund. Additional program funds are provided by 
SBSD ($40,000), City of Goleta ($18,000), and PAL (approximately $24,000 through 
grants, donations, and fundraising). Additionally, the City provides in-kind administrative 
oversight and program coordination through two positions: a Youth Activities Supervisor 
and a Recreation Coordinator.  Sixty-four percent of the Recreation Coordinator salary and 
benefit is included in the A-OK budget and reimbursed by the District.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Agreements For Afterschool Recreation Programs  
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 

 

RAP, A-OK, and the Junior High Afterschool Sports program funding is currently included in 
the Parks and Recreation Department Proposed Fiscal Year 2011 Miscellaneous Grants 
Fund. The General Fund combined funding support is $127,385 for the three programs.  
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department recommends that the City continue support of the 
afterschool programs.  The agreements are on the June 29, 2010, Santa Barbara School 
Districts Board of Education agenda for final approval.  These agreements are for one year 
ending June 30, 2011.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Sarah Hanna, Recreation Programs Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  150.02 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 Administration Division, Airport Department  

Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development 
Department 

 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing For 2008 Disaster Recovery Initiative Program 

Funding Application 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:   
 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Approving an Application for Funding and the Execution of a Grant 
Agreement and Any Amendments Thereto from the 2008 Disaster Recovery 
Initiative Fund Allocation of the State Community Development Block Grant 
Program; and 

B. Ratify the City Administrator’s execution of a Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City of Santa Barbara and the Goleta Sanitary District for relocation 
of the San Pedro Creek Sewer Line. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

On May 12, 2010, the State of California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) announced the availability of approximately $38.3 million in 2008 
Disaster Recovery Initiative Allocation (DRI) funds.  The funds have been allocated to the 
State of California for delivery through its Community Development Block Grant program, 
and are currently available to jurisdictions directly impacted by, and included in, two major 
wildfire disaster declarations issued by President Bush in 2008.   

The declarations included California Wildfires FEMA-3287-EM and FEMA-1810-DR, 
issued on June 28, 2008, and November 18, 2008, respectively.  The City was directly 
impacted by each disaster due to the Gap and Tea fires.   
 
The purpose of the funding is to help in the restoration and recovery of damaged 
communities and prevent, or at least mitigate, major damage from potential future 
disasters.  The City has three projects that appear to meet the eligibility requirements:  



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing For 2008 Disaster Recovery Initiative Program Funding Application 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

Sycamore Creek Channel Improvements, San Pedro Creek Sewer Line Relocation, and 
an update to the Safety Element of the City’s General Plan. 
 
Applications are due on July 13, 2010, and funding will be awarded on a first come, first 
served basis, within 60 days of successful receipt and review of the application. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

The City has an opportunity to submit a grant application to obtain funding for three 
projects through the HCD and DRI program funds.  On May 12, 2010, HCD announced 
the availability of approximately $38.3 million in funding for the 2008 DRI.   

There are major requirements that must be satisfied in order to be eligible for a grant 
award.  These requirements are described in Attachment 1, with an explanation on how 
the City’s proposed projects meet these requirements.  This Public Hearing satisfies the 
requirement that DRI grantees hold at least one Public Hearing to approve the application 
for submittal.   

Maximum total award limits have been set, based on the percentage of low and moderate 
(low-mod) beneficiaries.  Low-mod beneficiaries are defined as having no higher than 80 
percent of the countywide median income adjusted for family size.  Thresholds have been 
set based on the following benefit ratios: 
 

Low-Mod Benefit Ratio Maximum Total Award 

51% to 70% $1,000,000 

71% to 90% $3,000,000 

91% to 100% $5,000,000 

The three proposed projects meet the minimum qualification for low-mod beneficiaries.  
Therefore, the City will be limited to a maximum total award of $1,000,000. 

A detailed description of each project is presented below: 

Sycamore Creek Channel Improvements 
 
The Tea Fire of November 2008 heightened the need for channel improvements on 
Sycamore Creek.  The fire burned 1,940 acres, with approximately 88% within the 
Sycamore Creek watershed.  This area encompassed nearly the entire watershed 
draining into Sycamore Canyon.   
 
Below Sycamore Canyon, the creek continues through the Eastside Neighborhood, 
primarily within Census Tract 8.02, which contains approximately 62% low and 
moderate income households.  Much of the area north of Highway 101 adjacent to 
Sycamore Creek is within the 100-year flood plain.  Properties in this neighborhood



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing For 2008 Disaster Recovery Initiative Program Funding Application 
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 

 

were significantly flooded twice in 1995.  In January 1995, nearly four feet of water 
flooded areas adjacent to Sycamore Creek, including Deluxe and Green Mobile Home 
Parks.  
 
The proposed improvements include widening the Sycamore Creek Channel from the 
Highway 101 Bridge upstream to Punta Gorda Street.  Currently, most of this portion of 
Sycamore Creek is approximately 20 feet wide.  This project proposes to widen the 
creek to approximately 60 feet from the top of one bank to top of the other bank. 
 
The improvements consist of a graded earth channel with rock riprap toe protection 
where the top of the bank is approximately 60 feet wide, thereby matching the existing 
public right of way, and planting native vegetation along the creek bank.   
 
These channel improvements are expected to increase channel capacity between the 
new Highway 101 Bridge and Punta Gorda Street from 1,060 to 1,490 cubic feet per 
second.  This would provide flooding relief to the area immediately adjacent to the 
Green Mobile Home Park, as well as other properties within Census Tract 8.02.  The 
approximate construction cost for this work is $570,000. 

San Pedro Creek Sewer Line Relocation 
 
The Santa Barbara County Flood Control District (Flood Control) determined that 
increased runoff from the Gap Fire burn area could result in substantially increased 
erosion and flooding in San Pedro Creek.  As a result, Flood Control developed an 
Emergency Watershed Response Plan that determined that an existing sewer main in 
San Pedro Creek, located on Santa Barbara Airport property, was an obstruction that 
could impede flow and its immediate removal was warranted.   
 
While the project is located in the City, this flow obstruction would primarily result in 
increased flooding threats in the area immediately adjacent to the "Old Town Goleta" 
neighborhood of the City of Goleta, per the Flood Insurance Rate Maps.  The census 
tracts that comprise the "Old Town Goleta" neighborhood contain approximately 57% 
low and moderate income households. 
 
In October 2008, at the request of Flood Control, the City and the Goleta Sanitary 
District (Sanitary District) obtained permits for the immediate abandonment and removal 
of a 12” sewer main located in San Pedro Creek beneath the Hollister Avenue Bridge.  
The project consisted of the capping and abandonment in place of 2,100 feet of a 6” 
existing sewer main, and construction of a new 10” force main for approximately 2,100 
feet along Hollister Avenue and Firestone Road.  The portion of sewer main located 
under the bridge was replaced by a new sewer line attached to the south (downstream) 
side of the Hollister Avenue Bridge.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing For 2008 Disaster Recovery Initiative Program Funding Application 
June 29, 2010 
Page 4 

 

The Sanitary District and the City’s Airport Department entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) to fund this emergency project.  The total project cost was 
$409,700.  Per the MOU, the Airport Department paid for 51% of the project cost and 
the remaining 49% was funded by the Sanitary District.  The Sanitary District 
constructed the project in January 2009.   
 
The City and the Sanitary District (sponsored by the City) is seeking reimbursement for 
this emergency project that was directly related to a 2008 wildfire.  An updated MOU 
between the City’s Airport Department and the Sanitary District is required for the 
Sanitary District to receive their share for this project (Attachment 2). 

Safety Element Update 
 
The notice of funding availability includes a provision for funding forward-thinking land 
use planning that will guide long-term recovery efforts.  Eligible projects include Safety 
Elements of General Plans, Local Hazard Mitigation Plans, and Community Wildfire 
Protection Plans. 

The City's General Plan Safety Element has not had a comprehensive update since the 
original Safety Element was adopted in 1979.  The critical need for a comprehensive 
update was identified during the recent Plan Santa Barbara process; however, funding 
is not presently available to update this General Plan Element.  The DRI provides an 
opportunity to meet this need. 

The update would need to include new mapping, policies, and implementation 
measures pertaining to urban and wildland fire, flood hazard, soil and slope stability 
hazards, bluff erosion and retreat, beach erosion and shoreline hazards, seismic and 
seismically induced hazards, airport related hazards, hazardous materials and facilities, 
and emergency preparedness.  The estimated budget for this project is $80,000.   
 
Each of the projects was presented at a Community Development and Human Services 
Committee Public Hearing.  There were no additional comments from the public, and 
staff recommends that Council approve an application for funding these projects 
through the 2008 DRI. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 

The Sycamore Creek Channel Improvements Project is currently in final design.  This 
project is only partially funded for construction.  DRI funds would provide nearly all of 
the construction funding necessary to complete the improvements between Highway 
101 and Punta Gorda Street.  City funds are needed to complete the design, as well as 
for construction management.   

The San Pedro Creek Bridge Sewer Line Relocation Project is complete and the City is 
seeking reimbursement for this work. 

The Safety Element Update has not been initiated. 



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing For 2008 Disaster Recovery Initiative Program Funding Application 
June 29, 2010 
Page 5 

 

 

Name of Project Phase DRI Share City 
Share Total 

Construction Contract $510,300 $59,700 $570,000Sycamore Creek 
Channel 
Improvements Construction 

Management/Inspection $0 $85,500 $85,500

San Pedro Creek 
Sewer Line Relocation Construction Contract $409,700 $0 $409,700

City of Santa Barbara 
Safety Element Update Planning $80,000 $0 $80,000

Total $1,000,000 $145,200 $1,145,200
 
Additional budget appropriations are not required at this time. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1.  DRI Project Eligibility Requirements 
 2.  MOU between the City’s Airport Department and the Sanitary 
      District 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/BD/mj 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

1 

Disaster Recovery Initiative (DRI) 
 Project Eligibility Requirements 

• The projects must be within jurisdictions that were directly impacted by, and 
including, disaster declarations issued by President Bush in 2008. 

o The declarations included California Wildfires FEMA-3287-EM and 
FEMA-1810-DR issued on June 28, 2008 and November 18, 2008, 
respectively.  The City of Santa Barbara was directly impacted by 
each disaster due to the Gap and Tea Fires.   

• As the DRI is part of the state Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) program, the projects must be administered by an agency with 
CDBG experience. 

o The City’s Housing and Redevelopment Division has the required 
experience in administering CDBG funds. 

• The projects must be eligible activities including Housing Rehabilitation, 
Public Facilities, Public Improvements, Public Services, and Hazard 
Mitigation Planning Activities. 

o The Sycamore Creek Channel Improvements and the San Pedro 
Creek Sewer Line Relocation are eligible under Public 
Improvements.  The Safety Element update is eligible under 
Hazard Mitigation Planning Activities. 

• The projects must meet one of three National Objectives including, 

1. the development of viable urban communities by providing decent 
housing and suitable living environment and expanding economic 
opportunities, principally for low-mod income persons. 

2. aiding in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight; or 

3. meeting other urgent Community Development needs. 

o The Sycamore Creek Channel Improvements and the San Pedro 
Creek Sewer Line Relocation meet low-mod beneficiary objective.   
The Safety Element update is deemed to meet the National 
Objective for low-mod income persons through a waiver included in 
the Federal Notice that created the DRI program. 

• DRI funding may not be used for activities reimbursable by, or for which 
funds are made available by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency, the Army Corps of Engineers, Unites States Department of 
Agriculture, or Small Business Administration.  Further, none of the funds 



2 

may be used as the required match, share, or contribution for another 
Federal Program. 

o The three proposed projects have no other reimbursable funding 
source. 

• DRI grantees are required to hold at least one public hearing during the 
planning phase of the application for public comment on the community’s 
needs and proposed activities. 

o The Community Development and Human Services Committee 
(CDHSC) held a public hearing on June 15, 2010.  Advance notice 
invited public review and comment on the City’s proposed 
application for grant funding. 

The three projects were identified by staff and presented at the 
CDHSC hearing.   

• DRI grantees are required to hold at least one public hearing to approve the 
application for submittal. 

o The purpose of this Council Agenda Report is to meet this 
requirement. 

 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

HM&G Draft 06/03/10 
 

1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR  

ALLOCATION OF DISASTER RECOVERY INITIATIVE FUNDS FOR 
EMERGENCY RELOCATION OF SAN PEDRO CREEK SEWER LINE 

 

 THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR ALLOCATION OF 

DISASTER RECOVERY INITIATIVE FUNDS FOR EMERGENCY RELOCATION 

OF SAN PEDRO CREEK SEWER LINE (this “Agreement”), dated for reference 

purposes as of this ____ day of ________________, 2010, is made and entered into by 

and between the GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT, a public agency (the “District”), and 

the CITY OF SANTA BARBARA, a municipal corporation (the “City”).   

Recitals 

A. The District, the City and the City of Goleta are parties to that certain 

Memorandum of Understanding for Emergency Relocation of San Pedro Creek Sewer 

Line dated as of November 6, 2010 (the “Original MOU”). 

B. The Original MOU provides for the relocation of the District’s sewer line 

which crosses San Pedro Creek near the intersection of Hollister Avenue and Fairview 

Avenue in the City of Santa Barbara in order to address emergency flooding concerns 

associated with the Gap Fire (the “Relocation Project”). 

C. Pursuant to the Original MOU, the costs associated with the Relocation 

Project were paid forty-nine percent (49%) by the District and fifty-one percent (51%) by 

the City.  

D. The Financial Assistance Division of the State of California’s Department 

of Housing and Community Development has made available 2008 Disaster Recovery 

Initiative funds (“DRI Funds”) through its Community Development Block Grant 

Program.  The 2008 DRI Funds are currently available to the City as a jurisdiction 

directly impacted by the Gap Fire pursuant to a federal major disaster declaration issued 

by President Bush in 2008. 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

HM&G Draft 06/03/10 
 

2 

E. The City is in the process of applying for DRI Funds to cover the cost of 

the Relocation Project. 

F. The parties desire to set forth herein the terms of their agreement with 

respect to the allocation between the City and the District of any DRI Funds received by 

the City.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the District and the City agree as follows: 

1. Application for DRI Funds. 

The City agrees to complete and file an application for the DRI Funds to cover the 

cost of the Relocation Project.  The District agrees to fully cooperate with the City in 

connection with the application process. 

 
2. Allocation of DRI Funds.   

Any DRI Funds received in connection with the Relocation Project shall be paid 

forty-nine percent (49%) to the District and fifty-one percent (51%) to the City.  The City 

shall promptly remit to the District the District’s forty-nine percent (49%) share of any 

DRI Funds which the City receives.    

3. Miscellaneous.  

3.1 Partial Invalidity 

If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 

this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances 

other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected 

thereby, and each remaining term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and 

enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.   



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

HM&G Draft 06/03/10 
 

3 

 

3.2 Waivers 

No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision herein shall be deemed a 

waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof, or of any other covenant or 

provision herein contained.  No extension of time for the performance of any obligation 

or act shall be deemed an extension of the time for the performance of any other 

obligation or act. 

3.3 Successors and Assigns 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 

permitted successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

3.4 Professional Fees 

In the event of any action or suit arising in connection with the enforcement or 

interpretation of any of the covenants or provisions of this Agreement or the validity 

thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses of the 

action or suit, including actual attorneys' fees, accounting fees and any other professional 

fees incurred in connection therewith.   

3.5 Entire Agreement/Amendments 

This Agreement (including all exhibits attached hereto) is the final expression of 

and contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter 

hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings with respect thereto. This 

Agreement may not be modified, changed, supplemented or terminated, nor may any 

obligations hereunder be waived, except by a written instrument signed by the party both 

the City and the District.  The parties do not intend to confer any benefit hereunder on 

any person, firm or corporation other than the parties hereto.  The City and the District 

acknowledge that they are parties to that certain Agreement for Expansion of the Goleta 

Sanitary District Sewage Disposal Treatment Plant Facilities dated November 28, 1960, 

as amended (the “1960 Agreement”).  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to 

amend the terms of the 1960 Agreement. 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

HM&G Draft 06/03/10 
 

4 

3.6 Time of Essence 

The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that time is strictly of the essence 

with respect to each and every term, condition, obligation and provision hereof and that 

failure to timely perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations or provisions hereof by 

any party shall constitute a material breach of and a noncurable (but waivable) default 

under this Agreement by the party so failing to perform. 

3.7 Construction 

Headings at the beginning of each paragraph and subparagraph are solely for the 

convenience of the parties and are not a part of this Agreement.  Whenever required by 

the context of this Agreement, the singular shall include the plural and the masculine 

shall include the feminine and vice versa.  This Agreement shall not be construed as if it 

had been prepared by one of the parties, but rather as if all parties had prepared the same.  

Unless otherwise indicated, all references herein to sections and paragraphs are to this 

Agreement.  All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are attached and incorporated by 

this reference.  

3.8 Governing Law 

The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted under, 

and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the United States of America 

and the State of California.  In any action arising in connection with this Agreement, 

venue shall be in the County of Santa Barbara, State of California, United States of 

America.  

3.9 Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 

same instrument. In the event executed copies of this Agreement are provided by one 

party to the other by facsimile transmission, the original copies shall be sent by the  



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

HM&G Draft 06/03/10 
 

5 

signing party to the other parties as soon as reasonably feasible, and pending the receipt 

thereof, the facsimile copies and the signatures thereon shall for all purposes be treated as 

originals. 

3.10 Further Assurances 

The parties agree to take such actions and execute such documents as may be 

reasonably required to carry out the intent of this Agreement. 

3.11 Notices  

Any notices permitted or required hereunder shall be in writing and shall be (a) 

given by personal delivery, (b) mailed by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, 

return receipt requested, (c) sent by reputable overnight delivery service (e.g., UPS, 

Federal Express, DHL or Airborne), or (d) sent by facsimile transmission to the party at 

the address or facsimile number set forth below for such party. 

To District:  

Goleta Sanitary District 
Attn: General Manager 
One William Moffett Place 
Goleta, CA 93117 
FAX:  (805) 964-3583 

To City:  

City of Santa Barbara 
Attn: City Administrator 
735 Anacapa Street,  
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
FAX:  (805) 564-5475 

Any party may change its address or facsimile number for notice purposes by 

giving notice of such change in the manner set forth above. 

 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

HM&G Draft 06/03/10 
 

6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 

the date(s) set forth below. 

GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 
By:  ______________________________ 
        Kamil S. Azoury, General Manager 
         
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
 
 
By:  ______________________________ 
        Richard G. Battles  
        District Legal Counsel 
 
Dated:  _____________________, 2010 
 
 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
        Karen Ramsdell,  Airport Director 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:  ______________________________ 
        Cynthia M. Rodriguez, CMC 
        City Clerk of Services Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 
 
By:  ______________________________ 
        _________________________, 
        Assistant City Attorney 
 
Dated:  _____________________, 2010 
 

  



 

RESOLUTION NO.____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR 
FUNDING AND THE EXECUTION OF A GRANT 
AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO FROM 
THE 2008 DISASTER RECOVERY INITIATIVE FUND 
ALLOCATION OF THE STATE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara as follows:                                      
 
SECTION 1:  The City Council has reviewed and hereby approves an application for up 
to $1,000,000 for the following activities: 
 

Public Improvements – Drainage and Sewer  $920,000 
Planning – Safety Element     $80,000 

 
SECTION 2:  The City has determined that federal Citizen Participation requirements 
were met during the development of this application. 
 
SECTION 3:  The City hereby approves the use of Local Leverage Funding Sources 
(listed below) in the amount of $145,200 to be used as the City's leverage for this 
application. 
 
Sycamore Creek Channel Improvements: 

Construction Contract      $59,700 
Construction Management/Inspection   $85,500 

 
 SECTION 4:  The City hereby approves the commitment of Program Income in the 

amount of $1,000,000 during the grant term to the following activities: 
 
Sycamore Creek Channel Improvements   $510,300 
San Pedro Creek Sewer Line Relocation   $409,700 
Safety Element Update      $80,000 
    
SECTION 5:  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized and directed 
to sign this application and act on the City's behalf in all matters pertaining to this 
application. 
 
SECTION 6:  If the application is approved, the Community Development Director is 
authorized to enter into and sign the grant agreement and any subsequent amendments 
with the State of California for the purposes of this grant. 
 
SECTION 7:  If the application is approved, the Redevelopment Agency Manager is 
authorized to sign Funds Requests and other required reporting forms. 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

 

JOINT COUNCIL AND REDEVELOPMENT 
 AGENCY AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 Chair and Boardmembers 
 
FROM: Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development 

Department 
 Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Construction Contract For Brinkerhoff Avenue Lighting Project  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
A.  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the 

City of Santa Barbara Approving and Adopting the Findings Required by Health 
and Safety Code Section 33445 for Redevelopment Agency Funding of Capital 
Improvements to the Lower West Downtown Street Lighting Project and 
Authorizing Certain Other Actions; and 

B. That the Redevelopment Agency Board authorize the expenditure of $47,599 for 
construction by Taft Electric Company (Taft), and design support services by Smith 
Engineering (Smith), for the Lower West Downtown Street Lighting Project – 
Brinkerhoff Phase (Project), Bid No. 3609, a component of the Lower West 
Downtown Street Lighting Project. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Numerous Lower West Downtown residents, including many Brinkerhoff Avenue 
residents, have expressed concerns regarding a lack of adequate street lighting in their 
neighborhood.  The Public Works Engineering Division and Redevelopment Agency 
staff has engaged the Lower West Downtown residents to address this issue.  In 2009, 
a $50,000 Community Development Block Grant allowed staff to begin the design and 
engineering of the proposed street lighting improvements for the Lower West 
Downtown, including Brinkerhoff Avenue.  
 
In Fiscal Year 2010, the Redevelopment Agency Board appropriated $200,000 for the 
initial Brinkerhoff Phase of the Project.  This Phase consists of installing four decorative 
street lighting fixtures similar to those used on Carrillo Street, as well as installing 



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Construction Contract For Brinkerhoff Avenue Lighting Project  
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

underground conduit, electrical circuits, and related components.  The Project utilizes 
underground directional boring, which eliminates open trenches to minimize the 
Project’s footprint, and reduces its impact on local residents.  If approved, construction 
will begin in August 2010 and take approximately 30 days to complete.  
 
Remaining funds will return to the Redevelopment Agency Capital Fund to fund future 
Redevelopment Agency capital projects, including additional phases of the Lower West 
Downtown Lighting project.   
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of six bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Taft Electric Company 
 Ventura 

 $40,999 

2. Bob Trautz Land Development Co. 
 Santa Barbara 

 $44,750 

3. Lee Wilson Electric Co., Inc. 
 Arroyo Grande 

 $44,810 

4. PTM General Engineering 
 Riverside 

 $46,846 

5. Tidwell Excavating 
 Saticoy 

 $88,950 

6. Schock Contracting 
 Santa Barbara 

 $99,000 

 
The low bid of $40,999, submitted by Taft, is an acceptable bid that is responsive to and 
meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $4,100, or 10%, is typical for this type of 
work and size of project.   
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the General Services Manager to issue a 
Purchase Order with Smith in the amount of $2,500 for design support services during 
construction.  Smith is experienced in this type of work. 
 
PUBLIC OUTREACH 
 
The Public Works Department, through the Engineering and Transportation Divisions, 
worked closely with the residents of Brinkerhoff Avenue during the design of the 
Brinkerhoff Phase of the Project.  Through on-site meetings with citizen advocates, staff 
ensured that all residents had information readily available to them regarding the design 



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Construction Contract For Brinkerhoff Avenue Lighting Project  
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 

 

and installation of the street lights.  A public meeting was recently held in the 
neighborhood on May 19, 2010, regarding ongoing and upcoming work associated with 
the Haley/De La Vina Bridge construction.  The meeting was well attended by 
Brinkerhoff residents, who were informed of the current phase’s project scope and 
schedule. 
 
FUNDING 
 
This Project is funded by the Redevelopment Agency.  The Project was approved as 
part of the Fiscal Year 2010 Redevelopment Agency Capital Program.  There are 
sufficient funds in the Redevelopment Agency’s Brinkerhoff Street Lighting Project 
Account to fund the costs associated with this Project. The following summarizes the 
expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 

Taft Electric Co. $40,999 $4,100 $45,099

Smith Engineering $2,500 $0 $2,500

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $47,599
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

Design (by Contract) $8,020 
Other Design Costs (by City staff) $6,081 

 Subtotal $14,101 

Construction Contract   $40,999 
Construction Change Order Allowance $4,100 
City-Furnished Street Lights $12,137 

 Subtotal $57,236
 

Construction Management/Inspection (by City Staff) $9,020 
Design Support Services during Construction (by Contract) $2,500 

 Subtotal $11,520 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $82,857 



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Construction Contract For Brinkerhoff Avenue Lighting Project  
June 29, 2010 
Page 4 

 

 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE SECTION 33445: 
 
California Community Redevelopment Law, Section 33445, does allow, with the consent 
of the legislative body, the funding of projects on property that is publicly owned if the 
project meets certain findings.  This Project meets all the required findings in Health and 
Safety Code Section 33445, because the proposed improvements are on publicly 
owned land and are of benefit to the Central City Redevelopment Project Area (Project 
Area) by generating additional pedestrian activity by residents and tourists, and adding 
to the safety and attractive environment of the Project Area.  No other reasonable 
means of financing the improvements are available.  The improvements to the site will 
eliminate blight conditions inside the Project Area by encouraging pedestrian activity in 
and around the site.  An increase in these activities improves the vitality of the Project 
Area by encouraging economic activity by local residents and visitors, leading to 
additional public and private improvements, and thereby eliminating the conditions that 
lead to blight. 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian Bosse, Housing and Redevelopment Manager 
 Joshua Haggmark, Principal Civil Engineer/PS/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator/Community 

Development  
 Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
  
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



1 

RESOLUTION NO.________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE 
FINDINGS REQUIRED BY HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
SECTION 33445 FOR REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
FUNDING OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 
LOWER WEST DOWNTOWN STREET LIGHTING 
PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER 
ACTIONS 

 

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara is undertaking 
certain activities for the planning and execution of redevelopment projects in the Central 
City Redevelopment Project Area; 

WHEREAS, the addition of street lighting to the Lower West Downtown pedestrian 
corridors will increase safety and add to the attractive environment of the Central City 
Redevelopment Project Area and the City of Santa Barbara; and 

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency’s funding of the Lower West Downtown Street 
Lighting Project will benefit the Central City Redevelopment Project Area by 
encouraging pedestrian and neighborhood activity in the project area, which increases 
the vitality of the project area by encouraging economic activity by residents and 
visitors, encouraging public and private improvements, and eliminating blight and the 
conditions that lead to blight. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  The proposed elements of the Lower West Downtown Street Lighting 
Project, to be funded by the Redevelopment Agency, are of benefit to the Central City 
Redevelopment Project area as the improvements will generate additional pedestrian 
activity by locals and tourists. An increase in these activities improves the vitality of the 
project area by encouraging economic activity by locals and visitors and will lead to 
additional public and private improvements, and thereby, eliminate blight and the 
conditions that lead to blight.  
 
SECTION 2.  No other reasonable means of financing street lighting improvements to 
the Lower West Downtown are available. 
 
SECTION 3. The payment of funds for the publicly owned street lighting is consistent 
with the 2010 – 2014 City of Santa Barbara Central City Redevelopment Project 
Implementation Plan adopted pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 33490.  
 



2 

SECTION 4.  The City Council authorizes the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Taft Electric Company, in their low bid amount of $40,999, for construction 
of the Project- Brinkerhoff Phase and to approve expenditures of up to $4,100, to cover 
any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra work and 
differences between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for 
payment; 
 
SECTION 5.  The City Council further authorizes the General Services Manager to 
issue a Purchase Order to Smith Engineering in the amount of $2,500 for design 
support services during construction. 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  150.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 JOINT COUNCIL AND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
   Agency Chair and Board Members 
 
FROM: Housing and Redevelopment Division,  
 Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Memorandum Of Understanding Regarding The State Courthouse 

 Application 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the City Council and Agency Board authorize the City Administrator/Agency 
Executive Director to execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City and 
the Redevelopment Agency and the State of California, acting by and through the 
Judicial Council of California (Administrative Office of the Courts), in a form of 
agreement acceptable to the City Attorney, regarding the planning and design of a 
possible new criminal courthouse in Santa Barbara.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The State of California, acting through the staff of the Administrative Office of the Courts 
(AOC), is looking into the feasibility of acquiring real property near the existing Santa 
Barbara County Criminal Courthouse on Figueroa Street with the possible intention of 
designing and constructing new court facilities or making additions and related 
improvements for either a new Santa Barbara criminal courthouse or an expansion of 
the existing Figueroa Street courthouse. The state funds available for this project have 
accrued over the years in a special state building fund based on a surcharge imposed 
by state law on criminal and traffic fines. These surcharge funds must, by law, be used 
exclusively to acquire land for and to construct state courthouse buildings including, 
where necessary, administrative offices and pre-trial holding facilities related to the 
criminal and civil justice system. 
 
Most of the real properties now being considered by the State AOC are located within 
the area of the City which is designated for redevelopment pursuant to the 
Redevelopment Plan for the Santa Barbara Central City Redevelopment Project area as 
the Plan was originally adopted in 1972 by City ordinance. As required by state 
redevelopment statutes, a copy of Central City Redevelopment Project Area Plan was 



Joint Council And Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Memorandum Of Understanding Regarding The State Courthouse Application 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

recorded in 1972 and 1977 (when it was substantially amended) in the official records of 
the County of Santa Barbara. Thus, the notice of the CCRP Plan appears in the chain of 
title for every parcel of real property located within the CCRP Area Plan, including those 
properties now being actively considered for acquisition by the State AOC.  
 
As a result, the State AOC, as a condition of acquiring any real property for a 
courthouse, has advised the City that it will need the Redevelopment Agency and City 
Council to approve a written agreement by and between the City, the Agency, and the 
State AOC to establish and confirm the non-applicability of any land development 
restrictions which may otherwise be imposed by the CCRP on the properties within the 
CCRP and on the State’s potential courthouse project. Specifically, the state 
Department of General Services (which will administer any actual construction project), 
has asked to receive a written waiver of any development restrictions which may be 
imposed by the CCRP in order to be assured that no future encumbrance will stall or 
preclude the development of the AOC courthouse project.  City and Agency Staff has no 
concerns in recommending this waiver of possible CCRP restrictions because, in fact, 
the CCRP itself imposes no development restrictions of its own beyond those 
established separately by the City’s Municipal Code and Charter requirements.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: City Attorney’s Office/Community Development Department 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator/Community 
 Development 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 
                                                     
 
Agenda Item No.  

 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Chairperson and Boardmembers 
 
FROM: Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development 

Department 
 
SUBJECT: Loan For New Housing Authority Project – Bradley Studios 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That the Redevelopment Agency: 
A. Approve and appropriate $1.6 million from the unappropriated reserves of the 

Redevelopment Agency (Agency) Affordable Housing Setaside funds for a loan to 
Bradley Studios L.P. to assist in the development of a 54-unit low income rental 
housing project at 512-518 Bath Street and, if required, approve subordination of 
the loan to construction financing and tax credit regulatory agreements; and 

B. Approve amending the terms of the Agency’s 2008 site acquisition loan of $4.8 
million to the Housing Authority to make terms of the existing Agency loan 
consistent with the terms of the new Agency loan, and, if required, approve 
subordination of the existing loan to construction financing and tax credit regulatory 
agreements. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The City Housing Authority has requested a new Agency loan of $1.6 million to assist in 
the development of a 54-unit low income housing project (53 studio units plus one 
manager’s unit). The Bradley Studios project will be built on the site that the Housing 
Authority acquired and landbanked for this purpose in 2008 with a $4.8 million loan from 
the Agency. 
The target population for the proposed new units includes low income downtown workers 
and special needs/homeless persons. The site borders directly on Mission Creek. In 
accordance with the Lower Mission Creek Flood Control Project, the new project will be 
set back 25 feet from the new top of bank. Moreover, the Housing Authority will dedicate 
an access easement along the top of bank in favor of the City and County and will make a 
monetary contribution to future creek improvements planned for the property. 
The majority of funding for the project is expected to come from low income housing tax 
credits, for which the Housing Authority is preparing an application for $8.7 million that is 
due July 7, 2010. Total Agency assistance to the project would equal the sum of $6.4 
million, which represents a per unit subsidy of $118,519 – an amount consistent with other 
recent affordable housing projects. Staff supports this request for Agency funding. 



Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Loan For New Housing Authority Project – Bradley Studios 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 
On April 22, 2008, the Agency approved a loan of $4.8 million to the City Housing 
Authority to acquire and “landbank” a site located in the Agency’s project area at 
512-518 Bath Street for future housing development. The site, previously owned by the 
Bradley family, covers 1.06 acres, and at the time of acquisition, the site included a 
10-unit apartment building (circa 1960), carports, swimming pool, and four, small 
dilapidated houses that had been previously yellow-tagged by the City. The Housing 
Authority has since demolished the dilapidated houses and has maintained as part of 
their stock of affordable housing the 10-unit apartment building that sits at the rear of 
the lot and encroaches into the 25-foot setback currently established for Mission Creek. 
The apartments will be demolished in order to create a new affordable housing project 
and make improvements to Mission Creek. 
As rental income has exceeded operating costs for the existing apartments, the Housing 
Authority uses this net operating income to help cover predevelopment costs for the 
new project. The new project is planned to be very similar to the Housing Authority’s 
Artisan Court project at 416-424 East Cota (currently in construction) in terms of 
ownership, financing, target population, and number of units. 
DISCUSSION: 
Project Design 
The Housing Authority selected the architecture firm of Peikert Group Associates (PGA) 
to design Bradley Studios. The project consists of seven structures of two and three 
stories totaling 27,688 gross square feet. There will be 53 studio apartments of 321-445 
net square feet each, a two-bedroom unit for the on-site manager, a 1,400 square foot 
community center, and 700 square foot recreation room. For parking, there will be 30 
spaces for cars (13 enclosed single car garages tucked under the residential structures 
and 17 uncovered spaces) and 38 spaces for bicycles (32 covered spaces and 6 
uncovered spaces). 
The structures are configured around a central courtyard which serves as common 
open space. From there, pathways lead to additional open space at the rear of the 
property adjacent to Mission Creek. The craftsman style of the architecture and the 
height, bulk and scale of the project are all compatible with the neighborhood. 
The project was conceptually reviewed by the Architectural Board of Review and is 
scheduled to appear before the City’s Staff Hearing Officer on June 16. The Housing 
Authority seeks a density bonus (lot area modification) to permit 54 units on a site 
zoned for 29 units and parking modification (30 spaces to be provided instead of 69). As 
with previous Housing Authority projects like Artisan Court and El Carrillo, staff expects 
the density bonus will be approved based on the substantial public benefit, attractive 
design, small unit sizes, acceptable building size and neighborhood compatibility. Staff 
expects the parking modification to be approved based on several findings, including 
that the project will serve a population that typically does not own cars, is in a downtown 
location with good access to bus routes, and will be managed by the Housing Authority 
which has the ability to restrict and monitor tenants’ vehicle ownership. The proposed 
new Agency loan would be contingent upon the project securing all site plan and design 
approvals. 



Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Loan For New Housing Authority Project – Bradley Studios 
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

Mission Creek 
The rear of the site is located within the Lower Mission Creek Flood Control Project 
area. This project is designed to increase flood water conveyance capacity and 
enhance recreational opportunities and riparian habitat. The creek will be widened 
shifting the new top of bank farther west into the site. The new construction will be 
situated so as to ensure a 25-foot setback from the new top of bank. The Housing 
Authority has agreed to dedicate an access easement along the top of bank in favor of 
the City and County at no cost. Moreover, the project will make a monetary contribution 
of approximately $200,000 to future creek improvements planned by the City and 
County that include a new containment wall and restoration activities like removing 
non-native vegetation and replanting in the setback area. 
Affordability 
All 53 units will be affordable to low, very low, and extremely low income persons. The 
range of rents includes the following levels targeted to Area Median Income (AMI): 

Unit Count Income Target Income Limit Initial Rent Level 
 16 30% AMI $15,540 (extremely low) $388 
 27 40% AMI $20,720 (very low) $518 
 10 60% AMI $31,080 (low) $777 

This schedule of rents and incomes is required under the tax credit regulations, is lower 
than the City’s required restrictions for affordable low income housing, and is far below 
the market rent for studios ($1,050). Like the City’s restrictions, the rents and income 
limits may vary in accordance with the AMI, as established annually by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The City will require that an 
affordability control covenant be recorded against the property with a term of 90 years. 
Proposed Project Financing 
The development cost of the project (excluding land) is budgeted at $10,344,532. The 
sources of this amount will be: 
 New Agency Loan:  $1,600,000 
 Tax Credit Equity from Sale of Tax Credits: 8,677,600 
 Deferred Housing Authority Developer Fee: 10,932 
 Deferred Interest on Agency Loan: 56,000 
  Total:  $10,344,532 
The amount of the proposed new Agency loan will not exceed $1.6 million. By the time 
the loan would close, after the anticipated award of tax credits, the loan amount would 
likely be slightly less. This is due to a provision in the existing 2008 Agency loan 
regarding the operation of the existing 10-unit apartment building. As mentioned above 
in the Background discussion, the rental income from these units exceeds their 
operating costs, resulting in net operating income (NOI). Pursuant to the 2008 Agency 
loan, the Housing Authority is required to use this NOI on predevelopment expenses for 
the new affordable housing project. To date, NOI accruals have reached $77,000, and 
NOI will continue to accrue until the 10-unit apartment building is demolished. At that 
point, the total NOI will be calculated and this amount will be subtracted from the $1.6 
million loan amount. 



Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Loan For New Housing Authority Project – Bradley Studios 
June 29, 2010 
Page 4 
 

 

When the new Agency loan amount of $1.6 million is added to the existing 2008 Agency 
loan amount of $4.8 million, the total Agency subsidy for the project equals $6.4 million, 
or $118,519 per unit. This subsidy level is slightly higher than the total per unit subsidy 
provided for Artisan Court, the Housing Authority project awarded tax credits last year 
and currently under construction. The total subsidy for Artisan Court was $93,000 per 
unit. The biggest reason for the difference in subsidy levels is due to the reduced 
amount of tax credits expected for Bradley Studios. The tax credit award for Artisan 
Court was augmented with $1.7 million in American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 (ARRA) funds that will not be available to Bradley Studios. The ARRA funds 
accounted for a per unit subsidy of roughly $30,000. Additionally, the Bradley Studios 
project is less dense than Artisan Court, and the units are slightly larger. Thus, staff 
considers the subsidy requested for Bradley Studios to be reasonable and consistent 
with other recent affordable housing projects. 
Terms and Security of the New Agency Loan 
The proposed new Agency loan will bear interest at 3% per year with payments due on 
a “residual receipts” basis. This means that no payments will be due until the net 
income of the project, after payment of necessary operating expenses, is sufficient to 
support such payments. Any unpaid balance which remains after 55 years will be due 
and payable at that time. These terms are typical of the Agency’s affordable housing 
loans. 
The loan will be secured by a trust deed recorded against the property. Because of the 
large amount of cash equity obtained from the sale of the low income housing tax 
credits, the new Agency loan will be well secured by the project’s equity after 
completion of the project. However, as is often the case, the loan would not be fully 
secured during the construction phase, so the Agency is assuming some risk should the 
project not go forward to completion. Staff believes this risk is low and is acceptable, 
given the solid track record of the Housing Authority. 
The award of tax credits is critical to the project going forward and is a condition of the 
proposed new Agency loan. The borrower on the new Agency loan will be Bradley 
Studios L.P., the limited partnership established for the purpose of securing the tax 
credits. The project’s ownership structure would resemble that of Artisan Court. The 
land is owned by the Housing Authority and would be leased to Bradley Studios L.P. 
The new buildings would be owned by Bradley Studios L.P. and master-leased to the 
Housing Authority who would manage the project. Upon conclusion of the 15-year tax 
credit period, the Housing Authority would acquire the buildings, and Bradley Studios 
L.P. would be dissolved. 
As an implementation strategy for the “Ten-Year Plan to End Chronic Homelessness 
Throughout Santa Barbara County, Bringing Our Community Home,” the City, working 
in conjunction with the Housing Authority and the Ten-Year Plan organization, will 
determine a specific number of units in the Bradley Studios project that will be targeted 
to serve the chronically homeless within the City, as identified by a possible 
City-sponsored outreach program. The agreement that results from this discussion will 
be incorporated into the loan agreements and the covenant, as appropriate, and 
implemented on behalf of the City by the Housing Authority working together with the 
Ten-Year Plan organization. 



Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Loan For New Housing Authority Project – Bradley Studios 
June 29, 2010 
Page 5 
 

 

Revisions to the 2008 Agency Loan 
The Agency’s $4.8 million land acquisition loan made to the Housing Authority in 2008 
was designed for landbanking of the site. The loan anticipates that a new affordable 
housing project would be approved by the year 2011, and that during this 
predevelopment period, the loan bears no interest and does not require any interim 
payments. If no new project is approved by the year 2011, then the repayment terms 
would convert to a fully amortized 3 percent interest loan with a 10-year term. However, 
with the approval of the new project and as recommended in this report, the loan’s 
repayment terms should be amended to convert to those of standard Agency loans, i.e. 
3 percent interest rate, payments on a residual receipt basis, all due in 55 years from 
the date of the loan amendment. Also, the construction lender and tax credit regulations 
may require that the 2008 Agency loan be made subordinate to their liens. 
Replacement Housing and Relocation Plans 
The Replacement Housing Plan approved by the Agency Board on April 22, 2008 
covers all residential structures on the site that will and were already demolished. No 
changes to the plan will be necessary. Existing tenants will be provided relocation 
benefits in accordance with State and Federal law and pursuant to a relocation plan 
prepared by the Housing Authority. 
Project Timing 
The Housing Authority’s application for low income housing tax credits is due July 7. If 
awarded the tax credits, they expect to close on the project financing before the end of 
calendar year 2010 and commence construction no later than February 2011. 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
The Agency has sufficient funds available in the Agency’s Fiscal Year 2011 Affordable 
Housing Setaside Fund budget for this project. The use of these funds for this project will 
conform to all applicable state and federal laws and regulations. With the anticipated 
award of federal tax credits, the total sum of $6.4 million in Agency funds would leverage 
$8.7 million in private capital brought to the Santa Barbara community by outside tax credit 
investors. The City’s Finance Committee approved by unanimous vote the proposed new 
Agency loan and the amendments to the existing Agency loan at their June 15, 2010 
meeting. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
Bradley Studios encourages alternate forms of transportation through its downtown 
location, proximity to jobs, public transportation and services. Moreover, members of the 
project’s target population often do not own cars. 
Bradley Studios has been designed to include many environmentally friendly features, 
including photovoltaic panels on the roofs that will provide a significant portion of the 
project’s electrical needs, energy efficient insulation and glazing systems, on-demand 
water heating and energy efficient space heating systems to reduce energy 
consumption. The units are small; they allow for maximal use of the site and have been 
designed to maximize cross ventilation and natural day lighting. To the maximum 
feasible extent, construction materials will be high in recycled content and produced 



Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Loan For New Housing Authority Project – Bradley Studios 
June 29, 2010 
Page 6 
 

 

regionally. Finish materials will be selected to minimize the off-gassing of volatile 
organic compounds. 
Bradley Studios also features bioswales for site drainage, landscaping with 
drought-tolerant plants throughout the site, and creek improvements made in 
accordance with the Lower Mission Creek Flood Control Project. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Letter from City Housing Authority 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian Bosse, Housing and Redevelopment Manager/SK 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office
 







                                      
Agenda Item No. __________ 

File Code No.  230.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Adoption Of The Operating And Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only: 
 
A. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the Budget for 

the Fiscal Year 2011 by Appropriating Moneys for the Use and Support of Said City 
from the Funds and to the Purposes Herein Specified; 

B. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing the City’s 
Appropriation Limitation for Fiscal Year 2011; 

C. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing Certain City 
Fees, and Rescinding Resolution Nos. 09-043, 09-064, 09-086, 09-089 and 10-
009; 

D. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing Classified and 
Unclassified Positions in the City’s Service Effective July 1, 2010, and Providing a 
Schedule of Classifications and Salaries for the Same in Accordance with the 
Operating Budget for the 2011 Fiscal Year; 

E. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the 
Continuation of Capital and Special Project Appropriations to Fiscal Year 2011; 

F. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara for Paying and Reporting 
the Value of Employer-Paid Member Contributions (EPMC) for Regular 
Miscellaneous Employees Effective June 19, 2010; and 

G. A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara for Employer-Paid Member 
Contributions for Hourly Employees Effective June 19, 2010. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Staff is recommending the adoption of seven resolutions that, among other things, will 
officially adopt the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, which becomes effective July 1, 2010.  This 
action is the culmination of nine public hearings during which Council reviewed in detail the 
City Administrator’s recommended budget filed in April 2010.  
 
Particularly in the General Fund, the budget reflects the continued impacts of a major 
downturn in the national economy that has dramatically affected local revenues. The 
General Fund, which relies heavily on tax revenues to fund operations such as public 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The Operating and Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
June 29, 2010 
Page 2 

 

safety, parks, libraries, and recreation programs, will undergo a second year of significant 
cuts to services and staff levels.  
 
The strategy used to balance the General Fund budget not only includes cuts to programs 
and services; it also includes new funding sources and cuts to outside organizations.  As 
one of the key components, the balancing strategy also assumed the City would reach 
agreements with all labor groups on wage and benefit concessions to reduce the cuts to 
services and staffing. As of the time this report was prepared, concessions have not been 
secured with all labor groups. Consequently, the final budget proposed for adoption 
includes expected savings totaling approximately $4.1 million based on labor concessions 
that are 1) actually secured, 2) currently pending, and 3) still in the discussion phase.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Operating and Capital Budget was filed with the City 
Council on April 20, 2010. Since that time, the City Council held nine budget review 
sessions and public hearings. In addition, the Finance Committee held four meetings on 
the Recommended Budget, including the capital program budget, and revenues and fees. 
 
We are recommending that the City Council adopt seven resolutions in order to adopt the 
budget for Fiscal Year 2011.  In addition to adopting the annual operating and capital 
budget for Fiscal Year 2011, the resolutions will accomplish the following: 
 

1. Adopt the City’s appropriation limit for Fiscal Year 2011 pursuant to Article XIIIB 
of the California Constitution; 

2. Adopt the master fee resolution for Fiscal Year 2011 establishing citywide fees in 
the various departments and funds.   

3. Approve the authorized positions for Fiscal Year 2011, including the position 
changes presented in the budget and the corresponding salary ranges.  

4. Authorize the City Administrator to carryover Fiscal Year 2010 appropriations into 
the Fiscal Year 2011 for capital and special projects that will not be completed 
before the end of the current fiscal year; and, 

5. Establish the portion of the Employee PERS contribution rate to be paid by the 
City (“Employer-Paid Member Contribution”) for the City’s authorized and hourly 
Miscellaneous (non-safety) PERS employees. This cost-sharing agreement was 
established by labor agreement and is adjusted annually based on changes to 
the City’s employer contribution rate. 

Copies of all budget resolutions are available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office 
and Finance Department and online as part of the Council Agenda Packet.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The Operating and Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
June 29, 2010 
Page 3 

 

FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 
 
At the final budget work session held on June 14, 2010, Council restored funding for 
certain programs and services. In addition, Council approved adjustments 
recommended by staff, as well as certain adjustments recommended by the Finance 
Committee.  A summary of all adjustments to the recommended budget (Attachment) 
are described in detail below. Adjustments made to reflect labor cost savings are not 
included in the attached schedule or discussion below, but have been incorporated into 
the final adopting budget resolutions. 
 
Staff-Recommended Changes Approved by Council 
 
New information that came to light since the filing the Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended 
Budget in April 2010 necessitated changes to the estimated revenues and 
appropriations contained within that document.  This occurs every year. As such, staff 
proposed changes to the recommended budget to reflect this new information.    
 
Finance Committee Recommendations Approved By Council 
 
In connection with its review of proposed changes to fees and other elements of the 
recommended budget, the Finance Committee made the following recommendations to 
the City Council. 
 
Water Fund 
 
Public Works staff proposed a 3.5% increase to water service charges beginning July 1, 
2010. The proposed rate increase is part of a long-term rate strategy designed to fund 
the Water Fund’s long-term capital program. The Water Commission strongly supported 
the 3.5% increase to the water rates. 
 
The Finance Committee recommended (2-0; Francisco absent) that water service 
charges be increased by 2.5% rather than 3.5% in Fiscal Year 2011. On June 14, 2010, 
Council directed staff to include a 3% increase to rates in the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, 
with the exception for agricultural water rates, which are to remain the same as they 
were in Fiscal Year 2010. 
 
Staff has made the necessary changes to the Water Fund budget to reflect the loss of 
revenues from the reduction in the rate increase and will use reserves to offset the 
reduced revenues.  
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
The Finance Committee recommended that Council consider suspending the Sewer 
Lateral Incentive Program (SLIP) and using those funds to expand the Annual Sewer 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The Operating and Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
June 29, 2010 
Page 4 

 

Main Replacement Program. The recommended Wastewater Fund capital program 
includes $500,000 for both sewer main rehabilitation and replacement. The Finance 
Committee recommendation stemmed from the under-funded Main Rehab/Replacement 
Program of approximately $2.6 million in Fiscal Year 2011.  
 
The Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Budget includes approximately $700,000 for the 
SLIP, although the Fiscal Year costs will likely be closer to $1 million.  The City Council 
directed staff to suspend the $700,000 Sewer Lateral Incentive Program, limiting the 
program to those private laterals identified as needing replacement or repair through the 
City’s enforcement program. Staff will return to Council within the next 90 days with a 
broader discussion of the SLIP. 
 
In addition, Council directed staff to add $2 million to the Wastewater Fund Capital 
budget, funded from the fund’s Capital Reserves, to be used for Sewer Main 
Replacement. The $2 million for main replacements is in addition to the $4.3 million 
proposed capital budget, of which $1.8 million will be funded from reserves. This will 
bring the total use of reserves for Fiscal Year 2011 to $3.8 million. Council reserve 
policies require that when policy reserves are used, there is a plan to restore them. 
Consequently, staff will revisit the ten year capital and rate plans and return to Council 
next year with a plan to restore policy reserves. 
 
Repayment of Franchise Fees to General Fund by Solid Waste Fund 
 
From fiscal year 2003 through 2009, the Solid Waste Fund collected approximately $2.6 
million in franchise fees from the City’s two refuse haulers. The monies have been used 
to pay for Environmental Services Division staff and programs designed to maximize 
diversion of waste from Tajiguas Landfill.  
 
In connection with the balancing of the General Fund in Fiscal Year 2010, staff 
recommended and City Council approved shifting the franchise fees, estimated at 
$440,000, to the General Fund prospectively beginning in 2010.  
 
The Finance Committee requested staff to evaluate the ability of the Solid Waste 
Enterprise Fund to repay the $2.6 million in franchise fees collected prior to Fiscal Year 
2010. 
 
Based on a review of a long-term forecast of revenues, expenses and reserve balances, 
the Finance Committee recommended that Council approve a repayment of $50,000 
each in Fiscal Years 2011 and 2012. In 2012, the Committee recommended that staff 
update the multi-year forecast and re-evaluate to what extent the Solid Waste Fund can 
continue and/or increase the level of repayment amount in future years.  
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The Operating and Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
June 29, 2010 
Page 5 

 

Funding Restored by Council (and Recommended Implementation Plan) 
At the June 14th, 2010 budget work session, Council directed staff to add back items 
that were planned to be cut. The items are listed below.  

Sobering Station 211,113$      
Ortega Park Recreation Swim 2,300            
Four Police Officer Positions 456,880        
New Beginnings 4,350            
Santa Barbara Channels 57,500          
Fire Training Captain 163,784        
Planning Commission Stipends 15,000          
Grounds Maint. Worker (Restroom Maint.) 63,579          
Library Materials 50,000          
Appropriated Reserves 100,000        

    TOTAL 1,124,506$  

 
Because the items listed above are dependent on wage and benefit concessions that 
have yet to be fully realized as of the date of writing of this report, staff has developed 
the funding plan for each item as discussed below. 

 
Sobering Station 
Staff recommends funding the Sobering Station on a month-to-month basis rather 
than committing to a full year’s of funding. The funding equates to $17,593 per 
month. 
Ortega Pool Recreation Summer Swim 
The closure of Ortega Pool for free summer recreational swimming was 
implemented on July 1, 2009. Staff recommends funding the full amount needed, 
primarily for hourly staff, to open the pool for this summer given the relatively small 
amount of the cost. 
 
Restoring Four Police Officer Positions 
The restoration of 4 vacant police officer positions will increase the number of 
authorized sworn positions from 133 to 137.  
 
Staff has already been directed to over-hire, a process by which staff intentionally 
sends more officers to the police academy than the number of vacant positions to 
cover for unanticipated retirements, terminations, or lateral movements to other 
police departments that occur each year.  In fact, the proposed budget includes 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The Operating and Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
June 29, 2010 
Page 6 

 

$200,000 in appropriated reserves specifically designated for the additional costs 
that will likely be incurred by the practice of over-hiring.   
 
Historically, staff only sent recruits to the academy based on the number of 
vacancies at the time; and since the police academies are only open two times a 
year, the number of officers leaving the department (e.g., retirement) left several 
positions vacant while staff responded to fill the positions through a lengthy and 
arduous recruitment process.  
 
The next police academy to which staff can send new recruits will likely be in 
November (Ventura), although the Ventura academy was dark this past year. A 
second academy will be available in October 2010 (San Bernardino) should Ventura 
cancel or change their plans.  

  
Between July 1 and September 30, staff will continue its recruitment efforts and 
practice of over-hiring to ensure the department stays at or above 133 sworn 
positions. However, staff anticipates that all remaining labor discussions and 
negotiations will be completed by September 2010 and, as such, will be prepared to 
send 4 additional recruits to either the Ventura or San Bernardino academy. If labor 
discussions are not completed by then, staff will evaluate its options and will take 
appropriate action based on the progress made in the labor discussions and the 
number of vacancies in sworn positions at that time.  
 
New Beginnings 
Staff recommends fully funding the cuts to New Beginnings totaling $4,350 due to 
the relatively small dollar amount.  
 
Santa Barbara Channels 
The South Coast Community Media Access Center (“Santa Barbara Channels”) is 
reviewing  a one-year agreement, whereby the City will provide $288,800 in funding 
for Fiscal Year 2011. This includes a reduction of $58,142, roughly half of what was 
recommended by staff.  
 
The proposed contract includes a provision that allows the City Council, with 30 days 
notice, to further reduce the funding by $57,500 (the amount of funding restored by 
Council) if the City is unable to achieve the level of wage and benefit concessions 
needed to balance the General Fund budget. 
 
Fire Training Captain 
 
Staff recommends not filling the Fire Captain position until the City completes its 
discussions with all labor groups.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The Operating and Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
June 29, 2010 
Page 7 

 

Planning Commission Stipends 
 
Staff recommends continuing payment of stipends given the relatively small dollar 
amount involved. 
.  
Grounds Maintenance Worker II (Restroom Cleaning) 
 
Staff recommends not filling the vacant Grounds Maintenance Worker II position 
until the City completes its discussions with all labor groups.  
 
Library Materials 
 
Since the acquisition of circulation materials can be acquired anytime throughout the 
year, staff recommends holding back on ramping up acquisitions until staff has a 
better sense of the level of concessions that will be realized. 
 

Other Adjustments to the Budget (Identified by Staff) 
 
Since the June 14th work session, additional adjustments are needed to the amounts 
presented thus far to the City Council. In most cases, the adjustments simply represent 
refinements to estimates.  
 
General Fund 
 
SRO Funding 
 
The City had been assured that the School District would be providing $125,000 in 
Fiscal Year 2011 for a School Resource Officer (SRO). The City has recently been 
notified that the funding will not be provided. Consequently, the budget now reflects a 
corresponding reduction in revenues.  
 
Refinement to Estimates 
 
The amounts presented to City Council at the June 14th work session relating to the 
value of concessions and costs to restore filled positions were based on older estimates 
that have continually changed and been subject to further refinement. As a result, the 
net affect of these items was a reduction of costs totaling $160,235. 
 
Appropriated Reserves 
 
As a result of final adjustments made to refine budgeted revenues and expenditures, 
the General Fund is left with a net deficit of $16,956. In order to present a balanced 
fund, we have reduced the $100,000 in additional appropriated reserves allocated by 
Council by a corresponding amount. This will leave a total of $983,044 in appropriated 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The Operating and Capital Budget For Fiscal Year 2011 
June 29, 2010 
Page 8 

 

reserves, of which $200,000 will be designated for over hiring of police officers, and the 
balance of $783,044 will be available as a budget contingency.  
 
Golf Fund 
 
The Golf Fund presented revised its revenues and expenses based comprehensive 
pricing and marketing plan that will be initiated to increase the number of rounds at the 
Golf Course.  Fees effective July 1, 2010 will essentially be unchanged. Consequently, 
revenues estimates have been lowered by $38,797. In addition, costs have been added 
for an advertising campaign ($60,450) and other cost items, including appropriated 
reserves, have been lowered a total of $137,440 to offset the revenue losses and 
increased costs for advertising.  
  
OTHER MATTERS 
 
Waterfront staff recently sent a memo to City Council advising of the Harbor 
Commission’s desire to lower the number of gross receipts audits performed by contract 
of tenants on the Waterfront. The Harbor Commission recommended reducing the 
number of audits from approximately 8 per year to 3 per year to save money.  
 
The Waterfront Department’s recommended budget for Fiscal Year 2011 reflects staff’s 
recommendation that eight audits be conducted per year, which is tied to the 
department’s goal of auditing 25% of percentage rent tenants annually. This enables an 
audit of all significant percentage rent paying tenants on a four-year cycle. Staff believes 
the potential savings of $19,500 on the audit program based on the Harbor 
Commission’s recommendation is insignificant (0.18%) in terms of the Waterfront 
Fund’s overall budget. In addition, staff believes the potential financial risk of not 
auditing significant percentage rent tenants on a four-year cycle far outweighs the 
savings. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Summary of Proposed Adjustments to the Fiscal Year 2011 

Recommended Budget 
    

 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Interim Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Attachment CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Recap of Adjustments to the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget

GENERAL FUND
 

Estimated  Surplus
Revenue Appropriations Deficit

RECOMMENDED BUDGET FILED 4/20/2010 99,758,561$        102,339,375$   (2,580,814)$   

ADJUSTMENTS APPROVED BY COUNCIL
Restore SEIU Layoffs Per Concession Agreement
    Actual Cost of Restoring Positions -                           211,462            (211,462)        
    GF Cost of Restoring Positions in ICS (Net of Furlough) -                           97,000              (97,000)          
           Sub-Total -                           308,462            (308,462)        

Staff Recommended Adjustments
    PILOT from Housing Authority 57,000                 -                        57,000           
    Fire Adjustments -                           (28,375)             28,375           
    Parks & Recreation Adjustments (21,000)                (14,000)             (7,000)            
    School Crossing Guards 52,650                 105,300            (52,650)          
    CalGrip Grant Correction (27,271)                -                        (27,271)          
           Sub-Total 61,379                 62,925              (1,546)            

Finance Committee Recommendations  
    Repayment of Franchise Fees from SW Fund 50,000                 -                        50,000           

 
City Council Priorities   
    Sobering Station -                           211,113            (211,113)        
    Restore Funding Cut for New Beginnings -                           4,350                (4,350)            
    Ortega Park Rec Swim -                           2,300                (2,300)            
    Adding Back 4 Police Officers -                           456,680            (456,680)        
    Restore Funding for Santa Barbara Channels -                           57,500              (57,500)          
    Add Back Fire Training Officer Position -                           163,784            (163,784)        
    Restore Planning Commission Stipends -                           15,000              (15,000)          
    Restore GMWII (Restroom Maintenance) -                           63,579              (63,579)          
    Increase Funding for Library Materials -                           50,000              (50,000)          

     Increase Appropriated Reserves -                           100,000            (100,000)        
           Sub-Total -                           1,124,306         (1,124,306)     

Budget Savings From Concessions (Corrected/Refined)
    Vacation Cashout Reached 233,686               -                        233,686         
    Vacation Cashout Pending 69,327                 -                        69,327           
    Adjust Supervisors Concession (Vac Cashout Returned) (51,571)                -                        (51,571)          
    Furlough Concession Reached -                           (1,282,276)        1,282,276      
    Furlough Concession Pending -                           (291,861)           291,861         
    Salary Reduction Concession Reached -                           (93,178)             93,178           
    Salary Reduction Concession Pending -                           (29,445)             29,445           
    Batt Chiefs - Likely Concessions 58,000                 -                        58,000           
    Concessions Needed 2,006,735            2,006,735      
           Sub-Total 2,316,177            (1,696,760)        4,012,937      

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS IDENTIFIED BY STAFF -                     
Loss of Funding from School District for SRO (125,000)              -                        (125,000)        
Correct for Refinement of Estimates (160,235)           160,235         
Adjust Appropriated Reserves to Balance (16,956)             16,956           
           Sub-Total (125,000)              (177,191)           52,191           

FINAL BUDGET FOR ADOPTION 102,061,117$      102,061,117$   -$                   



Attachment CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Recap of Adjustments to the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget

Estimated  Surplus
Revenue Appropriations (Deficit)

ADJUSTMENTS APPROVED BY COUNCIL

Staff Recommended Adjstments
City Hall Allocation Fund
    Increase Appropriation to Upgrade Phone System -$                    100,000$          (100,000)$     

County Library Fund
    Increase Donation Revenues 18,999$               -$                  18,999$         
    Keep Montecito Library Open on Mondays -                       18,999              (18,999)          

    County Library Fund Total 18,999$               18,999$            -$               

Measure A Fund
    Reduced transportation sales tax revenue (215,195)$            -$                  (215,195)$      
    Reduced expenditures due to reduced revenue -                       (215,195)           215,195         

    Measure A Fund Total (215,195)$            (215,195)$         -$               

Self Insurance Fund 
    Eliminate Vacant Risk Analyst -$                    (104,408)$         104,408$      

Streets Fund
    Increase Highway User Tax revenue estimate 337,670$             -$                  337,670$       
    Increase Appropriation for Resurfacing Program -                       337,670            (337,670)        

    Streets Fund Total 337,670$             337,670$          -$               

Finance Committee Recommendations
Water
    Reduce Revenues for Reduction in Rate Increase to 3% (150,000)$           -$                  (150,000)$     

Wastewater Fund
    Eliminate SLIP Appropriations -$                     (700,000)$         700,000$       
    Increase Funding for Sewer Main Replacements -                       2,000,000         (2,000,000)     
      Wastewater Fund Total -$                    1,300,000$       (1,300,000)$  

Solid Waste Fund
    Repayment of Franchise Fees -$                     50,000$            (50,000)$        

City Council Priorities
Downtown Parking Fund 
    Restore Funding Cut New Beginnings 4,350$                4,350$              -$              

Other Adjustments
Golf Fund
    Restore Fees to FY 2010 levels (38,797)$              -$                  (38,797)$        
    Increase Advertising 60,450              (60,450)          
    Reduce Club House Painting Project (50,000)             50,000           
    Reduce Appropriated Reserves -                       (87,440)             87,440           
        Golf Fund Total (38,797)$             (76,990)$           38,193$        

SPECIAL AND ENTERPRISE FUNDS



 
RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2011 BY APPROPRIATING MONEYS FOR 
THE USE AND SUPPORT OF SAID CITY FROM THE 
FUNDS AND TO THE PURPOSES HEREIN SPECIFIED 

 
 
WHEREAS, On April 20, 2010, in accordance with the City Charter, the City 
Administrator filed with the Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning July 
1, 2010; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Public Hearings were held on the proposed budget on April 22, 2010; April 
29, 2010; May 5, 2010; May 10, 2010; May 12, 2010; May 13, 2010; May 27, 2010; and 
June 14, 2010; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council is required to adopt a budget before the beginning of the 
fiscal year on July 1, 2010. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council of the City of Santa Barbara that in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 1204 of the City Charter, the budget for the 
fiscal year 2011 is hereby adopted. The operating budgets, revenues, capital programs 
and uses of reserves for said city purposes, attached hereto as Exhibits I and II, are 
hereby appropriated for the 2011 fiscal year.  
 
Adopted June 29, 2010 



EXHIBIT I 

Page 1 of 1 

ADOPTED BUDGET FOR CITY FUNDS
Fiscal Year 2011

Use of Estimated Total Operating Capital Total
Reserves Revenues Sources Budget Program Uses

General Fund -$                102,376,117$        102,376,117$      101,617,947$    758,170$         102,376,117$     

Special Revenue Funds
Community Dev.  Block Grant -                      1,413,606              1,413,606            1,413,606         -                       1,413,606           
County Library -                      1,748,519              1,748,519            1,748,519         -                       1,748,519           
Creeks Restoration and Water Quality 1,652,980       2,407,300              4,060,280            2,160,280         1,900,000        4,060,280           
HOME Grant -                      917,000                 917,000               917,000            -                       917,000             
Miscellaneous Grants -                      665,318                 665,318               665,318            -                       665,318             
Police Asset Forfeiture and Grants -                      80,000                   80,000                80,000              -                       80,000               
Street Sweeping 44,800            1,141,372              1,186,172            1,186,172         -                       1,186,172           
Streets -                      11,082,370            11,082,370          7,537,083         3,545,287        11,082,370         
Supplemental Law Enforcement -                      100,000                 100,000               100,000            -                       100,000             
Traffic Safety -                      470,000                 470,000               470,000            -                       470,000             
Transportation Development Act -                      62,108                   62,108                -                        62,108             62,108               
Transportation Sales Tax -                      2,882,759              2,882,759            2,395,168         487,591           2,882,759           
Wildland Fire Benefit Assessment -                      214,895                 214,895               214,895            -                       214,895             

Enterprise Funds
Airport -                      13,300,051            13,300,051          12,750,051        550,000           13,300,051         
Airport Capital Grants (FAA/PFC) -                      1,430,600              1,430,600            -                        -                       -                         
Airport Customer Facility Charge (CFC) 56,218            627,460                 683,678               683,678            -                       683,678             
Downtown Parking 517,753          6,689,440              7,207,193            6,547,193         660,000           7,207,193           
Golf -                      2,049,194              2,049,194            1,979,194         70,000             2,049,194           
Solid Waste 526,626          17,512,032            18,038,658          18,038,658        -                       18,038,658         
Wastewater 3,741,449       14,985,411            18,726,860          12,431,360        6,295,500        18,726,860         
Water 18,258            34,632,686            34,650,944          31,301,242        3,349,702        34,650,944         
Waterfront 279,092          13,050,784            13,329,876          10,774,876        2,555,000        13,329,876         

Internal Service Funds
Information Systems -                      2,335,726              2,335,726            2,302,393         33,333             2,335,726           
Facilities Management 693,025          5,340,583              6,033,608            6,033,608         -                       6,033,608           
Fleet Management -                      4,656,486              4,656,486            2,538,583         1,697,436        4,236,019           
Self-Insurance -                      5,694,553              5,694,553            5,338,905         -                       5,338,905           

U  S  E  SS  O  U  R  C  E  S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT II 

Page 1 of 1 

GENERAL FUND OPERATING BUDGET BY DEPARTMENT
Fiscal Year 2011

Operating Operating
Revenues Budget

Non-Departmental 74,570,183$       3,256,350$         
Other General Fund Departments

Administrative Services 5,000                  1,641,770           
City Administrator 282,894              1,792,122           
City Attorney 179,958              1,867,900           
Community Development 5,912,680           9,980,620           
Finance 1,049,930           4,189,067           
Fire 3,591,380           21,441,666         
Library 1,260,185           4,085,880           
Mayor and City Council -                         686,819              
Parks and Recreation 4,618,666           12,866,930         
Police 4,887,990           33,237,776         
Public Works 5,767,251           6,571,047           

102,126,117$     101,617,947$      



 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ESTABLISHING THE CITY'S 
APPROPRIATION LIMITATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2011 

WHEREAS, Section 7900 of the Government Code, added by Chapter 220 of the 
Statutes of 1980, Division 9, provides for the effective and efficient implementation 
of Article XIII B of the California Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, Section 7910 requires each local government to establish its 
appropriations limit each year pursuant to Article XIII B of the California 
Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, in 1990, the voters of California adopted Proposition 111 which 
amended Article XIII B of the California Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, among the changes implemented by Proposition 111 are adjustments 
to the growth factors used to calculate the annual appropriation limit; and  

WHEREAS, Proposition 111 requires that the City annually choose, by a recorded 
vote of the City Council, which growth factors to use in calculating the annual 
appropriations limit; and 

WHEREAS, Proposition 111 establishes Fiscal Year 1986-87 as the base year for 
calculating the annual Appropriation Limit and permits the City to re-establish the 
annual Appropriation Limit for all succeeding years based upon the new growth 
factors; and, 

WHEREAS, a resolution establishing the annual appropriations limit is to be 
adopted at a regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council of the City of Santa Barbara as 
follows: 

Section 1. The Council of the City of Santa Barbara elects to use the change in 
California per capita income as the cost of living adjustment factor and the annual 
population change for Santa Barbara County as the population adjustment factor. 

Section 2. The appropriations limit for the fiscal year 2011 is hereby set at 
$102,906,163, as detailed in the attached Exhibit, which is hereby made a part of 
this Resolution. 



2 

Section 3. The City reserves the right to adjust or amend the appropriations limit 
based upon the use of alternative growth factors as authorized by Proposition 111 
if such changes or revisions would result in a more advantageous appropriation 
limit, now or in the future. 

Section 4.   Notice is hereby given that any judicial action or proceeding to attack, 
review, set aside, void or annul this action shall be commenced within 45 days of 
the effective date of this resolution. 
 
Adopted June 29, 2010 
 



Appropriations Subject to Limitation

Fiscal year 2010 adopted revenues 117,203,709$      

Less:
Nonproceeds of tax (42,914,993)         
Qualified Capital Outlay (1,550,568)           
Federal Mandates:

Medicare (699,596)              
FLSA - Fire Department (677,175)              (1,376,771)           

Plus:  User fees in excess of costs -                       

Total Appropriations Subject to Limitation 71,361,377$        

Appropriation Limit

Fiscal year 2010 appropriation limit, adopted 104,428,940$      

A. Inflation adjustment, CPI 0.9746                 
B. Population adjustment 1.0111                 

Change factor (A X B) 0.9854                 

Decrease in appropriation limit (1,522,777)           

Fiscal year 2011 appropriation limit 102,906,163$      

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
PROPOSITION 4

Annual Appropriations Subject to Gann Limit
Fiscal Year 2011

jhopwood
Text Box
Exhibit



RESOLUTION NO. _____        
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ESTABLISHING CERTAIN CITY FEES 
AND RESCINDING RESOLUTION NOS. 09-043, 09-064, 09-
086, 09-089 AND 10-009 

 

WHEREAS, the City provides, maintains and operates a variety of programs and 
services to the public; 

WHEREAS, certain sections of the state and municipal code authorize the imposition 
and collection of fees to defray the costs of providing certain programs and services; 
and, 

WHEREAS, certain fee schedules as attached cite the specific state or municipal 
authority under which fees and charges are collected. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The Council hereby determines and finds that: 
 

a. Funds are needed to defray the cost of providing programs and services 
furnished by the City. 

 
b. The funds needed to defray such operating expenses can and should be 

obtained by setting fees and charges for these programs and services.  
 
c. The setting of fees and charges for these programs and services is exempt 

from compliance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) under Public Resources Code Section 21080(b)(8)(1)-(4) and Title 14 of the 
California Administrative Code, Section 15273(a)(1)-(4). 
 

Section 2. The penalties, fees, and service charges for the Fiscal Year 2011 are adopted 
as set forth in the City of Santa Barbara Schedule of Penalties, Fees and Service 
Charges, attached hereto. 
 

Section 3. The penalties, fees, and service charges contained in the attached schedule 
shall be effective July 1, 2010, unless otherwise indicated. 
 

Section 4. Resolution Nos. 09-043, 09-064, 09-086, 09-089 AND 10-00are hereby 
rescinded.    
 

Section 5. All other fee resolutions in effect and not rescinded herein, shall remain in full 
force. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
[This page is intentionally left blank.] 



 
 
 

 

CITY OF  
SANTA BARBARA 

 
 

 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF CITY PENALTIES, FEES 
 AND SERVICE CHARGES  

 
Fiscal Year 2011 



i 

 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

SCHEDULE OF PENALTIES, FEES AND SERVICES CHARGES 

Fiscal Year 2011 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Airport Parking Fees  ................................................................................  1 

Animal Control Fees  ................................................................................  2 

Animal Removal Fees ..............................................................................  3 

City Clerk Fees  ........................................................................................  4 

City TV Video Duplication Fees  ...............................................................  6 

Community Development Planning and Building and Safety Fees  ..........  7 

Dance Permits  .........................................................................................  40 

Downtown Parking Fees ...........................................................................  41 

DUI Response Fees  ................................................................................  43 

False Alarm Registration Fees  ................................................................   44 

Fire Department Inspection Fees  ............................................................  45 

Human Resources Testing Fees  .............................................................  49 

Library Fees and Fines  ............................................................................  50  

Parade and Special Events Fees  ............................................................  54 

Paratransit Service Fees  .........................................................................  55 

Parking Violation Penalties and Related Fees  .........................................  56 

Parks and Recreation Programs and Services  ........................................  59 

Programs 

Active Adults and Classes  ............................................................  61 

Adapted Recreation  ......................................................................   63 

Aquatics .........................................................................................   64 

Cultural Arts  ..................................................................................   66 

 

 

 



ii 

Parks and Recreation Programs and Services (continued) 

Golf Fees  ......................................................................................   67 

Indoor Facilities ..............................................................................  68 

Neighborhood Centers ...................................................................  70 

Miscellaneous  ...............................................................................  72 

Outdoor Rental Facilities  ...............................................................  73 

Photo and Film Shoots  ..................................................................  76 

Teen Programs ..............................................................................  80 

Tennis ............................................................................................ 81 

Youth and Adult Sports  .................................................................  82 

Youth Activities ..............................................................................  84 

Rules and Regulations 

Tennis Programs - Rules and Regulations ....................................  85 

Community Centers - Rules and Regulations ................................  86 

City Employee Discount Fees ........................................................  87 

Indoor and  Outdoor Facility Rentals Policies ................................  88 

Outdoor Rental Facilities Policies  .................................................  91 

Police Reproduction Fees  .......................................................................  93 

Public Works Engineering Fees, Fees for the Use of City Facilities .........  94 

Sewer Rates and Fees .............................................................................  105 

Solid Waste Fees  ....................................................................................  111 

Water Rates and Fees .............................................................................. 115 

Water / Sewer Buy-In Fees  ......................................................................  126 

Waterfront Harbor Slip and Mooring Fees  ...............................................  129 

Waterfront Parking Fees ...........................................................................  143 



 

 

AIRPORT PARKING FEES 
 
 

The Airport is an Enterprise Fund, generating revenue from user fees and property 
rentals for the operation and maintenance of the Airport.  Revenues from the public 
parking facilities at the Airport contribute to the revenue base of the Airport to defray 
operating expenses. 
 
The rates for public parking facilities at the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport shall be as 
follows: 
 

SHORT-TERM LOT 

0-15 minutes $  1.00

16 minutes – 1 hour 2.00

Each additional hour or fraction thereof 1.00

Maximum – 24 hours 20.00
 
 

LONG-TERM LOT LONG-TERM LOT #2 

0-1 hour $  2.00 0-1 hour $  2.00

Each additional hour or 
fraction thereof 1.00 Each additional hour or 

fraction thereof 1.00

Maximum 24 hours 9.00 Maximum 24 hours 9.00
 
 
Signs shall be posted reflecting these rates. 

1



 

ANIMAL CONTROL FEES 
Section 6.12.050 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code authorizes the City Council to 
set fees and charges for custody or control of dogs. 
 

1. The license fee for one year shall be $54.00 for each dog in the city, regardless 
of sex, over the age of four months, or $29.00 for any dog that has been spayed 
or neutered. 

 
2. The license fee for two years shall be $104.00 for each dog in the city, regardless 

of sex, or $54.00 for any dog that has been spayed or neutered.  
 
 

3. The fee for a duplicate dog license shall be $16.00. 
 
4. The license fee for one year for senior citizens (persons 65 years or older) shall 
be $29.00 for each dog in the city, regardless of sex, over the age of four months, or 
$16.00 for each dog that has been spayed or neutered. 

 
 

6. The senior Citizen fee for a duplicate dog license shall be $10.00. 
 
7. The penalty fee for a delinquent dog license shall be $27.50. 
 

2



 

ANIMAL REMOVAL FEES 
Section 6.24.010 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code authorizes the City Council to 
set fees for the disposition of animals.   
 

REMOVAL AND EUTHANASIA FEES FOR CITY RESIDENTS: 
 

1. The animal disposal fee for the first animal picked up at a specific address or 
location at a specific time shall be $51.00. 
 

2. The animal disposal fee for any additional animal picked up at the same 
specific address or location, at the same specific time, shall be $10.00. 
 

3. The euthanasia fee shall be $25.00 for each animal. 
 
 

REMOVAL FEES FOR VETERINARIANS PARTICIPATING IN ANIMAL LICENSING 
PROGRAM: 

 
The animal disposal fee shall be $20.00 for pick-up plus $10.00 per animal.  

 
 

3



 

CITY CLERK FEES 
 
 

CERTIFICATION FEE 
 
A fee is charged for the certification of public records. 
 Certification............................................................$3.00 + Per Page Copying Charge 
 
COPYING CHARGES 
 
California Government Code Section 6253(b) allows an agency to charge a copying fee 
covering the direct cost of duplication. 
 General Photocopying ................................................................................. $.10/page 
 
California Government Code Section 81008 allows an agency to charge fees for the 
copying and/or retrieval of statements filed pursuant to the Political Reform Act. 
 Campaign Statements/Statements of Economic Interest, Photocopying ..... $.10/page 
 Retrieval of Statements which are 5 or more years old....................................... $5.00 
 
COUNCIL MEETING VIDEO DUPLICATION 
A fee is charged for the duplication of a Council meeting video. 
 Video duplication........................ $6.75 per 15 min. of Staff time spent, or part thereof 
 Blank CD or DVD................................................................................................ $1.50 
 
DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP REGISTRY 
 
City Council Resolution No. 97-055, adopted June 3, 1997, established administrative 
procedures and a fee schedule for the registration of domestic partnerships. 
 Filing of Affidavit of Domestic Partnership ........................................................ $35.00 
 Filing of Statement of Termination .................................................................... $10.00 
 Confirmation of Registration of Domestic Partnership in another community ... $25.00 
 
INITIATIVE FILING FEE  
The California Elections Code requires the proponents of any initiative petition to file 
with the City Clerk a Notice of Intent to circulate petitions and to pay a fee. (Elections 
Code section 9202.) 
 

Notice of Intention Filing ..............................................................................  $ 200.00 
 
The filing fee for the Notice of Intention will be refunded to the filer if, within one year of 
the filing, the City Clerk certifies the sufficiency of the petition.

4



LIFE CERTIFICATES 
 
A fee is charged to complete a Life Certificate. 
 Life Certificate………………………………………………………………………….$3.00 
 
MUNICIPAL CODE COPIES, UPDATE SUBSCRIPTIONS 
 
Fees are charged for the printing and mailing of Municipal Code copies and updates. 
 Municipal Code, Complete Copy....................................................................... $90.00 
 Municipal Code Update Subscription ........................................................ $45.00/year 
 Zoning Package (Titles 22, 26, 27, 28 and 29), Complete Copy....................... $45.00 
 Zoning Package Update Subscription....................................................... $35.00/year 
 

5



 

CITY TV VIDEO DUPLICATION FEES 
The City of Santa Barbara televises and videotapes public meetings and produces video 
programs of public interest, copies of which are available to the public upon request. 

 
Video duplication fee ....................................................................................  $ 22.00 
 
Blank videotape ............................................................................................  $   1.00 
 
Blank DVD  ..................................................................................................  $   1.00 

 
 

 

6



   

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING AND BUILDING AND SAFETY FEES 

 
The City’s Community Development Department provides important services to the public in the 
areas of construction safety, planning, housing, and land use.  The department has four divisions: 
Planning, Housing and Redevelopment, Administration, and Building and Safety, as well as 
numerous committees.  
 
With regard to Community Development fees, Planning Staff will make the final calculation and 
determination on required fees specific to each project. 
 
In addition to each enumerated fee set forth in the schedule below, the applicant shall also be 
charged a Records Management fee equal to 5% of the fee for the listed service.  The 5% Records 
Management fee is necessary to defray the cost of providing Records Management services, with 
respect to the listed activity. 
 
For site development, activities areas, or combination of structures and/or site changes, the fee per 
square footage is not limited to the building area, but may involve the site area as determined by 
Planning Staff. 
 
Some services are charged based on hourly rates with a required deposit. 
 
 
SECTION 1.  PLANNING FEES 
 
APPEALS 
 
Filing fee for each appeal of each decision by the below review bodies shall be as follows (Fees 
numbered 1 - 4 must be paid at the City Clerk's Office at City Hall, and fees numbered 5 – 9 must 
be paid at the Community Development Counter at 630 Garden Street): 
 
1. Historic Landmarks Commission 430.00
2. Architectural Board of Review 430.00

3. Planning Commission 
 

430.00*

4. Single Family Design Board to City Council 430.00

5. Sign Review Committee 220.00

6. Staff Hearing Officer to Planning Commission 
 

220.00*

7. Application Completeness Determination 200.00

8. Chief of Building and Safety and Fire Chief to the Building and Fire Code 
Board of Appeals 

200.00

 
*No appeal fee charged for Coastal Development Permits. 
 

 
ANNEXATION 
 
o Less than one (1) acre without additional development potential 4,000.00

o Less than one (1) acre with development potential 5,400.00

7



   

o One (1) acre and over 10,750.00

(Separate fees are required for rezoning, and General Plan, Local 
Coastal Plan, and Specific Plan Amendments.) 

 
 
 
ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW, HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION, AND SINGLE 
FAMILY DESIGN BOARD 
 
o Administrative Staff Review – Level one 
 

65.00

o Administrative Staff Review - Level two 130.00
 
o Consent Review 150.00
 

Minor/miscellaneous changes and review after final changes 
(Re-roofs, window/door changes, small one-story detached accessory 
structures, garages, carports, fencing, walls, building color changes or 
roof equipment.) 
 
Other Consent Reviews not included in above (example:  mailed 
noticed items for Consent Review).  

250.00

 
o Fee for projects involving alterations and additions are calculated by determining the 
alteration fee and addition fee based on square footage totals and applying the higher fee. 
 
o Larger projects involving multiple buildings or phased improvements may require separate 
fees for review of each building. 
 
 
o Full Board Review 
 

 Single Family Residential Additions New
Less than 1,001 Sq. Ft. 440.00 585.00
1,001-2,500 Sq. Ft. 560.00 725.00
2,501-3,500 Sq. Ft. 640.00 920.00
3,501-4,000 Sq. Ft. 820.00 1,160.00
Over 4,000 Sq. Ft. 950.00 1,295.00
  
Over 4,000 Sq. Ft. Built-Green  Add 145.00
  
Over 85% of the maximum 
required FAR (Fee does not apply 
to FAR guideline projects.) 

 Add  200.00

  
Minor Alterations  290.00
Major Alterations  500.00

 
Multi-Family Residential Alterations Additions New

2-4 Units 270.00 530.00 1,275.00
5-10 Units 360.00 705.00 1,690.00
11-20 Units 595.00 1,190.00 2,860.00
21-30 Units 870.00 1,745.00 3,485.00
31-50 Units 1,390.00 2,615.00 4,355.00
51-80 Units 1,745.00 3,485.00 5,225.00
81+ Units 1,980.00 3,630.00 5,500.00

 
8



   

Non-residential Alterations Additions New
Less than 1,000 Sq. Ft. 560.00 700.00 835.00
1,001-2,500 Sq. Ft. 925.00 1,045.00 1,135.00
2,501-3,500 Sq. Ft. 1,295.00 1,530.00 2,165.00
3,501-10,000 Sq. Ft. 1,605.00 2,150.00 3,355.00
10,001-20,000 Sq. Ft. 2,615.00 3,135.00 4,355.00
20,001-50,000 Sq. Ft. 3,485.00 4,355.00 5,225.00
50,001-100,000 Sq. Ft. 4,355.00 5,225.00 6,970.00
Over 100,000 Sq. Ft. + 5,400.00 6,500.00 7,500.00

 
o Tenant Improvement (TI) Storefronts (Alterations Only): 

Minor TI to Front Façade Elevation Only 550.00
Major TI to Multiple Elevations 1,275.00

 
o Concept Review Hearing (Includes only one Design Review hearing) 450.00/mtg
 
o Supplemental Review Fee:  (This does not include items heard on 

Consent.) 
Eighth and subsequent full board review meeting for projects which 
involve more than 20 units and/or 3,500 sq. ft. of non-residential 
development. 

220.00/mtg 
unless otherwise 

determined by 
staff

Fifth and subsequent full board review meeting for all other 
projects. 

220.00/mtg 
unless otherwise 

determined by 
staff

 
o Postponement/Rescheduling fee 150.00
 
o Temporary uses and minor alterations 

(i.e., umbrellas, outdoor furniture, lighting, building colors and equipment) 
140.00

 
o Development Plan Approval (Per S.B.M.C. 28.87.300) 1,120.00
 
o Antennae/Wireless Facilities 910.00
 
o Site work, retaining walls, tree removals, and landscaping alterations: 

Consent Calendar 140.00
Full Board 410.00

 
o "As Built" Changes Twice the 

current fee
 
o “As Built” Demolition or Alterations to Designated or Listed Historic 

Structures 
Triple the 

current fee
 
o Surface Parking Lots:  Alterations New

1-20 Spaces 350.00 1,010.00
21+ Spaces 66500 1,205.00

 
o Vegetation Removal or Grading (only) Permits 540.00
 
o Time Extension 220.00
 

9



   

o Revised Projects (i.e., projects requiring new Zoning Plan Checks) ½ of current fee
 
 
COASTAL PLAN REVIEW 
 
o Coastal Exclusions and Exemptions 320.00

 
o Recommendation to California Coastal Commission (CCC)  

(No Planning Commission or Staff Hearing Officer review required.) 
320.00

 
o Consent or Minor Coastal Development Permit (CDP) Items 

(Including projects in the Non-Appealable area that do not require other 
public hearings.) 

1,775.00

 
o Coastal Development Permits: 
 

Residential 
1-4 Units 4405.00
5-10 Units 5,670.00
11+ Units 6,135.00

 
Non-residential 

0-1,000 Sq. Ft. 4,405.00
1,001-3,000 Sq. Ft. 5,700.00
Over 3,000 Sq. Ft. 8,780.00

 
o LCP Amendments 16,205.00
 
 
COMMUNITY PRIORITY ALLOCATION AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT ALLOCATION 
 
o Planning Commission (PC) and City Council (CC) Review includes one PC 

Hearing and two CC Hearings) 
2,230.00

 
o Additional Hearings by either PC or CC 785.00
 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
 
o Minor and Amendments 3,540.00
 
o Residential 4,720.00
 
o Non-residential 9,440.00
 
 
 
CONVERSION PERMIT (*Chapter 28.88) 
(*Commercial conversions pay Tentative Subdivision Map fee and not conversion fee.) 
 
o Condominium Conversion (Residential only) 7,500.00
 
o Hotel/Motel Conversion 7,500.00
 
 

10



   

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS 
 
In accordance with Council Resolution No. 89-120 pertaining to the establishment of procedures 
for Development Agreements, the following deposit and hours rates apply. 
 
o Deposit 5,545.00
 
o Hourly Rates: 

Planning Division 120.00
City Attorney 200.00

 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
(This applies to Planning Commission and Staff Hearing officer only.  See the Design Review 
section for Architectural Board of Review.) 
 
o Residential 6,160.00
 
o Non-residential (Per Measure E) 

0-1,000 Sq. Ft. 6,160.00
1,001-3,000 Sq. Ft. 6,995.00
3,001-10,000 Sq. Ft. 8,985.00
10,001-20,000 Sq. Ft. 13,925.00
20,001-50,000 Sq. Ft. 17,910.00
50,001-100,000 Sq. Ft. 21,880.00
Over 100,000 Sq. Ft. 21,880.00+ $30 for 

each 1,000 s.f. over 
100,000 s.f.

 
o Master Plan 2,315.00
 
o Other Development Plans required in Specific Zones 

(i.e., C-P, C-X, P-D, R-H) 
6,160.00

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
 

 CEQA Exemption: 
 ABR/HLC – with one study other than Historic Resources  

220.00

ABR/HLC/MOD/SFDB with more than one study 435.00
DART:  No studies 655.00
DART:  With studies 1,745.00

o Historic Structures Report Reviews by HLC & staff, including revised 
or addendum reports 

220.00

o Initial Study Preparation: 
Prepared by Staff 8,080.00
Contract Management (If Initial Study is prepared by a 
consultant) 

15% of contract 
amount

Addendum 2,640.00
o Negative Declaration (ND): 

Prepared by Staff 900.00
 
Contract Management (If ND is prepared by consultant) 15% of contract 

amount
 
o Staff Determination of Adequacy of Prior Environmental Document $2000 deposit and 

hourly fees
11



   

 
o Staff Preparation of Addendum to EIR  $8,000.00 deposit, 

and hourly fees 
 
o Staff Preparation of Supplement to EIR $8,000.00 deposit, 

and hourly fees 
 
o Environmental Impact Report  

Focused EIR (Prepared by Staff) $8,000.00 deposit, 
and hourly fees 

Full EIR (Prepared by Staff) $8,000.00 deposit, 
and hourly fees 

EIR Contract Management (If EIR prepared by consultant) 15% of contract 
amount

 
o Master Environmental Assessment (MEA) Report (per parcel) 25.00
 
 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENTS 
 
o General Plan Map Amendment 12,410.00
 
o General Plan Text Amendment 22,205.00
 
 
MAILING LIST SERVICE 
 
o Preparation of one Map, Mailing List, Labels and On-site Posting Sign 195.00
 
o Each Additional On-Site Posting Sign (If required, lost, or damaged) 25.00
 
 
MIXED USE PROJECTS 
 
o For New Buildings, calculate the fees for both residential and non-

residential project elements and charge both fees. 
 
o For Additions/Alterations, calculate the fees for both residential and non-

residential project elements and charge the greater fee. 
 
 
MODIFICATIONS 
 
o Non-DART Process (minor zoning/pre-application deposit $65) 895.00
 
o DART Process 2,015.00
 
o Each additional modification request: 

By Non-DART Process 475.00
By DART Process 1,020.00

 
o "As Built" Changes Twice the current 

fee
 
 
OFF SITE HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY 
 
o Notice of Intent 1,080.00

12



   

 
o Local Assessment Committee 

Initiation 3,100.00
Coordination of Committee based on estimate of staff hours 120.00/hr 

 
 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD PERMITS (PSP) 
 
o Large Family Day Care / Community Care Facility 695.00
 
o Medical Cannabis Dispensary Permit 

(A 10-hour deposit is required for full cost recovery.) 
120.00/hr

 
o Other PSPs 3,540.00
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
o Planning Commission Hearing for Concept Review, Master Plan 

Review, or Initiation of an Annexation, General Plan Amendment, LCP 
Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, or Zone Change.  (The 
hearing can be one or a combination of more than one of these.) 

2,415.00

 
o Each subsequent Planning Commission Hearing 1,210.00
 
o Revised application for review by the Planning Commission 

(The fee for review by the Planning Commission for a current 
application that has been revised by the applicant after completion of 
legal notice.) 

½ of the original 
filing fee(s) for 

each application

 
o Release of covenant or amendments to conditions, and minor 

amendments to previously approved project. 
2,740.00

 
o Substantial Conformance: 
 

If it is determined that the next level is necessary, the fee may be 
credited.  (Levels of review are based on the Planning Commission 
Guidelines). 

Level one 0.00
Level two 820.00
Level three 1,710.00
Level four 2,740.00

 
o Third and each subsequent DART Re-submittal ¼ of the highest 

fee paid for 
project

 
o Re-notice Fee for Planning Commission continuance $400.00
 
o Time Extension 200.00
 
 
PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW TEAM (PRT) 
 
o Subdivisions (residential & non-residential): 

1-4 Units/lots 1,790.00
5-10 Units/lots 2,250.00
11+ Units/lots 2,440.00

13



   

 
o Development Plan and other required applications: 

0-1,000 Sq. Ft. 1,790.00
1,001-3,000 Sq. Ft. 2,250.00
3,001-10,000 Sq. Ft. 3,120.00
10,001+ Sq. Ft. 3,450.00

 
o Lot Line Adjustments 1,790.00
 
o Non-required reviews by the PRT 1,790.00
 
o Planner Consultation Meeting 300.00
 
 
PROPERTY PROFILES 
 
o Property Profile (3 -hour minimum charge) 120.00/hr
 
 
SIGN REVIEW 
(Note:  A Building Permit is to be obtained, and inspection fees are required to be paid after 
approval.)   
 
Conforming Review Fees: (up to <30 sq. ft total sign area  195.00
  o  Face or color changes on existing sign(s) 195.00
  o  Changes to existing sign program 195.00
  o  Review after final (minor misc. charges and review) 85.00
 
Consent Review Fees: 

o  Total sign area of all signs on one site: 
 < 15 Sq. Ft. 235.00
 16-30 Sq. Ft. 290.00
 31-60 Sq. Ft. 450.00

 Any application on Consent Review may be referred to Full Board 
 
Full Board Fees: 

o  Total sign area of all signs on one site: 
 61-90 Sq. Ft. 615.00
 > 90 Sq. Ft. 810.00

 
  o Exception (One exception fee per application, in addition to the  

 base fee, shall be charged.) 
475.00

 
  o  Concept Review (Any size sign) 95.00
 
  o  Harbor Signs  235.00
 
  o  “As Built” Changes Twice the 

current fee
 
  o Sign Programs (Individual signs have a separate review and fee.) 
   Changes to existing sign program 195.00
   New program 300.00
 
  o  Outdoor Vending Machine Review 

 Machine panel signage and one to two machines 200.00
 Three to four machines 275.00

 
14



   

  o  Vending Machine Exception Request 275.00
 
  o  Vending Machine License Agreement 175.00
 
  o  Postponement / Rescheduling Fee 75.00
 
SPECIFIC PLANS 
 
o Specific Plans 35,685.00
 
o Specific Plan Amendment 12,505.00
 
STAFF HEARING OFFICER (SHO) 
o Substantial Conformance: 

Level one 0.00
Level two 440.00

 
o Third and each subsequent DART Re-submittal ¼ of the highest 

fee paid for 
project

 
o Re-notice Fee for Staff Hearing Officer continuance 300.00
o Revised Project (additional applications, i.e. new mods full fee 
required) 

½ the current fee

o Amendment to Conditions of Approval  $1,000.00
o Time Extension of prior approvals 200.00
 
 
SUBDIVISION AND TENTATIVE MAP 
 
o Residential or Non-Residential Subdivisions, or Residential 

Condominiums: 
1-4 Lots/Units 7,365.00
5-10 Lots/Units 9,460.00
11-20 Lots/Units 14,980.00
21-50  Lots/Units 23,970.00
Over 50 Lots/Units 30,000.00

 
o Non-Residential Condominiums (Total Non-Residential Floor 

Area): 
0 – 1,000 sq. ft. 3,685.00 
1,001 – 3,000 sq. ft. 4,730.00 
3,001 – 10,000 sq. ft. 9,635.00 
10,001 + sq ft. 9,635.00 + $35 for each 

1,000 s.f. over 10,000 s.f.
 
o Re-Process revised maps ½ of current fee
 
o Lot Line Adjustments 7,365.00
 
*Each unit on a Condominium development shall be considered a “Lot” for the purpose of 
determining filing fee. 
 
**Commercial Condominium Conversion only requires a Tentative Subdivision Map fee, not a 
Condominium Conversion Permit fee. 
 
 

15



   

o STAFF HOURLY RATE 
 

120.00 

 
TRANSFER OF EXISTING DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS 
 
o Transfer of Existing Development Rights (Includes all sites involved in the 

transfer proposal.) 
4,015.00 

 
 
VARIANCE 
 
o Variance 12,150.00
 
 
ZONE CHANGE 
 
o Zone change 15,505.00
 
o Zoning Ordinance Amendments 14,130.00
 
 
ZONING INFORMATION REPORT (ZIR) 
 
o Type: 

Condominium 330.00
One Dwelling Unit (except condos) 465.00
Each Additional Dwelling Unit 60.00

 
o Expedited or After the Fact ZIR Fee 

(When ZIR is required within a two-week time period, and escrow was 
commenced prior to the two-week period, or escrow is closed and ZIR was 
required and not obtained. 

Twice the 
current fee

 
o One year extension fee 

(Must apply prior to expiration date of current ZIR,  A Re-inspection is 
required prior to expiration date of current ZIR.)  

½ of current 
fee

 
o Re-inspection Fee 

(Required for a missed site inspection appointment (without prior notice or 
inability to inspect entire property. This fee may be charged in-lieu of time 
extension fee provided the re-inspection finds no changes or new 
violations) 

185.00

 
 
ZONING LETTERS 
 
o Zoning letter (2-hour minimum charge) 120.00/hr
 
 
 
 
ZONING PLAN CHECK 
 
o Single Family Residential (Includes Demo/Rebuild): 

Minor Alteration (No new floor area) 100.00

Small Addition (Less than 500 Sq. Ft.)/Major Alteration 165.00

16



   

Addition (500 – 1,000 Sq. Ft.) 330.00
Addition (Greater than 1,000 Sq. Ft.) 440.00
New Residence (0-2,000 Sq. Ft.) 440.00
New Residence (2,001 to 4,000 Sq. Ft.) 660.00
New Residence (Greater than 4,000 Sq. Ft.) 825.00

 
o Multi-Family Residential (Includes Demo/Rebuild): 

Minor Alteration (No new floor area) 165.00
Small Addition (Less than 500 Sq. Ft.)/Major Alteration 330.00
Addition (500 – 1,000 Sq. Ft.) 440.00
Addition (Greater than 1,000 Sq. Ft.) 550.00
New Residential Units (1-4 Units) 550.00/unit
New Residential Units (Over 4 Units) 2,750.00 + 

$110/unit 
over 5

 
o Non-Residential (Includes Demo/Rebuild): 

Minor Alteration (No new floor area) 165.00
Addition/Alteration/New (Less than 500 Sq. Ft.) 330.00
Addition/Alteration/New (500 – 1,000 Sq. Ft.) 440.00
Addition/Alteration/New (1,001 – 3,000 Sq. Ft.) 550.00
Addition/Alteration/New (3,001 – 10,000 Sq. Ft.) 1,100.00
Addition/Alteration/New (Greater than 10,000 Sq. Ft.) 1,980.00

 
o Agricultural Uses and Vegetation Removal 415.00
 
o Land Development Team Recovery Fee 

(A fee will be charged to Development Application Review Team projects 
when they apply for a Building Permit.  The fee will be calculated by 
Planning Staff.) 

30% of all 
Planning 

Fees

 
o Administrative Design or Minor Zoning Review 65.00
 
o Preliminary Plan Check Prior to Design Review Approval ½ of plan

check fee
 
o Miscellaneous 85.00
 
o Plan Check for Public Works project (1 hour minimum charge -  

Certificate of Compliance, cell towers in right of way, etc.) 
120.00/hr

 
o Supplemental Review Fee 

(The Zoning Plan Check fee above covers two reviews by the Zoning Plans 
Examiner.  A fee shall be charged for each review after the second review.) 

¼ of current 
fee

 
 
PHOTOCOPYING FEE 
 
In conjunction with requests for black and white copies of up to 11” x 17” 
records, a per page fee to defray the direct costs of duplication will be 
charged: 

$0.20 per sheet

 
In conjunction with requests for color copies of up to 11” x 17” records, a per 
page fee to defray the direct costs of duplication will be charged: 

$1.00 per sheet

 
 
RESPONSE TO SUBPOENA 
 

17



   

Costs as allowed in Evidence Code section 1563(b). 
 
 
HOUSING DOCUMENT FEES 
 
The fee for preparation and review of documents to accommodate the refinance or assumption of 
Redevelopment Agency loans on affordable housing units, and City Housing Rehabilitation Loan 
Program loans, shall be: 
 

Subordination Agreement by Redevelopment Agency 105.00
Assumption Agreement by Redevelopment Agency 105.00
Subordination Agreement by City 105.00
Assumption Agreement by City 105.00

 

18



   

 
 
SECTION 2.  BUILDING AND SAFETY FEES 
 
 
BUILDING PERMIT FEES 
 
The building permit and application fees shall be as follows: 
 
Permit Application fee shall be 50% of the estimated total permit fee. 
 
Schedule A (1 of 3):  Construction Types I FR and II FR 
 
(If a project falls precisely on the cut-off line between two fee categories, the project shall be charged the lower fee.) 
 
CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
“A” New 1,000 

$10,431 
plus 

$93.06 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$14,153 

plus 
$74.29 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$17,869 

plus 
$40.98 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$21,966 

plus 
$13.08 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$25,890 

plus 
$9.58 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $30,676 plus $9.58 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"A" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 

$1,913 
    

  251-500 $3,826     
  501-999 $5,739     
  1,000 

$7,653 
plus 

$70.83 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$10,487 

plus 
$54.69 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$13,221 

plus 
$29.29 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$16,149 

plus 
$8.83

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$18,802 

plus 
$6.37 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $21,984 plus $6.37 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"B" New 1,000 

$12,002 
plus 

$106.37 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$16,256 

plus 
$85.43 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$20,529 

plus 
$47.36 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$25,264 

plus 
$15.25 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$29,841 

plus 
$11.19 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $35,439 plus $11.19 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"B" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 

$2,173 
    

  251-500 $4,346     
  501-999 $6,519     
  1,000 

$8,692 
plus 

$79.78 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

19



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
  5,000 

$11,882 
plus 

$62.06 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$14,985 

plus 
$33.46 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$18,332 

plus 
$10.23 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$21,402 

plus 
$7.40 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $25,102 plus $7.40 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"E" New 1,000 

$16,025 
plus 

$143.59 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$21,768 

plus 
$114.18 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$27,478 

plus 
$62.76 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$33,753 

plus 
$19.92 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$39,728 

plus 
$14.56 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $47,004 plus $14.56 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"E" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 

$3,077 
    

  251-500 $6,154     
  501-999 $9,232     
  1,000 

$12,309 
plus 

$112.48 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$16,808 

plus 
$87.87 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$21,201 

plus 
$47.53 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$25,955 

plus 
$14.64 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$30,348 

plus 
$10.61 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $35,652 plus $10.61 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"F" New 1,000 

$10,970 
plus 

$93.54 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$14,712 

plus 
$77.82 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$18,603 

plus 
$44.41 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$23,044 

plus 
$15.04 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$27,558 

plus 
$11.19 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $33,150 plus $11.19 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"F" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 

$2,163 
   

  251-500 $4,326    
  501-999 $6,490    
  1,000 

$8,653 
plus $72.14 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 

to and including 
5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$11,770 

plus $57.11 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$14,853 

plus $31.27 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$18,231 

plus 
$10.65 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$21,423 

plus 
$7.75 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $25,302 plus $7.75 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

20



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
"H" New 200 

$9,504 
plus 

$394.39 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

1,000 s.f. 

  1,000 
$12,660 

plus 
$336.33 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

2,000 s.f. 

  2,000 
$16,023 

plus 
$195.64 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

4,000 s.f. 

  4,000 
$19,936 

plus 
$68.39 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$24,040 

plus 
$51.24 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $29,162 plus $51.24 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"H" Tenant 

Improvements 
0 - 100 

$3,349 
   

  101 - 199 $5,024    
  200 

$6,698 
plus 

$291.81 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

1,000 s.f. 

  1,000 
$9,032 

plus 
$238.03 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

2,000 s.f. 

  2,000 
$11,413 

plus 
$133.67 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

4,000 s.f. 

  4,000 
$14,086 

plus 
$44.07 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$16,730 

plus 
$32.54 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $19,984 plus $32.54 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"I" New 1,000 

$8,318 
plus 

$75.59 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$11,342 

plus 
$59.35 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$14,310 

plus 
$32.26 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$17,535 

plus 
$10.01 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$20,541 

plus 
$7.28 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $24,180 plus $7.28 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"I" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 

$1,594 
   

  251-500 $3,188    
  501-999 $4,783    
  1,000 

$6,377 
plus 

$59.02 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$8,739 

plus 
$45.58 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$11,017 

plus 
$24.40 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$13,458 

plus 
$7.37 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$15,668 

plus 
$5.31 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $18,320 plus $5.31 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"M" New 1,000 

$12,875 
plus 

$115.44 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$17,492 

plus 
$91.74 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$22,080 

plus 
$50.39 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$27,119 

plus 
$15.96 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$31,910 

plus 
$11.66 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

21



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
  100,000 $37,743 plus $11.66 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"M" Tenant 
Improvements 

1-250 
$2,596 

    

  251-500 $5,192     
  501-999 $7,788     
  1,000 

$10,382 
plus 

$92.20 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$14,070 

plus 
$73.92 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$17,767 

plus 
$40.90 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$21,857 

plus 
$13.04 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$25,801 

plus 
$9.63 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $30,619 plus $9.63 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"R-1" New 1,500 

$10,615 
plus 

$62.37 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

7,500 s.f. 

"R-2.1"  7,500 
$14,358 

plus 
$50.35 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

15,000 s.f. 

  15,000 
$18,133 

plus 
$28.03 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

30,000 s.f. 

  30,000 
$22,338 

plus 
$9.10 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

75,000 s.f. 

  75,000 
$26,434 

plus 
$6.69 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

150,000 s.f. 

  150,000 $31,453 plus $6.69 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"R-1" Tenant 

Improvements 
1 - 750 

$2,375 
    

"R-2.1"  751 – 1,000 $4,751     
  1,001- 1,499 $7,126     
  1,500 

$9,501 
plus 

$53.55 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

7,500 s.f. 

  7,500 
$12,713 

plus 
$44.90 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

15,000 s.f. 

  15,000 
$16,081 

plus 
$25.78 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

30,000 s.f. 

  30,000 
$19,948 

plus 
$8.82 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

75,000 s.f. 

  75,000 
$23,918 

plus 
$6.58 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

150,000 s.f. 

  150,000 $28,852 plus $6.58 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"S" New 1,000 

$7,617 
plus 

$68.33 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$10,351 

plus 
$54.28 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$13,066 

plus 
$29.81 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$16,047 

plus 
$9.45 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$18,878 

plus 
$6.89 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $22,326 plus $6.89 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"S" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 

$1,768 
   

  251-500 $3,537    
  501-999 $5,305    
  1,000 

$7,072 
plus 

$62.40 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,568 plus $50.33 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 10,000 s.f. 

22



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
to and including 

  10,000 
$12,084 

plus 
$27.99 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$14,883 

plus 
$9.07 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$17,605 

plus 
$6.66 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $20,940 plus $6.66 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
     
 SHELL 

BUILDINGS 
    

      
"B" Shell 1,000 

$8,457 
plus 

$76.70 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

"S"  5,000 
$11,525 

plus 
$60.33 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$14,541 

plus 
$32.83 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$17,824 

plus 
$10.23 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$20,895 

plus 
$7.44 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $24,615 plus $7.44 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"A" Shell 1,000 

$9,067 
plus 

$81.25 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

"E"  5,000 
$12,317 

plus 
$64.61 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

"I"  10,000 
$15,548 

plus 
$35.51 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

"F"  20,000 
$19,099 

plus 
$11.26 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$22,478 

plus 
$8.23 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $26,595 plus $8.23 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"M" Shell 1,000 

$8,457 
plus 

$76.70 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$11,525 

plus 
$60.33 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$14,541 

plus 
$32.83 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$17,824 

plus 
$10.23 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$20,895 

plus 
$7.44 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $24,615 plus $7.44 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
R-1 Shell 1,000 

$8,457 
plus 

$76.70 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 
$11,525 

plus 
$60.33 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 
$14,541 

plus 
$32.83 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 
$17,824 

plus 
$10.23 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 
$20,895 

plus 
$7.44 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $24,615 plus $7.44 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
 
 
 
 
 

23



   

Schedule B (2 of 3):  Construction Types II 1-HR, III 1-HR, V 1-HR 
 

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
"A" New 1,000 $8,693 plus 

$77.55 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $11,795 plus 
$61.91 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $14,890 plus 
$34.14 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $18,305 plus 
$10.90 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $21,574 plus $7.98 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $25,564 plus $7.98 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"A" Tenant 
Improvements 

1-250 $1,594      

  251-500 $3,188      
  501-999 $4,783      
  1,000 $6,377 plus 

$59.02 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $8,739 plus 
$45.58 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $11,017 plus 
$24.40 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $13,458 plus $7.37 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $15,668 plus $5.31 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $18,320 plus $5.31 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"B" New 1,000 $10,002 plus 
$88.65 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $13,548 plus 
$71.19 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $17,107 plus 
$39.46 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $21,054 plus 
$12.71 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $24,868 plus $9.33 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $29,533 plus $9.33 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"B" Tenant 
Improvements 

1-250 $1,810      

  251-500 $3,621      
  501-999 $5,432      
  1,000 $7,244 plus 

$66.48 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,903 plus 
$51.72 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $12,488 plus 
$27.89

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $15,277 plus $8.53 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $17,835 plus $6.17 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $20,919 plus $6.17 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"E" New 1,000 $13,354 plus 
$119.65 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $18,141 plus 
$95.15 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

24



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
  10,000 $22,899 plus 

$52.29 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $28,129 plus 
$16.60 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $33,107 plus 
$12.13 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $39,169 plus $12.13 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"E" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 $2,565      

  251-500 $5,129      
  501-999 $7,694      
  1,000 $10,257 plus 

$93.73 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $14,007 plus 
$73.21 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $17,667 plus 
$39.60 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $21,629 plus 
$12.20 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $25,289 plus $8.83 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $29,710 plus $8.83 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"F" New 1,000 $9,142 plus 
$77.95 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $12,260 plus 
$64.85 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $15,503 plus 
$37.01 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $19,205 plus 
$12.54 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $22,965 plus $9.33 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $27,625 plus $9.33 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"F" Tenant 
Improvements 

1-250 $1,803      

  251-500 $3,606      
  501-999 $5,408      
  1,000 $7,211 plus 

$64.93 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,809 plus 
$51.41 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $12,378 plus 
$28.14 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $15,192 plus $8.87 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $17,852 plus $6.46 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $21,086 plus $6.46 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"H" New 200 $7,921 plus 
$328.67 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

1,000 s.f. 

  1,000 $10,549 plus 
$280.27 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

2,000 s.f. 

  2,000 $13,352 plus 
$163.04 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

4,000 s.f. 

  4,000 $16,613 plus 
$56.99 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $20,032 plus 
$42.69 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $24,302 plus $42.69 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

25



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
"H" Tenant 

Improvements 
0 - 100 $2,791      

  101 - 199 $4,186      
  200 $5,581 plus 

$243.17 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

1,000 s.f. 

  1,000 $7,528 plus 
$198.36 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

2,000 s.f. 

  2,000 $9,512 plus 
$111.39 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

4,000 s.f. 

  4,000 $11,739 plus 
$36.73 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $13,943 plus 
$27.11 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $16,654 plus $27.11 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"I" New 1,000 $6,933 plus 

$63.00 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,452 plus 
$49.45 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $11,925 plus 
$26.87 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $14,612 plus $8.35 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $17,118 plus $6.07 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $20,151 plus $6.07 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"I" Tenant 
Improvements 

1-250 $1,328      

  251-500 $2,658      
  501-999 $3,986      
  1,000 $5,315 plus 

$49.18 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $7,282 plus 
$37.98 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $9,181 plus 
$20.34 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $11,215 plus $6.15 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $13,056 plus $4.42 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $15,267 plus $4.42 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"M" New 1,000 $10,729 plus 
$96.21 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $14,577 plus 
$76.45 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $18,400 plus 
$42.00 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $22,598 plus 
$13.31 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $26,591 plus $9.72 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $31,453 plus $9.72 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"M" Tenant 
Improvements 

1-250 $2,163      

  251-500 $4,325      
  501-999 $6,489      
  1,000 $8,652 plus 

$76.84 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $11,726 plus 
$61.60 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

26



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
  10,000 $14,805 plus 

$34.10 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $18,214 plus 
$10.95 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $21,501 plus $8.04 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $25,516 plus $8.04 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"R-1" New 1,500 $8,846   $51.98   
 "R-2.1"   7,500 $11,964   $41.96   

  15,000 $15,111   $23.36   
  30,000 $18,615 plus $7.58 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 

to and including 
7,500 s.f. 

  75,000 $22,028 plus $5.57 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

15,000 s.f. 

  150,000 $26,211 plus $5.57 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

30,000 s.f. 

"R-1" Tenant 
Improvements 

1 -  750 $1,980 plus  for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

75,000 s.f. 

"R-2.1"  751–1,000 $3,958 plus  for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

150,000 s.f. 

  1,001- 1,499 $5,938 plus  for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
  1,500 $7,916 plus 

$44.63 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

7,500 s.f. 

  7,500 $10,595 plus 
$37.41 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

15,000 s.f. 

  15,000 $13,401 plus 
$21.48 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

30,000 s.f. 

  30,000 $16,623 plus $7.35 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

75,000 s.f. 

  75,000 $19,932 plus $5.48 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

150,000 s.f. 

  150,000 $24,043 plus $5.48 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"S" New 1,000 $6,348 plus 
$56.95 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $8,626 plus 
$45.24 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $10,889 plus 
$24.84 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $13,373 plus $7.86 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $15,732 plus $5.75 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $18,605 plus $5.75 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"S" Tenant 
Improvements 

1-250 $1,473      

  251-500 $2,946      
  501-999 $4,420      
  1,000 $5,894 plus 

$52.01 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $7,974 plus 
$41.94 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $10,071 plus 
$23.32 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $12,403 plus $7.56 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $14,671 plus $5.56 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $17,450 plus $5.56 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

27



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost Cost Increment 
    
 SHELL 

BUILDINGS 
    

      
"B" Shell 1,000 $7,047 plus 

$63.91 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

"S"  5,000 $9,603 plus 
$50.26 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $12,118 plus 
$27.36 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $14,853 plus $8.53 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $17,413 plus $6.20 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $20,512 plus $6.20 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"A" Shell 1,000 $7,556 plus 
$67.71 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

"E"  5,000 $10,264 plus 
$53.84 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

"I"  10,000 $12,957 plus 
$29.59 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

"F"  20,000 $15,916 plus $9.39 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $18,733 plus $6.86 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $22,163 plus $6.86 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"M" Shell 1,000 $7,047 plus 
$63.91 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,603 plus 
$50.26 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $12,118 plus 
$27.36 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $14,853 plus $8.53 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $17,413 plus $6.20 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $20,512 plus $6.20 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

R-1 Shell 1,000 $7,047 plus 
$63.91 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,603 plus 
$50.26 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $12,118 plus 
$27.36 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $14,853 plus $8.53 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $17,413 plus $6.20 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $20,512 plus $6.20 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



   

Schedule C (3 of 3):  Construction Types II N, III N, IV, and V N 
 

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost  Cost Increment 
"A" New 1,000 $6,954 plus 

$62.05 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,436 plus 
$49.53 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $11,912 plus 
$27.31 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $14,644 plus 
$8.72 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $17,259 plus 
$6.38 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $20,450 plus $6.38 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"A" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 $1,275      

  251-500 $2,551      
  501-999 $3,826      
  1,000 $5,103 plus 

$47.23 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $6,990 plus 
$36.46 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $8,814 plus 
$19.52 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $10,765 plus 
$5.90 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $12,533 plus 
$4.24 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $14,657 plus $4.24 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"B" New 1,000 $8,002 plus 

$70.91 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $10,838 plus 
$56.95 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $13,686 plus 
$31.57 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $16,843 plus 
$10.17 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $19,895 plus 
$7.46 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $23,627 plus $7.46 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"B" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 $1,448      

  251-500 $2,898      
  501-999 $4,346      
  1,000 $5,794 plus $53.19 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 

to and including 
5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $7,922 plus 
$41.37 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $9,991 plus 
$22.31 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $12,221 plus 
$6.81 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $14,268 plus 
$4.94 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $16,736 plus $4.94 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"E" New 1,000 $10,683 plus 

$95.73 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $14,513 plus 
$76.13 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $18,319 plus 
$41.84 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $22,503 plus $13.27 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 50,000 s.f. 

29



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost  Cost Increment 
to and including 

  50,000 $26,485 plus 
$9.71 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $31,336 plus $9.71 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"E" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 $2,052      

  251-500 $4,103      
  501-999 $6,154      
  1,000 $8,206 plus 

$74.98 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $11,205 plus 
$58.57 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $14,134 plus 
$31.70 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $17,304 plus 
$9.76 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $20,232 plus 
$7.07 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $23,769 plus $7.07 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"F" New 1,000 $7,314 plus 

$62.36 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,809 plus 
$51.88 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $12,403 plus 
$29.60 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $15,363 plus 
$10.02 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $18,373 plus 
$7.46 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $22,100 plus $7.46 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"F" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 $1,442      

  251-500 $2,885      
  501-999 $4,326      
  1,000 $5,769 plus 

$51.94 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $7,847 plus 
$41.12 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $9,904 plus 
$22.52 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $12,154 plus 
$7.10 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $14,282 plus 
$5.17 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $16,869 plus $5.17 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"H" New 200 $6,335 plus 

$262.93 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

1,000 s.f. 

  1,000 $8,439 plus 
$224.22 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

2,000 s.f. 

  2,000 $10,681 plus 
$130.43 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

4,000 s.f. 

  4,000 $13,290 plus 
$45.59 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $16,026 plus 
$34.16 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $19,442 plus $34.16 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"H" Tenant 

Improvements 
0 - 100 $2,232      

  101 - 199 $3,349      
  200 $4,466 plus $194.54 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 1,000 s.f. 

30



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost  Cost Increment 
to and including 

  1,000 $6,022 plus 
$158.68 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

2,000 s.f. 

  2,000 $7,610 plus 
$89.11 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

4,000 s.f. 

  4,000 $9,392 plus 
$29.38 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $11,154 plus 
$21.70 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $13,324 plus $21.70 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"I" New 1,000 $5,546 plus 

$50.39 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $7,562 plus 
$39.56 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $9,540 plus 
$21.50 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $11,690 plus 
$6.67 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $13,694 plus 
$4.85 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $16,120 plus $4.85 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"I" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 $1,064      

  251-500 $2,125      
  501-999 $3,188      
  1,000 $4,252 plus 

$39.34 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $5,826 plus 
$30.39 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $7,345 plus 
$16.26 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $8,972 plus 
$4.90 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $10,445 plus 
$3.54 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $12,214 plus $3.54 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"M" New 1,000 $8,584 plus 

$76.96 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $11,662 plus 
$61.16 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $14,719 plus 
$33.60 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $18,079 plus 
$10.65 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $21,274 plus 
$7.79 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $25,162 plus $7.79 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"M" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 $1,731      

  251-500 $3,460      
  501-999 $5,192      
  1,000 $6,922 plus 

$61.46 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $9,381 plus 
$49.28 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $11,844 plus 
$27.28 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $14,572 plus 
$8.77 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $17,201 plus 
$6.43 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

31



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost  Cost Increment 
  100,000 $20,413 plus $6.43 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 

"R-1" New 1,500 $7,077 plus 
$41.58 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

7,500 s.f. 

"R-2.1"  7,500 $9,572 plus 
$33.57 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

15,000 s.f. 

  15,000 $12,090 plus 
$18.68 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

30,000 s.f. 

  30,000 $14,892 plus 
$6.07 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

75,000 s.f. 

  75,000 $17,622 plus 
$4.47 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

150,000 s.f. 

  150,000 $20,968 plus $4.47 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"R-1" Tenant 

Improvements 
1 - 750 $1,583      

"R-2.1"  751– 1,000 $3,168      
  1,001- 1,499 $4,751      
  1,500 $6,334 plus 

$35.70 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

7,500 s.f. 

  7,500 $8,475 plus 
$29.94 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

15,000 s.f. 

  15,000 $10,720 plus 
$17.19 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

30,000 s.f. 

  30,000 $13,298 plus 
$5.89 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

75,000 s.f. 

  75,000 $15,945 plus 
$4.38 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

150,000 s.f. 

  150,000 $19,234 plus $4.38 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"R-3" New Dwellings 1,000 $4,969 plus 

$359.25 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

1,500 s.f. 

 (see Misc. 
Schedule  

1,500 $6,766 plus 
$443.08 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

2,000 s.f. 

 for additions or 
remodels)  

2,000 $8,981 plus 
$179.63 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

3,000 s.f. 

  3,000 $10,777 plus 
$134.72 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $13,472 plus 
$53.89 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $16,167 plus $53.89 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"S" New 1,000 $5,079 plus 

$45.57 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $6,901 plus 
$36.19 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $8,710 plus 
$19.87 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $10,698 plus 
$6.30 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $12,585 plus 
$4.60 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $14,885 plus $4.60 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"S" Tenant 

Improvements 
1-250 $1,178      

  251-500 $2,357      
  501-999 $3,537      
  1,000 $4,715 plus 

$41.60 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $6,378 plus 
$33.54 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $8,056 plus 
$18.66 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $9,922 plus 
$6.05 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

32



   

CBC  Min.       
Occ.  Project Base      

Class. Project Type Size (sf) Cost  Cost Increment 
  50,000 $11,736 plus 

$4.44 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $13,960 plus $4.44 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
    
 SHELL 

BUILDINGS 
    

      
"B" Shell 1,000 $5,639 plus 

$51.13 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

"S"  5,000 $7,683 plus 
$40.22 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $9,694 plus 
$21.89 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $11,883 plus 
$6.81 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $13,931 plus 
$4.97 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $16,410 plus $4.97 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"A" Shell 1,000 $6,045 plus 

$54.16 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

"E"  5,000 $8,211 plus 
$43.07 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

"I"  10,000 $10,366 plus 
$23.67 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

"F"  20,000 $12,732 plus 
$7.51 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $14,985 plus 
$5.49 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $17,729 plus $5.49 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
"M" Shell 1,000 $5,639 plus 

$51.13 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $7,683 plus 
$40.22 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $9,694 plus 
$21.89 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $11,883 plus 
$6.81 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $13,931 plus 
$4.97 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $16,410 plus $4.97 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
R-1 Shell 1,000 $5,639 plus 

$51.13 
for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

5,000 s.f. 

  5,000 $7,683 plus 
$40.22 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

10,000 s.f. 

  10,000 $9,694 plus 
$21.89 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

20,000 s.f. 

  20,000 $11,883 plus 
$6.81 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

50,000 s.f. 

  50,000 $13,931 plus 
$4.97 

for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof, 
to and including 

100,000 s.f. 

  100,000 $16,410 plus $4.97 for each additional 100 s.f. or fraction thereof 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



   

MISCELLANEOUS PERMIT FEES: 
 

Work Item Unit Permit Fee 
Antenna   
 Radio, <30 ft. each $528  
 Radio, >30 ft. each $858  
 Satellite Dish > 2 ft. each $264  
 Cellular/Mobile Phone, free-standing each $594  
 Cellular/Mobile Phone, attached to building each $462  
Awning/Canopy (supported by building) each $317  
Carport    
 One-Car each $1,122  
 Two-Car each $1,346  
Close Existing Openings    
 Interior wall each $462  
 Exterior wall each $594  
Deck (wood up to 300 s.f.) up to 300 s.f. $686  
 Additional area (each 200 s.f.) each 200 s.f. $145  
Demolition   $475  
 Residential each $264  
 Commercial (up to 4,000 s.f.) each $473  
 Commercial (each add. 4,000 s.f.) each $132  
Door    
 New door (non structural) each $462  
 New door (structural shear wall/masonry) each $594  
Electrical   
 Electrical Generator each $528  
 Fire Alarm wiring each $528  
 Festival wiring (weekend) each $528  
 Festival wiring (weekday) each $198  
 Miscellaneous Electrical  $0  
  1-5 Lights, Switch and/or Receptacles 1 to 5 $198  
  6-10 Lights, Switch and/or Receptacles 6 to 10 $264  
  11-20 Lights, Switch and/or Receptacles 11 to 20 $330  
 Miscellaneous Plan Check each 15 min. $66  
 Miscellaneous Inspection Time each 30 min. $132  
 Photovoltaic Systems <20 kHz 
       >20 kHz 

each 
each 

$330 
$462 

 Rewire (Commercial and Residential) up to 1,500 s.f. $528  
 Each additional 1,000 s.f. each 1,000 l.f. $198  
 Service <400 amp (new, upgrade, temporary, relocate) each $250  
 Service >=400 amp each $432  
 Temporary Power each $275  
Fence or Freestanding Wall (non-masonry)    
 First 100 l.f. up to 100 l.f. $132  
 Each additional 100 l.f. each 100 l.f. $53  

 
 
 

34



   

Fence or Freestanding Wall (masonry)    
 Masonry, Standard (<6 ft. high) up to 100 l.f. $462 
  Each additional 100 l.f. each 100 l.f. $158  
 Masonry, Standard (6-8 ft. high)  $594 
  Each additional 100 l.f. each 100 l.f. $317  
 Masonry, Special Design (>10' high) up to 100 l.f. $726 
  Each additional 100 l.f. each 100 l.f. $396  
Fire Alarm Wiring each $528  
Fire Sprinkler System each $66  
Fireplace   
 Masonry each $660 
 Pre-Fabricated / Metal each $330  
Garage (detached residential)    
 Up to 500 s.f. each $1,769  
 Additional 250 s.f. each $238  
Grading    
 Grading Plan Check (actual) each 15 min. $66  
 Grading Inspection (estimated) each 30 min. $132  
Greenhouse (non-commercial) each $356  
Mechanical    
 Miscellaneous Plan Check each 15 min. $66  
 Miscellaneous Inspection Time each 30 min. $132  
 Furnace    
  New FAU each $343  
  Replace FAU each $264  
  Wall Heater (new or replace) each $330  
 Hood - Commercial each $924  
 Rooftop and Miscellaneous Equipment each $528  
Miscellaneous    
 After-Hours Inspection each $528  
 Inspection Time each 30 min. $132  
 Plan Check Time each 15 min. $66  
 Reinspection Fee each $132  
 Partial Inspection Fee  (each ½ hr) $132 
 Green Plan Check Fee (each ½ hr) $132 
 Green Inspection Fee  (each ½ hr) $132. 
Partition - Commercial, Interior (up to 30 l.f.) up to 30 l.f. $528  
 Additional partition each 30 l.f. $185  
Partition - Residential, Interior (up to 30 l.f.) up to 30 l.f. $396  
 Additional partition each 30 l.f. $79  
Patio Cover (open) up to 300 s.f. $528 
 Additional patio each 300 s.f. $106  
Patio Cover (enclosed) up to 300 s.f. $792  
 Additional enclosed patio each 300 s.f. $158  
Paving & Restriping <3000 s.f. each $330  
Paving & Restriping >3000 s.f. each $528  
Pedestrian Protection (up to 59 l.f.) up to 50 l.f. $528  
 Additional 50 l.f. each 50 l.f. $158  

 

35



   

Plumbing    
 Backwater Valve each $194  
 Gas Line Replacement each $158  
 Grease Trap each $264  
 Grey Water Systems 
  Single Fixture Systems 

each 
each 

$660 
$330  

 Miscellaneous Plan Check each 15 min. $66  
 Miscellaneous Inspection Time each 30 min. $132  
 Sewer Replacement each $238  
 Water Heater each $75  
Stucco Applications up to 400 s.f. $264  
 Additional Stucco Application each 400 s.f. $53  
Retaining Wall (concrete or masonry)    
 Standard (up to 50 l.f.) up to 50 l.f. $594  
  Additional retaining wall each 50 l.f. $198  
 Special Design, 3-10' high (up to 50 l.f.) up to 50 l.f. $792  
  Additional retaining wall each 50 l.f. $264  
 Special Design, over 10' high (up to 50 l.f.) up to 50 l.f. $1,188  
  Additional retaining wall each 50 l.f. $660  
 Gravity / Crib Wall, 0-10' high (up to 50 l.f.) up to 50 l.f. $660  
  Additional Gravity / Crib Wall each 50 l.f. $396  
 Gravity / Crib Wall, over 10' high (up to 50 l.f.) up to 50 l.f. $924  
  Additional Gravity / Crib Wall each 50 l.f. $594  
 Stacked Wall (Allen Block) Up to 100 l.f. $330  
  Additional Stacked Wall (Allen Block) each 100 l.f. $198  
  If Geo-Mesh System is Required per layer mesh $198  
Remodel - Residential    
 Up to 300 s.f. up to 300 s.f. $1,346  
 Kitchen / Bath up to 300 s.f. $1,637  
 Additional remodel each 300 s.f. $396  
Reroofing    
 Over Existing Roof (no pre-roof inspection required) 
 <30SQ 

each 30 SQ 
$264  

  Additional area over 30 SQ each 30 SQ $79  
  Structural work required - (each 30 SQ) each 30 SQ $211  
 Tear Off w/Pre Roof Inspection each 30 SQ $312  
  Additional Area Over 30 SQ each 30 SQ $120  
  Structural Work Required - (each 30 SQ) each 30 SQ $264  
Room Addition    
 Up to 300 s.f. up to 300 s.f. $1,980  
  Additional room addition each 300 s.f. $660  
 Kitchen/Bath Addition up to 150 s.f. $1,980  
  Additional 50 s.f. each 50 s.f. $264  
Siding    
 Stone and Brick Veneer (interior or exterior) up to 400 s.f. $396  
 All Other  up to 400 s.f. $317  
 Additional siding each 400 s.f. $53  

 
 

36



   

Signs (new or replacement)    
 OTC - Ground / Roof / Projecting Signs each $158  
  Add for Footing and/or Electrical   
 Inspection (if required) 

each 
$158  

 Add for Plan Check (if required) each $264  
 Add for Electrical Plan Check (if required) each $132  
Skylight    
 Less than 10 s.f.  each 6 $185  
 Greater than 10 s.f. or structural each 6 $330 
Spa or Hot Tub (pre-fabricated) each $396  
Stairs - First Flight first flight $528  
 Each additional flight per flight $106  
Storage Racks up to 100 l.f. $528  
 Each additional 100 l.f. each 100 l.f. $132  
Swimming Pool / Spa    
 Fiberglass each $792  
 Gunite (up to 800 s.f.) each $1,505  
 Additional pool (over 800 s.f.) each 100 s.f. $396  
 Commercial pool (up to 800 s.f.) each $1,980  
 Commercial pool (over 800 s.f.)  $396  
Window or Sliding Glass Door    
 Replacement  each 7 $198  
 New window (non structural) each 2 $330  
 New window (structural shear wall/masonry) each 2 $264  
 Bay Window (structural) each  $264  
  Additional windows each 7 $53 
 
 
OTHER FEES 
 
1. State Strong Motion Instrument Program fees will be assessed as follows: 
 
 Category 1a (new residential housing 1-3 stories not including hotels and motels): 
  (Total SF) X 90 (SF Value) X 0.0001 = fee amount 
  Minimum Charge $0.50 per permit 
 
 Category 1b (residential housing remodel or alteration 1-3 stories not including hotels and 

motels: 
  (Total SF) X 45 (SF Value) X 0.0001 = fee amount 
  Minimum Charge $0.50 per permit 
 

Category 2a (all new buildings/structures other than Category 1): 
  (Total SF) X 90 (SF Value) X 0.00021 = fee amount 

Minimum Charge $0.50 per permit 
 

 Category 2b (all buildings/structures remodels or alterations other than Category 1): 
  (Total SF) X 45 (SF Value) X 0.00021 = fee amount 

Minimum Charge $0.50 per permit 
 
 

37



   

2. Investigation Fees (including building, electrical, plumbing, mechanical, energy, 
accessibility, grading, requested site investigations and any form of investigation not 
specifically stated.) 
 

Investigation fee = 33% of the required permit fee for the project investigated. 
(Minimum charge - one hour) 

 
 
3. Technology Fee 
 Fee covers maintenance and upgrades of software for the permit tracking system. 
 
  Fee:  6% of total permit fee 
 
 
4. Growth Management/General Plan Update Fee 
 
  Fee:  11% of total permit fee 
  (This fee will apply only to projects that create new square footage or the demolition 
and rebuilding of existing square footage.  Projects such as re-roofs, the installation of water 
heaters, child care centers, and 100% affordable housing projects will be exempt.) 
 
 
ARCHIVED PLANS DUPLICATION AND PROCESSING FEES 
 
Fees authorized by the State Health and Safety Code to provide for the processing, retention, and 
storage of duplicating of construction plans by local jurisdictions shall be: 

 
Upon initiation of the duplication process of official plans, which require a certified letter(s) to 
be sent to obtain owner/licensed design professional approval, a processing fee will be 
charged. 
 
1 letter/1-5 plan pages = $132.00 2+ letters/ 1-5 plan pages = $198.00 
1 letter/6-10 plan pages = $198.00 2+ letters/6-10 plan pages = $264.00 
1 letter/11-15 plan pages = $264.00 2+ letters/11-15 plan pages = $330.00 
1 letter/16+ plan pages = $330.00 2+ letters/16+ plan pages = $396.00 
 
Upon initiation of the duplication process of official plans, in which the owner/licensed 
design professional approval is obtained in person, a processing fee will be charged. 
 
1-5 plan pages = $66.00 
6-10 plan pages = $132.00 
11-15 plan = $198.00 
16+ plan pages = $264.00 
 
The cost of duplication of plans shall be at cost at time of pickup. 
 
 

RECORD CERTIFICATION FEE 
 
  1-20 pages = $66.00  
21-40 pages = $132.00 
41–60 pages = $198.00 
61+pages = $264.00 
 
 
 
 

38



   

PLAN STORAGE AND RETENTION OF DOCUMENTS 
 
Fees authorized by the State Health and Safety Code to provide for the processing, retention, and 
storage of duplicating of construction plans by local jurisdictions shall be: 
 
 Upon issuance of each permit, $20.00 shall be assessed for each sheet of record plan. 

 

39



 

 

DANCE PERMIT FEES  
 
On January 29, 2008, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 5445, entitled the 
Dance Permit Ordinance. The Police Department fees for dance applications, 
permits and appeals, pursuant to Chapter 5.20 of the Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code, are non-refundable and shall be as follows: 
 
A.  NEW DANCE PERMITS: 

1. Initial application for dance permit      
   Night Club Permit      $1,200.00 
   Live Entertainment Permit     $1,200.00 
   Limited Dance Permit        $600.00 
 

2. Department of Justice (DOJ) fingerprint, per owner listed on application set by 
DOJ. 

 
B.  RENEWAL OF DANCE PERMIT: 

1. Renewal application  
 Night Club Permit        $400.00 

   Live Entertainment Permit       $200.00 
   Limited Dance Permit (12 days a year)      $100.00 
 

C.  PENALTIES FOR DELINQUENT RENEWALS: 
     1. 25% of renewal fee if paid within 30 days of permit expiration date. 
     2. 50% of renewal fee if paid between 31-60 days of permit expiration date. 
 
D.  APPEALS: 
 1. Appeal to Board of Fire and Police Commissioners    $100.00 
 2. Appeal to City Council        $150.00  
 
 

40



 

DOWNTOWN PARKING FEES 
 

 
For all Downtown lots, except as noted: 

1. First 75-minutes: Free
2. After first 75 minutes, for each following hour or any 

part thereof: $1.50 
3. Lost Ticket Charge, first occurrence. Subsequent 

occurrences will result in billing the registered owner 
$20 plus applicable service charge: 

$5.00/1st occurrence
 

$20.00/subsequent 
occurrence plus service 

charge
4. Service charge - Request for late payment of parking 

fees made at lot exit:  $5 per request
5. Failure to pay fees will result in the billing of a flat fee 

of $20 plus service charge. 
$20.00 plus service 

charge
6. Monthly Parking in City Downtown Parking Lots Nos. 

3, 4,5,  and 8: $140/month
7. Monthly Parking in City Downtown Parking Garages 

Nos. 2, 7 and 9: $140/month
8. Monthly Parking in City Downtown Parking Garage 

Granada Garage (Lot 6) and Lobero Garage (Lot 9), 
Private Level: $150/month

9. Monthly Parking in City Downtown Parking Lot No. 
10: $130/month

10. Monthly Parking in City Downtown Parking Lot Nos. 
11 and 12: $100/month

11. Restricted Monthly Parking in City Downtown Parking 
Lot No. 10: $80/month

12. Restricted Monthly Parking in City Downtown Parking 
Lot No. 2: $90/month

13. Persons with Disabilities who display Disabled 
Parking Placard: 

Free/First 2.5 hrs. $7/max 
per day

14. Collection Surcharge for all charges unpaid after the 
second billing and upon assignment to a collection 
agency: 45% of charge

15. Refuse Enclosure rental: $40/month
16. Multi-day debris bin use and construction staging, per 

space occupied or reserved 24/7(deposit applied 
towards charges): 

$50 deposit
$20/day  $400/month

17. Returned check charge: $10 per occurrence

18. Permit Replacement fee: $20 per occurrence

41



 

19. Parking between the hours of 3:00 a.m. and  
5:00 a.m. in Lots 2 and 10, where posted: $25 per day 

20. Parking in City Carrillo Commuter Parking Lot: $40/month $1.50/day
21. Monthly Parking in City Cota Commuter Parking Lot:     $50/month $1.50/day
22. Quarterly On-Street Carpool Permit Parking Fee: $50 per quarter

23. Annual Residential and Visitor Parking Permit Fee 
Effective January 1, 2010: $20 per permit 

24. Annual Hotel Guest Permit Fee: $50 per set
25. Monthly Parking in City Depot Parking Lot: $100/month
26. Special Amtrak Passenger rate in City Depot Lot: $2/24 hours
27. Quarterly Bike Locker Rental Fee: $25 per quarter
28. Construction Permits – Monthly Permit rate for 

vehicles only 
Monthly Rate determined 

by Lot
29. Flat rate Special Event entrance fee* $5.00 flat rate per event
30. Persons with Disabilities who display  Disabled 

Parking Placard – Flat Rate Special Event Entrance 
Fee* $3.00 flat rate per event

31. 30-day limit for Depot Lot long term parking – 
vehicles subject to towing 

32. Holiday Schedule of 11:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. for Martin 
Luther King Day, Presidents Day, Memorial Day, 4th 
of July, Labor Day 

33. 90-day MTD bus pass for eligible downtown 
employees $55 per pass

 
Downtown Parking Lot charges are effective between the hours of:  
 7:30 a.m. and 9:00 p.m., Sunday through Thursday 
 Friday: 7:30 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. Saturday morning 
 Saturday: 7:30 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. Sunday morning 
 And Thursday of Fiesta 7:30 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. Friday morning. 

 
Downtown Parking Lot charges are suspended on January 1st, Easter Sunday, the 
fourth Thursday in November (Thanksgiving) and December 25th (Christmas).  In 
addition, charges are suspended three hours on the day of the Annual Downtown 
Christmas Parade.  
 
* Special Event as determined by the Public Works Director or designee. 

42



 

DUI RESPONSE FEES 
 
The Driving Under the Influence (DUI) Emergency Response Cost Recovery Program is 
authorized pursuant to Government Code 53150, et seq. 
 
The charges for DUI Emergency Response Cost Recovery shall be as follows: 

a. DUI Arrest – Call For Service $180.00 each 

b. DUI Arrest – Non-Injury Traffic 220.00 each 
Collision (Police) 

c. DUI Arrest – Injury Traffic 270.00 each 
Collision (Police) 

d. DUI Arrest – Traffic Collision 295.00 each 
(Fire and Police) 

e. DUI Arrest – Injury Traffic  345.00 each 
Collision (Fire and Police)  

43



 

FALSE ALARM REGISTRATION FEES AND FINES 
 

The City of Santa Barbara encourages alarm users and alarm companies to 
properly use and maintain the operational effectiveness of alarm systems in order to 
improve the reliability of alarm systems and reduce or eliminate false alarms. 

 
The City of Santa Barbara hereby establishes a service fee for the annual 

registration and renewal of alarm systems and a schedule of penalties for false alarms 
processed by the Police Department 

 
1.  The fees for annual alarm system registration and renewal shall be as follows: 
 
 Annual Alarm Registration (residential and commercial) ......... $40.00 
 Annual Renewal (residential and commercial) ........................... $40.00 

 

2.  The penalties for false alarm violations shall be as follows: 
 

 Registered Alarm Users False Alarm Fines 
 1st and 2nd false alarms .....................................................  No Charge 
 3rd false alarm .................................................................... $55.00 
            4th false alarm .....................................................................  $110.00 
             5th and all subsequent false alarms ....................................  $225.00 

 

 Non-Registered Alarm Users Alarm Fines 
             1st false alarm .....................................................................  $55.00 
             2nd false alarm ....................................................................  $55.00 
             3rd false alarm ....................................................................  $55.00 
             4th false alarm .....................................................................  $110.00 
             5th and all subsequent false alarms ....................................  $225.00 
             Mandatory Alarm Registration .............................................  $40.00 
 
 Late Payment Fee (90 days past due)……………………….. ...... $25.00 
 

44



 

FIRE DEPARTMENT INSPECTION FEES 
 
The California Fire Code and Title 8 of the Municipal Code authorize imposition and 
collection of fees for services rendered by the Fire Department. 
 
Fire Department fees for permit applications, clearances, plan reviews, inspections and 
extraordinary services shall be as follows: 
 
SECTION 1 PERMITS 
Permits for special processes as described in Section 105.6 of Appendix Chapter 1 of 
the 2007 California Fire Code will be issued at the time of the biannual business 
inspection. 

A. 1 permit  $89.00 

B. Additional permits (same location) $50.00 
Note: Except for permits requiring apparatus and personnel stand-by time, 
permits for hazardous material use and storage, and Airport related 
operations. 

 
SECTION 2 FIRE CLEARANCE REQUIRED BY STATE FIRE MARSHAL OR 

COUNTY AGENCY 
  
 State Mandated Pre-inspection Fees 

 Licensed Care Pre-Inspection 25 or less (residents)           $50.00 
 Licensed Care Pre-Inspection 26 or more (residents)         $100.00 
 
Initial Fire Clearance  
1-6 clients No fee State Law      $0 
7-12 clients                 $211.00 

 13 or more clients                $291.00  
 Hospitals $858.00 
 
SECTION 3 PLAN REVIEW/FIELD TEST AND INSPECTIONS 

A. Fire Suppression Systems. 

Hood extinguishing system . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $128.00 
Special Sprinkler System. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $128.00 
 (BBQ, small spray painting areas, dumpsters, etc.).  

 

Sprinkler System NFPA 13, 13R 
Hydraulically calculated system or pipe schedule system (new) 
Small   20-100 Heads: $286.00 plus $2.00 per head 
Medium  101-250 Heads: $286.00 plus $2.00 per head 
Large  251 Heads and up: $286.00 plus $2.00 per head 
Additional system test or inspection $ 86.00 

45



 

Sprinkler Alterations / Tenant Improvement: $78.00 plus $2.00 per head 

Sprinkler system NFPA 13D $171.00 
Spray booths (vehicle) $128.00 
Standpipe system (wet or dry) $171.00 
Underground piping only $331.00                                 

 
B. Fire Detection/Alarm Systems 

Fire Alarm System  $271.00 plus $4.00 per initiating device 
*Additional field test or inspection $89.00. 

C. Construction for New and Addition/Remodel  
 
Residential dwellings and lodging houses (R-3) $128.00  
Apartment Houses (R-1) 

3 -5  units $130.00 
6 - 10 units $210.00 
11 - 15 units $250.00 
16 + units $290.00 

 
Commercial Occupancies 

0 - 2,000 sq ft $171.00 
2,001 - 5,000 sq ft $250.00 
5,001 - 10,000 sq ft $331.00 
10,001 + sq ft $413.00 

 
D. Underground and Above Ground Flammable Liquid Storage Tanks 

Removal $89.00 first tank/ 
 $48.00 each additional tank 
 
Installation $89.00 first tank/ 
 $48.00 each additional tank                                 
 

E. LPG Tanks 
Installation $89.00 per tank 

 
F. Medical Gas Systems $89.00                                 

 
 
SECTION 4 EXTRAORDINARY SERVICES, STANDBY FIRE PERSONNEL AND/OR 

EQUIPMENT 
 

A. Equipment (unmanned): 

Standard fire engine $  95.00 per hour  
Squad vehicle $  63.00 per hour  
Brush patrol $  25.00 per hour  
Staff vehicle $  16.00 per hour  
HazMat vehicle $  63.00 per hour  

46



 

Quint/ladder truck $381.00 per hour 
Emergency communication van $  63.00 per hour  
Rescue  $  32.00 per hour  
Support materials Billed at cost 
 

B. Personnel Costs as per the current Santa Barbara City 
 Salary and Control Resolution, including benefits 
   
 
SECTION 5 FIRE PREVENTION OCCUPANCY FIELD INSPECTION FEES 
 
Cost recovery for field inspections conducted under Section 104 of Appendix Chapter 1 
of the 2007 California Fire Code, maximum fire inspection fees as follows (to be 
collected upon completion of inspection and compliance with the California Fire Code, 
as adopted and amended by the City): 
 

A. Hotels, Motels, and Apartments (R-1 Occupancies)  
3 - 9 units       $  93.00 
10 - 49 units   $137.00 
50 – 99 units   $179.00 
100 + units    $332.00 

 
B. Other Commercial Occupancies 

0 - 2,500 sq. ft.    $  93.00 
2,501 - 5,000 sq. ft.   $137.00 
5,001 - 10,000 sq ft.                      $179.00 
10,000+ sq. ft.                               $223.00 

 
 C.  Licensed Care Inspections 

 1-6 clients No fee per State Law   $0 
 7-12 clients       $211.00 

  13 or more clients      $291.00  
            Hospital                       $858.00 
 
  
SECTION 6 FALSE ALARMS 
 
This fee is based on the number of responses that are required by the fire department 
during a twelve (12) month period. 

First response & second response $0.00 
Third response $193.00 
Fourth response and any subsequent responses $297.00 

 
 
SECTION 7  PUBLIC EDUCATION 
 

Fire Extinguisher Training (5 people minimum) $10.00 per person 
CERT Program (registration fee) $25.00 per person 

47



 

Safety and Evacuation Lecture (planning & review)  $50.00 per hour 
Materials fees (dry chemical extinguisher)  $35.00 each 
 

SECTION 8:  AIRPORT INSPECTION / PERMIT FEES  
 

A. Aircraft Refueling Vehicle – Initial $211.00 per vehicle  
  

B. Aircraft Refueling Vehicle – Renewal $89.00 per vehicle  
 (Quarterly Inspections)  per year  

 
C. Airport Fuel Tank Farms $171.00 per fuel farm 

(Quarterly Inspections)  per year     
 Inspection fees do not include the required Special Permits for the 

vehicles and fuel farms. 
 

D. Aircraft Hangar Inspections (Annual Inspections within AOA) 
 Group I Hangars $273.00  
 Group II Hangars $171.00   
 Group III Hangars $171.00  

 
 
SECTION 9: HAZARDOUS MATERIALS BUSINESS PLAN INSPECTIONS  

 
 Group 1 

 
Group 2 Group 3 Group 4 

Fee Amount 
 

$57.00 $114.00 $171.00 $228.00 

 
Each group number corresponds to the maximum review and inspection time allowed 
as described below: 
 

Group 1 
Quantity Range 1 = 1 hour maximum 
<550 gallons 
<5,000 pounds 
<2,000 cu. ft. 
 
 
Group 2 
Quantity Range 2 = 2 hour maximum 
550 to 2,749 gallons 
5,000 to 24,999 pounds 
2,000 to 9,999 cu. ft.  
 
 

Group 3 
Quantity Range 3  = 3 hour maximum 
2,750 to 5,499 gallons 
25,000 to 49,999 gallons 
10,000 to 19,999 cu. ft.  
 
 
Group 4 
Quantity Range 4 = 4 hour maximum 
5,500 gallons and more 
50,000 pounds and more 
20,000 cu. ft. and more. 
 
 

The fee shown in each Group listed above is a maximum charge for a site within the 
corresponding Quantity Range.  The fee is the maximum charge for a given site based 
upon a $57.00 hourly rate.  The fee spread reflects the level of complexity and hazard of 
various sites resulting from increasing hazardous material inventory. 

48



 

HUMAN RESOURCES TESTING FEES 
 

The City of Santa Barbara tests applicants for City positions.  In some cases, the number 
of applicants for examinations exceeds one hundred, greatly exceeding the number of 
position vacancies.  The costs for conducting exams with greater than one hundred 
applicants are a significant expenditure. 
 
The Assistant City Administrator may establish a charge of $10.00 per applicant for 
examinations where the number of applicants is expected to exceed 100 applicants. 
 
 
 
 

49



 

LIBRARY FEES AND FINES 
 
 
SECTION I. CHARGES - LIBRARY SERVICES 
 
A. Reserved Materials (Holds) $0.50 

For reserving all library materials, including requesting materials owned by 
member libraries of the Black Gold Cooperative Library Systems. 
 

B. Microprints and Photocopies $0.20 
Per sheet or charge billed by the library supplying the materials, whichever 
is greater. 
 

C. Computer printouts. $0.10 per page 
 
D. Unreturned or Lost Materials: 

 
1. Juvenile books $25.00 
2. Adult fiction $35.00 
3. Adult non-fiction $40.00 

(or price marked on pocket, whichever is greater) 
4. Reference $60.00 

(or price marked on pocket, whichever is greater) 
5. Audiocassettes $10.00 per cassette* 
6. Booklets $3.00 
7. Periodicals $8.00 or replacement of issue 
8. Videocassettes $25.00per cassette* 
9. Music CDs $30.00 per disc* 
10. Books on CD $50.00 per set or actual cost 
11. CD Libretto $5.00 
12. DVDs $30.00per disc* 
13. Laptop Computers $900.00 

   
* or cost of entire set if Library is unable to replace individual item. 
 

E. Damaged Materials.  A charge may be imposed for library owned materials 
commensurate with the damages as determined by the Library Director or the 
Director’s designee  If replacement of the damaged item is required, lost materials 
fees will apply. 

F. Replacement of Library Card.  One dollar ($1.00) for each replacement of lost, 
stolen or damaged library card. 

 
G. Interlibrary Loan Materials.  Fifteen dollars ($15.00) for requesting material through 

interlibrary borrowing from outside the Black Gold Cooperative Library System.  
Fees for overdue, damaged, or lost material will be as charged by the lending 
institution. 

 

50



 

H. Obituaries. Fifteen-dollar ($15.00) charge for researching obituaries. 
 
I. Headphones. A charge of one dollar ($1.00) for headphones. 
 
J. Floppy discs and writable blank CDs. A charge of forty cents ($.40) for floppy discs 

and writable blank CDs. 
 
SECTION II. CHARGES FOR MEETING ROOM/EXHIBIT SPACE 
 
A. Meeting rooms use by non-profit organizations: 
 

Meeting Room 
Initial 3-Hour 
Period 

Each Additional 
Hour 

Central Library 
Faulkner Gallery 

 
$100.00 

 
$35.00 
 

Central Library 
Faulkner Gallery East or West 

 
$30.00 

 
$15.00 
 

Central Library Front Plaza 
Area 

 
$200.00 

 
$50.00 

Goleta Branch Library 
Multipurpose Room 

 
$50.00 

 
$15.00 

Goleta Branch Library 
Conference Room 

 
$20.00 

 
$15.00 

Eastside Branch Library 
Martin Luther King Wing 

 
$50.00 

 
$15.00 

Carpinteria Branch Library 
Multipurpose Room 

 
$40.00 

 
$15.00 

 
 

51



 

B. Meeting rooms use by for-profit organizations: 
 

Meeting Room Initial 3-Hour 
Period 

Each Additional 
Hour 

Central Library 
Faulkner Gallery 

 
$225.00 

 
$75.00 

Central Library 
Faulkner Gallery East or West 

 
$35.00 

 
$15.00 

Central LibraryFront Plaza Area  
$350.00 

 
$100.00 

Goleta Branch Library 
Multipurpose Room 

 
$125.00 

 
$50.00 

Goleta Branch Library 
Conference Room 

 
$30.00 

 
$20.00 

Eastside Branch Library 
Martin Luther King Wing 

 
$125.00 

 
$50.00 

Carpinteria Branch Library 
Multipurpose Room 

 
$50.00 

 
$20.00 

 
 
C. Additional Charges for Use of Refreshments in Library Meeting Rooms: 

 
1. Central Library/Faulkner Gallery — $75.00 per event. 
 
2. Central Library/Faulkner Gallery East and Faulkner Gallery West — $30.00 

per event. 
 
 

D. Charges for Use of Exhibit Space: 
 

1. Central Library/Faulkner Gallery —$450.00 per month. 
 
2. Central Library/Faulkner Gallery East or Faulkner Gallery West —$125.00 per 

month. 
 

 3.   Goleta Branch Library/Multipurpose Room — $200.00 per month. 
 

 
 
At the discretion of the Library Director, the above fees may be waived for City and 
County governmental agencies, and for those activities which are endorsed or provided 
as a part of the Library program. 

52



 

 
SECTION III.   EXTENDED USE FEES 
 
A. The following schedule of fees shall apply to all books and other materials which are 

not returned on or before the due date: 
 

Material Category  Daily Rate/Maximum 
1. Adult books and 

Audiocassettes 
 

 $0.25/$8.00 

2. Juvenile books  $0.25/$8.00 
3. Periodicals   $0.25/$8.00 
4. Reference materials   $0.25/$8.00 
5. Interlibrary loan 

Materials 
  $2.00/$24.00 or charges billed by 

lending institution, whichever is 
greater 

6. Videocassettes  $0.25/$8.00 
7. Compact discs   $0.25/$8.00 
8. DVDs 
9. Laptop Computers 
 

 $1.00 / $8.00 
$2.00 / 15 minutes with no maximum 

 
 
B. Extended use fees begin accumulating on the day following the due date (except for 

laptop computers) and accrue for each succeeding day including weekends and 
holidays. 

 
 
C. Suspension of Library Privileges.  Patrons accumulating charges of ten dollars 

($10.00) or more may have library privileges suspended until such time as full 
payment is received. 

 
 
D. Materials Not Subject To Extended Use Fees.  No overdue fees shall be imposed for 

un-catalogued paperbacks or pamphlets. 
 
 
E. Waivers.  The extended use fees provided herein may be waived by the Library 

Director if it is determined that the patron’s failure to return the library materials is 
due to exceptional circumstances over which the patron had no control. 

 

53



 
 

PARADE AND SPECIAL EVENTS FEES 
 

The City of Santa Barbara Police Department issues permits for parades, athletic 
events and other events authorized pursuant to Section 9.12 of the Municipal Code. 
 
 
The charges for the event permit and late filing fee shall be as follows: 
 

a.  Special Event Permit Fee      $60.00 
b.  Late Filing Fee       $50.00  

 
 
The charges for Police Security Reimbursement shall be as follows: 
 

a.  Police Sergeant   $85.00 per hour 
b.  Police Officer   $69.00 per hour 
c.  Parking Enforcement Officer $35.00 per hour 
d.  Police Vehicle   $20.00 per hour 
e.  Police Motorcycle   $15.00 per hour 
 

54



 

PARATRANSIT SERVICE FEES 
 
Fees processed by the City of Santa Barbara Police Department for paratransit 
service applications, permits and appeals pursuant to Chapter 5.29 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code are non-refundable and shall be as follows: 
 
A.  OWNER PERMITS: 

1. Initial application for a taxicab or other paratransit service $520.00 
2. Renewal application       $400.00 
3. Each background investigation conducted for an owner’s 

permit application       $  40.00 
4.  Replacement permit, document only    $  10.00 
5.  Change of Address, document only    $  10.00 
 

B.  VEHICLE PERMITS: 
1.  Initial permits for taxicab or limousine taxi, for each vehicle $  50.00 
2.  Renewal permit for taxicab or limousine taxi,  
 for each vehicle       $  25.00 
3.  Replacement permit, document only    $  10.00 
 

C.  DRIVERS’ PERMITS: 
 1.  Initial application       $172.00 
 2.  Renewal application for permit     $100.00 
 3.  Replacement permit, document only    $  10.00 
 
D.  APPEALS: 
 1.  Appeal of Board of Fire and Police Commissioners  $100.00 
 2.  Appeal to City Council      $150.00 

55



 

PARKING VIOLATION PENALTIES AND RELATED FEES 
Assembly Bill 408, effective July 1, 1993, amended the California Vehicle Code to 
decriminalize parking tickets and to eliminate criminal court procedures for the 
enforcement of such violations, such that the issuance, collection and enforcement of 
parking or standing vehicle violations became a civil matter under the California Vehicle 
Code.   
 
Section 40203.5 (a) of the Vehicle Code requires the City Council to establish a 
schedule of parking penalties for parking violations, late payment penalties, 
administrative fees, and other related charges for parking violations.  It is the intent of 
the City of Santa Barbara that the penalties established herein shall reflect a reasonable 
and good faith effort to establish appropriate penalties. 

 
Municipal Code Description Penalty 
10.12.150(a) Miscellaneous traffic control device $ 50  
10.12.150(b)          Failure to obey posted sign 45 
10.36.020 Vehicle parked advertising  45 
10.40.090 No vehicle/motorcycle on beach 45 
10.44.020 Prohibited parking 50 
10.44.030 Emergency no parking 45 
10.44.032 Temp no parking street work 45 
10.44.034 Temp no parking sewer work 45 
10.44.040 Displaying vehicle for sale 45 
10.44.050 Broken down/wrecked vehicle 45 
10.44.055 Operate vehicle on private prop 45 
10.44.060 Street storage of vehicle 75 
10.44.070 Park near Police/Fire station 45 
10.44.080 Standing in parkways 45 
10.44.090 Prohibited private property 45 
10.44.100 Trains not to block street 45 
10.44.110 Angle parking only 45 
10.22.120 Parking parallel with curb 45 
10.44.130 Parking on hills 45 
10.44.140 Parking in intersection 45 
10.44.150 Parking space markings 45 
10.44.151 Municipal lot, traffic regulations 45 
10.44.152 Municipal lot, parking regulations 45 
10.44.160 Preferential parking 45 
10.44.200 Unlawful parking on trailers 45 
10.44.205 Parking restrictions for recreational vehicles 45 
10.44.210 Used for transporting property 45 
10.44.220 Vendor unlawful parking 45 
10.44.230 Parking permit required 45 
10.44.240 No sales from vehicle 45 
10.44.250 Bus parking only 45 

56



 

10.44.260 Curb markings 45 
Municipal Code Description Penalty 
10.44.270 No bus parking $ 45 
10.46.060 Parking permit required  45 
10.46.062 Permit required 45 
10.46.020 Over parking time limit 45 
10.48.021 Chalk removal/move in block 50 
10.48.040(a)(1) Red zone no stopping, parking 55 
10.48.040(a)(2) Yellow zone commercial vehicle 50 
10.48.040(a)(3) White zone passenger loading 45 
10.48.040(a)(4) Green zone 15 minute limit 45 
10.48.050 Permission to load 45 
10.48.060 Loading/unloading only 45 
10.48.070 Standing in passenger loading 45 
10.48.080 Standing in alley   45 
10.48.085 Repair vehicle in street   45 
10.48.090 Bus zones        45 
10.48.095 Bus idling over 3 minutes   45 
10.48.100 Taxi zone   45 
10.48.120 Taxi stands   45 
10.48.130 Taxicab parking   45 
10.48.140 Special event parking   45 
15.16.080   Recreational Vehicles-Unlawful Areas to Use    45 
17.36.020 Parking for Certain Uses Prohibited 45 
17.36.80 Oversize Vehicles in Waterfront Lots   45 
17.36.90 Oversize Vehicles in Designated Lots   45 
17.36.100 Personal Property in Parking Stalls   45 
18.28.030(a) Payment parking   45 
18.28.030(b) Abandoned vehicle 120 
18.28.030(c) No parking sign/curb   45 
18.28.030(d) Within 15’ of fire hydrant   55 
18.28.030(e) No parking tie down area   45 
18.28.030(f) Designated parking   45 
 
Vehicle Code Description Penalty 
21113(a) No permit displayed  45 
21113(c) Not in marked stall   45 
21458(a) No parking red zone   55 
21458(b) Loading zone   50 
21461 Disobey sign or signal   45 
22500 Prohibited parking, stopping   45 
22500.1 Parking in fire lane   55 
22500(a) Parking within intersection   45 
22500(b) Parking in crosswalk   45 
22500(c) Safety zone   45 
22500(d) Fire Station driveway   55 

57



 

 
Vehicle Code Description Penalty 
22500(e) Park in public/private drive   $ 45 
22500(f) Parking on sidewalk   45 
22500(g) Parking obstructing traffic   45 
22500(h) Double parking   45 
22500(i) Bus zone   45 
22500(j) Parking in tunnel   45 
22500(k) Parking on bridge   45 
22500(L) Wheelchair access ramp 350 
22502 Tire not 18 inches from curb  45 
225035 No motorcycle/moped parking   45 
22504(a) Parking unincorporated roadway   45 
22505(b) Posted no parking State Hwy   45 
22507.8 Spaces for the Disabled 350 
22514 Within 15 feet of fire hydrant   55 
22515 Stop/motor/set brake   45 
22516 Person locked in vehicle   55 
22517 Open door into traffic   60 
22520 Freeway, non-emergency stop   45 
22521 Park on/near railroad tracks   60 
22522 Parking near sidewalk Hdcp ramp 350 
22523 Abandoned vehicle 120 
22526 Intersection gridlock   65 
22651 Obstructing traffic   45 
27155 No fuel cap   45 
4000.4(a) Calif. Registration required 165 
4000(a) Unregistered vehicle 165 
5200 Display license plates   45 
5201 Position of plates       45 
5201(f) License plate cover 45 
5204(a) Display license tabs   75 
 
 
Fees 
Late fee (payment received after due date) Double basic penalty  
 (as listed above) 
Administrative dismissal fee $25 
Citation copy fee $1 
On-line Credit Card Convenience Fee        $1.50 

58



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Santa Barbara 
Parks and Recreation Department 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

2010 – 2011 
Programs and Services Guide 

& 
Schedule of Fees and Charges 

 
 

59



Page

61

63

64

66

67

68

72

73

79

80

81

82

84

85

86

87

88
 

City of Santa Barbara
Parks and Recreation Department

FY 2010 - 2011
SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Active Adults and Classes

Adapted Recreation

Resolution No. 09-089  Fees and Charges

The City Administrator or the Administrator's designee is authorized to make upward or 

downward adjustments in fees and charges set by this resolution to accommodate fluctuation in 

program costs and demand and to allow for flexibility in providing programs and services.  This 

authorization does not apply to golf fees, tennis fees, or Arts and Craft Show permit fees.

Fees for new programs and services established during the course of the fiscal year, if not 
consistent with existing comparable program fees, shall require City Council approval.

PROGRAMS

Outdoor Rental Facilities Fees and Charges

Indoor Facility Rentals Fees and Charges

Miscellaneous

Aquatics

Cultural Arts

Golf Fees

Outdoor Sports Facilities

Teen Programs

Tennis

Youth and Adult Sports 

Youth Activities

RULES AND REGULATIONS

(Special Events, Photography/Filming)

Rules and Regulations for Tennis Program Permits

Rules and Regulations for Community Centers Leases

City Employee Discount Rates

Indoor and Outdoor Facility Rentals Policies

60



ACTIVE ADULTS AND CLASSES    Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location Age 
Level 

Registration 
Min/Max 

Session 
Length 

Activity 
Length 

-       2010 – 2011  
Fee or Charge 

-        2010 – 2011  
Fee or Charge 

Ballroom  
Dances 

Carrillo 
Recreation 
Center 

All 1/250 Weekly 7 hrs $15/adults 
$12/students & 
seniors 
$9 after 9PM 
 

$15/adults 
$12/students & 
seniors 
$9 after 9PM 
 

Bridge -  
Duplicate 

Louise Lowry 
Davis Center 

50+ 8/60 3 times 
Weekly 

3 hrs/day 
3 days/week 

$0.50/game 
/member 

$0.50/game 
/member 

Bridge -  
Party Pairs 

Louise Lowry 
Davis Center 

50+ 8/60 Weekly 3 hrs/day 
1 day/week 

$0.50/game 
/member 

$0.50/game 
/member 

Ballroom  
Tea Dances 

Carrillo 
Rec.Center 

50+ 1/100 Monthly 3 hrs No Charge 
 

No Charge 

Hard of Hearing 
Support Group 

Louise Lowry 
Davis Ctr 

50+ 2/12 Monthly 2 hrs No Charge No Charge 

Knit & Crochet Louise Lowry 
Davis Ctr 

50+ 8/25 Weekly 2.5 hrs No Charge No Charge 

Language  
Study Group 

Louise Lowry 
Davis Ctr 

50+ 2/12 Weekly 2.5 hrs No Charge/ 
Member Only 

No Charge/ 
Member Only 

Active Adults  
Membership 

Varies 50+ N/A Calendar 
Year 

Varies $41/single 
$62/family 

$45/single 
$68/family 

Potluck  
Luncheon 

Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

50+ 2/40 Monthly 1 day/month  No Charge No Charge 

Porcelain  
Painting 

Louise Lowry 
Davis Ctr. 

50+ 8/60 Weekly 2.5 hrs No Charge No Charge 

Scrabble Louise Lowry 
Davis Ctr. 

50+ 2/12 Weekly 2 hrs No Charge No Charge 

Stretch &  
Tone 

Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

50+ 10/100 Weekly 1 hr/day 
3 days/week 

No Charge/ 
Member Only 

No Charge/ 
Member Only 

Table Tennis Carrillo St. Gym All 2/12 Weekly 2-3 hrs/day 
3 days/week 

No Charge/ 
Member Only 

No Charge/ 
Member Only 

Yoga & Tai Chi Louise Lowry 
Davis Ctr. 

50+ 1/15 Weekly 1 hr No Charge No Charge 

Argentine Tango 
(Levels 1, 2, and 3 
plus Technique 
classes) 

Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

Ballet- Adult Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/20 6 classes 45 minutes -  
1 hr. 45 
minutes 

$67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

American Rhythm, 
Latin & International  
Standard Ballroom 
Dance lessons 

Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

Coached Dance 
Practice 

Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open 1 class 1 hr/class $10/class $11/class 

Polynesian and Hula 
Dance 

Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $50/session 
$10/drop-in 

$55/session 
$12/drop-in 

61



ACTIVE ADULTS AND CLASSES    Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location Age 
Level 

Registration 
Min/Max 

Session 
Length 

Activity 
Length 

-       2010 – 2011  
Fee or Charge 

-        2010 – 2011  
Fee or Charge 

Hoopdance Carrillo St. Gym 18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

Country 2-Step (beg 
& int) 

MacKenzie Adult 
Building 

18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

Country Line Dance MacKenzie Adult 
Building 

18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $33/session 
$8/drop-in 

$36/session 
$9/drop-in 

Dog Obedience   
(Manners) 

MacKenzie Park 18+ 10/15 3  classes 1 hr/class $73/session $80/session 

Dog Obedience  
(Obedience) 

MacKenzie Park 18+ 10/15 5 classes 1 hr/class $84/session $92/session 

Folk Dance (evening) 
 

Oak Park Stage 18+ 4/open 6 classes 1.5 hr/class $50/session 
$10/drop-in 

$55/session 
$12/drop-in 

Folk Dance (day) 
 

Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open Weekly 1.5 hr/class No Charge/ 
Member Only 

No Charge/ 
Member Only 

Salsa (beginning & 
Intermediate) 

Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open 6 classes  1 hr/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

Adult Flamenco (intro 
and beg/int) 

Flamenco Ole’ 
Dance Studio 

18+ 4/open 6 classes  1 hr/class $82/session 
$15/drop-in 

$93/session 
$17/drop-in 

Youth Flamenco 
(ages 3-5, 5-8 & 9-
11) 

Flamenco Ole’ 
Dance Studio 

3-11 4/open 6 classes  1 hr/class $72/session 
$14/drop-in 

$79/session 
$15/drop-in 

Yoga  Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

Pilates Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open 6 classes 50 min/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

Hip Hop Dance Carrillo Rec. 
Center 

18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

Belly Dance Carrillo St. Gym 18+ 4/open 6 classes 1 hr/class $60/session 
$12/drop-in 

$66/session 
$14/drop-in 

Children's Ballet 
(ages 3-5 & 6-10) 

MacKenzie Adult 
Building 

3-10 4/open 6 classes 1hr/class $57/session 
$12/drop-in 

$63/session 
$14/drop-in 

Art from the Heart Varies 1-8 plus 
seniors 

4/open Varies Varies Varies Varies 

Foamroller Fitness MacKenzie Adult 
Building 

18+ 4/25 6 weeks 1hr/class $67/session 
$12/drop-in 

$74/session 
$14/drop-in 

 

62



ADAPTED RECREATION    Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location Age 
Level 

Registration 
Min/Max 

Session 
Length 

Activity 
Length 

   2010 – 2011  
Fee or Charge 

   2010 – 2011  
Fee or Charge 

BlazeSports Carrillo Gym,  
and dance 
studios 

18+ 5/10 Seasonal 2 -6 hrs Varies Varies 

Bowling & 
Bowling 
Tournaments 

Zodo's Bowl 8+ 10/Open Seasonal Varies $15 
Fee with lunch 
$20-23 tournaments 

$15 
Fee with lunch 
$20-23 tournaments 

Dances Carrillo 
Recreation 
Center 

10+ 10/Open 2 per year 2 hrs $6/person $6/person 

Excursions Varies 8+ 10/45 2 per year Varies Direct costs -  
$21 min. 

Direct costs -  
$25 min. 

Inclusion 
(after school, 
camps) 

Varies 5+ Open Year Round Varies No Additional 
Charge 

No Additional 
Charge 

Special Events Varies All Open Seasonal 
Year Round 

Varies Varies Varies 

 

63



 

AQUATICS    Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location Age 
Level 

Registration 
Min/Max 

Session 
Length 

Activity 
Length 

    2010 – 2011  
Fee or Charge 

  2010 - 2011    
Fee or 
Charge 

Adult Lap Swim & 
Bathhouse Combo 
Pass 

Los Baños Pool & 
Cabrillo Bathhouse 

18+ 
 

Sr. = 
60+ 

None Year 
Round 

2-4 hrs/day 
(varies 

seasonally) 

$5/day  
$35/ 10 visit 
card 
$27/Senior  10 
visit card 
$51/month 
pass - Adult 
$35/month 
pass - Senior 

$6/day  
$39/ 10 visit 
card 
$30/Senior  
10 visit card 
$56/month 
pass - Adult 
$39/month 
pass - Senior 

Aquacamp Various 6-10 20/35 2 weeks 9am-4pm 
Mon - Fri 

$296/ session  $326/ 
session 

Bathhouse Facilities 
(Entry Fees) 

Cabrillo Bathhouse  All None Year 
Round 

8am - 5pm / 
Weekdays  

11am - 4pm / 
Weekends 

$4/day  
$30 / 10 visit 
card 
$22/Senior  10 
visit card 
$46/month 
pass-Adult 
$33/month 
pass - Senior 

$4/day  
$33/ 10 visit 
card 
$24/Senior  
10 visit card 
$51/month 
pass-Adult 
$36/month 
pass - Senior 

Bathhouse 
Lockers 

Cabrillo Bathhouse  All None Year 
Round 

8am - 5pm / 
Weekdays  

11am - 4pm / 
Weekends 

$14/month   $15/month 

Bathhouse 
Stall Lockers 

Cabrillo Bathhouse  All None Year 
Round 

8am - 5pm / 
Weekdays  

11am - 4pm / 
Weekends 

$30/month $33/month 

Beach 4x4 
Truck Rental 
(Special Events) 

City Beaches N/A None Year 
Round 

Daily $90/day $100/day 

Beach Lifeguard 
Services or Driver 
(Special Events)   

City Beaches N/A None Off-
Season 

Hourly $27/hour $30/hour 

Beach Volleyball 
Clinic 

East Beach 
Volleyball Courts   

9-17 20/80 5 days 3 hrs/day $115/ session  $127/ session 

Beach Volleyball 
Classes 

East Beach 
Volleyball Courts   

16+ 16/80 4 weeks 2 hrs - 2 days/wk $65/session $72/session 

Junior Lifeguard  
Recruit Week 

East Beach & 
Bathhouse 

9-17 10/50 5 days 2 hrs/day $75/session $83/session 

Junior Lifeguard 
Program 

Various 9-17 60/280 7 weeks 3 1/2 hrs/day 
5 days/week 

$350/ session  $385/ session 

Lifeguard Review 
Challenge Course 

Los Baños Pool 15+ 1/5 4 days 12 hrs/session $50/session $55/session 

Lifeguard  
Training 

Los Banos Pool 15+ 6/20 9 days 3 hrs/day $100/session $110/session 

Outrigger  
Paddling 

Westside of Stearns 
Wharf 

8-14 None 1 week 3hrs/day $135/ session 
- 1 wk 

$149/ session 
- 1 wk 

Pool Lifeguard 
(Special Events) 

City Pools N/A None Year 
Round 

Hourly $22/hour $24/hour 

64



 

AQUATICS    Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location Age 
Level 

Registration 
Min/Max 

Session 
Length 

Activity 
Length 

    2010 – 2011  
Fee or Charge 

  2010 - 2011    
Fee or 
Charge 

Pool Lockers Los Baños Pool All None Monthly Facility hours 
vary 

$9/month - 
small    
$11/month - 
large 

$10/month - 
small    
$12/month - 
large 

Recreation Swim Los Baños Pool All None Summer N/A $4/Adult  
$1/Child 

$5/Adult 
$1/Child 

Recreation Swim Ortega Park Pool 13 & 
under 

None May - 
Sep 

N/A No Charge No Charge 

Recreation Swim West Beach & Oak 
Park Wading Pools 

7 & 
under 

None May - 
Sep 

N/A No Charge No Charge 

Semana Nautica – 
Ocean Swim Events 

East Beach 10+ Open June-
July 

N/A $20 $20 

Swim Lessons -  
Private 

Los Baños & Ortega 
Park Pools 

All Individual Varies 8 x 15 min. 
classes 

$100/session $110/session 

Swim Lessons -  
Group 

Los Baños & Ortega 
Park Pools 

4-15 Varies 2 weeks 30-45 min. 
5 days/week 

$54/session $59/session 

Swim Lessons -  
Infant & Pre-School 
Aquatics 

Ortega Park Pool 6 mos.- 
3 yrs. 

4/12 5 weeks 10 x 30 min. 
classes 

$54/session $59/session 

Water Safety  
Instructor 

Los Baños Pool 16+ 10/30 12 days 3 hrs/day $115/ session $127/ session 

Community First Aid 
and Safety 

Cabrillo 
Bathhouse  

n/a 1/6 2 days 4hrs/day $36/session $40/session 

Junior Lifeguards 
Nipper Program 

East Beach 7 – 13 
yrs 

20 / 80 2 weeks 3 ½  hrs/day 
5 days/week 

$150/ session  $165/ session 

Camp Radical East Beach 7 – 13 
yrs 

12 / 24  1 week 6 hrs/day 
5 days/week 

$275/ session  $303/ session 

Advanced Beach 
Volleyball (AAA) 

East Beach 
Volleyball Courts 

14 – 13 
yrs 

8 / 16  1 week 3 hrs/day 
5 days/week 

$135 session  $149 session  

 

65



 

 

CULTURAL ARTS    Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location Age 
Level Registration   Min/Max Session Length Activity 

Length 
 2010 – 2011  

Fee or Charge 
 2010 - 2011 

Fee or Charge 

Arts and Crafts 
Show  
Permit Fee 

Chase Palm 
Park 

All 280 Year Round Each Sun. + 
10 Sat. 
Holidays 

N/A $249 new 
member fee for 6 
months 
$498/1 year 

Arts and Crafts 
Show 
Advertising 
Fee 

Chase Palm 
Park 

All 280 Year Round Each Sun. + 
10 Sat. 
Holidays 

N/A $10/6 months 
$20/12 months 

Children's 
Ceramics  

Chase Palm 
Park 

5-18 5/15 Varies 1.5 hrs.  
1 night/ month 

$11.50 per 
class hour 

$12.50 per 
class hour 

Ceramics – 
Group lesson 

Chase Palm 
Park 

All 5/10 Varies Varies $35 per hour   $38 per hour     

Children's 
Fiesta  
Parade 

State Street 3-16 1,000/3,000 Aug (1 day) 2 hrs No charge No charge 

Concerts in the 
Park 

Alameda Park  
Chase Palm 
Park 

All Open Jun - Aug 2 hr/week No charge No charge 

Monthly Art  
Exhibit Sales 

Cabrillo 
Pavilion  
Arts Center 

All N/A Year Round 1 month 30% of  
gross sales 

30% of  
gross sales 

Monthly Art  
Exhibit Fee 

Cabrillo 
Pavilion Arts 
Center 

N/A N/A Monthly 1 month $150 $150 

66



 

GOLF   
 

 

Category Description Age 
Level 

Weekday (M-F) 
 2010 – 2011          

Fee or Charge 

Weekend (S,S) and 
Holiday 

    2010 - 2011           
Fee or Charge 

Discount 
Eligibility County Resident 18+ $25 $25 

 
Annual Frequent User Discount  (Allows 
$5.00 discount for 18 holes $3.00 discount for 
9 holes and Twilight) 

18+ $85 $85 

 City Employee Discount ($5.00 off any green 
fee) 18+   

Senior 
Groups 

Senior Weekday Group Surcharge for each 
player each time they play 65+ $1 N/A 

County 
Resident 9 Holes (Adult & Senior) (resident) 18+ $20 $21 

 Sunrise back 9 18+ N/A $21 

 9 Holes & 18 Holes (Junior) 17 & under $15 $18 

 9 Holes and 18 Holes - Student 18+ Resident Rate Resident Rate 

 18 Holes (Adult) 18-64 $30 $34 

 18 Holes (Senior) 65+ $25 $34 

 Twilight (ALL) * All $20 $20 

 Super Twilight All 50% off 50% off 

 Re-Play Rate All 50% off 50% off 

Non-Resident     

 Sunrise back 9 (non-resident) 18+ N/A $32 

 9 Holes 18+ $26 $27 

 18 Holes 18+ $40 $50 

 Twilight * 18+ $27 $30 

 9 Holes & 18 Holes (Junior) 17 & under $15 $18 

 Super Twilight All 50% off 50% off 

 Re-Play Rate All 50% off 50% off 

Tournaments Tournament Rate  ** All $33 $38 

 Shotgun Tournaments All  $500 

Junior Golf 
Camp 

Summer Golf Camp for Youth (4 sessions – 
Monday-Friday – 8 am to Noon)  8 - 15 $150 $150 

Junior Golf Russ Morrison Junior Golf Program (annual 
fee) 7 - 17 $75 $75 

 
*      Twilight Time:  Second Sunday in March through First Saturday in November:  2:00 PM; First Sunday in November through Second 

Saturday in March:  12:00 PM 
**     Tournament rate applies to all tournament groups except for Park and Recreation Commission authorized Home Club groups.  

67



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDOOR FACILITIES Fee w/RDC Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC Fee w/o RDC 

INDOOR FACILITY Area 
Capacity 
Seating 
/Area 

      2010-2011       
Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

      2010-2011       
Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

      2010-2011 
Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

      2010-2011       
Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

Cabrillo Pavilion 
Arts Center 
1118 E. Cabrillo 

Fee includes 
rental of:  
Main Room, 
Patios & 
Kitchen.  In 
addition, the 
Conference 
Room 

200/250 
Conf. Rm. 

22 

$116/hr Mon-Thurs 
$$1,515/8 hr day 
Fri-Sun, holiday 
Over 8 hrs: 
$150/hr. 
(Initial $300 room 
fee is non- 
refundable) 
 
Conference Room: 
NC - (0 - 2 hrs.) 
$15/hr (3+ hrs.)    

$156/hr Mon-Thurs 
$2,061/8 hr day Fri-
Sun, holiday 
Over 8 hrs: 
$205/hr. 
(Initial $300 room 
fee is non- 
refundable) 
 
Conference Room: 
NC - (0 - 2 hrs.)  
$21/hr (3+ hrs.) 
$147/day 
 

$139/hr Mon-Thurs 
$1,818/8 hr day Fri-
Sun, holiday 
Over 8 hrs: 
$180/hr. 
(Initial $300 room 
fee is non- 
refundable) 
 
Conference Room: 
NC - (0 - 2 hrs.) 
$18/hr (3+ hrs.)    
 

$187/hr Mon-Thurs 
$2,473/8 hr day Fri-
Sun, holiday 
Over 8 hrs: 
$246/hr. 
(Initial $300 room 
fee is non- 
refundable) 
 
Conference Room: 
NC - (0 - 2 hrs.) 
$25/hr (3+ hrs.) 
$176/day   
 

Carrillo St. Gym 
100 E. Carrillo 

Main Court 
only 

0/100 $38/hr. $40/hr.  $46/hr.  $48/hr. 

Carrillo Recreation 
Center 
100 E. Carrillo 
Prime Time hours 
(defined as 
Monday through 
Friday  5 pm to 10 
pm and all 
weekend hours) 

Dance Studio 
1 & 2 
Meeting Room 
Baylor Room 
Ballroom & 
Stage 

 
n/a/60 
45/45 
75/75 

260/550 

 
$34/hr. 
$34/hr. 
$34/hr. 
$61/hr. 

 
$42/hr. 
$42/hr. 
$42/hr. 
$76/hr. 

 
$41/hr. 
$41/hr. 
$41/hr. 
$75/hr. 

 
$50/hr. 
$50/hr. 
$50/hr. 
$90/hr. 

Carrillo Recreation 
Center Walk-In 
Use (subject to 
availability at time 
of use) 

Dance Studio 
1 & 2  
Ballroom 
 

 
n/a/60 

260/550 
 
 

 
$16/hr. 
$28/hr. 
 

 
$16/hr. 
$28/hr. 
 

 
$19/hr. 
$34/hr. 
 

 
$19/hr. 
$34/hr. 
 

Casa Las Palmas 
(In Chase Palm 
Park) 
323 E. Cabrillo  

Meeting 
Room, 
Kitchen & 
Patio.  Added 
fees for 
monitor, 
tables, chairs 
& security 
deposit. 

50/75 $48/hr weekdays 
and weekends 
 
(Initial $100 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

$69/hr weekdays 
and weekends 
. 
(Initial $100 room 
fee is non-
refundable)  

$58/hr weekdays 
and weekends 
 
(Initial $100 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

$83/hr weekdays 
and weekends 
 
(Initial $100 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

68



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDOOR FACILITIES Fee w/RDC Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC Fee w/o RDC 

INDOOR FACILITY Area 
Capacity 
Seating 
/Area 

       2010-2011      
Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

         2010-2011     
Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

        2010-2011      
Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

        2010-2011      
Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

Chase Palm Park   
Center 
236 E. Cabrillo 

Meeting Room, 
Kitchen & 
Patio.   Added 
fees for 
monitor, tables, 
chairs & 
security deposit 

96/125 $80/hr Mon-Thurs 
$867/8 hr day Fri-
Sun, holiday 
Over 8 hrs: $87/hr. 
 
(Initial $250 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

$107/hr Mon-Thurs 
$1,163/8 hr day Fri-
Sun, holiday 
Over 8 hrs: 
$117/hr.  
 
(Initial $250 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

$96/hr Mon-Thurs 
$1,040/8 hr day Fri-
Sun, holiday 
Over 8 hrs: $104hr. 
 
(Initial $250 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

$128/hr Mon-Thurs 
$1,396/8 hr day Fri-
Sun, holiday 
Over 8 hrs: 
$140/hr. 
 
(Initial $250 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

Harding Recreation 
Center 
1607 Gillespie 
 
 

Meeting Room 
& Kitchen 

50/70 $18/hr. $32/hr.  $22/hr.  $38/hr. 

Mackenzie Adult 
Building 
3111 State St. 

Meeting Room, 
Kitchen, Patio 
& outside BBQ.  
Added fees for 
monitor & 
security 
deposit. 

70/100 
 

$55/hr. 
 
4-hour rental 
minimum Fri-Sun 

$90/hr. 
 
4-hour rental 
minimum Fri-Sun 

$66/hr. 
 
4-hour rental 
minimum Fri-Sun 

$108/hr. 
 
4-hour rental 
minimum Fri-Sun 

Mackenzie Lawn 
Bowls Clubhouse 
3111 State St. 
(upper lot) 

Meeting Room, 
Kitchen & 
Patio.  Added 
fees for monitor 
& security 
deposit. 

56/66 $45/hr. 
 
 

$70/hr.  $54/hr.  $84/hr. 

Ortega Welcome 
House 
600 E. Ortega St. 

Meeting Room 
& Kitchen. 
Added fees for 
monitor & 
security 
deposit. 

50/70 $45/hr. 
 
4-hour rental 
minimum Fri-Sun 
 

$60/hr.  
 
4-hour rental 
minimum Fri-Sun 
 

$54/hr.  
 
4-hour rental 
minimum Fri-Sun 
 

$72/hr. 
 
4-hour rental 
minimum Fri-Sun 
 

69



 

 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD CENTERS 
 
 

Fee w/RDC 

 
 

Fee w/RDC 

 
 

Fee w/o RDC 
Fee w/o RDC 

 
Neighborhood 

Centers 
Area Capacity 

Min/Max 

                   2010-
2011               

Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

               2010-
2011             

Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

                 
2010-2011        

Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

              2010-
2011             

Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

Davis  
Recreation 
Center 
1232 De la 
Vina 

Lg. Mtg. Rm. + 
Kitchen 
Sm. Mtg. Room 
Game Room  
Weekdays 

98/98 
30/40 
8 - 10 

$47/hr. 
$24/hr. 
$21/hr. 

$79/hr. 
$42/hr. 
$37/hr. 

$56/hr. 
$29/hr. 
$25/hr. 

$95/hr. 
$50/hr. 
$44/hr. 

 Receptions and 
Private parties 
Weekends 
(Fee includes 
monitor, kitchen, 
admin fee, tables, 
and chairs) 

15/150 $625 for 6/hr. block 
$832 for 8/hr. block 
$1,040 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 room 
fee is non-
refundable)  
 

$625 for 6/hr. 
block 
$832 for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,040 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refundable) 

$750 for 6/hr. 
block 
$1,000 for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,248 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refund-able) 

$750 for 6/hr. 
block 
$1,000 for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,248 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refundable) 

Davis Center 
Monthly 
Parking 
Permits 

1232 De la Vina 
St. Parking Lot 
(side lot Anapamu 
Street entrance) 

 $75/mo. Not Available $75/mo Not Available 

Davis Center 
Parking 
Permits 

1232 De la Vina 
St. Parking Lot 

 $37/yearly permit Not Available $44/yearly 
permit 

Not Available 

Franklin  
Neighborhood 
Center 
1136 E. 
Montecito 

MULTI-PURPOSE 
ROOM 
Mon.-Fri. 

15/150 0-2 hrs:  $0 
3rd hr+:  $21/hr 

0-3 hrs: $105/flat 
rate 
4th hr+:  $37/hr. 

0-2 hrs:  $0 
3rd hr+:  $25/hr 

0-3 hrs: $126/flat 
rate  
4th hr+:  $44/hr. 

 CONFERENCE 
ROOM 

5/20 0-2 hrs:   $0 
3rd hr.+:  $17/hr. 

$26/hr. 0-2 hrs:   $13.50 
3rd hr.+:  $20/hr. 

$31/hr. 

 MULTI-PURPOSE 
ROOM 
Weekends 
(Fee includes 
monitor, kitchen, 
admin fee, tables, 
and chairs) 

15/150 $575 for 6/hr. block 
$832 for 8/hr. block 
$1,000 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

$575 for 6/hr. 
block 
$832 for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,000 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refundable) 

$690 for 6/hr. 
block 
$998for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,200 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refundable) 

$690 for 6/hr. 
block 
$998for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,200 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refundable) 

 KITCHEN: 
M-Th after 2 pm, 
Friday between 2 - 
5 pm  

N/A $72/flat rate (does 
not include 
cleaning) 

$72/flat rate 
(does not include 
cleaning) 

$86/flat rate 
(does not include 
cleaning) 

$86/flat rate 
(does not 
include cleaning) 

Teen Center 
Meeting 
Room    

Small Meeting 
Room w/computer, 
internet service, 
television, 
DVD/VCR 

10/25 $18/hr 
 
Available M – Sat 
9 a.m. -1 p.m. 

$32/hr 
 
Available M – 
Sat 
9 a.m. -1 p.m. 

$22/hr 
 
Available M-Sat 
9 a.m.-1 p.m. 

$38/hr 
 
Available M-Sat 
9 a.m.-1 p.m. 

Teen Center 
Living Room 

Large Meeting 
area w/ projection 
screen and 
computer hook ups 
 

10/45 $22/hr $36/hr $26/hr $43/hr 

Teen Center 
Fun rooms: 
Snack area, 
arcade, and 
main room 

Snack bar with full 
refrigerator, 
microwave, sink; 
arcade with 
games, pool table, 
game tables, big 
screen television 
 

10/48 $50/hr 
 
2- hour rental 
minimum; all day 
Saturdays,  
Sundays and 
holidays 

$75/hr 
 
2- hour rental 
minimum; all day 
Saturdays,  
Sundays and 
holidays 

$60/hr 
 
2- hour rental 
minimum; all day 
Saturdays,  
Sundays and 
holidays 

$90/hr 
 
2- hour rental 
minimum; all day 
Saturdays,  
Sundays and 
holidays 

Teen Center 
Recording 
Studio 

1 recording  room 
with recording  
Equipment  

10/15 $45/hr $60/hr $54/hr $72/hr 

70



 

NEIGHBORHOOD CENTERS 
 
 

Fee w/RDC 

 
 

Fee w/RDC 

 
 

Fee w/o RDC 
Fee w/o RDC 

 
Neighborhood 

Centers 
Area Capacity 

Min/Max 

                   2010-
2011               

Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

               2010-
2011             

Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

                 
2010-2011        

Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

              2010-
2011             

Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

Westside  
Community 
Center 
423 W. 
Victoria 

AUDITORIUM 
Monday-Friday 

30/200 0-2 hrs: $0 
3rd hr+: $26/hr 

0-3 hrs: $109/flat 
rate 
4th hr+:   
$38.50/hr. 

0-2 hrs:  $13.50 
3rd hr+:  $31/hr. 

0-3 hrs: $131/flat 
rate 
4th hr+:   $46/hr. 

Westside  
Community 
Center 
423 W. 
Victoria 
(Con’t) 

AUDITORIUM 
Weekends 
(Fee includes 
monitor, kitchen, 
admin fee, tables, 
and chairs) 

30/200 $665 for 6/hr. block 
$1,080 for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,275 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 room 
fee is non-
refundable) 

$665 for 6/hr. 
block 
$1,080 for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,275 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refundable) 

$798 for 6/hr. 
block 
$1,296 for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,530 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refundable) 

$798 for 6/hr. 
block 
$1,296 for 8/hr. 
block 
$1,530 for 10/hr. 
block 
(Initial $200 
room fee is non-
refundable) 

  KITCHEN:  
M-Th after 2 pm, 
Friday between 2-
5 pm 

N/A $114/flat rate 
(does not include 
cleaning) 

$114/flat rate 
(does not include 
cleaning) 

$137/flat rate 
(does not include 
cleaning) 

$137/flat rate 
(does not 
include cleaning) 

 CONFERENCE 
ROOM 

5/20 0-2 hrs:  $0 
3rd hr.+:  $17/hr. 

$26/hr. 0-2 hrs:  $13.50 
3rd hr.+:  $20/hr. 

$31/hr. 

Weekday 
private event 
and Weekend 
Cleaning Fee 
for Westside, 
Franklin, and 
Davis Centers 

 N/A $150 $150 $150 $150 

Monitor Fees  N/A Monitor: $16/hr   Monitor: $16/hr   Monitor: $16/hr   Monitor: $16/hr   
Lease Rates Davis, Westside 

and Franklin 
Centers  

N/A N/A N/A $1.12/sq. ft. N/A 

Community 
Gardens Plot 

N/A N/A $62 annual/plot $62 annual/plot $74 annual/plot $74 annual/plot 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



 

 

 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity 2010 – 2011     
Fee or Charge 

           2010 – 
2011           

Fee or Charge 

Co-sponsored programs only   

Vehicle rental   
Bus  Per hour - three hour minimum $35 $35 
Bus  One day - local $300 $300 
Bus  One day - 100 mile radius $350 $350 
Van One day - local $150 $150 
Van One day - 100 mile radius $200 $200 

Camp Transfer Fee Fee assessed to transfer from 
one camp to another $15 $15 

Copy Fee Per Page 20 cents 20 cents 

Tree Removal Application Fee $50 $50 

72



 

OUTDOOR RENTAL FACILITIES 
The following fee table provides general categories of events and pricing for events held in City parks.  Although specific events may 
vary slightly within a designated category, the description is intended to provide a guide for categorizing events property.   

Category Level Description 
Applicants          

w/RDC 
2009-2010 

Applicants 
 w/o RDC 
2009-2010 

PICNICS 
Individual and 
Group Picnic 

Sites 

P1 Group picnic sites with area capacity of 1 - 40 and one standard sized 
bounce house in allowed locations.  Sites includes Alameda Park 
Castle and Whale, Chase Palm Park Picnic 1 and 2, East Beach Picnic 
1 and 2, Eastside Park Picnic and Oak Park Friendship 

$65 $78 

 P2 Group picnic sites with area capacity of 41 - 60, one standard sized 
bounce house in allowed locations.  Sites include Alameda Park Harriet 
Miller and Main, Hilda McIntyre Ray Picnic, Skofield Park Area B and D 
and Stevens Park Picnic.    

$85 $102 

 P3 Group picnic sites with area capacity of 61 - 100 and one standard 
sized bounce house in allowed locations.  Includes La Mesa Park Picnic 
and Skofield Park Area C.   

$105 $126 

 P4 Group picnic sites with area capacity of 100+ and one standard sized 
bounce house in allowed locations.  Includes Leadbetter Beach Picnic, 
Oak Park Sycamore and Main, Ortega Park Picnic and Skofield Park 
Area A. 

$165 $198 

PRIVATE 
GATHERINGS 
Corporate and 

Individual  
Limited to 10 hours 

PG1 Up to 50 people, tables and chairs to accommodate group, 1 catering 
truck and alcohol where allowed, amplified sound where allowed 
(limited to DJ) and sporting equipment  

$400 $480 

including set up 
and break down, 
and may include 
locations other 

than designated 
reservable areas 

PG2 Up to 100 people, tables and chairs to accommodate group, 1 catering 
truck and alcohol where allowed, and amplified sound limited to a DJ or 
small, low impact musical group such as a three-piece jazz band, where 
allowed.  

$550 $660 

 PG3 Up to 200 people, tables and chairs to accommodate group, 1 catering 
truck and equipment, alcohol and amplified sound/music where 
allowed.  

$650 $780 

 PG4 Up to 400 people, tables and chairs to accommodate group, catering 
equipment including refrigerators and ovens, alcohol and amplified 
sound/music where allowed and professional lighting. 

$750 $900 

  Fee for extra hours beyond the 10 hours 
 
 
 
 

$100 / hour $120 / hour 

WEDDING 
CEREMONIES - 

Limited to 4 Hours, 

W1 Up to 50 people, 50 chairs, 1 canopy, a runner, an archway, and 
amplified sound for vow and wedding march.  

$400 $480 

including set up 
and break down, 
and may include 
locations other 

than designated 
reservable areas 

W2 Up to 125 people, 125 chairs, one canopy, a runner, an archway and 
amplified sound for vow and wedding march are allowed.  

$500 $600 

 W3 Up to 200 people, 200 chairs, one canopy, a runner, an archway and 
amplified sound for vow and wedding march are allowed.  
 

$600 $720 

MULTI-SESSION 
CLASS/ACTIVITY 

C1 Class or activity, no charge to public $12 / hour $14 / hour 

 C2 Class or activity, offered by non-profit organization or social group for 
free or for fee 

$14 / hour $17 / hour 

73



 

OUTDOOR RENTAL FACILITIES 
The following fee table provides general categories of events and pricing for events held in City parks.  Although specific events may 
vary slightly within a designated category, the description is intended to provide a guide for categorizing events property.   

Category Level Description 
Applicants          

w/RDC 
2009-2010 

Applicants 
 w/o RDC 
2009-2010 

 C3 Class or activity in NON-WATERFRONT location, offered by for-profit 
business for free or for fee 

$20 / hour $24 / hour 

 C3 Class or activity in WATERFRONT location, offered by for-profit 
business for free or for fee 

$25 / hour $30 / hour 

OVERNIGHT 
CAMPING 

(for recognized 
youth groups only) 

 Skofield Park, Area A 
(capacity 200) 

$300 / night + 
 monitor 

$360 / night + 
monitor 

  Skofield Park, Areas B & D 
(capacity 60) 

$200 / night + 
 monitor 

$240 / night + 
monitor 

  Skofield Park, Area C 
(capacity 80) 

$250 / night +  
monitor 

$300 / night + 
monitor 

MISCELLANEOUS   Electrical Usage – Various outdoor facilities $18 / hour $22 / hour 

  Inflatable Bouncers – Designated outdoor facilities 
 
 
 
 

$30 / day $36 / day 

SPORTING 
EVENTS Races, 

Walks, 
Tournaments, etc. 

SE1 Up to 8 hours including set-up and breakdown, up to 150 people, 3 
tables, pre-packaged food and amplified sound for announcements 
where allowed 

$175 Non-Profit 
$210 For Profit 

$210 Non-Profit 
$252 For Profit 

 SE2 Up to 8 hours including set-up and breakdown, up to 300 people, 
tables, 3 10' x 10' canopies/tents or the equivalent, pre-packaged food, 
alcohol service where allowed, and amplified sound for announcements 
or small band where allowed.   

$325 Non-Profit 
$390 For Profit 

$390 Non-Profit 
$468 For Profit 

 
 

 SE3 8 hours or more in duration including set-up and breakdown, up to 500 
people,  tables, 6 10' x 10' canopies/tents or the equivalent, one 
prepared food vendor, platform stage, alcohol service where allowed, 
vendors and amplified sound for announcements or small band where 
allowed. 

$500 Non-Profit 
$600 For Profit 

$600 Non-Profit 
$720 For Profit 

 SE4 8 hours or more in duration including set-up and breakdown, up to 
1,000 people, canopies and tents, 2 prepared food vendors, platform 
stage, alcohol service where allowed, vendors and amplified sound for 
announcements or small band where allowed. 

$700 Non-Profit 
$840 For Profit 

$840 Non-Profit 
$1,008 For Profit 

 SE5 8 hours or more in duration including set-up and breakdown, up to 
1,500 people, canopies and tents, 3 prepared food vendors, platform 
stage, alcohol service where allowed, vendors and amplified sound for 
announcements or music or live band where allowed.  

$900 Non-Profit 
$1,080 For Profit 

$1,080 Non-Profit 
$1,296 For Profit 

 

 SE6 8 hours or more in duration including set-up and breakdown, 1,500+ 
people, canopies and tents, prepared food vendors, platform stage, 
alcohol service where allowed, vendors and amplified sound for 
announcements or music or live band where allowed.  

$1,150 Non-Profit 
$1,380 For Profit 

$1,380 Non-Profit 
$1,656 For Profit 

 

PUBLIC EVENTS 
(any event open 

to the public) 

PE1 Up to 150 people, 4 tables for information or display, display equipment 
(as authorized), pre-packaged food and amplified sound for 
announcements where allowed.  

$175 Non-Profit 
$210 For Profit 

$210 Non-Profit 
$252 For Profit 

 

74



 

OUTDOOR RENTAL FACILITIES 
The following fee table provides general categories of events and pricing for events held in City parks.  Although specific events may 
vary slightly within a designated category, the description is intended to provide a guide for categorizing events property.   

Category Level Description 
Applicants          

w/RDC 
2009-2010 

Applicants 
 w/o RDC 
2009-2010 

 PE2 Up to 300 people, up to 10 tables for information or display, vending or 
display equipment (as authorized), pre-packaged food, alcohol service 
where allowed, and amplified sound for announcements or small band 
where allowed. 

$375 Non-Profit 
$450 For Profit 

 

$450 Non-Profit 
$540 For Profit 

 

 PE3 Up to 500 people, 4 10" x 10" canopies/tents (or the equivalent), up to 
15 tables for information, vending or displays, 1 prepared food vendor, 
alcohol service where allowed, and amplified sound for announcements 
or small band where allowed.  

$500 Non-Profit 
$600 For Profit 

$600 Non-Profit 
$720 For Profit 

 

 PE4 Up to 1,000 people, 6 10" x 10" canopies/tents (or the equivalent), up to 
20 tables for information, vending or displays, 3 prepared food vendors, 
alcohol service where allowed, platform stage and amplified sound for 
announcements, music or live band where allowed.  

$750 Non-Profit 
$900 For Profit 

 

$900 Non-Profit 
$1,080 For Profit 

 PE5 1,000+ people, Canopies and tents, vendors, prepared food vendors, 
alcohol service where allowed, up to 2 platform stages and amplified 
sound for announcements, music or live band where allowed. 

$1,000 Non-Profit 
$1,200 For Profit 

$1,200 Non-Profit 
$1,440 For Profit 

 

 PE6 1,000+ people, large concert style stage, concert performances, paid 
entry fee, alcohol service where allowed, Canopies and tents, vendors, 
prepared food vendors, music or live band where amplified sound is 
allowed. 

$1,200 Non-Profit 
$1,440 For Profit 

$1,440 Non-Profit 
$1,728For Profit 

 

SET UP & BREAK 
DOWN DAYS 

 Charged at 35% of the daily reservation fee per day or any part of one 
day. 

Varies Varies 

 
 

75



 

PHOTO AND FILM SHOOTS 
 
The City of Santa Barbara offers one stop photo and film/video permitting with Parks and Recreation as the lead 
department accepting applications, collecting fees, issuing the permits and coordinating as many internal logistics among 
City departments such as Police, Fire, Public Works and Waterfront as possible for administrative convenience. 
 
Fees for photo and film/video shoots include both permit and “facility use” fees.  Permit fees apply to all photo and 
film/video shoots.  If you plan to shoot in a City park, beach, Stearns Wharf or the Harbor, a facility use fee is charged in 
addition to the permit fee.  Fee rates depend on the location where photography or filming occurs.  See the applicable 
Facility Use Fee charts below. 
 
In situations where City personnel may be required to be present during the shoot, a fee for staff will be charged. See the 
Staff and Miscellaneous section below for further information. 
 
All permits must be accompanied with proof of comprehensive general liability insurance, listing the City of Santa Barbara, 
its officers, employees and agents as additional insured. Minimum limits are $1M combined single-limit bodily injury and 
property damage for each occurrence. 
 

   Permit Fees   

Application Fee  $10 / application 

Still Photography Shoots $60 / day 

Film/Video Shoots  (movies, TV, commercials, videos) $260 / day 

Student Photo and Film/Video Shoots 

Note: Students must submit a letter from their course instructor, on school letterhead, indicating the production is part 
of    their current coursework in order to have  permit and facility use fees waived 

$0 

Late Fee (applied to permits received with less than 10 working days prior to the shoot) $100 / application 
 

76



 

 
  Facility Use Fees – Parks and Beaches   

For parks and beaches, facility use fees are broken into levels for each type of shoot, based on the size of the crew and 
whether exclusive or non-exclusive use of the parkland is desired.  Although specific uses may vary slightly within a 
designated category, the description is intended to provide a guide for categorizing shoots properly.  The Parks and 
Recreation Director reserves the right to determine fees outside of the following chart for certain shoots, characterized by 
the unique or untypical location, scope, size or duration of the shoot, and/or impact to public parkland as a result of the 
use.  
 

Fee Level & Description Crew Size Resident Fee Non-Resident Fee 
 
LEVEL 1 
STILL PHOTOGRAPHY & 
EDUCATIONAL,DOCUMENTARY, 
INDUSTRIAL FILM/VIDEO SHOOTS 

 
a) Crew of less than 15, non-exclusive use 
b) Crew of 15-29, non-exclusive use 
c) Crew of 30+ or if exclusive use required 
 

 
$170/day 
$198/day 
$238/day 

 
$204/day 
$238/day 
$286/day 

 
LEVEL 2 
TV COMMERCIALS, MUSIC VIDEOS & 
AUTO STILLS  
 

 
a) Crew of less than 30, non-exclusive use  
b) Crew of 30-44, non-exclusive use 
c) Crew of 45-69, exclusive use 
d) Crew of 70+, exclusive use 
 
Note: Setup and/or strike days outside of 
the filming day to be charged at 50% of the 
per day fee. 
 

 
$300/day 
$400/day 
$500/day 
$700/day 

 
$360/day 
$480/day 
$600/day 
$840/day 

 
LEVEL 3 
FEATURE FILMS, TV MOVIES, TV 
SHOWS, TV SERIES 
 

 
a) Crew of less than 50, non-exclusive use 
b) Crew of 50-74, exclusive use 
c) Crew of 75+, exclusive use 
 
Note: Setup and/or strike days outside of 
the filming day to be charged at 50% of the 
per day fee. 
 

 
$325/day 
$500/day 

$700-$1,000/day 
 
 
 

 
$390/day 
$600/day 

$840-$1,200/day 
 

 
STUDENT PHOTO & FILM/VIDEO 
SHOOTS 

  
$0 

 
$0 

 
NON-COMMERCIAL STILL 
PHOTOGRAPHY 
 
(Fees may be waived for non-profit 
organizations, government or education 
projects, based on the nature of the 
request. Other fees may be applied as 
determined by the Parks and Recreation 
Director or designee) 

 
 

 
$75/day 

 
$90/day 

 
STOCK/PORTRAIT PHOTOGRAPHY 
 
(Free one-year permit with verification of 
City Business License and proof of 
insurance) 

 
 

 
$0 

 
$0 

 

77



 

  Facility Use Fees – Stearns Wharf and Harbor Area   
 
Facility use fees for Stearns Wharf and the Harbor area are established by the Waterfront Department under their fee 
resolution but collected by Parks and Recreation for administrative convenience.  Contact the Waterfront Department for 
their current fee schedule. 
 

  Staffing and Miscellaneous Fees  
Description Fee Special Notes 
 
Police Officer, if required 

 
Refer to the SBPD’s current fee 
schedule. Note that fees depend 
on the pay rate of the person 
assigned.   

 
This will be invoiced separately after the shoot.  Note that other Police 
resources such as a police vehicle or motorcycle may be required and are 
charged separately from the officer. 

 
Park Monitor, for parks and 
beaches, if required 
 

 
$17/hour 
     or 
$50 for spot checks 

 
This is at the discretion of Parks and Recreation staff whether a shoot 
requires monitor for the entire duration or “spot checking” at the start, mid-
day and wrap times. 

 
Waterfront Monitor, for 
Stearns Wharf and Harbor, 
if required 
 

 
Refer to the Waterfront’s current 
fee schedule  

 
This is at the discretion of Waterfront staff whether a shoot requires a 
monitor for the entire duration or “spot checking” at the start, mid-day and 
wrap times. 
 

 
Parking in any waterfront 
parking lot along Cabrillo 
Boulevard 

 
Refer to the Waterfront’s current 
fee schedule 

 
To pre-reserve parking in these lots, call Waterfront Parking at 805-564-
5523 or 805-897-1965.  Note that motor homes are not allowed on Stearns 
Wharf. 

 
 

78



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OUTDOOR SPORTS 
FACILITIES 

Fee w/RDC Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC Fee w/o RDC 

FIELDS, 
COURTS 
& POOLS 

 
Location 

–       2010 - 2011       
Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

           2010 - 2011 
Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

            2010 - 2011 
Fee or Charge 
Classification A 

–        2010 – 2011    
Fee or Charge 
Classification B 

 
Baseball 
Field 

 
Pershing Park  

 
$50/hr. Adult 
$30/hr. Youth 

 
$109/hr. Adult 
$ 65/hr. Youth 

 
$60/hr. Adult 
$36/hr. Youth 

 
$131/hr. Adult 
$78/hr. Youth 
 

Field Monitor All fields $20/hr $20/hr $20/hr $20/hr 

Sports Field 
Lights 
 

Dwight Murphy Softball 
Cabrillo Softball 
Pershing Park Softball  
Ortega Softball 
Santa Barbara Junior High 
La Colina Junior High 
 

$26/hr.  lights $26/hr.  lights $26/hr.  lights $26/hr.  lights 

Swimming 
Pool 

Los Baños del Mar Swimming 
Pool (single lane rental) 
 

$25/lane $50/lane $30/lane $60/lane  

Swimming 
Pool 

Los Baños del Mar Swimming 
Pool 

$104/hr.  $188/hr. $120/hr. $213/hr. 

Wading 
Pools 

Oak Park & West Beach 
Wading Pools 

$84/hr $101/hr $88/hr $106/hr 

Dwight 
Murphy Food 
Concession 
 

Punta Gorda & Los Ninos Dr. $125/day $160/day $146/day $187/day 

Swimming 
Pool 

Ortega Park Swimming Pool $93/hr. $105/hr. $108/hr. $120/hr. 

Beach 
Volleyball 
Courts 

East Beach 18 courts 
(summer) 
East Beach 16 courts (winter) 
West Beach 6 courts 

$11/hr./court 
 
$58/day/court 

$16/hr./court 
 
$100/day/court 

$13/hr./court 
 
$75/day/court 

$19/hr./court 
 
$120/day/court 

Tennis 
Courts 

Municipal 
Las Positas 
Pershing 
Oak Park (free) 

$11/hr. /court 
 
$111/day/ stadium 
$11/hr./court for 
contract rental 

$15/hr. /court 
  
$165/day/  
stadium 

$13/hr./court 
 
$133/day/ stadium 

$18/hr./court 
  
$198/day/ stadium 

City Soccer 
Fields 

Ortega Park  
Dwight Murphy Park 
    
 

$22/hr. Adult 
$14/hr. Youth 
$33/game Adult 
$18/game Youth 

$51/hr. 
 

$24/hr. Adult   
$15/hr. Youth 
$36/game Adult 
$20/game Youth 
 

$61/hr. 
 

School 
District  
Soccer 
Fields 

Santa Barbara Junior High 
La Colina Junior High 
La Cumbre Junior High  
Franklin Elementary  

$22/hr. Adult 
$14/hr. Youth 
$33/game Adult 
$18/game Youth 
 

$51/hr. 
 

$24/hr. Adult   
$15/hr. Youth 
$36/game Adult 
$20/game  Youth 
 

$61/hr. 
 

Softball 
Fields  

Cabrillo Park 
Dwight Murphy Park 
Ortega Park 
Pershing Park  
 

$22 hr. Adult 
$14 hr. Youth 
 

$51/hr. 
 
 

$26/hr. Adult 
$15/hr. Youth  
 

$61/hr. 
 

Baseball 
Fields 

MacKenzie Park 
 

$14/hr. Youth 
$19/game/Youth 
 

 $17/hr. Youth  
$23/game/ Youth 
 

 

79



 

 TEEN PROGRAMS    Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location 
Age 

Level 
Registration 

Min/Max 
Session 
Length 

Activity 
Length 

  2010 – 2011     
Fee or Charge 

 2010 – 2011    
Fee or Charge 

DJ Classes Teen Center 12-18 4/8 6-week 6 classes $25/session $25/session 

Music Events - Jr. High & 
High School 

Carrillo 
Recreation 
Center 

12-19 Varies 
 

Monthly 1 evening 
(5 hrs) 

$5 - $15 -  
cover cost 

$5 - $15 -  
cover cost 

Summer Late Nights  Varies  12-19 15/Open Summer Varies Varies per 
event 

Varies per 
event 

Teen Alternative 
Recreation Activities 

Various 12-19 Open Year 
Round 

Varies Varies Varies 

Teen Dance Classes Carrillo 
Recreation 
Center 

12-19 5/25 6 -week 5 classes $55/session $55/session 

Teen Excursions Varies 13+  Varies Year 
Round 

Varies Varies per 
event 

Varies per 
event 

Teen Yoga Classes Teen Center 12-18 5/15 5-week 5 classes $40/session $40/session 

Youth Leadership and 
Personal Enrichment 
Workshops 

Varies 12-19 10/Open Year 
Round 

Varies $5-$36/session $5-$36/session 

 

80



 

 

TENNIS      Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Court 
Location 

Age 
Level 

Registration 
Min/Max Session Length Activity 

Length 
 2010 – 2011  

Fee or Charge 
2010 – 2011 

Fee or Charge 

 
ADVANCED DRILLS 
for Youth 
 

Las Positas 7-17 4/8 4 weeks 1.5 hrs/week $76/session $84/session 

FREE PLAY Oak Park All    None Year Round 
1 hr./singles   
1 1/2 
hr/doubles 

No Charge No Charge 

GROUP LESSONS  
Youth 

Municipal & 
Las Positas   4-17 4/6 4 weeks 1 hr/week $46/session 51$/session 

 
GROUP LESSONS 
Adult 
 
 

Municipal 
&Las Positas   18+ 4/6 4 weeks 1 1/4 

hrs/week $61/session $67/session 

PERMITS Daily (18+) 
 
Youth (17 yrs. or 
younger) 

Las Positas, 
Municipal, 
Pershing Park 

18+ None Year Round N/A 
$6/each 
 
Free 

$7/each 
 
Free 

PERMITS 
Annual (Adult) 

Las Positas, 
Municipal, 
Pershing Park  

18-59 None May 1 –  
Apr. 30 N/A $119/yr $131/yr 

PERMITS 
Annual (Senior) 

Las Positas, 
Municipal, 
Pershing Park  

60+ None May 1 –  
Apr. 30 N/A $109./yr $120/yr 

 
SUMMER CLINICS for 
Juniors 
 

Pershing Park 
 

8-14 
 

8/32 
 

One week 
 

3 hrs. 
 

$122/session 
 

$134/session 
 

 
HIGH PERFORMANCE  
JR. CLINIC 

Municipal 

 
 

10-15 
 
 

6-16 
 

One week 
 

3 hrs $135/session $149/session 

81



YOUTH AND ADULT SPORTS Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location Age  
Level 

Registration 
Min/Max         Season Session Length/Activity 

Length 
 2010 - 2011  

Fee or Charge 
  2010 - 2011  
Fee or Charge 

ADULT PROGRAMS 

Basketball 
League 

SBHS  
SBCC 

18+ 4/30 
teams 

Fall/ 
Spring 

 

1 hour games 
1 day/week 

8 game season 

$500 team 
$76 individual 

$550 team 
$84 individual 

Indoor 
Volleyball 
League 

SBHS  
SBCC 

18+ 4/30 
teams 

Fall/ 
Spring/ 

Summer 

1 hour match 
1 day/week 

8 game season 

$310 team 
$52 individual 

$341team 
$57 individual 

Coed Soccer 
League 

SBCC 
Dwight 
Murphy 

18+ 4/20 
Teams 

Spring/ 
Summer 

 

1 hour games 
1 day/week 

7 game season 

$400 team 
$65 individual 

$440 team 
$72 individual 

Ultimate 
Frisbee 
Beach 
Tournament 

West 
Beach 

18+ 16 teams Spring 2 days $250 team $275 team 

 
YOUTH PROGRAMS  

Flag 
Football 
League 
(Coed) 
 

Various 
School 
sites 

Dwight 
Murphy 

Grade
s 

3-6 

75/350 Sept. - Dec. 1 hr games/week 
 

1 hr practice/week 

No charge to 10 
SBSD 

Elementary 
Schools 

$60 per person  
other 

participating 
schools 

No charge to 10 
SBSD 

Elementary 
Schools 

$60 per person 
other 

participating 
schools 

Little 
Hoopsters 
Basketball 
Clinic 
 
 

Westside 
Boy's & 

Girl's Club 

Grade
s 

K/2nd d 

10/30 Winter 1 hr practice/week 
 

1 hr scrimmage/ 
week 

$62per person $68 per person 

After school 
Basketball 
Program  
Boys & Girls 
 

Various 
school sites 

Grade
s 

3-6 

100/300 Winter 1 hr game/week 
 

1hr practice/week 
 

No charge to 10 
SBSD 

Elementary 
Schools 

$50 other 
participating 

schools 

No charge to 10 
SBSD 

Elementary 
Schools 

$50 other 
participating 

schools 
Girl's Softball 
League 

Various 
 

Grade
s 

3-6 

40/75 
4/8 

teams   
 

Spring 
 

1 game per week 
1 practice per week 

8 weeks 

$62per player $68per player 

Kidz Love 
Soccer Clinic 
 
 

Dwight 
Murphy 

Ages 
2 – 12 

yrs 

30/120 Spring 
Summer 

Fall 
Winter 

1/2 hour – 1 hr Saturdays 
8 weeks 

 

$89/ clinic 
 
 

$98/ clinic 
 
 

Kidz Love 
Soccer 
Camp 
 

Dwight 
Murphy 

Ages 
4-14 

15/50 Spring 
Summer 

1 week 
Monday-Friday 

$135/session $149/session 

82



 
 
 

Activity Location Age 
Level 

Registrati
on 

Min/Max 
Season 

Session Length/Activity 
Length 

2010 - 2011  
Fee or Charge 

2010 - 2011  
Fee or Charge 

Coast 2 
Coast 
Soccer 
Camp 

Dwight 
Murphy 

Ages 
4-14 

15/50 Spring/ 
Summer 

1 week 
Monday-Friday 

$135/session $149/session 

T-Ball 
Clinic  
 

Various 
SBHS 

 

Ages 
4-5 

40/80 Spring 
 

7 days 
Saturdays 

$83/Clinic 
 
 

$91/Clinic 
 
 

T-Ball 
League 

Various 
SBHS 

 

Ages 
6-8 

4-8 
teams 

7 weeks 1practice per week 
1 game per week 

$83/ League $91/ League 

T-Ball Camp MacKenzie 
Park 

Ages  
5-8 

15/30 1 week 3 hours/day  $115 $126 

BullsEye! 
Archery 
Clinic 
 
 
 

Dwight 
Murphy 
Softball 

Field 

Ages  
9-17 

 
6/12 

4 weeks             1 hour class   $84/session $92/session 

Doggone 
Fun Camp 

Various 
MacKenzie 

 9-14 Min8/Ma
x15 

Spring/ Summer/ 
Fall 

3 hours/day               
one week 

$135/ session $149/ session 

Youth  
Soccer 
League 

Various 
Dwight 
Murphy 

Boys 
& Girls 
Ages  
6-12 

50/200 Spring 8 weeks 
1 practice; 

1 game per week 

$99/ session  $109 / session 

Basketball 
Camp 

SB City 
College 

9-14 Min20/M
ax100 

Summer 3 hours/day               
one week 

$115/ session $127/ session 

Softball 
Camp 

SB High 
School 

Girls 
9-14 

Min 
15/Max 

50 

Summer 3 hours/day               
one week 

$115/ session $127/session 

Turf & Surf 
Summer 
Camp 
Session 

Pershing  8-14 15/30 Summer 7 hours/day 
5 days 

$150/participant $165/participant 

83



 

YOUTH ACTIVITIES    Fee w/RDC Fee w/o RDC 

Activity Location Age 
Level 

Registration 
Min/Max 

Session 
Length 

Activity 
Length 

     2010 - 2011  
Fee or Charge 

  2010 - 2011  
Fee or Charge 

Great Escape Camp Monroe 
school/various 
sites 

Grade 
1-6 

10/50 1 week Mon-Fri (7:30 
am – 5:30 pm) 

$212/session 
 

$233/session 

Junior Counselor 
Program 

Varies 12 - 16 25/80 1-2 weeks Mon-Fri  
(9 - 4) 

Full program fee Full program fee 

Junior High 
Afterschool 
Sports Program 

SBJHS 
La Cumbre 
La Colina 
Goleta Valley 

Grades 
7-8 

80- 
800 

20 
weeks 

Varies $0 $0 

Nature Camp Skofield Park 6-11 24/35 2 weeks Mon-Fri  
(9 - 4) 

$296/session $326/session 

Camp 
Extended Care 

Ortega Park 6-11 5/35 1 or 2 weeks Mon-Fri  
(7:30-9 am &  
4-5:30 pm) 

$70/session $77/session 

Recreation After-
school Program 
(RAP) 

Elementary 
Schools 

6-12 N/A 180 school 
days 

Varies by 
school.  16 
hours of service 
per week  

$140 per 30 days 
of service 
 $70/10 day pass 

N/A 

Skateboard Clinic Skater’s Point 6-13 6/30 1 week Mon-Fri (8:30-
11:30am) 

$135/session $149/session 

Summer Drop-In 
Recreation Program 

Franklin, 
Harding, 
McKinley 
Schools  

Grade 
1-6 

None Summer 9:30 AM  – 5:30 
PM 

No charge No charge 

Summer Cyclers  SB Junior High 10-14 
years 

6-12 Summer 9:00 AM – 
Noon 

$135 / session $149/session 

Engineering with 
LEGO 

Mackenzie 
Adult Building 

5-12 10/30 Summer 1 week 
9 to 12 pm or   
1 to 4 pm 

$175/session 
 

$193/session 

Science Adventures Elementary 
schools 

5-11  10/30 Summer 1 week                 
9 to 12 pm or      
9 to 3 pm 

Half Day $135 
Full Day $215 

Half Day $149 
Full Day 237 

Youth Running Clinic  Varies 10-15  10 – 30 Summer 9:00 AM – 
Noon 

$115/session $127/session 

 

84



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
TENNIS PROGRAMS 

 
 
The following rules and regulations shall apply to the use of public tennis courts owned or operated 
by the City:   
 
Annual and Daily Permit 
 
Annual and daily permits shall be mandatory for use of the:   
 
Municipal Tennis Center 
Las Positas Tennis Courts 
Pershing Park 
 
There is no permit required, nor any fee charged, for the tennis courts at Oak Park.   
 
Credit:  When an individual purchases an annual permit, a credit will be given for one (1) daily 
permit turned in that said individual has purchased within the previous thirty days.   
 
Daily permits shall be valid only for the day stated on the face of the permit.  Any permit, which 
has been altered, shall be void.   
 
 A) Permits shall not be transferred.   
 
 B) Permit fees are not refundable.   
 

C) Lost or stolen permits shall not be replaced.   
 

D) City may schedule activities on the Las Positas, Pershing Park and Municipal; 
such as tournaments, lessons, rentals, leagues or other special activities, which 
may prevent the use of said courts by permittees at certain times.   

 
E) Permit holders agree to abide by all Court rules and City regulations including the 

Code of Conduct.   
 
Applicable fees and charges for tennis programs are specified in this Schedule of Fees and 
Charges, subject to these rules and regulations.   
 

85



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
COMMUNITY CENTERS 

 
 
Lease Rental Rates 
 
The lease rental rate for occupied space and allocated common area space at Louise Lowry Davis, 
Franklin and Westside Centers shall be as specified in this Schedule of Fees and Charges.   
 
Occasional Use 
 
The criteria for rental categorization for fees charged, as specified in this Schedule of Fees and 
Charges, for Occasional Use of the conference rooms and other activity spaces located in the 
Louise Lowry Davis, Franklin, and Westside Centers are as follows:   
 
 
 Classification   General Description 
 
  A   Community Service clubs and organizations; fraternal  
     groups; volunteer service organizations; non-profit single  
     purpose interest groups; and educational institutions.   
 
  B   Commercial and private activities.   
 
Franklin Neighborhood Center and Westside Community Center lessees may conduct bingo 
games in common area meeting rooms for the purpose of fundraising, pursuant to Municipal 
Code Chapter 9.26.  Individuals or groups that are not Franklin Neighborhood Center or 
Westside Community Center lessees may conduct bingo games for entertainment purposes 
only.   
 

86



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

 
CITY EMPLOYEE DISCOUNT FEES 

 
 
CARDS/PERMITS 

Gym, Pool and Bathhouse Punch cards    50% Off 
Tennis Permit       50% Off 
Fitness & Dance Classes (listed below)   20% Off 

 Golf Green Fees      $5.00 off any Green Fee (excluding 
tournaments) with Employee 
(permanent benefited only) 
Verification Card (issued by the Parks 
and Recreation Department).  Retired 
or hourly employees are not eligible.  
Employee must show recent 
timesheet, or a recent pay stub, with 
employee number, to show eligibility.  
$5.00 fee to replace a lost card.   

 
FITNESS INSTRUCTION (20% Discount): 
 
Tai Chi  
Jazzercise Santa Barbara 
 
DANCE INSTRUCTION – (20% Discount): 
 
 
Ballroom Dance with Nigel Clarke 
Ballroom Dance with Jamie Powers 
Belly Dance 
Folk Dance 
Country Western 2-Step 
Country Western Line Dance 
Youth and Adult Flamenco Dance 
 
 
The Parks and Recreation Director is authorized to add appropriate classes as they become 
available.   
 
 

87



 

Indoor and Outdoor Facility Rentals 
Photography/Filming 

Special Events  
 
GENERAL USE AND FEES 
 
Indoor and outdoor facilities may be reserved and rented on a first-come, first-served 
basis per established City Council policies.  The following fees and policies relate to use of 
facilities, equipment and staff services.  Advance payment of the permit application and 
reservation fees are required to hold a reservation.  Facility use fees, security deposits, 
janitorial and monitor fees must be paid no later than two weeks prior to facility use, or 
earlier depending on each facility’s policy. Those permittees who apply within two weeks 
of their event pay all applicable fees at the time of booking.   
 
Classification  User Type 
 

A Community service clubs and organizations, fraternal groups; 
Community and volunteer service organizations; Educational 
institutes; Non-Profit single purpose interest groups 

B Commercial or Private Groups 
C City Parks and Recreation Department sponsored or co-sponsored 

activities or other City agency official use, including use of a facility 
as a polling place.  No charge.   

 
Fees Determined Annually, effective September 1:  Fees as adopted by City Council 
for the fiscal year take effect September 1 each year and will be applied to all facility uses 
after that time, regardless of when the permit application was initially processed or 
whether any portion of fees payment has been paid. This notice will be given to all permit 
requests/applications at the time of reservation or permit processing.   
 
Permit Application Fee:  A non-refundable fee of $5 is charged for facility use permits 
obtained by all classifications listed above except “C”.  This fee is charged for each permit 
issued (including duplicates) and when reservations are changed by applicant.   
 
Security Deposits:  Security deposits are required for all indoor and outdoor facility 
rentals.  The security deposit may be applied toward additional charges, fees or penalties 
including, but not limited to:  failure to return facility keys, oversized groups, damage 
repairs, additional custodial fees, unscheduled staffing due to late departures and/or any 
expenses related to non-compliance with the stated facility use rules, or as deemed 
necessary by staff.   
 
 Indoor Facilities 

Deposit amount varies by facility: $130 - $500  
 
 Outdoor Facilities  

Deposit amount determined by group size:   
   1 –    25 people $  25 

  26 –    75 people $  50 
  76 –  125 people $100 
 126 – 200 people $150 
 201 – 300 people $250 
            Chase Palm Park Outdoor Rentals $250 
 

88



 

Special deposits or bonds may be charged for special events or groups exceeding 300 
persons. 
 
Custodial Fees:  Most facilities require payment of custodial services as part of the facility 
use.  Fees vary by facility and are intended to cover full custodial cost related to use, as 
determined by the Director.   
 
Monitor Fees:  As determined, some facility rentals (indoor and outdoor) will be charged 
for event monitors as part of the facility use.  Fees vary by type, size and location of the 
event.  For example: 
 

1) All events at Cabrillo Pavilion Arts Center, and indoor and outdoor facilities 
at Chase Palm Park, require a monitor for the entire duration of the rental 

2) For the Louise Lowry Davis, Franklin and Westside Community Centers, a 
monitor is required for rentals on Friday after 5:00 p.m. through Sunday   

3) For indoor facilities other than #1 and #2 above, monitors are required for a 
two hour period to unlock and lock the building 

4) For outdoor facilities other than #1 and #2 above, monitors are required for 
a one hour period to check for the site’s cleanliness, meet and greet the 
customer and inspect the site at the end of the event 

 
Private Security:  As determined by the Director, some facility rentals (indoor or outdoor) 
will be required to provide private security services as part of the facility use.  
Requirements vary according to the type, size and location of the event, and whether or 
not alcoholic beverages will be served.  For example: 
 

1) If an event has a large number participants who are underage and the 
event is serving alcohol 

2) If it is likely that the event may cause picketing or protesting 
3) If it’s a fundraiser and large amounts of cash may be present during the 

event 
 
Fines for Misuse of Sports Fields:  Fines will be assigned for sports league teams that 
misuse fields during the rainy season or do not properly put trash and/or recycling into the 
appropriate on-site containers.  Misuse will result in forfeiture of permits and/or fines from 
$30 to $500, depending on the extent of turf damage or the amount of clean-up required 
by staff or a janitorial service.  Fines of $30 will be assessed for each violation listed below 
and must be paid prior to the next league game.   
 

1) Use of MacKenzie Park Youth Baseball diamonds for any softball practices. 
2) Use of Santa Barbara City College baseball diamond infield. 
3) Any team found practicing on softball infields prepared for league games. 
4) Use of soccer or softball fields for practice by any soccer or softball team. 

 
Miscellaneous Fees:  The Parks and Recreation Director may establish miscellaneous 
fees or charges for parks, beaches, facility equipment and services not identified in this 
schedule; provided the assessment is in line with existing policies governing use of City 
property.  For example, charges may be required for extra custodial supplies or special 
public notices or signs if a facility is to be closed because of permitted use.  Also, 
additional charges may be assessed related to unusual uses of City parks, beaches or 
facilities, such as televised broadcasts, extensive equipment setups over several days, or 
as compensation for significant impacts to local neighborhoods related to parking, noise, 
congestion, etc.  Applicants may be required to provide, at their own expense, additional 

89



 

portable restrooms and trash bins at locations designated by the Director, and other items 
deemed necessary.   
 
Use of Facilities for City Department Meetings or Social Functions:  Discounted fees 
for City employee use of reservable areas within parks, beaches and recreation facilities 
are limited to department meetings or social functions (including retirement parties).  In 
order to qualify for the discounted fees described below, the function must be:   
 

1. Endorsed by the requesting department’s Director; 
2. Open to all employees of the requesting department (if not the entire City staff); 

and, 
3. Approved by the Parks and Recreation Director.   

 
Non-Prime Time (Monday through Thursday) 
 
Application fee, facility use fee and security deposit will be waived. Set-up/breakdown 
fees, monitor fees and custodial fees will not be reduced or waived. 
 
Prime Time  (Friday, Saturday and Sunday) 
 
Application fee and security deposit will be waived.  Facility use fee will be reduced to 
one half of the designated non-profit rate or to one half of the facility use fee applicable 
to size of group for the site.  Set-up/breakdown fees, monitor fees and custodial fees 
will not be reduced or waived. 

 
Various fees related to facility use are described within the Schedule of Fees and 
Charges.   

 
 

90



 

OUTDOOR RENTAL FACILITIES 
 
Categories: 
 
The City of Santa Barbara provides the opportunity for public and private use of City parks 
and parkland. Uses such as picnics, wedding ceremonies and private gatherings, sporting 
events or large community special events are categorized and fees are determined by the 
size, scope and duration of the event (except for group picnic sites, which are based on 
the site’s area capacity.)  Following are the categories and fee levels describe in the 
Outdoor Rental Facilities fee table.  
 

Picnics P1 to P4 Based on group picnic area capacity 
Private Gatherings PG1 to PG4 Corporate or individual private events 
Wedding Ceremonies W1 to W3 Ceremonies limited to 4 hours.  Can include 

locations other than designated reservable areas. 
Sporting Events SE1 to SE6  Runs, walks, sporting tournaments, etc. 
Public Events PE1 to PE6 Any event open to the public 

 
Set Up and Break Down Days: 
 
For larger outdoor events with extensive set up including canopies, stage, etc., set up and 
break down days will be assessed at 35% of the daily reservation fee per day or any part 
of one day.  Dumpsters and portable toilets are exempt from the break down day charge if 
they are removed by 9am the following day. 
 
Utility Hook Ups for De La Guerra Plaza, Mackenzie Park and Leadbetter Beach 
Events: 
 
For De La Guerra Plaza and Mackenzie Park, gas, water and electrical hook ups may be 
made available for large public events. The activation of these utilities can either be 
accomplished through a licensed general contractor (or a licensed plumbing and licensed 
electrical contractor), or the Parks and Recreation Department can facilitate the hook-up 
requests through the Public Works Department.  If the former is chosen, the Public Works 
Department will charge fees to supervise and inspect the work before and after the 
activation and require that a permit be obtained from the Building and Safety Department.  
A $100-$500 deposit is required to cover the estimated usage of the utilities with the 
amount is based on the number of utility boxes activated.  Additional information on the 
fees and how to obtain the permit will be provided. 
 
If the latter is chosen, approval is dependent upon Public Works’ ability to schedule the 
necessary personnel to complete the required work for the event within the given 
timeframe.  Requests must be submitted a minimum of four weeks in advance of the 
event.  The base cost to activate/deactivate the plumbing is $638 for the first box, plus 
$106 per additional box.  The base cost to activate/deactivate the electricity is $159 for the 
first box and plus $106 per additional box.  A deposit of up to $1,000 is also required to 
cover the estimated usage of the utilities. 
 
For Leadbetter Beach, only water and electrical hook ups are available and the activation 
of these utilities is handled by park monitors, along with the reading of the water and/or 
electrical meters prior to and after the usage.  Water usage is charged at $4 per unit of 
water and electricity usage is charged at $2 per kilowatt hour. A deposit of up to $500 is 
required to cover the estimated usage of the utilities. 
 

91



 

Vehicles in Park or Beach Areas Related to Permitted Sporting or Public Events: 
 
The use of vehicles in parks and beaches is strictly controlled and restricted to authorized 
uses only.  Authorized passes will be limited to vehicles deemed essential to the operation 
of the permitted event, as determined by the Director or designated representative.  This 
includes vehicles unloading or loading equipment, supplies or passengers, or other types 
of vehicles related to the event.  
 
Unauthorized driving or parking of vehicles in park or beach areas related to permitted 
events will be cited and fined $50 per vehicle.  Unauthorized driving or parking may 
include vehicles without access permits or authorized vehicles, which do not comply with 
driving conditions as determined in the permit.  Fines will be charged to the event and 
withheld from the security deposit.  Excessive abuse of the vehicle policy by an event may 
affect future event permit consideration.  
 
Discount for Multi-Week Sporting Event Use by For Profit Groups: 
 
When for profit groups use reservable areas within parks or beaches for sporting events 
on a multiple week basis, they will receive a 10% discount as long they meet the following 
criteria: 

1. Use is on a weekly basis and occurs more than 12 times per year. 
2. Use is 2 or more hours at a time. 
3. The event is offered specifically for the local community 
4. Event will engage participants in recreation, fitness or sport activities 

 

92



POLICE REPRODUCTION FEES 
The City of Santa Barbara is required to provide documents, fingerprints and 
photographs to the public. 
 
The charges for the use of duplicating or copying machines, certification of records or 
providing services shall by as follows: 
 

a. Police Reports $ 0.20 per page 
 
b. Clearance Letters 10.00 each 
(without dispositions) 
 
c. Clearance Letters 25.00 each 
(with dispositions) 

 
d. Processing Fingerprint Cards/LiveScan Services 25.00 each 

 
e. Towed Vehicle Release160.00 each 

 
f. Towed Vehicle Release *215.00 each 
Pursuant to 14601 CVC or 12500 CVC. 
*Pursuant to state requirements, $55.00 of the release fee to be deposited to a 
separate account for the continuance of the program to apprehend 
unlicensed drivers. 

 
The charges for photographs shall be as follows: 

a. Photograph, 3x5 $0.50 each 
 

b. Photograph, 6x5 or 6x8 2.00 each 
 

c. Photograph, proof sheet 5.00 each 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

93



 

 

 PUBLIC WORKS ENGINEERING FEES AND  
FEES FOR THE USE OF CITY FACILITIES 

 

I. Plan Check/Review Fees 
A. Public Improvement C-1 and C-3 Construction Drawings 

Payable at the time of request and based upon an approved cost estimate of 
construction, the fees for services and review of construction work plans, preparation 
of associated agreements, and work associated with processing securities, if 
required: 

 
1. Checking of Plans for Construction 

Applicant shall pay the minimum fee or the fee based on the applicable percentage 
of the estimated cost of construction, whichever is greater. 

 
Minimum fee $389.00+ 
1st  $20,000 @3.28% + 
Next $30,000 @2.90% + 
Next $50,000 @2.189% + 
In excess of $100,000 @1.82% 

 

Cost Estimate - Each set of plans submitted for review must be accompanied by an 
estimated cost of construction if over $10,000 for determination of securities required.  
This cost will be based on current bids received on public projects.  The estimate will 
also be used to determine the cost of inspection fees as a separate fee contained 
herein. 

 

B. Building Permit or Land Use Permit 
1.  Public Works Building Plan Review Fee (to be applied to the building 

permit case.) 
a. No Public Works Permit Issued 

i. Minor projects   $34.00 
Including projects that involve 1-4 lots/units or structures 0-5,000 square 
feet: 

ii. Major projects   $99.00 
Projects involving more than 4 lots/units or structures over 5,000 square 
feet.  

94



 

 

 

b. Public Works Permit Issued (in conjunction with BLD) 
These fees shall only be applied when the review of plans for a Building 
Permit result in the issuance of a Public Works Construction Permit: 

i. Minor projects $148.00 

Including projects that involve 1-4 lots/units or structures 0-5,000 square 
feet. 

ii. Major projects $420.00 

Projects involving more than 4 lots/units or structures over 5,000 square 
feet or projects that include public improvements in accordance with 
Municipal Code Chapter 22.44 Street Dedication and Improvement for 
Building Permits. 

 

2. Transportation Division 
a. Minor projects   $148.00/submittal 

Minor projects including projects that involve 8 parking spaces or less. 

b. Major projects   $420.00/submittal 
Projects involving over 8 parking spaces.  

c. Parking Design Waiver   $199.00 
Any project where a variation is requested from SBMC 28.90.045.1 (e.g., 
garage waiver, change in the number of maneuvers, variation from the 
Parking Design Standards). Two (2) hours of staff work at the rate of 
$92.50/hour, 

d. Parking Agreement        $399.00 
Any project that requires an off-site parking agreement according to SBMC 
28.90.001.18. Four (4) hours of staff work at the rate of $99.00/hour. 

e. Parking Demand Analysis       $399.00 
Any project where parking demand analysis is requested in support of a 
modification of SBMC 28.90.100. Four (4) hours of staff time at the rate of 
$99.00 per hour. 

f. Traffic Trip Generation Fee       $399.00 
 Any project where a trip generation analysis is requested to consider a 

projects impact on transportation facilities. Four (4) hours staff time at the rate 
of $99.00 per hour. 

 
 
 
 
 

95



 

 

C. Subdivision Map – Municipal Code Land Use Research, Preparation of 
Documents, Review of Map (Following Approval of Tentative Subdivision Map)  

1. Final or Parcel Maps 
a. 1-4 lots/condominium units $2,876.00 
b. 5-10 lots/condominium units $5,504.00 
c. 11 or more lots/ condominium units $8,729.00 

2. Reversion to acreage maps 
a. Final Maps $1,284.00 
b. Parcel Maps $1,085.00 

3. Certificates of Compliance (per parcel) 
a. Legal Parcel $2,503.00 
b. Conditional Certificates of Compliance $4,676.00 

4. Certificates of Voluntary Merger(Number of lots/units before merger) 
a. 2 lots/ condominium units $1,257.00 
b. 3-5 lots/ condominium units $1,597.00 
c. 6 lots/ condominium units or more $1,597.00+ $165.00 per lot 

per condominium unit 
over 6 lots/condominium 
units 

d. When a Record of Survey is required  $495.00 
5. Notice of Correction $99.00/hr 
6. Lot Line Adjustment (Post-Planning Commission) 
 a.   $994.00+$129.00 per lot exceeding two lots 
 b.   An additional $198.00 when a Record of Survey is required 
 
7.      Street Setback Variance $695.00 + $99.00/hr for 

more than 7 hours 
Processing, research, or substantial review of Setback Variance Requests 
pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.84. 

 

8. Map Amendment      $99.00 
 

D. Other 
1.  Preparation, research and substantial review of Land Development and/or Real 

Property related correspondence for various submittals not covered by other 
categories in this fee resolution, including but not limited to amendments or notice 
of corrections of parcel maps, final maps, meeting requests, or recorded Land 
Development documents, PRE cases. etc.  Estimate of hours may be provided by 
Publics Works staff prior to submittal.  Payment shall precede services rendered.  

96



 

 

This fee is not applicable to projects in development review.  This fee may apply 
when more time is required than is allotted by the basic fee.  Second and third 
resubmittals may be charged at this rate. $99.00 /hr. 

 
2.   Recordation of development agreement bond satisfaction, title covenant rescission 

or notice of satisfaction of permit conditions $1,228.00 

 

II. Public Right of Way (ROW) and Use of City Lands 
A. Franchise Utilities 

1. Blanket Permit $742.00 
Payable annually on July 1, the fees for Franchised Utilities that plan to undertake 
maintenance work of existing facilities within the City shall be adjusted each year 
based on the Los Angeles - Long Beach Consumer Price Index (CPI), for work to be 
done within the public ROW.  Franchisee must have a current Franchise Agreement  
to obtain blanket maintenance permit. (SCE, Gas Co and Cox etc.) 

 

2. New Facilities Permit 
a. Minor Work  $98.00 
 The fee for minor work, i.e., trenches 40 sq. ft. or less in the traveled way 

(generally small repairs, service connections or service replacements). 

b. Major Work 
 Plans must be submitted to and approved by the Public Works Department prior 

to issuance of a Public Works Construction Permit. The fee for major work, i.e., 
longitudinal trenches and work in the traveled way in excess of 40 sq. ft.: 

 
i. 40 sq. ft. - 100 sq. ft.  $361.00 
ii. 100 sq. ft. - 6,500 sq. ft.  $402.00 + $1.75 per square-

foot over 100 square feet 
iii. 6,500 sq. ft. or more $1,009.00 + cost of 

inspection, but not less 
than $5,825.00 

c. Correction Notice  $191.00/trench 
In addition to the fees above, each Franchised Utility will be assessed a fee of 
$191.00 for each trench for which a correction notice is issued, resultant from 
identification during a trench inspection by Public Works Inspectors. 

 

B. Encroachment Permits 
For requests for issuance and recording of Encroachment Permits, leases, utility 
licenses and easements: 

 

97



 

 

1. Permanent 
a. Existing Improvements pre-1980  $1,720.00 
 For existing improvements built prior to January 1, 1980 on City-owned land or 

easements; and for Minor Encroachment Permits pursuant to Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code Section 10.55, as determined appropriate at the discretion of 
the Public Works Director. 

b. Proposed  $3,317.00 
 For proposed improvements to be built on City-owned land or easements. 

 

c. Existing improvements post 1980 $4,939.00 
For existing improvements built after January 1, 1980 on City-owned land or 
easements, other than lease extensions or renewals. 

d. PRE case         See Section I.D. 
 

C. Transportation Operations 
1. On Street Parking Restriction Waiver $17.00/space/day 
2. Permit for On Street Trash Bins/Roll offs $22.00/permit 

Permit valid for a period not to exceed five (5) days with a maximum of two (2) 
extensions 

3. Review of Traffic Control Plans (i.e., road detours, temporary road closures, 
pedestrian protection): 

Minor Work (Over the counter permit)        $32.00 

Major Work (Requires Supervising Transportation Engineer's review) $201.00  

4. Oversize Vehicles                                                   $17.00/trip or $95.00 annual fee 
Overweight Vechicles/ Haul Routes             $10/trip plus inspections as needed          

For the City authorization of an oversized vechicle (per State law) or overweight 
vehicle (per SBMC 10.36.040) using City streets. 

5. Permit for temporary street or lane closure  
Not to exceed two (2) calendar days. One two (2) day extension, which requires a 
new permit and an administrative processing fee of $99.00, may be granted. Includes 
lane closure and/or total road closure.  

$881.00/per 2 day permit 
 

D. Outdoor Dining and Landscape Pots and Street Furniture 
1. Chair Application Fee 

An Application Fee shall be charged for the review of plans for the placement of 
tables and chairs on the public sidewalk.  The Application Fee shall be calculated 
based on the time required to review the plan and perform a site inspection, using 
the hourly general rate of $99.00 per hour.  Applications for amendments to any 

98


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.PDF
	5.DOC
	6.PDF
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.PDF
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.PDF
	24.DOC
	25.PDF
	26.DOC
	27.DOC
	28.DOC
	29.DOC
	30.PDF
	31.DOC
	32.PDF
	33.DOC
	34.DOC
	35.DOC
	36.DOC
	37.DOC
	38.DOC
	39.DOC
	40.DOC
	41.DOC
	42.PDF
	43.DOC
	44.PDF
	45.DOC
	46.DOC
	47.PDF
	48.PDF
	49.PDF



